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Corporate Portfolio

NG

HC Group Inc. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
as the “Group”) endeavour to become the leading industrial internet
groups in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"” or “China”). Since
its establishment in 1992, the Company has been engaged in pragmatic
and robust development, managed to be listed on the GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in 2003 with its
stable performance and strength, and transferred its listing to the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange on 10 October 2014. As of 31 December 2021, the
Group had expanded its business to more than 100 cities nationwide, with
branches established in over ten cities and a service team of 1,468 individuals.

As one of the earliest B2B e-business platforms in China, the Group has
initiated its layout towards industrial internet on 17 January 2018. The Group
put forward its vision of “Striving to Becoming a Leading Industrial Internet
Group in China” and its mission of “Empowering Traditional Industries
with the Internet and Data”. In 2019, the Group established three business
segments including platform and corporate services, technology-driven new
retail as well as smart industries, which has invested and incubated several
significant vertical “runways” and formulated a comprehensive industrial
internet ecosystem.

Leveraging on hc360.com, the platform and corporate services segment
is committed to helping small and medium-sized enterprises (“SMEs") to
“improve business efficiency” by empowering traditional industries with
Internet platform products and technologies as well as constructing industry
data chains and business scenarios. The segment also “creates value for
customers” and serve China’s economic development by helping SMEs
accurately connect with quality businesses and products as well as promoting
the transformation and upgrade of SMEs. As the core operating entity of
the platform and corporate service segment, hc360.com sets “business
service platform for SMEs” as its strategy and “building an efficient business
closing loop” for corporate customers as the core value. At the same time,
the platform and corporate services segment also provides services including
micro-finance, finance leasing and factoring through other subsidiaries of the
Group.

In 2021, hc360.com launched in-depth strategic cooperation and
communication with industry associations including China National Hardware
Association, China Edible Fungi Association, China Energy Association (FF B &g
JE#E) and China Textile Commerce Association to jointly create “SMEs flow
empowerment and integrated marketing service solutions”. At the same time,
together with well-known brands such as Dentsu, Jin Shi Zun and MOUTAI (%
%), hc360.com launched a series of value-added activities for products and
services, empowering SMEs and helping them transform and upgrade.
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N EIBER

With zol.com.cn (ZOL) as the principal entity, the strategic objective of
technology-driven new retail segment is to create user diffusion with useful,
interesting and in-depth professional content, enhance user stickiness, and
improve industry influence, to model, parameterize and algorithmize users’
purchasing decisions by using difficult scenarios, to precipitate data asset and
build competitive barriers, and to transform high quality and efficiency into
core judgments for customer products and services, establishing long term
advantage. The Company also guides C-end consumers, SaaS tools, reversed
customization, and supply chain services, as well as enhances their ability to
secure customers, profitability and operational efficiency. Meanwhile, with the
channel data collected from small b and data analysis, we are able to provide
comprehensive “online + offline” marketing solutions to corporate customers
(big B) as well as the solutions to core requirements of various parties along
the 3C and home appliances industrial chain, forming a B2b2C business
model.

Last year, the Group adjusted and optimized the corporate organization
structure of the technology-driven new retail segment by establishing four
segments, namely “wise marketing”, “smart retail”, “smart enterprise
procurement segment” and “self-owned brand segment”.

The smart industries segment integrates several well-developed vertical
“runways” of the Group, including “PanPass” (a standard setter in the anti-
counterfeit traceability industry and the largest provider of loT solutions
for digital transformation, “Union Cotton” (an integrated e-business
service platform that covers the entire industrial chain of cotton, and
"ibuychem.com” (a long established supply chain service platform intensively
engaged in the plastics industry). “Focus” and “significant verticality” are
the Group's important strategies for the smart industries segment. HC Group
rapidly incubated several vertical “runways” by finding outstanding industry
experts and resulted in“dimension reduction” with its resources accumulated
over the past 30 years.
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2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—B--F —B-TF —FT-hE —FT)/\F —F—tF

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMTFR ARETE ARETL ARETT ARETE

Revenue and income BdIEE A RUA 17,405,835 14,544,074 14,832,832 10,583,111 3,702,466
(Loss)/Profit attributable to PN/ b
equity holders of B AL
the Company (E18) %A (663,110) (745,537) (376,490) 275,610 267,777
(Loss) Earnings per share TR (ER), /BT
(RMB) (AR¥TT)
— Basic —HAK (0.5062) (0.6018) (0.3360) 0.2462 0.2651
- Diluted — s (0.5062) (0.6018) (0.3360) 0.2458 0.2559
Financial position BRI
Net current assets BB EFE 1,353,484 649,878 716,935 1,233,990 1,578,519
Total assets BEE 5,629,771 6,636,737 8,426,473 8,767,955 7,334,553
Total liabilities wafE 2,081,376 2,610,958 3,696,761 3,546,331 2,877,424
Total equity HARERS 3,548,395 4,025,779 4,729,712 5,221,624 4,457,129
REVENUE AND INCOME (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (RMB)
BEHEW AR WA SR(E5E) BRA(ARET)
RMB’000 Basic Diluted
ARB T HAK E
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N S =
[ ] )
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S
@
- . 00
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REVENUE ANALYSIS

SHEBA DT
Technology- Platform and
driven new Smart corporate
retail industries services Discontinued
segment segment segment Subtotal operations Total
MEHEE BREX TRERE B&IE
BERE BRE BEEXRE Nt RExXK st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT
2021 T —F 1,072,470 16,083,099 233,092 17,388,661 17,174 17,405,835
2020 (Restated) =T -ZTF(4LEF) 1,022,760 13,164,243 328,240 14,515,243 28,831 14,544,074
Variance e 4.9% 22.2% -29.0% 19.8% -40.4% 19.7%
90.5%
92.4%

17,405,835 14,544,074

@ Platform and corporate services segment
TREPEREEER

Technology-driven new retail segment

M EEER

@ Discontinued operations
BRI ES

@ Smart industries segment

BEEXFERN

BREEERAT 2021 F£3f
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RECONCILIATION OF NON-HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARD (“HKFRS")
MEASURES TO THE NEAREST HKFRS MEASURES

To supplement our consolidated results which are prepared and presented
in accordance with HKFRS, we also use adjusted Earnings Before Interest,
Taxes, Depreciation and Amortisation (“EBITDA") and adjusted net loss as
additional financial measures, which are not required by, or presented in
accordance with HKFRS. We believe that these non-HKFRS measures facilitate
comparisons of operating performance from year to year and company to
company by eliminating potential impacts of items that our management
does not consider to be indicative of our operating performance such as
certain non-cash items and certain impact of investment transactions. The use
of these non-HKFRS measures have limitations as an analytical tool, and one
should not consider them in isolation from, or as a substitute for analysis of,
our results of operations or financial conditions as reported under HKFRS. In
addition, these non-HKFRS financial measures may be defined differently from
similar terms used by other companies.

The following tables set forth the reconciliations of our non-HKFRS financial
measures for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, to the nearest
measures prepared in accordance with HKFRS.

FERYBRERAN(ERMBRE
2R ) st RRENBRUBRETE
AR

BRERPIREE SIS REERRER 2512 A6
S48 REMERGEERE BB - FTEREHAT
EF(TEBITDA)) RIS BRE FHIEABINI 5
B - HIIE SRS EAORE - TIRESE
BWEEAIZT - ROTRA - REHEBAIREE
St EERHRERERA TR ARME M £E
WA (ETHRSER RETRARDZHE)
BRZBERE - HORITEEEANTRAEE T
RIRARIRZ L - KRS BRI RS A B
IEBSITTAFERRY - AFMREATBIRR
AR B PRI E SR S AR 2 AT R
BN Z AT © WeSh - HBIEBMBWE LR
B A 2 R R AT IR AL A R A R

= o

TEREVNBEMBE_ZS_—FR_ZT_FF+=A
=+ RAIFEZIFEBNEHRE LG EARER
B BHREENRR Y KFIEZHE -

Year ended 31 December

BE+-HA=t—HLEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARETTT
Loss for the year FRNEIE (610,081) (699,719)
Share based compensation PARRID A 2 f(E 22,683 60,496
Other losses/(gains), net HEE (W) T8 45,115 (69,781)
Impairment loss on goodwill and mEREEEERERE
intangible assets 483,985 540,693
Net (reversal of)/provision for TREERMERBIE(ER) BEFE
impairment losses on financial assets (25,088) 155,569
Adjusted net loss RAREEFE (83,386) (12,742)
Adjusted for BTV S EEL AR
Finance cost, net ISR AN H 58 38,056 123,700
Income tax expenses/(credit) FiERimEY(ER) 11,437 (121,756)
Depreciation and amortisation EREE 92,666 115,215
Adjusted EBITDA KR AEEBITDA 58,773 104,417

HC GROUP INC. ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Management’s Statement

EEERE

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the financial year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
generated a total revenue of approximately RMB17,388,661,000 (2020:
RMB14,515,243,000) from continuing operations, representing an increase of
approximately 19.8% as compared to that in 2020. The increase of revenue
was mainly attributable to (i) the continued gradual recovery of the economy
from the impact of the coronavirus pandemic; and (ii) the rising price of
chemical and cotton products.

For the Group's financial performance in different segments of continuing
operations, a total revenue of approximately RMB1,072,470,000 was
achieved from the segment of technology-driven new retail in 2021,
and represented an increase of approximately 4.9% from approximately
RMB1,022,760,000 in 2020. Revenue from the smart industries segment
increased from approximately RMB13,164,243,000 in 2020 to approximately
RMB16,083,099,000 in 2021 which represented an increase of approximately
22.2%. Revenue derived from platform and corporate services segment was
approximately RMB233,092,000 in 2021, which represented a decrease of
approximately 29.0% from approximately RMB328,240,000 in 2020.

During the Year, operating expenses of continuing operations decreased from
approximately RMB779,114,000 in 2020 to approximately RMB653,373,000
which was mainly due to the decrease of marketing and consultancy expenses
and amortization of share based payment.

The net financial cost decreased from approximately RMB123,700,000 in
2020 to approximately RMB38,056,000, which was resulted from the efforts
to reduce the interest bearing liabilities.

The loss from discontinued operations were mainly from Zhejiang Zhongfu
Network Technology Co., Ltd. which was disposed of on 28 December 2021
and Tianjin Guokai Ruitou Education Technology Co., Ltd. (with respect to
which the equity transfer agreement was enter into on 5 January 2021 and
the disposal has not been completed as at the date of this annual report). The
Group has discontinued the operation of integrated marketing and advertising
services operated by Huijia Yuantian Limited and the operation of the 020
business exhibition centre segment in the prior year. In accordance with
HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”,
the financial results of aforementioned business and the relevant impairment
expenses for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 were classified as
discontinued operations in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

B 75 B BE

BHE-_ T -+ - A=+—HBUIHHEE

AEBERECEEBRELEBRHEERADA

R #17,388661,00 L (Z T2 F : AR
14,515,243,0007T) * M- = FFIENMNAI19.8%
SHE WAL N EZ B0 BEREICHTE I A& I58
FERZRWER R TRABICERES LK -

MARERECEEBSEEHNIYBREAME - ©
:2:7¢XEM&%%%$¥ﬁZ@%¢WAm
B AREE1,072,470,00070 * RZZE_ZFHARE
1,022,760 ooom-ibuim 9% - BEEXFERH

EWABRZZE_TFHARYE3,164,243,0007T18E 0
#222%% —F = —F 4 AR¥16,083,099,0007T °
R-T—— ¢X5¥mﬂﬁ%%%$%ﬁ2%%WA

#95 AFR#233,092,0007T © &=
328,240,0007T 5,4 4929.0% °

Z_TFEHARE

FR - HEREEBZEERXA T 2FHPAR
#£779,114,000 708 2 2 #) A R #653,373,0007T
TE2HRNEHENEAE R N AR RER 2
A PTEL o

W AFEE T _FFHARE123,700,0007C
B E L AREE38,056,0007T © FEHN AR A
B & ERENE TYEFTER ©

BERIEEEB ZBRERREM T RAKRRE
BAR RERZZ-_—F+-A-t+/\BHE &
REREDRREHENEER AR (FHRESR
BN - —F—ARHY - BHEFENARF
WA ARTK) - AEEERBEFELILEERET
RERDAEENBESEHERESEREEBAKRO020
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RN EREANSBE T - FR-EF
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The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company was approximately
RMB663.1 million in the year ended 31 December 2021, while loss
attributable to equity holders of the Company of approximately RMB745.5
million was recorded in prior year. The loss was mainly attributable to, among
other things: (i) the Company has recognized impairment for the goodwill
and intangible assets of the new technology retail business unit, as further
explained in the next section, which amounted to approximately RMB484.0
million (2020: RMB540.7 million), (ii) the gross profit declined as a result
of the reduction of on-line advertising revenue, (iii) the loss from deemed
disposal and impairment provision of associates.

Regarding the disposed, discontinued operations, the management would
like to highlight that the Group has acquired or invested in certain companies
and business for development purposes in the past decade. Due to the
challenges imposed by macroeconomics and to align with the strategic
development goals of the Group, the Group began its transformation, which
included taking actions to lower its gearing ratio, integrating and optimising
its resources, discontinuing loss-making businesses and disinvesting from the
non-core businesses. The Group wishes to concentrate its resources to further
develop its core business (details of which are set out in the paragraphs
headed “Business Review” and “Prospect” in this Management'’s Statement).

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2021, the Group continued to work on its vision of becoming a leading
group for “Industrial Internet” in China by leveraging internet thinking,
instruments and methods to ramp up industrial efficiency, empower supply
chains and industrial chains, and establish a win-win ecosystem to serve
customers. By focusing on and integrating advantageous resources, the
Group's businesses are divided into three segments: namely the platform and
corporate services segment, the technology-driven new retail segment, and
the smart industries segment.

In 2021, approximately 6.2% of the Group's revenue was generated from the
technology-driven new retail segment, approximately 92.5% of the Group's
revenue was derived from the smart industries segment, approximately
1.3% of the Group's revenue was attributable to the platform and corporate
services segment.

HC GROUP INC. ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Management’s Statement
EEE®RE

Platform and corporate services segment

Leveraging on hc360.com, the platform and corporate services segment is
committed to help small and medium-sized enterprises ("SMEs”) to “improve
business operation efficiency” by empowering traditional industries with
Internet platform products and technologies and constructing industrial
data chains and business layouts, which “create value for customers”,
helping SMEs accurately connect with outstanding merchants and products,
promoting the transformation and upgrade of SMEs, and facilitating the
economic development of the PRC. “hc360.com”, being the core operation
entity of the platform and corporate services segment, has its strategy to
become the “operating service platform of SMEs”, with a core value of “build
an efficient business closed-loop” for corporate customers.

In 2021, as digitalization continued to apply in-depth, hc360.com endlessly
explores the construction of a new business model based on the industrial
internet, reconstructed product models, decision-making mechanisms,
organizational structures, and thoroughly upgraded the business capability
and digital technology capability. Based on the advantages of a deep
understanding of the industry, the control of upstream and downstream
resources, technology update and data pool, hc360.com connected the ends
of the industry supply and demand, served to form an active market, and
deeply empowered the industry. By means of “data + product + platform +
technology”, it empowers the industrial chain, enhances the competitiveness
of enterprises, promotes rapid entry of regions and industries into the digital
age, and rapidly drives the transformation and upgrading of the entire vertical
industry and the entire manufacturing industry.

In April 2021, hc360.com launched a specific iteration of the additional
capabilities of the original b2b.so.com product in view of the increasing
demand for mainstream media promotion from SMEs. In April 2021,
“outstanding product recommendation of b2b.so.com” was specially
launched to complete the placement and blessing of specific keywords for
SMEs on the basis of entry services, so as to obtain more prominent brand
display, more concentrated traffic acquisition and more prominent effect
conversion.

In May 2021, the “Lectures from Famous Procurement Experts of hc360.
com”, a series of live broadcast events, was launched. It invited well-known
lecturers, such as Gong Xunwei, to provide professional content services
that integrate purchasing, supply chain management, enterprise digital
transformation, bidding and taxation, etc. in one for SMEs on hc360.com all-
media platform, created a data flow pool that connected the whole network,
and achieved good results in membership building, service expansion and
brand communication. In the same month, “hc360.com Gold Medal Finder”,
a recruitment campaign, was launched.

11
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In September 2021, the “Homepage and Resource Site of hc360.com”
completed a new round of upgrades. The core focus of the upgrade was
on three areas, namely the layout of resources for key scenes, support for
industry zones, and in-depth operation of key scenes. The resources of 24
core competitive industries and nearly 900 core product categories have
been increased with this upgrade. It also developed independent regional
industry belt resources and supplier thematic scenes. Ultimately, the upgraded
hc360.com shows significant improvement in terms of resource integration
capability, specialization level and industry belt support capability.

In December 2021, hc360.com continued to extend the in-depth contact
cooperation with mainstream Internet media in response to the huge brand
promotion and customer acquisition needs of SMEs. b2b.so.com, a product
that serves Huishengyi members, entered phase 2.0 development, where
Huishengyi members can now gain access to key portals on the main media
platforms and business opportunities in the search results of b2b.so.com.
Meanwhile, hc360.com has launched a new “pop-up recommendation”
service to meet the extremely strong demand of SMEs for keyword placement.

In 2021, hc360.com commenced an in-depth strategic cooperation and
communication with industry associations such as China National Hardware
Association, China Edible Fungi Association, China Energy Association
and China Textile Commerce Association to jointly create a “SMEs Traffic
Empowerment and Integrated Marketing Service Solution”. In addition,
hc360.com joined hands with well-known brands such as Dentsu, Jin Shi
Zun and ¥ & EHHE$H2 A to launch a series of value-added activities of
products and services that empowered SMEs and helped them transform and
upgrade.

During 2021, hc360.com received a number of honors: in March, hc360.
com became a member of the “China Enterprise Digital Alliance”, obtained
the application qualification for “2021 The Collection for Achievements of
China Enterprise Reform and Development”, won the “2021 Baidu Marketing
Creative/Content Service Provider Award” and “2021 360 Smart Business
Best Partner Award”.

In addition, in 2021, hc360.com initiated the research and development of
“new SCRM products”. Starting from its own business scenarios, this work
completed the iteration of the mid- and back-end product for the sales
system and service system, further improved the customer management and
service capabilities of the platform which formed a new SCRM product. It also
realized the digital upgrade of its own business management system.
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Technology-driven New Retail Segment

The technology-driven new retail segment takes ZOL (zol.com.cn, “ZOL") as
the main body. Its strategic goals are to enlarge its influence in the industry
by increasing user loyalty through transforming user behaviour with useful,
interesting and in-depth professional content; to accumulate data assets and
grow competitive barriers by applying model, parameters and algorithms
to user procurement decisions making and difficult scenarios for constant
iterations; and to establish long-term advantages by taking high-quality
and efficient transformation as the core criteria for customer products and
services. The segment also aims at connecting retailers (small b) through
guiding C-end consumers, SaaS (Software as a Service) tools, reversed
customisation, and supply chain services, as well as enhancing their ability to
secure customers, profitability and operational efficiency. Meanwhile, with the
channel data collected from small b and data analysis, we are able to provide
comprehensive “online + offline” marketing solutions to corporate customers
(big B), as well as forming a B2b2C business model with solutions that cater
to the core needs of various parties along the 3C and home appliances
industrial chain.

The technology-driven new retail segment is mainly divided into four sectors,
namely “smart marketing”, “smart retail”, “smart enterprise procurement
sector” and “self-owned brand sector”. As a shopping guide platform for
life technology products, “smart marketing” is a leading vertical portal and
gathering place for smart life experience in China. ZOL is committed to
delivering the latest technology from an interesting, quality and valuable
perspective, building user-oriented “bidirectional lossless communication”
between brand manufacturers and consumers, and increasing value for
both brand and product. At the same time, with the help of smart life
experience officers, consumers are offered with ultimate personalized smart
life proposition in full scene including home, travel, office, video and audio
entertainment, sports and health. By fully leveraging on the advantages of
leading media in technological industry, there are over 50 million registered
users, with 200 professional articles published every day, and an average
daily exposure of the whole site of 237 million times. UGC users produce
3,500 posts and 230 videos every day, influencing 70 million people in the
science and technology industry on average every month. At the same time,
the content covers mainstream platforms such as ZOL's main site, Baidu,
ByteDance, JD.com, Taobao and Bilibili, making consumption choices easier
and more pleasant for users.

Four core service capabilities: the most comprehensive solution for new
products and hot products, the most complete content promotion platform
on the entire network, the world’s largest gathering place for technology
enthusiasts, and the only official TP of Baidu’s technology applet, make
this segment the only full scene solution provider in the technology field.
In 2022, it was recognized by the Beijing Municipal Bureau of Economy
and Information Technology as one of the first batch of “Specialised,
Sophisticated, Special and New (F#E45%1) " small and medium-sized
enterprises in Beijing in 2022.
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“Smart Retail” is committed to becoming a national comprehensive service
platform for technology industry interconnection with leading technology
and efficient operation. Through the new retail solution of “supply chain +
SaaS + localization service”, it empowers traditional retailers to upgrade and
transform, and helps brand manufacturers sink their digital channels, making
business operation easier. It has three major business divisions: Member Store
Division, E-Commerce Division, and Government and Enterprise Division,
and self-develops three smart products, including ZOL Huimaimai, ZOL
Huixiaodian, and ZOL Cloud Shelf. Its business covers 19 provinces across the
country, influencing over 30,000+ service retailers.

For “smart enterprise procurement sector”, i.e. ZOL business (http:/Avww.zol.com/),
it has created six functional platforms with the core components of supply
chain financing, media information flow services, supply chain output and
product customisation, procurement platform solutions, value-added after-
sales service, and the digital logistics platforms, providing efficient, one-stop,
customised and intelligent cloud procurement solutions as well as precise
guotations for government and corporate customers, empowering industrial
partners with ToG capacity and allowing competent manufacturers to become
suppliers of government and corporate procurement.

For “brand sector”, RHT air purifier which was invented by JV parties “RHT”
is a national brand independently developed and patented in Hong Kong,
China. It has been designated as the supplier of air purifier system and
fresh air system by certain Fortune Global 500 companies. With the globally
patented core technology, NCCO is the first air purifier brand in Mainland
China to obtain the German TUV Rheinland certification. Currently, it is
providing services for nearly 100 hospitals in over 10 countries around the
world.

The Group acquired Zale Inc. in 2018. Zale Inc. and its subsidiaries operates
as a SaaS (Software as a Service) provider in 3C industrial internet and new
technology retails in the PRC. The Company has provided an impairment loss
of approximately RMB454 million and RMB30 million, respectively on goodwill
and intangible assets related to Zale Inc. and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2021. Please see “Management Discussion and Analysis
— Impairment of Assets” on page 63 and note 19 of the consolidated financial
statements for details.
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Smart Industries Segment

The smart industries segment mainly comprises of PanPass, an Internet of
Things (“1oT") solutions provider for digital transformation, Union Cotton,
a digital service platform for textile supply chain, and ibuychem.com, which
is positioned to provide centralised purchasing and integrated e-business
service for chemicals and plastics. “Focus” and “significant verticality” are the
Group's important strategies for the smart industries segment.

Beijing PanPass Information Technology Co., Ltd. (At FJIk{515 BERAMTH%
BT (“PanPass”) or (“PanPass Information”) (NEEQ Stock Code:
430073) is one of the earliest national high-tech enterprise in the industry to
research product digital identity management technology and applications.
Based on the “One Product, One Code” loT, PanPass provides a full stack
of digital solutions including algorithms, software and hardware products to
empower enterprises to realize the transformation and upgrade of production
digitization, pipeline digitization, marketing digitization, operation digitization
and decision digitization, helping enterprises in improving efficiency, lean
management and model innovation, and ultimately attain business growth.
As an industry benchmark enterprise, PanPass has a technical research
and development team with over 100 staff, more than 100 self-developed
intellectual property rights, 6 service platforms covering full scene and the
whole chain, 15 most comprehensive and well-established solutions in the
industry, 6 industry’s original core technology security systems, more than 15
billion codes per year, the industry’s most cutting-edge technology framework
and evolutionary algorithms and new technology applications, and the
industry’s highest production line digital correlation accuracy. After nearly
30 years of deep industry cultivation, it has gained the trust and cooperation
of more than 5,000 core customers and has the experience of national key
projects. PanPass continues to provide professional services to customers with
lean management and a team of experts, 8 service centers, 48 marketing
channels and strategic partners of the world’s top hardware brands.

In January 2021, PanPass shares ushered in a brand strategy upgrade.
The new brand logo symbolizes empowerment of traditional industries,
industry interoperability and integration, and fully demonstrates the strategic
planning in the field of industrial digitalization. The new logo is both visually
technological and fashionable. At the same time, to optimize the customer
experience, company’s website, customer service hotline and process
have also been upgraded to fully implement the “customer first” business
philosophy.
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In February 2021, the “PanPass One-Code SaaS" (JK{s—1#&3@SaaS) product
was upgraded to its version 6.0. The new version not only meets the
needs of SMEs for rapid transformation of production lines and convenient
deployment, but also supports the all-round customised development of
functions such as production and warehouse management, channel control,
anti-counterfeiting page configuration, logistics control, marketing activities,
member management and data statistics. It is a digital enterprise service
product platform that covers the entire industry chain developed by PanPass,
representing a product of more than 20 year-experience in serving major
customers.

In March 2021, following the brand upgrade, PanPass launched its official
English website, to show the brand image and business value of PanPass to
overseas customers and increase the voice of PanPass in the overseas and
international market of anti-counterfeiting traceability and digital upgrade,
strengthening the communication with overseas customers.

In 2021, PanPass performed well and steadily in customer cooperation,
and obtained further in-depth cooperation with existing customers such
as Kweichow Moutai, Lang Jiu, Luzhou Laojiao, Lulu (§8%%), PetroChina,
Junlebao, 3M, Tong Ren Tang and Shanghai Volkswagen, etc. At the same
time, it has won the trust and cooperation of more industry leaders, such as
Yingjia Gongjiu (@& &), Diaoyutai State Guest Wine ($Jfa & RE/H%),
Qiagia (}47&), Nongfu Spring, SDIC Xinjiang Lop Nor Potash (B #Ti= 4 H
SA$MEE), China Aluminum Rare Earth, Huishan Dairy (J8|L1 %), Huaxi Seed
of Xinjiang (FEFRTEZE), Li Auto Inc. (FB48/5E), etc., which has broadened
the solutions and application in the fields of digitalization, UID, RFID and
other fields of the whole case industry, accumulating valuable experience and
product transformation foundation for the development of enterprises.
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2021 is a year of honor and recognition for PanPass: in January, PanPass
won the title of 2020 “Beijing Integrity Enterprise” (t Rm#{E8IE
%), becoming an officially recognized credible brand and industry integrity
management advocate; in March, PanPass won the title of “Beijing User
Satisfaction Enterprise” b R A Pim =1 %). The award was granted by the
Beijing Social Enterprise Quality Association (Jt Rt &b EME #%E), and only
three companies in each industry could be shortlisted according to evaluation
criteria; in September, PanPass won the annual list of “Top 100 Small and
Medium-sized Private Enterprises in Beijing”. The evaluation index system
includes core indicators such as business operation, industry focus, innovation
ability, technical level, R&D investment, degree of specialization, and degree
of refinement; in October, the “digital holographic anti-counterfeiting
technology product” jointly produced by PanPass’s “New Material R&D
Department” and “Intellectual Property Rights Department” won the “Second
prize of anti-counterfeiting Science and Technology” awarded by China Anti-
counterfeiting Industry Association by virtue of its technological innovation
in the field of product digital identity management. In November, PanPass
won the “2021 Best Industrial Internet Service Provider in Manufacturing
Industry” award. The award affirmed the service ability of PanPass in the
field of “One Product, One Code” full-link digitalization. It has outstanding
excavation and innovation in various fields such as enterprise efficiency,
innovation, growth, technology and digital transformation. “Thousand
Enterprises and Thousands of Faces” created a customized comprehensive
digital management system for enterprises, which could continue to provide
better services for manufacturing enterprises; in December, PanPass won the
“Best Digital Product of 2021"” award and the title of “Excellent Brand of
Digital Application in 2021". The award commended PanPass’s use of product
digital identity management technology to improve the level of management
intelligence and collaboration, which was around the collection, transmission,
processing and use of data, driving the digital transformation of all links in
the industrial chain, and helping the manufacturing industry to improve the
quality and efficiency of its efforts and contributions.

In 2021, PanPass is also making efforts in many aspects such as talent
introduction, personnel training, organizational culture construction, market
publicity exposure, and ecological linkage, and has improved in terms of
business internal strength, brand influence and customer acquisition ability.
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“Union Cotton”, a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, is positioned
in the 10 trillion-level textile and apparel market and is an extraordinary
digital service platform for the textile supply chain that possesses advanced
Internet and Al technology, leading loT application concept, smart algorithm
for big data and efficient transaction and supporting services. Leveraging
on constructing an enterprises integrity alliance system for upstream and
downstream industrial chain, the Group strives to create a novel industrial
chain ecological environment with online trading of cotton, polyester fiber,
yarn and other textile raw materials and textile products as the core, which
solves the pain points such as difficulties in procurement and financing, high
cost and low efficiency for enterprises in the upstream and downstream of the
industrial chain, provides customers with digitalized supply chain management
and supporting services for the textile industry, such as accurate matching of
transactions, commissioned sales and procurement, logistics and distribution,
supply chain services, data information and quality inquiries, as well as
promotes the in-depth integration and allocation of industrial resources.
Through Internet technology and big data, the Group will improve the synergy
efficiency of the supply chain of the cotton and textile industry and focus on
building an open, smart, efficient and convenient textile manufacturing-based
digital textile industry Internet platform through the in-depth implantation of
loT devices.

In April 2021, Union Cotton won the title of 2020 “Shanghai Excellent
Enterprise of Industrial Internet” (L/§MEZEGBHAESLE). In the
same month, Union Cotton officially launched its polyester staple and yarn
categories, and became a multi-category digital service platform for the textile
industry chain. In June 2021, Union Cotton won the title of “2021 Top 10
Most Popular Internet Platforms for the Chinese Textile Industry” (20214
EPFESTENN S T2 ER8YS) jointly granted by China National
Textile and Apparel Council (FE# % T¥BASE), the Department of
Industry and Information Technology of Shandong Province (LU %& T /{5
BALEE), the Internet Industry Working Committee of AIITRE (R {58 BBt EE
#¥ T{EZ B =) and China Wool Industry Association (FEIFERS).

In July 2021, Union Cotton fully promoted its strategic transformation
and upgrade. Its polyester and yarn segments have an operational scale
of over RMB100 million, as Union Cotton emerged from the industry and
yielded the initial effect from the strategic upgrading of its service model of
developing cotton, polyester fibre and yarn varieties at the same time, which
comprehensively enhanced the service capability for enterprises in the cotton
textile industry chain.
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In August 2021, the Group obtained financing in the amount of RMB150
million from Huizhou Daya Bay Sci-Tech No. 2 Investment Partnership
Enterprise (Limited Partnership) (RN A& @EIE —FRES BT ZE (BR
&%) ), a fund platform company managed by Huizhou Daya Bay Innovation
Investment Management Co., Ltd. (EINKGEAFIZEEERAR A
under the SASAC of Huizhou Daya Bay, and has completed the completlon
procedure in 2021.

In December 2021, the 8th China Industry Internet Conference (F B & 2£ 5 B
4K =) announced the “Top 100 Companies in China’s Industrial Internet of
2021" (20217 FRE ¥ B B A8 B 98%%). Union Cotton was ranked 59th, up 15
places from 2020, and remained on the top 100 list for six consecutive years.
In the same month, Cotton Union’s product development advanced to a
new stage, as a comprehensive multi-category mall, CRM system support for
multiple business segments, customer accounts and customer credit system
and a comprehensive risk control system have been set up in the company’s
trading system.

By the end of 2021, the total turnover of Union Cotton Cloud Platform (1%
%EF 4) exceeded RMB21 billion, with a monthly cumulative transaction
amount of over RMB1 billion. The company has 3 patents obtained, 3 patents
under application, as well as 22 software copyrights, enjoying industry-leading
position in terms of the scale and strength of its research and development
and extensive market influence and sound business reputation.

Positioned to provide centralised purchasing and integrated e-business service
for upstream and downstream of chemicals material industry chain, ibuychem.
com was incubated by the Group as a non-wholly-owned subsidiary in March
2015, and originated from the HC chemicals industries segment established
by the Group over 20 years ago. It has developed into a leading B2B
platform in the domestic chemical industry. Its services cover over one million
enterprises in the China elementary chemical products, rubber and plastics as
well as coating and application industry chain in China.

In 2021, ibuychem.com implemented a strategic transformation and
independently spun off two e-commerce platforms that provide information
services and trading services. The information service platform-Huizheng News
(www.hzeyun.com) focuses contents on business news, financial news and
index research, and provides registered users with daily chemical and plastic
index analysis, research reports, expert technology, industry news and product
information through graphics, videos and other media formats, so as to
provide essential intelligence information for business operations. The trading
service platform-ibuychem.com (www.ibuychem.com) focuses on spot trading
in the upstream and downstream of chemical materials, as well as the digital
platform services required for pre-sale, in-sale and after-sale of spot trading.
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ibuychem.com attaches importance to industrial Internet service model
that combines online and offline operation, holding several offline business
activities during 2021 and cooperating with local industry associations in
provinces such as Guangdong, Zhejiang and Jiangsu to realize online digital
services in industrial zones. In addition, ibuychem.com actively participated in
the construction of Xiong’an New District through hosting online shopping
festivals such as Xiong’an New District Industrial Products Online Shopping
Festival and Resettlement Area Return Home Decoration Festival. It also
gathered domestic and foreign building materials companies to paint Xiong'an
nursing homes for public welfare, and donated supplies of over RMB200,000.

ibuychem.com has been listed in the “Top 100 Companies in China’s
Industrial Internet” for twelve consecutive years. In 2021, ibuychem.com
obtaining new 9 software copyrights, covering product functions such as
e-card, procurement bidding, WeChat quotation, word-of-mouth list and
logistics service and obtained “Chemical Industry Deep Work Award” from PR
Newswire. ibuychem.com and WZ Group released the “2021 Coat Industry
Development and Supply Chain Compliance Report in China” to guide the
integrity of enterprises on the building materials industry chain. Entrusted by
Guangdong Testing Institute of Product Quality Supervision, we released the
“Summary of Questionnaire Survey on the Use of Food Packaging Materials,
Plastic Packaging for Daily Products, Plastic Packaging Bags and Plastics
for Electrical Appliances” and the “Coating Industry Quality Improvement
Technical Service Research Report in Shunde”, which were submitted to
the local government as practical basis for guiding the transformation and
upgrading of enterprises.

Prospect

The overall trend of the internet has evolved from consumption internet to
an era of industrial internet with a largely completed social ecosystem. In
order to meet the challenges, the Group has been engaged in full strategic
transformation since October 2017, and is committed to becoming a leading
industrial Internet company in China.
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Management’s Statement
EEE®RE

With 23 years of operation in the technology vertical field and by fully
leveraging its advantages as the leading technology media, ZOL had an
average daily exposure of 237 million times, 3,500 daily posts and 230 daily
videos from UGC users, and monthly average influence of 70 million crowds
of technology. Its content covered mainstream platforms such as ZOL, Baidu,
ByteDance-series, JD.com, Taobo and bilibili, allowing users to make simpler
and happier choices. Through the “Smart Supply Chain Integration + Saas
+ Localization Service” model of the sales and purchase platform, ZOL has
gathered over 100 home appliance brands, selected over 2,000 SKUs, and
empowered over 30,000 traditional retail stores to sell more products and
connect more consumers. The Saa$S tools and 7+ empowerment systems have
increased store influence, which empowered stores to reduce costs, increase
efficiency and upgrade transformation, while helping brand manufacturers
to connect more traditional retailers and realize the digital precipitation
of channel market. In 2022, ZOL was recognized by the Beijing Municipal
Bureau of Economy and Information Technology as Small and Medium-
sized Enterprises with ”Specialized and New Technology” certification. In the
future, the Company will commit to becoming the preferred shopping guide
platform for new consumer power of life and technology products, with user
first as guidance and helping customers to buy products as its mission to
empower the industry.

In 2021, PanPass continued to upgrade industrial digitization, adhering to
the strategic positioning of “full chain digital transformation services with
one product one code”. On one hand, the Company strengthened its core
competitive edge by lean management, which gained the trust from and
continuous cooperation with its core customers while successfully signing
up with new customers in various industries. In the beginning of 2022,
the Company successfully engaged a number of strategic customers such
as Dong Lai Shun, Yilite and The Commercial Press. On the other hand,
PanPass actively researched and developed its own intellectual property in key
technologies, and obtained 17 software copyright certificates and 5 invention
patents in 2021. In 2022, the Company continued to increase its investment
in technology research and development and strengthen the recruitment
and cultivation of talents, aiming to strengthen the Company’s independent
innovation capability, consolidate its industry benchmark position and stand
invincible in market competition.
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Industrial internet is the process of restoring users’ behaviour, understanding
their pain points and reviewing industries across multiple industries. Based
on such consideration, in the smart industries segment, we will operate the
Company in a cooperative model of “joint investment + incubation” with
industrial practitioners. In addition, the Group will assist vertical companies to
strengthen technology, upgrade products, and connect investment financing
and traffic resources. Industrial business logic will serve as the basis to observe
the business behaviour of customers step by step, dissect the behaviour of
customers in business, identify their pain points and turn them into solutions
through the internet, before providing customers with one-stop solutions
based on the entire industry chain. One of the commercial values of vertical
companies is to enable internet and data capabilities in vertical segments and
assist upstream and downstream customers to reduce costs and enhance
efficiency.

The Group will continue to actively develop hc360.com. As the Internet
industry develops, issues such as low operational efficiency, difficulties in
marketing products, long supply chain and imperfect supporting services of
B-end enterprises stood out, yet the demand for enquiry, clues and promotion
services remains strong. At the industry level, hc360.com has been cultivating
the B-end industry for 30 years and has accumulated a large amount of
resources for both buyers and sellers, possessing advantages such as deep
understanding of vertical industries, the control of upstream and downstream
resources, technology updates and data reserves. In addition, we also built a
middle-level platform of hc360.com with an open and cooperative mindset,
reconstructed the product model and decision-making mechanism, and built
a new business model based on industrial internet in terms of commercial
capabilities and digital technology capabilities. At the touch point end, hc360.
com actively cooperates with Internet traffic giants such as 360 Search and
Baidu to enhance its ability to reach precise customers on the basis of fully
utilizing the advantages of industry resources. At the same time, the Group
has extensive sales system and product development capabilities. hc360.com
will continue to focus on “creating value for customers” by upgrading
its service tools and methods for marketing, developing traffic resources,
acquiring business opportunities for small and medium-sized enterprises,
enhancing the core competitiveness of B-end enterprises and contributing
to the promotion of the overall transformation and upgrading of the
manufacturing industry.
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Management’s Statement
EEE®RE

Under the present international situation, the global pandemic is still ongoing,
the world’s economic recovery lacks momentum and commodity prices
fluctuate at high level, making the external environment more complex,
severe and uncertain. From a domestic view, economic development is
unprecedentedly facing triple pressures from demand contraction, supply
impact and weakening expectations, pandemic outbreaks at local level from
time to time, the new economic downward pressure stands out and the
difficulty of maintaining stable economic growth has increased significantly.
In particular, domestic SMEs are facing practical issues such as difficulties
in resuming production, high operating costs, insufficient market demand,
industrial chain downturn and shrinking financing channels. In the future,
hc360.com will continue to empower traditional industries with Internet tools,
improve industry efficiency, assist SMEs in transition and adjustment, so as to
create value for customers.

At last, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to thank
the management and every staff member of the Group for their on-going
dedication and hard work over the past year.

Liu Jun
Chairman

Hong Kong
25 March 2022
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DIRECTORS
As at 31st December 2021, the Board comprised:

Executive Directors

LIU Jun

Aged 44, is an executive Director and the chairman of the Company, he is also
the chairman of the nomination committee of the Company (the”Nomination
Committee”) and a member of the remuneration committee of the Company
(the “Remuneration Committee”). Mr. Liu was appointed as an executive
Director with effect from 12 September 2016. He also acted as the chief
executive officer of the Group from October 2017 to January 2019.

From 2004 to 2011, Mr. Liu was the chief executive officer of FESEEHR
FR A F] (Yigao Group Company Limited*) leading the company to enter into
the information technology businesses. Mr. Liu has also been a director of
several subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Liu has obtained a Master’s degree
in Chemical Engineering from Zhejiang University in March 2004 and a
Bachelor’s degree in Chemical Engineering, Bio-engineering and Chemical
Processing from Zhejiang University as well in June 2000. Mr. Liu is currently
a member of the 6th Beijing Changping District Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference.

ZHANG Yonghong

Aged 54, is an executive Director and the chief executive officer of the
Company. Mr. Zhang was appointed as an executive Director with effect from
4 January 2019.

Mr. Zhang joined the Group on 26 August 2018 and served as the co-
president of the Group. He has been the chief executive officer of the Group
since 4 January 2019.

Mr. Zhang served as the deputy general manager at the business department
of Lenovo Group Limited (86485 & HBR A 5]) (Stock code: 992), a company
listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”), from April 1993 to June 1996. From October 1998 to
November 2009, he was the vice president at China Hewlett-Packard Co.,
Ltd.* (FEEZL AR /A T]). Between November 2009 to October 2015, Mr.
Zhang had worked as the general manager of the PRC operations department
at Acer Group* (RE%£E).

Between December 2015 to August 2018, Mr. Zhang was the deputy
president of operations and executive deputy president of Tsinghua Unigroup
Limited* (52} EE AR A F]). Mr. Zhang served as a director of Unisplendour
Corporation Limited* (%A% {nEBRAR]) (Stock code: 000938), a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, from April 2016 to June 2017.

* English names are translated for identification purpose only.
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From November 2017 to August 2018, Mr. Zhang was also the director and
a chairman of the board of directors of 500.com Limited (5005 2248), a
company listed on the New York Stock Exchange (Stock code: WBAI).

Mr. Zhang has been the chairman of the board of directors and the general
manager of Beijing Panpass Information Technology Co., Ltd* (bt R=IK{51E
BRI BBR AT, a subsidiary of the Company whose shares are quoted
on the National Equities Exchange and Quotations System (the New Third
Board*), Stock code: 430073, “PanPass Information”), since September and
December 2018, respectively.

Mr. Zhang graduated and obtained a Bachelor’s degree from the Department
of Precision Instrument of Tsinghua University in July 1990, and obtained a
Master’s degree of Science in Engineering from the University of Science and
Technology of China in 1993.

LIU Xiaodong
Aged 49, is an executive Director and the president of the Company. Mr. Liu
was appointed as an executive Director with effect from 1 June 2018.

Mr. Liu has also been a director of several subsidiaries of the Group. In July
2015, the Group has completed the full acquisition of zol.com.cn. Mr. Liu
joined zol.com.cn in 2000 and served as a general manager of zol.com.cn in
2004. Mr. Liu also served as the vice president of CNET (China) in 2008. He
served as a vice president of CBSI (China), a general manager of technology
cluster and the consumer cluster of CBSI (China) from 2008 to 2014. Since
2015, he served as a chief executive officer of zol.com.cn. Mr. Liu has over 20
years of experience in media operation and management in the TMT field. Mr.
Liu graduated and obtained a Bachelor’s degree from International Modern
Design Art College Of Inner Mongolia Normal University in July 1997, and
obtained a Master’s degree of Business Administration from China Europe
International Business School in 2011.

* English names are translated for identification purpose only.
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Non-Executive Directors

GUO Fansheng

Aged 66, is a non-executive Director. Mr. Guo was appointed as an executive
Director on 21 March 2000, and was re-designated as a non-executive
Director on 18 October 2017. Mr. Guo served as the chairman of the
Company from 31 March 2008 to 18 October 2017.

Mr. Guo founded the Group in October 1992 and served as the chief
executive officer of the Company until 31 March 2008. Mr. Guo is currently
the chairman of the Inner Mongolia Chamber of Commerce in Beijing. From
1990 to 1992, Mr. Guo worked as a manager in a State-owned business
information company in Beijing, the PRC. From 1987 to 1990, Mr. Guo
served as a officer of the Liaison Office and General Office of the Institute
of Economic System Reform under the B EEHNELZE L (State
Commission for Economic Restructuring*), and as the deputy officer of 7
ZBFAEEIZE R L (the Western China Development Research Centre*). Prior
to working at the State Commission for Economic Restructuring, Mr. Guo
served from 1982 to 1987 as a senior official in the government of the Inner
Mongolia Autonomous Region. Mr. Guo obtained a bachelor degree in
industrial economics from Renmin University of China, the PRC in 1982.

SUN Yang

Aged 50, is a non-executive Director and a member of the Remuneration
Committee. Mr. Sun was appointed as a non-executive Director with effect
from 27 May 2019.

Mr. Sun is currently the senior vice president of Digital China Holdings
Limited (f& ) EUSIZRZ G R 2 7) (@ company listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange with stock code: 00861.HK) (“Digital China Holdings”), the
chairman of the Supervisory Committee of Digital China Information Service
Company Ltd. (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange with stock
code: 000555.5Z) and the chairman of Digital China Software Limited (341 £
MR AR,

Mr. Sun worked for Bank of China Limited (fFFE$R77) from July 1995 to
November 1999. After that, he had been the assistant general manager and
the deputy general manager of the information technology department of
China Orient Asset Management Co., Ltd. (FREHFEEEERMHER A
7], formerly known as R EEH 5 & EE A R]) from November 1999 to April
2013, the deputy general manager for Orient Bangtong Rongtong Holding
Co., Ltd.GR 7 B ERumZER M BR A A, formerly known as Bangxin
Huirong Holdings Co., Ltd.* ({5 Bl &R ARG AR A ) from April
2013 to July 2017, the chairman of the board of directors of Dongfang
Bangxin Financial Technology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.* (R H{=& mrlH( &)
ABR/A7]) from March 2014 to July 2017, the deputy general manager for
the Dongfang Jincheng International Trust Valuation Limited* (3875 % 3 EFR
ERAHEAR A F) from June 2017 to November 2017.

* English names are translated for identification purpose only.
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Mr. Sun graduated with a bachelor’s degree of engineering in applied
computing from Harbin University of Science and Technology (M 8/&IE T
KE) in July 1995 and with a master’s degree in engineering from Beijing
University of Posts and Telecommunications (3t RE % K £2) in January 2010.

LIN Dewei
Aged 61, is a non-executive Director. Mr. Lin was appointed as a non-
executive Director with effect from 1 July 2020.

Mr. Lin has approximately 25 years of experience in the legal field and worked
as a part-time lawyer at various law firms in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC") between 1995 and 2001. In 2001, Mr. Lin practiced as a lawyer
at Guangdong Everwin Law Office and became a partner of the firm in 2004.
Since 2013, Mr. Lin has been practicing as a lawyer at Guangdong Yogo
Law Firm. Mr. Lin was appointed as a non-executive director of China Lesso
Group Holdings Limited (a company listed on Stock Exchange, stock code:
2128) on 27 February 2010, and was redesignated as an executive director
of that company on 11 July 2018. Mr. Lin obtained a bachelor’s degree in
science from South China University of Technology (formerly known as South
China Institute of Technology) in July 1982 and received a certificate of lawyer
qualification in the PRC in January 1990.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

ZHANG Ke

Aged 68, is an independent non-executive Director. He is the chairman of
the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee, respectively, and
a member of the Nomination Committee. Mr. Zhang was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 28 March 2003.

Mr. Zhang is a certified public accountant in the PRC and is the founding
partner of Shine Wing Certified Public Accountants. He graduated from
Renmin University of China in 1982 with a bachelor degree in economics
majoring in industry economics. He has many years of experience in the fields
of economics, accounting and finance. Mr. Zhang was the vice-president
of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and is currently a
member of Internal Control Standard Committee of the Ministry of Finance of
the PRC and the Chief Supervisor of Beijing Association of Forensic Science.
Mr. Zhang is currently acting an independent non-executive director of China
Coal Energy Company Limited (Bl EEEIRAL D BRAR], a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, Stock code: 1898 and the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, Stock code: 601898), and an independent director
of FEHHREEMBMNER AT (CITIC Press Group Corporation*, a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, Stock code: 300788).

* English names are translated for identification purpose only.
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ZHANG Tim Tianwei

Aged 58, is an independent non-executive Director. He is also a member
of each of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee.
Mr. Zhang was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 1
November 2011.

Mr. Zhang is currently the chief investment officer of China Resources Capital
Management Ltd. He was the founder and managing director of Taconic
Capital Ltd. from September 2003 to September 2005. He acted as the vice
chairman and general manager of Unicredit China Capital Limited from
September 2005 to June 2007. He served as the managing director of J.P.
Morgan Securities (Asia Pacific) from July 2007 to October 2011 and acted
as the chairman of J.P. Morgan (China) Venture Capital Investment Co. Ltd.
Since its foundation in 2010 to October 2011. He served as the managing
director of Taconic Capital Group from November 2011 to March 2012, and as
the chief operating officer of China Merchants Capital Management Limited
from April 2012 to December 2014. He is the managing director of Mount
Flag Capital Ltd. from January 2015 to September 2018 and was also the
chief executive officer of Mount Flag LLC from August 2015 to September
2018.

Mr. Zhang graduated from Tsinghua University (E% K£) at the Faculty of
Precision Instruments & Mechanology in July 1986. He obtained a Master
of Economics from the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences (Bt @RI £
Bt) and a Master of Business Administration (MBA) from The University of
Chicago. Mr. Zhang has over 20 years of experience in financial and business
management.
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QI Yan

Aged 72, is an independent non-executive Director and a member of the
Audit committee and the Remuneration Committee. Ms. Qi was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 30 November 2017.

Ms. Qi is currently the senior consultant (senior vice president grade) of
Xiaomi Corporation, a company listed on Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 1810). She served in BEE&EEIERHTER A A (Aigo Digital
Technology Co., Ltd*) as a vice president from September 2004 to September
2011, and was subsequently promoted to the vice chairman and the chief
executive officer from September 2011 to March 2012. She also served in &
B EETFRHEAR A A (Aigo Electronics Technology Co. Ltd*) as the chief
executive officer from March 2012 to December 2012. She has over 20 years’
experience in business management. Ms. Qi was awarded the certificate of
Postgraduate Master’s degree in applied sociology from the Graduate School
of FEItERIERT (Chinese Academy of Social Sciences) in June 1998. Ms. Qi
joined the China National Democratic Construction Association (“CNDCA") in
1987 and served the Central Committee of CNDCA and the Beijing Municipal
Committee of CNDCA. Ms Qi is currently a representative of the 16th People’s
Congress of Haidian District, Beijing City.

* English names are translated for identification purpose only.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

As at 31 December 2021, the senior management of the Company comprised
the following members:

ZHAO Hong

Aged 47, is the chief financial officer of the Company. Ms. Zhao was
appointed as the chief financial officer of the Company with effect from 31
May 2020.

Ms. Zhao served from 2001 to 2014 in Digital China Holdings Limited’s (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange, Stock code: 861, and a substantial
shareholder of the Company (as defined under the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange)) mainly in the finance department
as finance director, in the financing department as general manager
of distributorship financing and in the financial service department of
headquarter institutional division as general manager. From 2014 to 2017,
Ms. Zhao worked as the financial controller of EE MBI ZI/ )\ EERE
fR A |] (Chongging Digital China Huicong Micro-Credit Co., Ltd.*), currently
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. In 2018, she served as the
vice president of the Company and in 2019 she was promoted to senior vice
president and the chief financial officer of the business groups of platform
and corporate services, and smart industries of the Company concurrently.

Ms. Zhao graduated from Harbin Engineering University with a Bachelor’s
degree in engineering in July 1997 and a Master’s degree in economics in
April 2001, respectively.

WU Lei

Aged 41, is the executive vice president of the Group, responsible for the
management of business group of smart industries of the Group. Mr. Wu
joined the Group in 2015 and served as the managing director of a finance
and leasing company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Wu was the sales director of the Eastern China region in Start
Group (E#Z%[E) and subsequently the assistant president of Zhejiang Fuyue
Holding Group (41L& #IEA & E). Mr. Wu has over 10 years’ experience
in the operation and management in the industry. Mr. Wu graduated from
Zhejiang University (#17TA£2) in 2002 and obtained a Bachelor’s degree of
electronic engineering.

* English names are translated for identification purpose only.
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SONG Bingchen

Aged 42, is the executive vice president of the Group. Mr. Song joined the
Group in 2011. Before joining the Group, Mr. Song served as the deputy
president of Ego Group (8= %®), and the general manager of FEm 31t
{EFEAEBR A A (Ego Cultural Communication Company Limited*). Mr. Song
spent one year as a teacher under the Chinese Youth Volunteer Poverty
Alleviation Relay Plan (R EEFEFEEKRE R HJ512E)) in Liangshan, Sichuan
from 2002 to 2003.

Mr. Song currently also served as the deputy president of ER & F XK
2 (Guangdong Young Entrepreneurs’ Association*), a committee member of
Guangdong Youth Federation (B A & FH A=), the deputy president of
Guangdong Electrical Appliances Chamber of Commerce (EERKE <), and
the deputy president of W T KEMMNZAE (Hangzhou Alumni Association
of Zhejiang University*). Mr. Song has over 15 years of experience in industry
operation and management.

Mr. Song graduated from Zhejiang University and obtained a bachelor’s
degree in management in 2002, and obtained a master’s degree in
management from Zhejiang University in 2005.

LU Qingguo

Aged 48, is the Board Secretary and the general counsel of the Group. Mr.
Lu joined the Group in May 1998 and has served as the Company lawyer, the
head of legal department and chief legal officer, and was appointed as the
Board Secretary of the Company in 2011. Mr. Lu is mainly responsible for the
legal affairs and listing affairs of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lu
has taught in Guizhou Minzu University for two years. Mr. Lu graduated from
Southwest University of Political Science & Law and obtained a Bachelor’s
degree of Laws, LL.B. Mr. Lu also passed the national lawyer qualification
examination and obtained the certificate of lawyer qualification in 1997. Mr.
Lu has over 20 years of experience in corporate legal affairs.

Please also refer to the Directors Report and the Corporate Governance Report
for additional information about the Directors and senior management,
including their emoluments, and (where applicable) interests in shares.

* English names are translated for identification purpose only.

Certain Chinese names of institutions, natural persons or other entities have been
translated into English and included in this annual report as unofficial translations for
identification purpose only. In the event of any inconsistency, the Chinese names shall
prevail.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group’s cash and cash equivalent increased by approximately
RMB79,511,000 from approximately RMB254,301,000 as at 31 December
2020 to approximately RMB333,812,000 as at 31 December 2021,
approximately 99.8% of which was denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had total borrowings of
RMB1,002,530,000 (as at 31 December 2020: RMB1,236,267,000), of which
RMB683,114,000 (as at 31 December 2020: RMB895,308,000) were bank
borrowings which bear an average interest rate of 6.49% per annum (as at
31 December 2020: 7.00% per annum) and will mature ranging from 2022
to 2023, and RMB319,416,000 (as at 31 December 2020: RMB340,959,000)
were other borrowings. As at 31 December 2021, the Group has no undrawn
banking facilities (31 December 2020: Nil). The other borrowings are provided
by independent third parties and bear interest rates ranging from Nil to
10.0% per annum (as at 31 December 2020: Nil to 10% per annum). The
Group's borrowings were mainly made in RMB.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group was in net debt position, whereas the
Group's gearing ratio was 15%, which was calculated as net debt, including
lease liabilities, divided by total capital. The capital and reserves attributable
to equity holders of the Company decreased by approximately RMB652.8
million from approximately RMB3,518.8 million as at 31 December 2020 to
approximately RMB2,866.0 million as at 31 December 2021.

During the Year, the Group had conservative treasury policies in terms of cash
and financial management. The Group does not use any financial instruments
for hedging purposes.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

A Business Review and a Financial Review of the Group are set out on page 9
to 23 of this annual report.
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REWE
Details of the Group's investment properties and completed properties held R-ZT-—F+-A=+—HEAEBEZKEWELE
for sale as at 31 December 2021 are set out below: VEHE R TYEFB/HINWT ¢

Approximate
gross floor area

Group's (sg.m.)
Location interest HEAFESEMAE  Existing use Lease term
b3k AEE TGRS (EFXK) BERAZE HEH

Block 1-3 and 7, No. 530 Qili Qunan 100% 16,743  Commercial use 2011-2051
Village, Shahe Town,
Changping District, Beijing

ERMEFRDE MEAR —ET——FF
+ B RFA530571-3 » 7 —TH—F
Room 1004, The West Lake Plaza of 100% 1,263  Commercial use 2014-2044

International Science & Technology,
No. 391 Wen'er Street, Hangzhou,
Zhejiang Province

ANTE TN = #3915 BmERR “E-MER
(PR BRHEAE) 1004E —ZpupyE
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL BEERE -EAWERHESE

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group has no significant BE=F=—FF+ZA=1—HILFE - BAFHMN
investment, or any material acquisitions or disposal of subsidiaries, associated ~ EFEESN - AREWEMBEAF - BEQF KA ED
companies or joint ventures for the year ended 31 December 2021. Save as ¥ ZBBEEHEAERKER L EFH - BAFHR
disclosed in this annual report, there was no plan authorised by the Board for ~ PTEBEEESN - RAFHAL - EF SHE EIEET
any material investments or additions of capital assets as at the date of this  AEAREIAEEAEE °

annual report.
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS

Structured Contracts involving Huicong Construction

In light of the relevant PRC laws and regulations restricting the participation
and operation of internet content services by foreign investors, the Group has
engaged Beijing Huicong Construction Information Consulting Co., Ltd. (1t 5
BIREREBEAEAR AT ("HC Construction” or “Huicong Construction”)
to operate its online platform, and publish its business information on the
internet pursuant to certain contractual arrangements (the “HC Contractual
Arrangements”). The Group relies on the HC Contractual Arrangements in
respect of its online services.

Please also refer to the prospectus of the Company dated 8 December 2003
and the announcement of the Company dated 25 September 2014 in relation
to the transfer of listing from GEM to the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(the “Transfer of Listing Announcement”) for further details of the HC
Contractual Arrangements.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, save as disclosed in this annual report,
there was no material change in the HC Contractual Arrangements and/or the
circumstances under which they were adopted.

For the reporting period, none of the structured contracts under the HC
Contractual Arrangements had been unwound as none of the restrictions that
led to the adoption of the said structured contracts had been removed.

To further strengthen the Group’s protection under the HC Contractual
Arrangements and its management and control over Huicong Construction,
the Group amended certain terms of the then existing agreements and
entered into a new exclusive option agreement, an equity pledge agreement
and powers of attorney with Huicong Construction and/or its registered
shareholders on 15 September 2014. As a result of the HC Contractual
Arrangements, Huicong Construction is considered to be a subsidiary of the
Group and the financial statements of Huicong Construction are included in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements from 15 September 2014.

On 30 June 2021, owing to the needs of the Group’s structure reorganisation,
all rights and obligations of Beijing Huicong International Information Co.,
Ltd. (“Beijing HC International”) under the Huicong Contractual Arrangement
undertaken by Beijing Huicong Technology Group Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Huicong
Technology”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, and Beijing Huicong
Technology and Huicong Construction and or its registered shareholders
entered into new Structured Contracts on 1 July 2021, while the terms of the
agreement related to the Structured Contracts remain unchanged.
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As at the date of this annual report, agreements underlying the HC
Contractual Arrangements include (i) the domain names and trademarks
licence agreement, (ii) the technology services agreement, (iii) the online
information distribution agreement, (iv) the online advertisement publication
agreement, (v) the exclusive option agreement, (vi) the equity pledge
agreement and (vii) the powers of attorney.

The Group depends on the HC Contractual Arrangements with Huicong
Construction (which holds, among other things, the Telecommunications
and Information Services Business Operation Licence (F 81z BRFE
TER AR FE) (“ICP Licence™), bearing a term through 12 January 2027)
in respect of its online services. For the year ended 31 December 2021,
revenue generated from related online services of the Group is approximately
RMB87,002,000 (2020: RMB189,142,000), represents approximately 0.5%
(2020: approximately 1.3%) of the total revenue of the Group.

Information of Huicong Construction

Huicong Construction is a limited liability company established in the PRC.
As at the date of this annual report, the registered capital of Huicong
Construction is owned as to 50% by Mr. Guo Fansheng (a non-executive
Director) and 50% by Mr. Liu Jun (an executive Director). Mr. Liu Jun currently
is the sole director and the legal representative of Huicong Construction,
and he is responsible for making financial and management decisions
of Huicong Construction, and overseeing their implementation, so as to
ensure that Huicong Construction operates in accordance with the terms
of the HC Contractual Arrangements. As each of Mr. Guo Fansheng and
Mr. Liu Jun holds 50% equity interests of Huicong Construction and they
are the controllers of Huicong Construction, Huicong Construction is thus a
connected person of the Company.

Set out below is the key financial information of Huicong Construction during
the year ended 31 December 2021:

Revenue
Total assets

HEWBA
BEE
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—B-—H+ZA=+—-BHLEFE
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1,424
26,073

To the best knowledge, information and belief of the Company and as
confirmed by Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr. Liu Jun, save for the operation and
provision of services for the Group as contemplated under the HC Contractual
Arrangements, Huicong Construction has no other material business
operation during the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of
this annual report.
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Views of the Independent Non-Executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the HC Contractual
Arrangements, and confirmed that for the financial year ended 31 December
2021, (1) the transactions carried out during the Year have been entered
into in accordance with the relevant provisions of the HC Contractual
Arrangements; and (2) no dividends or other distributions have been made
by Huicong Construction which are not otherwise subsequently assigned or
transferred to the Group.

Major terms of the agreements underlying the HC
Contractual Arrangements

Technology Services Agreement

Beijing HC Technology entered into a technology services agreement (the
“Technology Services Agreement”) with Huicong Construction on 1 July
2021 for a term of three years and may be renewed for an additional term of
three years at the sole discretion of Beijing HC Technology (and such renewal
shall be subject to the Company having obtained all necessary approvals
and consents in accordance with the applicable laws, rules and regulations
(including applicable rules of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”))).

Pursuant to the Technology Services Agreement, Beijing HC Technology is
appointed by Huicong Construction as its exclusive agent to provide Huicong
Construction with technology support and services related to the internet
content provider business of Huicong Construction, which includes:

(i)  server maintenance services;

(i)  the development, renewal and upgrading of server application software
and its application in the internet content provider business;

(i) the development, renewal and upgrading of application software for
internet user;

(iv) the technology service of e-business;
(v) the training of technical personnel; and

(vi) other reasonable requests from Huicong Construction for technical
services.

Under the Technology Services Agreement, Huicong Construction shall pay
Beijing HC Technology an annual fee of RMB250,000 for the provision of the
aforesaid services. The annual fee thereafter may be adjusted, but it shall not
exceed 20% of the amount charged in the previous year.
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Domain Names and Trademarks Licence Agreement

Beijing HC Technology entered into a domain names and trademarks licence
agreement (the “Domain Names and Trademarks Licence Agreement”) with
Huicong Construction on 1 July 2021 for a term of three years and may be
renewed for additional term of three years at the sole discretion of Beijing
HC Technology (and such renewal shall be subject to the Company having
obtained all necessary approvals and consents in accordance with applicable
laws, rules and regulations (including applicable rules of the Listing Rules)).

Pursuant to the Domain Names and Trademarks Licence Agreement, Beijing
HC Technology licences Huicong Construction to use certain domain names
and trademarks (including domain names and trademarks owned by Beijing
HC Technology and to be obtained by it from time to time) for the sole
purpose of operating the website and dissemination of information for the
benefit of Beijing HC Technology in the PRC. Any intellectual properties
developed by Huicong Construction during the term (including any renewed
term) of the Domain Names and Trademarks Licence Agreement would
belong to Beijing HC Technology. Parties further agreed that where any
intellectual properties are required by law to be registered in the name of
Huicong Construction, Huicong Construction shall, where permitted by
applicable laws and regulations, upon request of Beijing HC Technology
assign such intellectual property rights to Beijing HC Technology or a party
as designated by Beijing HC Technology, and shall return any consideration
received for such transfer. Huicong Construction has undertaken that they
shall warrant and guarantee that such intellectual properties are flawless and
it shall bear all damages and losses caused to Beijing HC Technology by any
flaw in such intellectual properties. Beijing HC Technology has the right to
recover all of its losses from Huicong Construction for liabilities to any third

party.

Under the Domain Names and Trademarks Licence Agreement, Huicong
Construction shall pay an annual fee of RMB250,000. The annual fee
thereafter may be adjusted, but the adjustment shall not exceed 20% of the
amount charged in the previous year.
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Online Information Distribution Agreement

Beijing HC Technology entered into an online information distribution
agreement (the “Online Information Distribution Agreement”) with Huicong
Construction on 1 July 2021 for a term of three years and may be renewed
for an additional term of three years at the sole discretion of Beijing HC
Technology (and such renewal shall be subject to the Company having
obtained all necessary approval and consents in accordance with applicable
laws, rules and regulations (including applicable rules of the Listing Rules)).

Pursuant to the Online Information Distribution Agreement, Beijing HC
Technology appoints Huicong Construction to exclusively publish the
information collected, edited or produced by Beijing HC Technology on the
website operated by Huicong Construction.

Under the Online Information Distribution Agreement, Beijing HC Technology
shall pay an annual fee of RMB900,000. The annual fee thereafter may be
adjusted, but the adjustment shall not exceed 20% of the amount charged in
the previous year.

Online Advertisement Publication Agreement

HC Advertising first entered into an online advertisement publication
agreement (the “Online Advertisement Publication Agreement”) with Huicong
Construction on 2 January 2002 for a term of three years (and subsequently
extended). The existing term of the Online Advertisement Publication
Agreement is three years commencing from 15 September 2020 to 14
September 2023, and may be renewed for additional term of three years at
the sole discretion of HC Advertising (and such renewal shall be subject to the
Company having obtained all necessary approvals and consents in accordance
with the applicable laws, rules and regulations (including applicable rules of
the Listing Rules)).

Pursuant to the Online Advertisement Publication Agreement, HC Advertising
appoints Huicong Construction to publish exclusively advertisement designed,
produced by or entrusted to HC Advertising on the website operated by
Huicong Construction.

Under the Online Advertisement Publication Agreement, HC Advertising
shall pay an annual fee of RMB900,000. The annual fee thereafter may be
adjusted, but the adjustment shall not exceed 20% of the amount charged in
the previous year.
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Exclusive Option Agreement

Beijing HC Technology entered into the exclusive option agreement (the
"Exclusive Option Agreement”) with Huicong Construction, Mr. Guo
Fansheng and Mr. Liu Jun on 1 July 2021, pursuant to which Mr. Guo
Fansheng and Mr. Liu Jun jointly and severally granted to Beijing HC
Technology (and Huicong Construction having consented to such grant) an
irrevocable exclusive option for Beijing HC Technology (or such third party
as it may designate) to purchase, to the extent permitted by PRC laws, all or
part of their equity interests in Huicong Construction, at the consideration
of RMB1,400,000 or a minimum purchase price permitted under PRC laws
and regulations at the time of exercise of such option. Such exclusive option
is for an indefinite term commencing on 1 July 2021 until (i) it is terminated
by Beijing HC Technology in writing, or (i) upon transfer of the entire equity
interests held by Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr. Liu Jun in Huicong Construction.
Such exclusive option may not be revoked or varied during the term of the
Exclusive Option Agreement.

Pursuant to the Exclusive Option Agreement, each of Mr. Guo Fansheng
and Mr. Liu Jun has undertaken to Beijing HC Technology, among other
things, that they shall not create any pledge, indebtedness or third party
encumbrances, and shall not transfer, give by way of gift, pledge or otherwise
dispose of its equity in Huicong Construction to any party other than Beijing
HC Technology (or such third party as it may designated by it). Further,
Huicong Construction has undertaken to Beijing HC Technology, among other
things, that:

(i) it will operate its business in accordance with the laws, regulations,
requirements and other management requirements or directions by
relevant governmental department;

(i) it shall ensure the continual existence of Huicong Construction in
accordance with good financial and business standards and practices,
and shall prudently and effectively operate its business and transactions,
and shall use its best endeavours to ensure Huicong Construction
obtaining all licences, permits and approval requires for its operation,
and to ensure that they shall not be cancelled, revoked or declared
invalid;

(iiiy it shall provide all its information in respect of its operation and finance
at Beijing HC Technology's request;
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(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

it shall not conduct any of the following matters unless with prior
written approval from Beijing HC Technology: (a) sell, transfer, pledge
or otherwise dispose of any assets, business, or income, or allow
encumbrance be created thereon (save as in its ordinary course of
business or with prior written approval from Beijing HC Technology);
(b) enter into any transactions which will materially and adversely affect
its assets, obligations, operation, equity interest and other legal rights
(save as in its ordinary course of business or with prior written approval
from Beijing HC Technology); (c) declare dividend, or bonus to its
shareholders; or (d) incur, take up, guarantee or allow any indebtedness
other than those in the ordinary course of business and with the prior
written consent of Beijing HC Technology;

it shall not without the prior written approval from Beijing HC
Technology resolve any shareholders’ resolution on increasing or
decreasing its registered capital, or alerting its registered capital
structure,

it shall not without the prior written approval from Beijing HC
Technology alter its articles of association, or change its scope of
business; and

it shall not without the prior written approval from Beijing HC
Technology change or remove any of its director or senior management.

Huicong Construction, Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr. Liu Jun further executed
an undertaking dated 1 July 2021 (the “Undertaking”), pursuant to which,
among other things, they undertake to unconditionally return to the Group
any consideration they receive in the event Beijing HC Technology acquires
the equity interests in Huicong Construction, and to unconditionally transfer
the domain name “hc360.com” and related registered trademark(s) to Beijing
HC Technology (or such third party as it may designated by it) in the event
that the agreements underlying the HC Contractual Arrangements lapse,
expire or be terminated.
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Power of Attorney

On 1 July 2021, each of Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr. Liu Jun has executed a
power of attorney (the “Power of Attorney”). Pursuant to each of the Powers
of Attorney, each of Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr. Liu Jun unconditionally and
irrevocably authorises any individual designated by Beijing HC Technology
(which shall be a director of the Company (other than Mr. Guo Fansheng, Mr.
Liu Jun or their close associates), and shall be a resident of PRC) to represent
him in exercising all his rights as shareholders of Huicong Construction under
applicable PRC laws, including without limitation, to transfer all his equity
interests, to determine the consideration for such transfer, to complete all
relevant procedures regarding such transfer, to attend general meetings and
exercise voting rights, to execute all such relevant documents, agreements
and resolutions, etc.. Such Powers of Attorney shall remain in full force and
effect from 1 July 2021 until Mr. Guo Fansheng or Mr. Liu Jun (as the case
may be) ceases to be a shareholder of Huicong Construction.

Equity Pledge Agreement

Beijing HC Technology, Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr. Liu Jun entered into the
equity pledge agreement (the “Equity Pledge Agreement”) on 1 July 2021,
pursuant to which each of Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr. Liu Jun pledged all their
respective equity interests in Huicong Construction to Beijing HC Technology
to secure the performance of all their obligations and the obligations of
Huicong Construction under the Domain Names and Trademarks Licence
Agreement, the Technology Services Agreement, the Online Information
Distribution Agreement, the Online Advertisement Publication Agreement, the
Exclusive Option Agreement and the Powers of Attorney.

Beijing HC Technology will be entitled to exercise the rights of pledge in the
event Huicong Construction fails to pay the service fee under the Technology
Services Agreement and the Domain Names and Trademarks Licence
Agreement or fail to perform any other term of the above agreements, the
Online Information Distribution Agreement and the Online Advertisement
Agreement, or any of Huicong Construction, Mr. Guo Fansheng or Mr.
Liu Jun fails to perform any term of the Exclusive Option Agreement and
the Powers of Attorney (as the case may be), upon reasonable notice. If
Huicong Construction declares any dividend, bonus or adopt any proposal for
distribution of profits during the term of the Equity Pledge Agreement, such
dividends, bonus or economic benefits of all such proposal for distribution
shall be delivered to Beijing HC Technology.

The Equity Pledge Agreement is for an indefinite term commencing from
14 February 2019 until (i) all the agreements (other than the Equity Pledge
Agreement) underlying the HC Contractual Arrangements have been
terminated by Beijing HC Technology and/or HC Advertising (as the case may
be) or (ii) all the obligations under the Equity Pledge Agreement have been
fulfilled. The Equity Pledge Agreement has been filed at relevant market
supervision and administration bureau.
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Risks associated with the HC Contractual Arrangements

The government may determine that the agreements underlying the HC
Contractual Arrangements do not comply with the applicable regulations, or
these regulations or their interpretation may change in the future.

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands and members of the
Group established in the PRC are considered as foreign-invested enterprise.
Currently, laws and regulations of the PRC restrict participation and operation
of internet content services by foreign investors. The Group depends on the
HC Contractual Arrangements with Huicong Construction in respect of its
online services. Upon interview conducted by the PRC legal advisers with
relevant responsible officer of the Telecommunication Department of Beijing
Communications Administration Gt RTBEEERTEEIRE), the PRC
legal advisers were informed that currently, there is no prohibition of adoption
of contractual arrangements or variable interest entity in the business
of services, and there has been no law, rules, regulations or normative
documents in the PRC which stipulates that such arrangements constitute the
act of “concealing illegal intentions with a lawful form” under PRC laws.

Save for matters as further discussed in the paragraph headed “Certain terms
of the HC Contractual Arrangements may not be enforceable under PRC
laws” below, our PRC legal advisers are of the opinion that the agreements
underlying the HC Contractual Arrangements are, collectively and individually,
legal and valid and do not violate PRC laws, rule and regulations. Although
the Group has not received any interference regarding the legality of the HC
Contractual Arrangements, there is no assurance that the PRC government
or judicial authorities would agree that the HC Contractual Arrangements
comply with PRC licensing, registration, other regulatory requirements or
policies that may be adopted in the future. If the PRC government or judicial
authorities determines that the Group or the HC Contractual Arrangements
do not comply with the applicable PRC laws and regulations, it could have
discretion in dealing with such non-compliance, including:

(i) discontinuing or placing restriction on the business operation of Beijing
HC Technology, HC Advertising and/or Huicong Construction in the
PRC;

(i)  requiring reorganisation or restructuring of ownership or business of
Beijing HC Technology and/or HC Advertising;

(iii) levying fines and/or confiscating the proceeds generated from the
operations under the HC Contractual Arrangements; and

(iv) taking other regulatory or enforcement actions that could have a
material adverse effect over the Group’s financial condition or business.
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The imposition of any of the above mentioned consequences could result
in a material and adverse effect on the Group’s ability to conduct its online
business. In particular, in the event the imposition of any of these consequence
prevent Huicong Construction from providing internet content provider
services to the Group and the Group is unable to locate any substitute timely,
the operation of the Group’s platform could be severely disrupted and the
Group may breach its existing contracts for online businesses (including
among others, subscription for Mai-Mai-Tong and Biao-Wang search). Where
the Group loses the right to direct the activities of Huicong Construction as
a result of these consequences, the Group would also be no longer able to
consolidate the financial results of Huicong Construction.

The HC Contractual Arrangements may not provide control as effective as
direct ownership

The Group depends on the HC Contractual Arrangements with Huicong
Construction, who hold key licences required, in respect of its online services.
Huicong Construction is owned as to 50% by Mr. Guo Fansheng and 50% by
Mr. Liu Jun. The Company and its subsidiaries do not own or hold any equity
interests in Huicong Construction.

The HC Contractual Arrangements may not be as effective in providing control
over website operations in PRC as direct ownership in these businesses. For
example, Huicong Construction and its shareholders could breach or fail to
perform their obligations under the HC Contractual Arrangements. If Huicong
Construction fails to perform its obligations under the HC Contractual
Arrangements, the Group will have to resort to legal remedies under the PRC
law, which could result in substantial litigation costs and diverse the Group’s
management’s time and efforts away from their running the regular business
of the Group. There is uncertainty as to the outcome and duration of legal
proceedings and its enforceability. In addition, the Group cannot be sure that
contractual remedies would be effective or sufficient to enforce its interests.
In the event Huicong Construction refuses or fails to provide the internet
content services to the Group and the Group is unable to locate any substitute
timely, the operation of the Group's platform could be severely disrupted and
the Group may breach its existing contracts for online businesses.
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The Group currently operates its online platform principally through the
website of “hc360.com”. Currently, Huicong Construction is the registrant
of the domain name “hc360.com” in light of relevant requirements in the
PRC on internet content provider business. Huicong Construction, Mr. Guo
Fansheng and Mr. Liu Jun have undertaken pursuant to the agreements
underlying the HC Contractual Arrangements and the Undertaking that
Huicong Construction will, so far as it is permitted under the PRC laws,
transfer the domain name and trademark(s) to the Group (or the Group’s
nominee) in the event the HC Contractual Arrangements lapse, expire or be
terminated. If the Group is unable to acquire the domain name from Huicong
Construction, or if Huicong Construction declares bankruptcy or if the domain
name, as part of Huicong Construction’s assets, become subject to liens or
rights of third party, the Group may be unable to continue its existing business
using “hc360.com” and may be required to establish a new domain name,
and to establish new trademark, which may disrupt the Group'’s operation,
confuse users and damage the Group’s reputation, and may materially and
adversely affect the Group’s results of operation.

The registered shareholders of Huicong Construction may have potential
conflicts of interest with the Group

As at the date of this annual report, equity interests of Huicong Construction
is owned as to 50% by Mr. Guo Fansheng and 50% by Mr. Liu Jun. Mr. Liu
Jun is the sole director and the legal representative of Huicong Construction.
The Directors are of the view that Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr. Liu Jun are
controllers of Huicong Construction. Each of Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr. Liu
Jun has undertaken to the Company that each of them will procure Huicong
Construction in fulfilling its obligations under the agreements underlying the
HC Contractual Arrangements. Each of Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr. Liu Jun, as
a Director, also owes fiduciary duties to the Company and the Shareholders as
a whole pursuant to relevant law of the Cayman Islands.

There is no assurance that when conflicts of interests arise, shareholders of
Huicong Construction will act in the best interests of the Group, or that any
conflicts of interests will be resolved in favour of the Group.

To further strengthen the protections to the Group over potential conflicts
of interest between the registered shareholders of Huicong Construction,
and the Group, on 1 July 2021, Beijing HC Technology entered into, among
others, the Exclusive Option Agreement, the Equity Pledge Agreement and
the Powers of Attorney with Huicong Construction. Pursuant to the Exclusive
Option Agreement, Beijing HC Technology was granted the option to
purchase from the registered shareholders their equity interest in Huicong
Construction when and to the extent permitted by law. Pursuant to the Equity
Pledge Agreement, Beijing HC Technology is entitled to dispose of the equity
interests of Huicong Construction pledged, in the event of stipulated events
regarding failure of performance by, among others, registered shareholders
of Huicong Construction. Further, each of the Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr.
Liu Jun has executed the Power of Attorney which authorises individual
designated by Beijing HC Technology to exercise all of their rights and powers
as shareholders of Huicong Construction.
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Since the entering into of the agreements underlying the HC Contractual
Arrangements and up to the date of this annual report, neither Huicong
Construction nor its registered shareholders commits any breach of the
agreements underlying the HC Contractual Arrangements or undertakings.
However, if shareholder(s) of Huicong Construction cause Huicong
Construction to breach the HC Contractual Arrangements, or in the event
Mr. Guo Fansheng and/or Mr. Liu Jun breach the aforesaid undertakings, the
Group will have to resort to legal remedies under the PRC law, which could
result in substantial litigation costs and diverse the Group’s management’s
time and efforts away from their running the regular business of the Group.
There is uncertainty as to the outcome and duration of legal proceedings and
its enforceability, and the Group cannot be sure that contractual remedies
would be effective or sufficient to enforce its interests. Acquisition by the
Group (or by designees of the Group) of equity interests under the Exclusive
Option Agreement and/or the Equity Pledge Agreement may further be
subject to substantial transaction costs) and taxation. In the event that the HC
Contractual Arrangements are breached and the Group is unable to locate
any substitute to provide internet content services timely, the operation of the
Group's platform could be severely disrupted and the Group may breach its
existing contracts for online businesses, and the Group’s operation, result of
operations and financial conditions may be materially and adversely affected.
Also, if the Group is unable to acquire the domain name in such events, or if
Huicong Construction declares bankruptcy or if the domain name, as part of
Huicong Construction’s assets, become subject to liens or rights of third party,
the Group may be unable to continue its existing business using the domain
name of “hc360.com” and may be required to establish a new domain
name, which may disrupt the Group’s operation, confuse users and damage
the Group’s reputation, and may materially and adversely affect the Group's
results of operation.

The HC Contractual Arrangements may subject the Group to increased
taxation due to different income tax rates applicable to Beijing HC
International and Huicong Construction

Pursuant to the Online Information Distribution Agreement, Huicong
Construction provides internet content provider services for an annual fee of
RMB900,000.

Before 2020, Beijing HC International is subject to a preferential tax rate of
15%, and Huicong Construction is subject to a tax rate of 25%.

In light of the different income tax rates applicable, the determination of such
annual fee and other payment by the Group to Huicong Construction before
2020 may be challenged by relevant PRC tax authorities as unfair, and may
adjust the taxable income or tax amount payable by the Group, requesting
outstanding tax amount be paid or imposing administrative penalty, thereby
having adverse tax consequence and affect the Group’s business, financial
conditions and results of operations of the Group materially and adversely.
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Since the entering into of the HC Contractual Arrangements and up to the
date of this annual report, the Group has not received any interference from
relevant PRC tax authorities as to the different income tax rates applicable.

Huicong Construction may not provide internet content services to the
Group if the HC Contractual Arrangements are not renewed or extended on
equivalent or similar terms, or if Huicong Construction ceases its operation or
corporate entity in the event of dissolution or liquidation, etc.

The Group depends on the HC Contractual Arrangements with Huicong
Construction, which holds key licences required, to operate the Group’s online
platform. Certain agreements underlying the Contractual Arrangements (other
than the Exclusive Option Agreement, the Equity Pledge Agreement and
the Powers of Attorney, which have an indefinite terms unless terminated)
currently has a term of three years, subject to renewal by Beijing HC
Technology and/or HC Advertising at its respective discretion in accordance
with the respective terms of the agreements. The Company expects that the
Group will renew the agreements on equivalent or similar terms prior to their
expiries.

If the HC Contractual Arrangements are not renewed or extended on
equivalent or similar terms, or if Huicong Construction ceases its operation or
corporate entity in the event of dissolution or liquidation, the Group would
have to engage another PRC entity holding relevant licences required to
provide internet content services to the Group.

To strengthen the Group’s protection, Beijing HC Technology entered into the
Exclusive Option Agreement dated 1 July 2021, pursuant to which Beijing HC
Technology (or such third party as it may designated) may purchase the equity
interests of Mr. Guo Fansheng or Mr. Liu Jun in Huicong Construction, among
others, in the event that HC Contractual Arrangements are not renewed.
The said option is for an indefinite period unless terminated by Beijing HC
Technology or upon Beijing HC Technology acquiring all equity interests in
Huicong Construction. Further, each of the registered shareholders of Huicong
Construction (namely, Mr. Guo Fansheng and Mr. Liu Jun) has executed
the Power of Attorney which authorise individual designated by Beijing
HC Technology to exercise all of their rights and powers as shareholders
of Huicong Construction. In addition, as each of Mr. Guo Fansheng and
Mr. Liu Jun, being all registered shareholders of Huicong Construction, is a
Director, each of them further owes a duty of care to the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole under applicable laws. The Directors are of the view
that Huicong Construction and/or its registered shareholders are not entitled
to terminate the agreements underlying the HC Contractual Arrangements
save for material breach by Beijing HC Technology and/or HC Advertising (as
the case maybe). In such cases of termination, that the Group will be entitled
to exercise its rights under the Equity Pledge Agreement to uphold its rights or
have to resort to legal remedies under the PRC law.
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There is no assurance that the Group can identify new entity which provides
internet content services required for the Group’s operation timely, or on
equivalent or similar terms. In the event that existing PRC entity cannot be
located, the Group may be required to engage other parties to set up new
entity. Pursuant to the existing laws and regulations, approval procedures
for key licences to operate internet content services usually takes three to six
months, with such requirements including among others, the Qualification
Requirement (as further discussed below) and a minimum requirement of
registered capital of not less than RMB1,000,000, while there is no assurance
that such approval will be granted, or will be granted on a timely manner.

In the event that the HC Contractual Arrangements are discontinued and the
Group is unable to locate any substitute to provide internet content services
timely, the operation of the Group'’s platform could be severely disrupted and
the Group may breach its existing contracts for online businesses, which could
materially and adversely affect the Group’s business operation and financial
results.

Certain terms of the HC Contractual Arrangements may not be enforceable
under PRC laws

The HC Contractual Arrangements provide for dispute resolution by way of
arbitration in accordance with the arbitration rules of the Beijing Arbitration
Commission in the PRC. The HC Contractual Arrangements also contain
provisions to the effect that, the arbitral body may award remedies over
shares and/or assets of Huicong Construction, injunctive relief and/or winding
up of Huicong Construction, and that courts in Hong Kong and the Cayman
Islands are of competent jurisdiction with power to grant interim remedies in
support of arbitration pending formation of arbitral tribunal or in appropriate
cases.

We have been advised by our PRC legal advisers that the above mentioned
provisions regarding injunctive relief or interim remedies contained in the
HC Contractual Arrangements may not be enforceable, and that under PRC
laws, arbitral body does not have the power to grant any injunctive relief or
liquidation order in case of dispute.

Accordingly, such remedies may not be available to us timely, or be available
to us at all notwithstanding the relevant contractual provisions contained in
the HC Contractual Arrangements.

Exercise of option to acquire the equity interests in Huicong Construction
may be subject to limitations and the ownership transfer may be subject to
substantial costs

Under the HC Contractual Arrangements, the Group has the option to
purchase equity interests in Huicong Construction. It is the intention of the
Group to unwind the HC Contractual Arrangements as soon as the law allows
the business to operate without such HC Contractual Arrangements.
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The Administrative Rules for Foreign Investments in Telecommunications
Enterprises (2016 amended) (the “FITE Rules”) currently stipulated that
foreign investors are not allowed to hold more than 50% of the equity
interests of a company providing value-added telecommunications services,
including internet content provider services. As the Company is a company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands, all members of the Group controlled by
the Company through majority shareholdings or equity interests are regarded
as such foreign invested enterprise, which restrict the exercise of option.

In addition, under the FITE Rules, a foreign invested enterprise wishing to
acquire any equity interest in a value-added telecommunications business
in the PRC must demonstrate a good track record and experience in
providing value-added telecommunications services overseas (“Qualification
Requirement”). There is currently no clear guidance on the interpretation
of the Qualification Requirement under the existing applicable PRC laws,
regulations or rules, and the Company is therefore unable to ascertain the
Qualification Requirement. There is no assurance that the Group will be
able to sufficiently satisfy the Qualification Requirement, or there will not
be any subsequent change, interpretation or guidance on the Qualification
Requirement, or such other requirements concerning the operator of internet
content provider services. If the restrictions on the percentage of foreign
ownership in telecommunications services are removed, the Group may need
to unwind the HC Contractual Arrangements before the Group is in a position
to comply with the Qualification Requirement.

The exercise of option to acquire equity ownership of Huicong Construction
may incur substantial costs on the part of the Group. Pursuant to the HC
Contractual Arrangements, the Group has an exclusive option to purchase,
to the extent permitted by PRC laws, equity interests in Huicong Construction
in all or part, at the consideration of RMB1,400,000 or a minimum purchase
price permitted under PRC laws and regulations at the time of exercise of
such option. Where the relevant PRC authorities determine that the purchase
price is below the market value, they may require Beijing HC Technology to
pay enterprise income tax for ownership transfer income with reference to the
market value. The amount of tax may be substantial, which could materially
and adversely affect the business, financial condition and results of operation
of the Group.
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If Huicong Construction fails to obtain and maintain the requisite assets,
licences and approvals as required under the regulatory environment for
internet content provider business in the PRC, the business, financial condition
and results of operations may be materially and adversely affected

The telecommunications services industry in China is heavily regulated by
the PRC government and numerous regulatory authorities of the central
PRC government are empowered to issue and implement regulations
governing various aspects of the telecommunications services industry.
These telecommunications services-related laws and regulations are relatively
new and evolving, and there is a certain degree of uncertainty especially
on the interpretation and enforcement of these laws. As a result, in certain
circumstances it may be difficult to determine what actions or omissions may
be deemed to be in violations of applicable laws and regulations.

Huicong Construction is required to obtain and maintain certain assets
relevant to its business as well as applicable licenses or approvals from
the relevant regulatory authorities in order to provide its current services.
These assets and licenses are essential to the operation of internet content
provider business and are generally subject to annual review by the relevant
governmental authorities. Also, Huicong Construction may need to obtain
additional licenses. If Huicong Construction fails to obtain or maintain any of
the required assets, licenses or approvals, its continued business operations in
the telecommunications services industry may subject it to various penalties,
including but not limited to fines and the discontinuation or restriction of
its operations. Any such disruption in the business operations of Huicong
Construction will materially and adversely affect our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

The Company may lose the ability to use and enjoy assets held by Huicong
Construction that are important to the Group’s business if Huicong
Construction declares bankruptcy or becomes subject to a dissolution or
winding up proceeding

Huicong Construction holds certain assets that are important to the Group's
business operations, primarily the ICP Licence and the domain name of
"hc360.com”. The HC Contractual Arrangements with Huicong Construction
and its shareholders contain terms that specifically obligate Mr. Guo Fansheng
and Mr. Liu Jun to ensure the valid existence of Huicong Construction.
However, in the event that Mr. Guo Fansheng or Mr. Liu Jun breaches
this obligation and voluntarily wind up Huicong Construction, or Huicong
Construction declares bankruptcy or is otherwise dissolved, some or all of
the Group’s online business operations may have to be ceased, which could
materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results
of operations. If Huicong Construction undergoes a voluntary or involuntary
winding-up proceeding, Mr. Guo Fansheng or Mr. Liu Jun or any other third-
party creditors may claim rights to some or all of these assets, resulting in
hindrance to the Group'’s ability to operate the Group's online business, which
could materially and adversely affect the Group’s business, financial condition
and results of operations.
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Even the transfer of trademark of “hc360” has been completed, there may
still be potential penalties

We have been advised by our PRC legal advisers that holders of the ICP
License shall hold the domain name and the trademarks used for conducting
the internet content provider business pursuant to the MIIT Notice.

In order to comply with the notice requirement of the ICP, Beijing HC
International transferred the trademark “hc360” to Huicong Construction
through the HC Contractual Arrangements. On 25 January 2016, the
trademark transfer was completed and Huicong Construction obtained the
trademark certificate for “hc360” on 13 March 2016. The Company has been
advised by the PRC Legal Advisers that, upon completion of the Trademark
Transfer, it is unlikely for Huicong Construction be penalized in respect of
failure to fulfill the trademark requirement under the MIIT Notice regarding
any period prior to the Trademark Transfer.

Structured Contracts involving Beijing Zhixing Ruijing

On 3 July 2015, the Group completed the acquisition of 100% of share
capital of Orange Triangle Inc. (“Orange Triangle”). It ZE= AR AR A
7] (Beijing Orange Triangle Technology Co., Ltd.) (“Orange Beijing”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of Orange Triangle entered into certain structured contracts
(the “BZR Structured Contracts”) with Beijing Zhixing Ruijing Technology Co.,
Ltd. LR AT SRR AR A ) (“Beijing Zhixing Ruijing”) and/or its then
shareholders on 3 July 2015. On 21 February 2021, $i =245 (M) 585
HAAEENLE (BRAE) (Ruijing Huijie (Huizhou) Information Consultation
Partnership (Limited Liability)*,”Ruijing Huijie”) became a shareholder holding
60% of equity interest in Beijing Zhixing Ruijing. Ruijing Huijie is a limited
liability partnership owned by Mr. Liu Jun, the executive Director and chairman
of the Board, and Mr. Zhang Yonghong, the executive Director and chief
executive officer of the Company as to 60% and 40%, respectively. In light
of the aforesaid change, Orange Beijing, Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, Ruijing Huijie
and Mr. Liu Xiaodong entered into a new set of BZR Structured Contracts on
26 March 2020. Save as the change of the party to BZR Structured Contracts
from the previous shareholder to Ruijing Huijie, there was no material change
to the terms of the BZR Structured Contracts.

Pursuant to the BZR Structured Contracts, Orange Beijing or Orange Triangle
will provide certain technical consultation and service, including but not
limited to technical services support, intellectual property licensing, and
business and management consultation, whereas Beijing Zhixing Ruijing will
pay (a) the annual service fees RMB5 million to Orange Beijing; (b) the annual
service fees which equal 12% of its annual revenue to Orange Triangle; and
(c) the service fee equivalent to its revenue deducted by its expenses, net
operation loss and reserve fund extracted to Orange Beijing. Orange Beijing
relies on the BZR Structured Contracts to control the finance and operation of
Beijing Zhixing Ruijing so as to obtain the economic benefits and the rights to
variable returns from Beijing Zhixing Ruijing.

* English names are translated for identification purpose only.
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Please also refer to the announcements of the Company dated 17 March
2015, 8 May 2015 and 3 July 2015, respectively, and the circular of the
Company dated 4 June 2015 for further details.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, save as disclosed in this annual report,
there was no material change in the BZR Structured Contracts and/or the
circumstances under which they were adopted.

For the reporting period, none of the structured contracts under the BZR
Structured Contracts had been unwound as none of the restrictions that led
to the adoption of the said structured contracts had been removed.

Further, the Group entered into the BZR Structured Contracts to conduct the
restricted business in the PRC in order to comply with the abovementioned
PRC laws and regulations and to assert management control over the
operations of, and enjoy all of economic benefits of, Beijing Zhixing Ruijing
on 3 July 2015, pursuant to which the Group has the right to enjoy all the
economic benefits of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, to exercise management control
over the operations of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, and to prevent any leakage of
the assets and values of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing to the registered shareholders
of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing. As a result of the BZR Structured Contracts, Beijing
Zhixing Ruijing is consolidated into the accounts of the Group in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policies from 3 July 2015.

As at the date of this annual report, the BZR Structured Contracts include
(i) the exclusive technical services agreement, (ii) the exclusive licensing
agreement on intellectual property, (iii) the exclusive right to share purchase
agreement, (iv) the voting rights proxy agreement, (v) the pledge agreement
and (vi) the management and operation agreement

The Group depends on the BZR Structured Contracts with Beijing Zhixing
Ruijing (who holds, among other things, the value-added telecommunications
business operating licence (M2 {EE (5 154 & 5F Al 75) (“VAT Licence”), being
valid until 8 January 2025) in respect of its information service business within
the second type of value-added telecommunication services (the “Value-added
Telecommunications Businesses”).
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Information of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing

Beijing Zhixing Ruijing is a limited liability company established in the PRC on
11 September 2014 with registered capital of RMB10 million and paid up
capital of RMB10 million. As at the date of this annual report, the registered
capital of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing is owned as to 60% by Ruijing Huijie and
40% by Mr. Liu Xiaodong (£I/]N5), an executive director of the Company.

Set out below is the key information of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing during the year
ended 31 December 2021:

HEWA
REE

Revenue
Total assets

BRLLFEATHSZER
EREMTHE BN -_E—NFNA+—BEPRBEMKL
ZERAR  AMERBARE—FTEL  HEER
BARB—TEL - WAFRAR - SHEEHERAR
AFITES A NREAD B IR AT = 2 7 M
B AR60% K40% °

ERATHINEE
EzER2ERET ZZIJT :

—Ft+ZA=t—HLLHF

Year ended 31 December 2021
BE-_ZTC—

—F+=A=+—ALLEE
RMB’000
ARMTR

189,798
595,795

As at the date of this annual report, the business of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing
mainly involves the Value-added Telecommunications Businesses, excluding
technology development; economic and trade consultancy; organisation of
cultural and art exchange activities (not including commercial performances);
and exhibition and demonstration hosting activities (the “Excluded
Businesses”).

To the best knowledge, information and belief of the Company and as
confirmed by Ruijing Huijie and Mr. Liu Xiaodong, Beijing Zhixing Ruijing has
no plan or road map to develop and operate the Excluded Businesses as at the
date of this annual report.

Major terms of the agreements underlying the BZR
Structured Contracts

Exclusive Technical Services Agreement

Orange Beijing entered into an exclusive technical services agreement with
Beijing Zhixing Ruijing on 3 July 2015 (the “Exclusive Technical Services
Agreement”). The Exclusive Technical Services Agreement shall remain in
force during the existence of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing upon execution, unless it is
terminated in accordance with the clauses of the agreement.
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Pursuant to the Exclusive Technical Services Agreement, Orange Beijing
is appointed by Beijing Zhixing Ruijing as its exclusive services provider to
provide technical consulting service, other related technical services and
related services agreed by both parties from time to time during the term of
the Exclusive Technical Services Agreement in accordance with its terms and
conditions.

Under the Exclusive Technical Services Agreement, Beijing Zhixing Ruijing shall
pay Orange Beijing an annual services fee of RMB5 million.

Exclusive Licensing Agreement on Intellectual Property

Orange Triangle entered into an exclusive licensing agreement on intellectual
property with Beijing Zhixing Ruijing on 3 July 2015 (the “Exclusive Licensing
Agreement on Intellectual Property”). The Exclusive Licensing Agreement
on Intellectual Property shall remain in force during the existence of Beijing
Zhixing Ruijing upon execution, unless it is terminated in accordance with the
clauses of the agreement.

Pursuant to the Exclusive Licensing Agreement on Intellectual Property,
the right of use of Orange Triangle’s network domain names, registered
trademarks, databases, software systems and other intellectual properties is
granted to Beijing Zhixing Ruijing. Such rights cannot be transferred to any
other third party.

Under the Exclusive Licensing Agreement on Intellectual Property, Beijing
Zhixing Ruijing shall pay annual service fees equivalent to 12% of its total
annual revenue to Orange Triangle. Beijing Zhixing Ruijing had also procured
Ruijing Huijie and Mr. Liu Xiaodong to provide their holding shares of Beijing
Zhixing Ruijing as a pledge to guarantee the payment of the payable service
fee to Orange Triangle or its wholly owned subsidiaries.

Exclusive Right to Share Purchase Agreement

Orange Beijing, Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, Ruijing Huijie and Mr. Liu Xiaodong
entered into an exclusive right to share purchase agreement on 26 March
2020 (the "Exclusive Right to Share Purchase Agreement”). The Exclusive
Right to Share Purchase Agreement shall remain in force during the existence
of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing upon execution, unless it is terminated in accordance
with the clauses of the agreement.
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Pursuant to the Exclusive Right to Share Purchase Agreement, Ruijing Huijie
and Mr. Liu Xiaodong jointly and individually granted Orange Beijing the
exclusive right to purchase the shares of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the Exclusive Right to Share Purchase
Agreement, irrevocably and without any additional conditions. Orange Beijing
can, by its own will, decide the way to exercise the right and purchase all
or part of shares held by shareholders of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing and/or any
specified third party at the minimum price permitted by the relevant laws and
regulations of the PRC at any time, by one or more times.

Under the Exclusive Right to Share Purchase Agreement, the share
repurchase price shall be the minimum price permitted by the relevant laws
and regulations of the PRC. The paid shareholder of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing
will return the rest of the transfer price after deducting the paid-up capital
injected by them to Beijing Zhixing Ruijing.

Voting Rights Proxy Agreement

Orange Beijing, Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, Ruijing Huijie and Mr. Liu Xiaodong
entered into a voting rights proxy agreement on 26 March 2020 (the “Voting
Rights Proxy Agreement”). The Voting Rights Proxy Agreement shall remain in
force during the existence of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing upon execution, unless it is
terminated in accordance with the clauses of the agreement.

Pursuant to the Voting Rights Proxy Agreement, Orange Beijing (or its
designated parties) was granted the power to, inter alia, exercise all the rights
of Ruijing Huijie and Mr. Liu Xiaodong as the shareholders of Beijing Zhixing
Ruijing, subject to applicable laws, regulations and Beijing Zhixing Ruijing’s
articles of association. No prior consent from Ruijing Huijie and Mr. Liu
Xiaodong is required before exercising such right. Ruijing Huijie and Mr. Liu
Xiaodong shall recognise Orange Beijing's voting result.

Pledge Agreement

Orange Beijing (as the pledgee), Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, Ruijing Huijie and Mr.
Liu Xiaodong (as the pledgers) entered into a pledge agreement on 26 March
2020 (the “Pledge Agreement”), pursuant to which each of Ruijing Huijie
and Mr. Liu Xiaodong pledged their equity interests in Beijing Zhixing Ruijing
held by them as security for Orange Beijing’s rights and interests granted by
the Exclusive Technical Services Agreement, Exclusive Right to Share Purchase
Agreement, Management and Operation Agreement, Voting Proxy Rights
Agreement and the Exclusive Licensing Agreement on Intellectual Property
(collectively, the “Master Agreements”). Orange Beijing shall have the right
to get compensation by converting the Equity interests into money and seek
preferential payments from the proceeds from the auction or sales of the said
equity interests concerned or other disposal methods as agreed by each party
in accordance with relevant laws and regulations of the PRC.
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Prior to the full discharge of the payments and obligations under the Master
Agreements, without written consent of the pledgee, Ruijing Huijie and
Mr. Liu Xiaodong shall not assign the said equity interests in Beijing Zhixing
Ruijing.

The Pledge Agreement has become effective upon the execution date and has
been filed at relevant market supervision and administration bureau. Unless
otherwise agreed by Orange Beijing in writing after the Pledge Agreement
comes into effect, upon the full and complete performance of the Company
and pledgors’ obligations under the Master Agreements as well as Orange
Beijing’s written confirmation, the pledge shall be terminated.

Management and Operation Agreement

Orange Beijing, Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, Ruijing Huijie and Mr. Liu Xiaodong
entered into a management and operation agreement on 26 March 2020
(the “Management and Operation Agreement”), which shall remain in force
during the existence of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing upon execution, unless it is
terminated in accordance with clauses of the agreement.

Under the Management and Operation Agreement, Beijing Zhixing Ruijing
will appoint Orange Beijing as its exclusive services provider to provide
complete management support, business support, technical support and
related consulting services during the term of the Management and Operation
Agreement in accordance with its terms and conditions, which may include all
necessary services within the scope of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing’s business, such
as but not limited to business consultations, marketing consultancy, technical
services, intellectual properties licenses, product research and development,
system maintenance, as well as general corporate management.

The service fee shall be payable to Orange Beijing by the Beijing Zhixing
Ruijing, where the Beijing Zhixing Ruijing shall pay to Orange Beijing such fees
equivalent to the amount of the Beijing Zhixing Ruijing’s revenue deducted
by Beijing Zhixing Ruijing’s (and its subsidiaries’) expenses (including Beijing
Zhixing Ruijing’s costs, depreciation, other expenses and payments, and
relevant tax payments incurred during the term of the Management and
Operation Agreement), net operation loss made by Beijing Zhixing Ruijing and
the reserve fund extracted by Beijing Zhixing Ruijing. The service fee shall be
calculated within three (3) months since the end of each financial year based
on the audited report prepared in accordance with the Chinese Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises and paid within fifteen (15) days of the
issuance date of such audited report.
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Risk associated with the BZR Structured Contracts

The PRC government may determine that BZR Structured Contracts are not in
compliance with any existing or future applicable PRC laws or regulations

If the PRC government finds that the BZR Structured Contracts (which
establish the structure for operating the Value-added Telecommunications
Businesses of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing in the PRC) do not comply with applicable
PRC laws and regulations, or if these regulations or their interpretations
change in the future, Beijing Zhixing Ruijing could be subject to severe
consequences, including the nullification of the BZR Structured Contracts and
the relinquishment of the interest of Orange Beijing in the BZR Structured
Contracts.

According to the FITE Rules, foreign investors’ ultimate equity ownership in
an entity in the PRC which provides value-added telecommunications services
must not exceed 50% and a foreign investor who wishes to acquire any
equity interest in a value-added telecommunications business in the PRC must
demonstrate (i) a good track record and (ii) experience in providing value-
added telecommunications services (“Qualification Requirements”).

Beijing Zhixing Ruijing has been engaging in the development and operation
of the Value-added Telecommunication Businesses. Under the current PRC
regulatory circumstances, Orange Beijing as a wholly foreign owned enterprise
would not be able to obtain the VAT License and thus is unable to provide the
value-added telecommunications services in the PRC directly.

On 13 July 2006, the Ministry of Information Industry (1A RHFEE S
EEZHE), currently known as MIIT (the Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology of the PRC (12 A £ FHFIE T 2 40(5 B4L.2h)) issued the Circular
on Strengthening the Administration of Foreign Investment in Value-added
Telecommunications Business (BR ils& 5K & R 2 EBEXKEIRNRE
Z0) ("MIIT Notice”), which reiterated restrictions on foreign investment in the
telecommunications businesses. Under the MIIT Notice, a domestic company
that holds a VAT License is prohibited from leasing, transferring or selling the
license to foreign investors in any form, and from providing any assistance,
including providing resources, sites or facilities, to foreign investors to provide
ICP services illegally in the PRC. Due to a lack of interpretative materials from
the authorities, it cannot be assured that the MIIT will not consider the BZR
Structured Contracts as a kind of foreign investment in telecommunication
services, in which case Beijing Zhixing Ruijing and Orange Beijing may be
found in violation of the MIIT Notice.
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In addition, several articles published by some news agencies reported
discussions that a recent PRC Supreme Court decision and two VIE structure-
related arbitration decisions in Shanghai had cast doubt on the validity of
the VIE structure. According to these articles, the PRC Supreme Court ruled
in late 2012 that an entrustment agreement entered into by and between
a Hong Kong company and a PRC domestic entity, which was purported to
enable such Hong Kong company to make an equity investment in a PRC
bank through the proxy PRC domestic entity, was void on the grounds that
this agreement established an entrustment relationship meant to circumvent
the PRC laws and regulations that prohibit foreign investment in PRC financial
institutions and as such, constituted an act of concealing illegal intentions
with a legitimate form. These articles argued that a contractual arrangement
in a VIE structure and the entrustment agreement in the cited case, which
were similar to the BZR Structured Contracts, were also designed to “get
around” the regulatory restrictions on foreign investment in certain industries.
As such, the articles noted that this Supreme Court decision might increase
the uncertainties relating to the PRC government’s view on the validity of the
VIE structure. These articles also reported, without providing sufficient details,
on two arbitration decisions by the then Shanghai CIETAC which invalidated
the contractual arrangement used in a VIE structure in 2010 and 2011.

The PRC legal advisor is of the opinion that, based on their understanding
and the numerous precedents of PRC domestic internet content providers
controlled by overseas companies through contractual arrangements that
are similar to the BZR Structured Contracts, the BZR Structured Contracts do
not result in a violation of PRC laws, or would not be deemed as “concealing
illegal intentions with lawful forms” (as a matter concerning Article 52 of the
PRC Contract Law). The BZR Structured Contracts are enforceable, valid and
legally binding in accordance with their terms and provisions (except for part
of the arbitration clauses contained therein setting forth that the arbitration
tribunal may issue injunction or winding-up orders and the Courts of Hong
Kong and the Cayman Islands have the jurisdiction to grant interim remedies
in support of the arbitration pending formation of the arbitration tribunal).
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However, according to the PRC legal advisor, it cannot be assured that the
PRC government or judicial authorities would agree that the BZR Structured
Contracts comply with current PRC laws or regulations, would not strictly
enforce current PRC laws regulating the provision of internet content, or
would not adopt new laws or policies in the future. If the PRC government or
judicial authorities determine that the BZR Structured Contracts do not comply
with applicable laws and regulations, such contracts would be deemed void
and the PRC government or judicial authorities could have broad discretion in
dealing with such incompliance, including:

(i) requiring the nullification of the BZR Structured Contracts;

(i) levying fines and/or confiscating the proceeds generated from the
operations under the BZR Structured Contracts;

(i) revoking of the business licenses or operating licenses of Beijing Zhixing
Ruijing;

(iv) discontinuing or placing restrictions or onerous conditions on the
business operations of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing; and

(v) taking other regulatory or enforcement actions that could be harmful to
or even shut down the business of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing and/or Orange
Beijing.

In addition, where the Group loses the right to direct the activities of Beijing
Zhixing Ruijing as a result of these consequences, the Group would no longer
be able to consolidate the financial results of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing.

Orange Beijing relies on BZR Structured Contracts to control and obtain the
economic benefits from Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, which may not be as effective
in providing operational control as direct ownership

Due to the PRC’s legal restrictions on foreign investment in the value-added
telecommunications services, Orange Beijing controls, through the BZR
Structured Contracts rather than equity ownership, Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, the
operating entity in the PRC and the holder-to-be of the key licenses required
to operate the value-added telecommunications services in the PRC. However,
the BZR Structured Contracts still may not be as effective as equity ownership
in exercising control over Beijing Zhixing Ruijing. For example, Beijing Zhixing
Ruijing and its shareholders could breach or fail to perform their obligations
under the BZR Structured Contracts. If Orange Beijing had direct ownership of
Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, Orange Beijing would be able to exercise its rights as
a shareholder to effect changes in its board of directors, which in turn could
effect changes, subject to any applicable fiduciary obligations, at management
and operational level. Under the BZR Structured Contracts, Orange Beijing
would need to rely on its rights under the BZR Structured Contracts to effect
such changes, or designate new shareholders for Beijing Zhixing Ruijing.
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If Beijing Zhixing Ruijing or its shareholders breach their obligations under
the BZR Structured Contracts or if Orange Beijing loses the effective control
over Beijing Zhixing Ruijing for any reason, Orange Beijing would need to
bring a claim against them under the terms of the BZR Structured Contracts.
The BZR Structured Contracts are governed by PRC law and provide that any
dispute which arises will be submitted to the CIETAC, for arbitration, the
ruling of which will be final and binding. Furthermore, personal liabilities of
the shareholders of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing may also cause the equity interest
they hold in Beijing Zhixing Ruijing to be subject to court preservation actions
or enforcement. The legal framework and system in the PRC particularly
that relates to the arbitration proceedings is not as developed as in other
jurisdictions such as Hong Kong. As a result, significant uncertainties relating
to the enforcement of legal rights through arbitration, litigation and other
legal proceedings remain in the PRC, which could limit Orange Beijing’s ability
to enforce the BZR Structured Contracts and exert effective control over
Beijing Zhixing Ruijing. If Beijing Zhixing Ruijing or any of its shareholders fails
to perform its respective obligations under the BZR Structured Contracts, and
Orange Beijing is unable to enforce the BZR Structured Contracts, or suffers
significant delays or other obstacles in the process of enforcing the BZR
Structured Contracts, the business and operations of Orange Beijing could
be severely disrupted, which could materially and adversely affect operation
results. As a result, the Company’s investment in Orange Beijing could also be
materially and adversely affected.

Remedlies of BZR Structured Contracts may not be obtained effectively under
PRC laws

The BZR Structured Contracts provide for dispute resolution by way of
arbitration in accordance with the arbitration rules of the CIETAC in the
PRC. The BZR Structured Contracts contain provisions to the effect that the
arbitration tribunal may award remedies when Beijing Zhixing Ruijing breaches
the BZR Structured Contracts. In addition, the BZR Structured Contracts
contain provisions to the effect that the courts in Hong Kong and the Cayman
Islands are empowered to grant interim remedies in support of the arbitration
pending the formation of an arbitral tribunal.

However, the abovementioned provisions contained in the BZR Structured
Contracts may not be enforced effectively. Under PRC laws, an arbitration
tribunal does not have the power to grant any injunctive relief or provisional
or final liquidation order to preserve the assets of or any equity interest in
Beijing Zhixing Ruijing in case of disputes, and the courts in Hong Kong and
the Cayman Islands may not be empowered to grant interim remedies in
support of the arbitration pending the formation of an arbitral tribunal under
PRC laws. As a result, the provisions may not effectively protect Orange
Beijing, notwithstanding the relevant contractual provisions contained in the
BZR Structured Contracts.
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Therefore, in the event that Beijing Zhixing Ruijing breaches any of the BZR
Structured Contracts, Orange Beijing may not be able to obtain sufficient
remedies in a timely manner, and its ability to exert effective control over
Beijing Zhixing Ruijing and conduct its business could be materially and
adversely affected and the financial performance of Orange Beijing could be
materially and adversely affected. As a result, the Company’s investment in
Orange Beijing could also be materially and adversely affected.

The shareholders of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing may potentially have a conflict of
interests with the Group

The Group's control over Beijing Zhixing Ruijing is based on the contractual
arrangement under the BZR Structured Contracts. Hence, conflict of interests
of the shareholders of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing will adversely affect the
interests of the Company. Pursuant to the Voting Rights Proxy Agreement,
the shareholders of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing have irrevocably authorised
Orange Beijing (or its designee) as their proxy to exercise all the rights of the
shareholders of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing and such authorisation shall not be
altered unless otherwise instructed by Beijing Zhixing Ruijing. Therefore, it is
unlikely that there will be potential conflict of interests between the Company
and the shareholders of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing. However, in the unlikely event
that conflict of interests arises and cannot be resolved, the Company will
consider removing and replacing the shareholders of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing.

The contractual arrangements may be subject to scrutiny of the PRC tax
authorities and transfer pricing adjustments and additional tax may be
imposed

The Group could face material adverse tax consequences if the PRC tax
authorities determine that the arrangements under the BZR Structured
Contracts was not entered into based on arm’s length negotiations. If the
PRC tax authorities determine that these agreements were not entered into
on an arm'’s length basis, they may adjust our income and expenses for PRC
tax purposes in the form of a transfer pricing adjustment. A transfer pricing
adjustment could adversely affect the Group’s financial position by increasing
the relevant tax liability without reducing the tax liabilities of Beijing Zhixing
Ruijing, and this could further result in late payment fees and other penalties
to Beijing Zhixing Ruijing for under-paid taxes. As a result, any transfer pricing
adjustment could have a material adverse effect on the Group’s financial
position and results of operations.
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The Company does not have any insurance which covers the risks relating to
the BZR Structured Contracts and the transactions contemplated thereunder
The insurance of the Group does not cover the risks relating to the BZR
Structured Contracts and the transactions contemplated thereunder and the
Company has no intention to purchase any new insurance in this regard. If
any risk arises from the BZR Structured Contracts in the future, such as those
affecting the enforceability of the BZR Structured Contracts and the relevant
agreements for the transactions contemplated thereunder and the operation
of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, the results of the Group may be adversely affected.
However, the Group has been monitoring the relevant legal and operational
environment from time to time to comply with the applicable laws and
regulations. In addition, the Group has been implementing relevant internal
control measures to reduce the operational risk.

Actions taken to mitigate the risks associated with the BZR
Structured Contracts

The BZR Structured Contracts contain certain provisions in order to exercise
effective control over and to safeguard the assets of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing,
including but not limited to that, without the prior written consent of Orange
Beijing, the shareholders of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing shall not at any time
dispose, transfer, pledge, sell or create any charges over the assets, business,
revenue or any beneficial interests of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, Beijing Zhixing
Ruijing shall conduct its business in its ordinary and usual course to preserve
the asset value of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing and shall not engage in any act (or
lack thereof) which may have any adverse effect on the business, operations
and asset value of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing, and etc.

In addition to the abovementioned internal control measures as provided
in the BZR Structured Contracts, the Company has implemented, through
Orange Beijing, additional internal control measures against Beijing Zhixing
Ruijing as appropriate, having regard to the internal control measures adopted
by the Group from time to time, which may include (without limitation):

(i) Beijing Zhixing Ruijing to make available monthly management accounts
and submit key operating data after each month end and provide
explanations on any material fluctuations to Orange Beijing;

(i) Beijing Zhixing Ruijing to assist and facilitate Orange Beijing to conduct
quarterly on-site internal audit on Beijing Zhixing Ruijing; and

(i) if required, legal advisers and, or other professionals will be retained to
deal with specific issues arising from the BZR Structured Contracts and
to ensure that the operation of Beijing Zhixing Ruijing will comply with
applicable laws and regulations.

Further information regarding risks associated with the Contractual
Arrangements and the BZR Structured Contracts are also set out in the
Transfer of Listing Announcement and the announcement of the Company
dated 8 May 2015 respectively.
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Structured Contracts involving Hangzhou Saidian
Technology

On 8 January 2016, the Group had acquired entire issued share capital of
ZhongFu Holdings Limited from its then shareholders pursuant to a sale and
purchase agreement dated 18 December 2015 and entered into between,
among others, the Company and its then shareholders. For details, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 18 December 2015 and 8
January 2016. The results and financial position of ZhongFu Holdings Limited
have been included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group
from 8 January 2016.

On 5 January 2016, Hangzhou Saidian Information Technology Company
Limited* ﬁ)”%ﬁﬁ%ﬂ&ﬁﬁﬁ“f ("Hangzhou Saidian Information”)

("t EE{Z 2 "), a wholly owned subsidiary of ZhongFu Holdings Limited,
entered into a series of structured contracts, including Exclusive Right to
Purchase Agreement, Authorisation Agreement, Management and Operations
Agreement and Pledge Agreement with the then shareholders of Hangzhou
Saidian Technology Company Limited fiMZE2RI AR AR (“Hangzhou
Saidian Technology”).

In accordance with the ZhongFu Structured Contracts, the Group has acquired
the control over Hangzhou Saidian Technology as the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities (i.e. the
activities that significantly affect the Hangzhou Saidian Technology’s variable
returns). The Group is also entitled to substantially all of the operating profits
and residual interest generated by Hangzhou Saidian Technology. Hangzhou
Saidian Technology in turn held 80.38% of the equity interest of Zheliang
ZhongFu Internet Technology Company Limited #TAH BRAGLEEHEBR A
Al (“Zhejiang Zhongfu”). Consequently, Zhejiang Zhongfu has become a
subsidiary of the Group with effect from 8 January 2016.

In December 2021, taking account of the business operation of Zhejiang Zhongfu
and the Group’ s development strategy, the Group has transferred all the 80.38%
equity interests of Zhejiang Zhongfu held by Hangzhou Saidian Technology to
independent third parties, and Zhejiang Zhongfu is no longer a subsidiary of the
Group. In view of this, all the structural contracts of Zhongfu will be automatically
terminated, the Group will go through the deregistration procedures of Hangzhou
Saidian Technology, and the remaining property after the deregistration of

Hangzhou Saidian Technology will be delivered to the Group.

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

Impairment provision for goodwill and other intangible
asset related to “new technology retails solutions” cash
generating unit

The impairment for the goodwill and intangible assets relating to “new
technology retails solutions” cash generating unit (“CGU") arose from the
acquisition of Zale Inc. and its subsidiaries (the “Zale Group”) in 2018. Zale
Inc and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in SaaS (Software as a Service)
services in 3C industrial internet and new technology retails in the PRC.
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Zale Group is principally engaged in Saa$S services in 3C industrial internet
and new technology retails in the PRC, and it operates by allowing customers
(users) to use its cloud tools, which has the effect of combining users (through
a membership-based model) to form an online business community. With this
community, Zale Group allows members (who could be suppliers, retailers
or buyers of goods) to be introduced and connected. After these members
getting connected, a business network (with both buy and sell sides) through
using the Saa$ tools would thus be created.

Based on this business model, for the Zale Group to be able to expand its
business, a key driver and indicator will be its abilities to expand its members.
Zale Group's expansion strategy is to focus on penetrating its members store
networks into towns and villages of lower-tier cities in China (where the
competition is relatively less intense in upper-tier cities where conglomerates
have established size advantages) To achieve this, Zale Group would
enter target cities and set up physical base there, and starting from which
promoters of Zale Group’s tool would recruit with local manufacturers and
retailers to be members of the SaaS$ tools, expanding the online business
network (and thereby charging membership fees in terms of revenue), and
also making the membership more attractive as it would allow users to
connect with more potential business opportunities. However, in or about the
4th quarter of 2021, tensions arose in the internet and e-commerce industry
as a result of promulgation of several new regulations and draft measures by
the PRC Government. While these newly introduced regulations may not have
a direct and instant impact of the Zale Group, there were anxieties over the
forthcoming of a more stringent regulatory environment of the e-commerce
business in the PRC.

Taking into account also that the Zale Group was not performing as well as
expected for year 2021 and was making a loss due to the intense competition
as conglomerate entering into the market, impairment assessment over its
SaaS business was performed. The management noted the evolving trend of
the regulatory and market environment on operating e-commerce and service
platforms in the PRC, combined with the loss-making performance of Zale
Group, create greater uncertainties and adversely impact the growth prospects
in lower-tier retail market as the Zale Group originally had planned. Also,
while the COVID-19 pandemic was seemingly under control in China during
the most part of the year and there were expectations that prevention and
control measures would be loosened, the appearance of COVID-19 variants
and a broader scale of infections internationally in late 2021 suggested that
the prevention and control measures will be prolonged. This adversely impact
the Zale Group’s plan of replicating its business model into lower-tier cities
and penetrating its member store networks, in particular as some lower-tier
towns, villages and communities implements stringent prevention measures.
With the combined results of the above, the management concluded that
Zale Group's future growth will be subject to various uncertainties and a
downward adjustment of the valuation of its SaaS business will be required
and considered these indicates a detailed impairment assessment are required
under HKAS36 requirement for its account books closing for the financial year
2021.
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In the determination of impairment amount, the Company followed the
requirement of HKAS 36 by comparing the relevant CGU’s carrying amount
with its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of a CGU'’s
fair value less costs of disposal and value-in-use. The Company engaged
an independent external valuer (PG Advisory) to determine the recoverable
amount of this CGU for the year ended 31 December 2021. The discounted
cash flow method was adopted in the valuation performed, which was
considered to be the most appropriate valuation approach in this valuation
as it takes the projection growth and firm-specific issues of the CGUs into
consideration. It is noted that the CGU'’s fair value less cost of disposal would
be higher or approximate to value-in-use.

Thus, the recoverable amount is determined based on the fair value less cost
of disposal. In the valuation performed, the assumed annual revenue growth
for the five-financial year budget has been adjusted from approximately
59% on average (as adopted in the previous valuation in the financial year
ended 31 December 2020) to approximately 26% A terminal growth rate of
approximately 3% was assumed in the discounted cash flow model based on
annual inflation rate of approximately 3% as sourced from public data. The
post-tax discount rate has been adjusted from approximately 19% for FY2020
to approximately 22% for FY2021. As advised by the independent valuer,
there has been no significant change in the value of inputs or assumptions
from those previously adopted other than (1) the downward adjustment of
revenue projection and (2) the adjustment of the discount rate as mentioned
above.

As a result, the management has provided impairment loss on goodwill and
intangible assets related to “new technology solutions” CGU amounting to
RMB454,720,000 and RMB29,265,000, respectively based on valuation for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

Please also refer to note 19 of the consolidated financial statements.
SIGNIFICANT EVENT(S)

Disposal of entire equity interests in Tianjin Guokai

On 5 January 2021, Beijing Huicong Technology Group Co., Ltd. (Jt REHR
B EBEBRAF]) (“Beijing HC Technology”, a subsidiary of the Group),
Beijing Little Rhino Horn Technology Co., Ltd. JQt R/DE AR ER A F])
(“Beijing LRH"), Tianjin Guokai Ruitou Education Technology Co., Ltd. (K&
IR ERIER A R]) (“Tianjin Guokai”), and Hong Kong Huicong
International Group Limited (/8 Z B =B HBR A 7)), a subsidiary of the
Group) entered into an equity transfer agreement, pursuant to which, Beijing
HC Technology agreed to transfer the entire equity interest in Tianjin Guokai
to Beijing LRH at the consideration of RMB300,500,000. Upon completion,
Beijing Huicong Technology will no longer hold any equity interest in Tianjin
Guokai and Tianjin Guokai will cease to be a subsidiary of the Company.
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The Group has divested the employees, intellectual property rights, assets and
liabilities in relation to the business of hc360.com during the transition period
in accordance with the commitment under the agreement. Beijing LRH has
paid the fourth payment under the agreement and requested to effect the
transfer. However, it has issued a notice to the Group, requiring the Group
to bear the possible losses arising from the demolition of the properties of
Tianjin Guokai’s subsidiaries. The Group considers that Beijing LRH's request
for the Group to bear the loss of demolition is not well-founded and requires
Beijing LRH to settle all payments. Both parties are currently negotiating the
delivery and related arrangements, and the transfer under the agreement has
not been fully completed as of the date of this annual report.

The equity investment agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder constitute a discloseable transaction of the Company. Please refer
to the Company’s announcement dated 5 January 2021 for further details.

Change of addresses

During the Year, the Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong
has been changed to 40th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre, No. 248 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, and the address of the Company’s Cayman
Islands Share Registrar has been changed to Suite 3204, Unit 2A, Block 3,
Building D, P.O. Box 1586, Gardenia Court, Camana Bay, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1100, Cayman Islands.

Please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 1 March 2021 and 8
March 2021 for further details.

Introduction of investor in Huizhou Union Cotton and
Shanghai Union Cotton

On 9 August 2021, the Company, Beijing HC Technology, Tianjin Huicong
Technology Co., Limited (K & Z B & & F R 2 &) (“Tianjin HC"),
Huizhou Union Cotton Cloud Technology Co., Limited (2 M T 47 Bt & 1 %
A R A &) (“Huizhou Union Cotton”) and Shanghai Mianlian E-Commerce
Co., Limited (£ /8 #% ¥t & F 5 1% £ R 2 7)) (“Shanghai Union Cotton”)
(Beijing HC Technology, Tianjin HC, Huizhou Union Cotton and Shanghai
Union Cotton are subsidiaries of the Group) entered into an investment
agreement with Huizhou Daya Bay Sci-Tech No. 2 Investment Partnership
Enterprise (Limited Partnership) (B /| A& @RI A| SR E A B %(F
fR & %)) ("HDB Sci-Tech”) (as the investor), Juekun (Shanghai) Technology
Development Co., Limited & B& ( | )8) %l & % & B BR 2 & and Shanghai
Jueshi Network Technology Co., Limited ( 35 & ¥ 43 55 Rl & B R 2 7).
Pursuant to the agreement, among other things, HDB Sci-Tech conditionally
agreed to make an investment of RMB150,000,000 in cash to Huizhou
Union Cotton. HDB Sci-Tech has already contributed RMB150,000,000 of the
investment amount as of the date of this annual report.
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Huizhou Union Cotton is currently owned as to 5.01298% by Beijing HC
Technology, 30.688% by Tianjin HC, and 30% by HDB Sci-Tech, respectively.
Huizhou Union Cotton and Shanghai Union Cotton remain as subsidiaries of
the Company following completion, and their financial results will continue to
be accounted for and consolidated into the financial results of the Group.

The investment agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder
constitute a discloseable transaction of the Company, and transaction with
connected persons at subsidiary level of the Company. Please refer to the
Company’s announcement dated 9 August 2021 for further details.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The total number of issued Shares was 1,309,931,119 as at 31 December
2021 (2020: 1,309,931,119).

As at 31 December 2021, 59,814,779 options under the share option
schemes (if exercised, 59,814,779 shares may be issued) remain outstanding.

STAFF AND REMUNERATION

The business development and results of the Group relies on the skills,
motivation and commitment of its staff. As at 31 December 2021, the Group
had 1,468 employees (31 December 2020: 1,658).

Remuneration of employees is generally in line with the market trend and
commensurate with the rate in the industry. Share options and share awards
are granted to employees based on individual performance. Other benefits
to the Group’s employees include medical insurance, retirement schemes,
training programs and educational subsidies. Total staff costs including
directors’ emoluments from continuing operations for the Year amounted to
approximately RMB320,218,000 (2020: RMB303,212,000).

RETIREMENT SCHEME

In accordance with the relevant regulations in the PRC, the Group participated
in a state retirement plan whereby the only obligation of the Group with
respect to such plan is to make annual contributions to the scheme calculated
at 16% of the basic salaries of the employees. Under such scheme, forfeited
contributions may not be used by the employer to reduce the existing level of
contribution. The Group has no obligation for further pension payments or
any post-retirement benefits beyond these annual contributions.

Details of the retirement scheme are set out in note 9(a) to the consolidated
financial statements.
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CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021. the Group’s bank borrowings amounting to
RMB90,000,000 (31 December 2020: RMB130,000,000) are secured by
properties and investment properties, with carrying value amounting to
RMB25,156,000 and RMB26,009,000 respectively (31 December 2020:
secured by properties and investment properties with carrying value
amounting to RMB25,905,000 and RMB27,171,000 respectively), and are also
guaranteed by the executive Directors and subsidiaries (31 December 2020:
same).

The remaining bank borrowings included borrowings of RMB524,000,000 (31
December 2020: RMB548,000,000) provided by Jingu Bank and guaranteed
by subsidiaries and associates of the Group (31 December 2020: guaranteed
by an associate of the Group).

Bank borrowings of RMB35,000,000 (31 December 2020: RMB75,000,000)
were guaranteed by a subsidiary and associates of the Group and also secured
by an associate’s properties.

As at 31 December 2021, other borrowings with a total principal amount
of RMB230,000,000 (31 December 2020: same) were provided by an
independent third party matured on 31 December 2021 and has been
subsequently renewed and will mature on 31 December 2022 (31 December
2020: RMB200,000,000 is repayable on demand while the remaining
RMB30,000,000 was payable in May 2021). Such other borrowing is interest-
free and secured by certain equity shares of a subsidiary (31 December 2020:
same).

The remaining other borrowings with principal amount of RMB89,006,000
(31 December 2020: RMB94,651,000) are provided by an independent
third party and a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary (31 December
2020: independent third parties, director of a subsidiary, a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary and associate companies) and bear interest at rates
ranging from 3.89% to 10% per annum (31 December 2020: Nil to 10%
per annum). Out of these other borrowings, RMB86,506,000 (31 December
2020: RMB88,001,000) are secured by inventories.

EXCHANGE RISK

As the Group’s operations are principally in the PRC and majority of the assets
and liabilities of the Group are denominated in RMB, the Directors believe
that the Group is not subject to significant exchange risk.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no contingent liability (2020: Nil).
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities of
its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities for the financial year ended 31 December 2021.

It has always been the Group's vision to be a leading industrial Internet group
in China, in order to realise its long-term objective to empower traditional
industries with Internet and Data. To achieve this, the Group will continue its
strategy on formulating a comprehensive industrial Internet ecosystem.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the financial year by business
segment is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group during the year including an
analysis of the Group’s financial performance, an indication of likely future
developments in the Group’s business and events affecting the company that
have occurred since the end of the financial year are set out in the sections
headed “Management’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” of this annual report. These discussions form part of this Report of
Directors.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group may also be affected by financial risks sch as credit and liquidity
ricks and interest rate fluctuations. External volatility or uncertainty brought by
macro-economic conditions (particularly in China), national and local policies
and regulations (such as introduction of new laws) in industries we operates,
consumers behavior and trend, and outbreak and continuation of contagious
disease (including COVID-19) may also materially affect the Group’s business,
financial conditions, results of operations and growth prospects. The Group
also operates in a highly competitive markets. Part of the Group’s operations
relied on contractual arrangements (as further described in the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” section above), and their validity are also crucial to
the Group.
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KEY RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES AND OTHER
STAKEHOLDERS

The Group's customer base is diversified and comprising mostly small and
medium sized enterprises in the PRC and certain well-known companies. The
Group values the needs and aim to provide satisfactory user experiences to its
customers. The Group also conducts customers satisfaction survey to obtain
feedbacks, which would be applied to further improve our products and
services.

The Group’s major suppliers includes suppliers of B2B trading platform, such
as large-scale factories and traders, suppliers of the Group’s online products
business, such as search engine service provider. The Group worked closely
with approximately 60 suppliers in China during the Year, and the Group
endeavours to keep along-term and friendly relationships with its supplier.

The business development and results of the Group relies on the skills,
motivation and commitment of its staff. The staff are core assets of the
Group, and the Group maintains various communication channels with its
employees to hear their opinion and feedbacks

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group realises the importance of environmental protection in pursuing
long-term sustainability, and is committed to improving environmental
sustainability and will closely monitor the performance. Further information of
the Group's policies and performance about the environment will be included
in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company which
will be published on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange
in due course in compliance with the ESG Reporting Guide as set out in
Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group's operations are mainly carried out in the PRC while the Company
itself is listed on the Stock Exchange. The Group’s operations accordingly shall
comply with relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong. To the
best knowledge of the Directors, the Group has complied in all material aspects
with the relevant laws and regulations which have significant impact on its
business and operation during the Year.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the financial year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on pages 125 to 126.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in retained earnings of the Group during the
financial year are set out on page 130.

Details of the movements in other reserves of the Group are set out in note
32 to the consolidated financial statements.

There is no arrangement that a shareholder has waived or agreed to waive
any dividend.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are
set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in share capital and share options of the Company
are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as the Company’s share option schemes and Employees’ Share Award
Scheme, the Company had not enter into any equity-linked agreement during
the Year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2021, calculated
under the Companies Law of Cayman Islands, amounted to approximately
RMB1,435,560,000 (2020: RMB1,623,498,000).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 6 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
annual report were:

Mr. Liu Jun
(Chairman)

(appointed on 12 September 2016)

Mr. Zhang Yonghong
(Chief Executive Officer)

(appointed on 4 January 2019)

Mr. Liu Xiaodong (appointed on 1 June 2018)

(President)

Mr. Guo Fansheng Note (appointed on 21st March 2000)

Mr. Sun Yang Note 1 (appointed on 27 May 2019)
Mr. Lin Dewei Note ! (appointed on 1 July 2020)
Mr. Zhang Ke Note2 (appointed on 28th March 2003)
Mr. Zhang Tim Tianwei Note2

(appointed on 1st November 2011)

Ms. Qi Yan Note2 (appointed on 30 November 2017)

Notes:
1. non-executive Directors
2. independent non-executive Directors

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s articles of association (“Articles
of Association”), Mr. Guo Fansheng, Mr. Sun Yang and Mr. Zhang Ke will
be subject to, and eligible offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.
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DIRECTORS' PROFILE

The Directors’ profile is set out on pages 24 to 29.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors, Mr. Liu Jun, Mr. Zhang Yonghong and Mr.
Liu Xiaodong has entered into a director’s service contract with the Company,
whereby each of them has accepted the appointment as an executive Director
of the Company for a term of three years from 12 September 2019, 4 January
2022 and 1 June 2021 respectively, which may be terminated by either party
giving three months’ prior written notice or otherwise in accordance with the
terms of their respective service contracts.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Zhang Ke, Mr. Zhang
Tim Tianwei and Ms. Qi Yan has entered into a director’s service contract
with the Company, whereby each of them has accepted the appointment for
a term of one year, and the service contracts shall be renewed automatically
at the end of the term. Either party may terminate the service contract at any
time by giving one month’s prior written notice or in accordance with the
terms of their respective service contracts.

There is no service contract, which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation), in respect of any director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACT

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at the end of the Year or at any
time during the Year, (i) no Director or an entity connected with a director
was materially interested, whether directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance; (ii) there were no transaction,
arrangement or contract entered into by a specified undertaking of the
Company in which a Director had a material interest; (iii) there was no
other contract of significance between the Company or one of its subsidiary
companies, and a controlling shareholder (if any) or any of its subsidiaries; and
(iv) there was no contract of significance for the provision of services to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder (if any) or any
of its subsidiaries.

During or at the end of the Year, there was no arrangements to which the
Company or a specified undertaking of the Company is a party, an whose
objects are, or one of whose object is, to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by mean of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contract concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group was entered into or existed during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR STAFF EMOLUMENTS

Details of Directors and senior staff emoluments for the Year are set out in
notes 9 and 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

The emoluments of the Directors and the senior staff are determined based on
the operating results of the Group, individual performance and/or prevailing
market conditions. The Company has also adopted the Share Option Scheme
and the Share Award Scheme as an incentive to Directors and senior staff.

As at 31 December 2021, there was no arrangement in which the Directors
waived their remuneration.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")) which were notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO) or required to be entered in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transaction by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code"”) contained in the Listing Rules, were as follows:
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(a) Directors’ Long Positions in the Shares and Underlying

Shares of the Company

(a) EERARTARDREBERG 2HA

Total Percentage of

Class of Personal Family Corporate Other number of  shareholding

Name of Director Shares Capacity EEHY interests EEHY EEHY Shares (approximate)

REBDL

Rt &t BARS Ed 14 NS A it (#4)

LiuJun Ordinary Beneficial owner 79,551,400 - - - 79,551,400 6.07%
e Lk ERBEAA (note 1) (note 1)
(M1 (1)

Zhang Yonghong Ordinary Beneficial owner 13,767,000 13,767,000 1.05%
RKAL Lak EnEAA (note 2) (note 2)
(Frsx2) (M#2)

Liu Xiaodong Ordinary Beneficial owner and 5,168,085 62,273,79% 67,441,879 5.15%
N TER Interest of controlled (note 3) (note 3) (note 3)
corporation (M3) (Mi3) (Fi3)

BRER AR ER
AR

Guo Fansheng Ordinary Beneficial owner 2,088,000 - - 55,661,015 57,749,015 4.41%
IRE TER ERBAA (note 4) (note 4) (note 4)
(Firsza) (Mzk4) (M&t4)

Notes: B

Such interests in the Company comprise: (i) 50,220,000 Shares and (ii)
29,331,400 underlying Shares derived from the Options held by Mr. Liu Jun.

Such interests in the Company comprise: (i) 100,000 Shares; (ii) 4,000,000
underlying Shares derived from the awarded shares granted to Mr. Zhang
Yonghong under the employees’ share awarded scheme adopted on 17
November 2011 and (ii) 9,667,000 underlying Shares derived from the
Options held by Mr. Zhang Yonghong.

Such interests in the Company comprise: (i) 3,168,085 underlying Shares
from the Options held by Mr. Liu Xiaodong; (ii) 2,000,000 underlying Shares
derived from the awarded shares granted to Mr. Liu Xiaodong under the
employees’ share awarded scheme adopted on 17 November 2011 and
(ii) 62,273,794 Shares held by Wisdom Limited (a company wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. Liu Xiaodong). Mr. Liu Xiaodong is deemed, or
taken to have, interested in all the Shares held by Wisdom Limited pursuant
to the SFO.
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4. Such interest in the Company comprises:

(@) 2,088,000 Shares (long position) held by Mr. Guo Fansheng; and

(b) 55,661,015 Shares (long position) held by a trustee of a trust of
which Mr. Guo Fansheng is a founder of a discretionary trust who can
influence how the trustee exercise his discretion.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company has any interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have
under such provision of the SFO) or required to be entered in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or which
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

2003 Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to written resolutions of the shareholders of the Company dated
30 November 2003, among others, a share option scheme (the “2003 Share
Option Scheme”) was adopted by the Company. Following the listing of the
Shares being transferred from the Growth Enterprise Market (now known
as GEM) to the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 10 October 2014, the
2003 Share Option Scheme was terminated. Notwithstanding the termination
of the 2003 Share Option Scheme, the outstanding options under the 2003
Share Option Scheme (the “Outstanding Option”) shall continue to be valid
and exercisable until the expiry of the option period (i.e. the period to be
notified by the Board to the grantee in the offer of options, but in any event
shall not exceed 10 years from the date of the offer).

The principal terms of the 2003 Share Option Scheme were summarised in the
paragraph headed “Share Options” under the section headed “Statutory and
General Information” in Appendix V of the prospectus of the Company dated
8 December 2003. Set out below is a summary of the 2003 Share Option
Scheme:
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Purpose and participants of the 2003 Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the 2003 Share Option Scheme is to provide incentive and/or
reward to directors or employees of the Group and other persons who in the
sole discretion of the Board has contributed or will contribute to the Group.

Total number of Shares available for issue and the maximum
entitlement of each participant under the 2003 Share Option Scheme
The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon the exercise of
all the outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the 2003
Share Option Scheme and any other schemes of the Company, must not, in
aggregate, exceed 30% (or such other percentage as may be allowed under
the Listing Rules) of the total number of Shares in issue from time to time. The
total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted to each participant (including both exercised and outstanding options)
under the 2003 Share Option Scheme or any other share option schemes of
the Company shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue at the time of such
grant.

As at the date of this annual report, 4,380,000 Options under the 2003 Share
Option Scheme were outstanding, upon full exercise of which 4,380,000
Shares, may be issue representing 0.33% of the issued shares as at the date
of this report. The 2003 Share Option Scheme had been terminated and no
further options would be granted.

Time of exercise of the options

An option may be exercised by the grantee at any time during the period to
be notified by the Board to the grantee in the offer of options, but in any
event shall not exceed 10 years from the date of offer.

Notwithstanding the termination of the 2003 Share Option Scheme, the
Outstanding Option shall continue to be valid and exercisable until the expire
of the option period.

Minimum holding period

The Board may offer to grant any options subject to such terms and
conditions in relation to the minimum period of the options to be held and/or
the performance criteria to be satisfied before such options can be exercised
and/or any other terms as the Board may determine in its absolute discretion.
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Amount payable on acceptance of the Outstanding Option

An offer shall be deemed to have been accepted and an Outstanding Option
to which the offer relates shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted
and to have taken effect when a letter in such form as the Board may from
time to time determine signifying acceptance of the Outstanding Option duly
signed by the grantee together with a remittance in favour of the Company
of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof is received by the
Company within 7 days from the offer date (inclusive of the offer date).

Basis of determining the exercise price

The subscription price shall be a price determined solely by the Board and
notified to a participant and shall be at least the higher of: (i) the closing price
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
offer fate, which must be a business day; (ii) the average of the closing prices
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the offer date; and (iii) the nominal
value of a Share on the offer date.

2015 Share Option Scheme

On 22 May 2015 (the “Adoption Date”), a new share option scheme
was approved by the shareholders of the Company (“2015 Share Option
Scheme”). Set out below is a summary of the 2015 Share Option Scheme:

Purpose and participants of the 2015 Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the 2015 Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain the
best available personnel, to provide additional incentive to employees (full-time
and part-time), directors, consultants, customers, advisers, distributors,
contractors, suppliers, agents, business partners or service providers of
the Group and to promote the success of the business of the Group
("Participant(s)”). The Board may, at its absolute discretion, invite any person
belonging to any of the aforesaid classes of persons of any member of the
Group to be a Participant of the 2015 Share Option Scheme.

Total number of Shares available for issue

The total number of Shares available for issue in respect of which options
may be granted under the 2015 Share Option Scheme is 102,085,221 Shares,
representing 7.79% of the issued shares as at the date of this annual report.
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Maximum entitlement of each Participant under the 2015 Share Option
Scheme

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
Options granted to each Participant (including both exercised and outstanding
Options) under the 2015 Share Option Scheme or any other share option
schemes of the Company in any 12-month period up to date of grant shall
not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue.

Time of exercise of the Options

An Option may be exercised by the grantee at any time during the period
to be notified by the Board to the grantee (the “Grantee”) in the offer of
Options (the “Offer”), but in any event shall not exceed 10 years from the
date of offer (the “Offer Date").

Minimum holding period

The Board may offer to grant any Options subject to such terms and
conditions in relation to the minimum period of the Options to be held and/or
the performance criteria to be satisfied before such Options can be exercised
and/or any other terms as the Board may determine in its absolute discretion.

Amount payable on acceptance of the Option

An Offer shall be deemed to have been accepted and an Option to which the
Offer relates shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted and to have
taken effect when a letter in such form as the Board may from time to time
determine signifying acceptance of the Option duly signed by the Grantee
together with a remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by way of
consideration for the grant thereof is received by the Company within 7 days
from the Offer Date (inclusive of the Offer Date).

Basis of determining the exercise price

The subscription price shall be a price determined solely by the Board and
notified to a Participant and shall be at least the higher of: (i) the closing price
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
Offer Date, which must be a business day; (ii) the average of the closing prices
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
5 business days immediately preceding the Offer Date; and (iii) the nominal
value of a Share on the Offer Date.

Remaining life of the 2015 Share Option Scheme
The 2015 Share Option Scheme shall be valid for a period of 10 years

commencing on the Adoption Date.

The principal terms of the 2015 Share Option Scheme were summarised in
the Appendix of the circular of the Company dated 5 May 2015.
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OUTSTANDING SHARE OPTIONS

Share Option Scheme

As at 31 December 2021, options to subscribe for an aggregate of
59,814,779 Shares granted, which comprise 4,380,000 options granted
under the 2003 Share Option Scheme and 55,434,779 options granted under
the 2015 Share Option Scheme, were outstanding, details of which were as

follows:

Name of grantee

ERAER

Directors

=

Liu Jun (note 12)
B (Mz12)

Zhang Yonghong (note 12

RAAL(PiEE12)
Liu Xiaodong (note 12)
2R (HEE12)

Senior management
EREERE

Wu Lei (note 12)

Rz (ME12)

Song Bingchen (note 12)
Rk (HE12)

Zhao Hong (note 12)
BT (MFE12)

Other employees
HitlEs
In aggregate (note 11)
At (M)
In aggregate (note 11)
)
(

el
In aggregate (note 2, 11)
Aat(fzr2 - 11)

In aggregate (note 3,12)
At (M3 - 12)

Total
@5t

Date of grant

BREAH

13 October 2017
—Z—+F+A+=H
20 June 2019
“E-NFAAZHAH
19 July 2018
“Z-\FtA+NH
19 July 2018
“E-\FtA+NH
19 July 2018
—Z2-\FtA+NH
19 July 2018

“E-N\FLATAH

28 March 2011
—T—F=A=1+NA
3 April 2013
—T-=FNA=H

18 November 2013
ZE-=F+—A+NH
19 July 2018
—E2-\FtAt+NH
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Number of share options
BREHE

Exercised

during

the period

Granted
during
the period

Exercise As at
price 1 January
per share 2021

Lapsed As at
during 31 December
the period 2021
R-B=-%F

BRATHEE HRE HATE BRX¥ +=A=+-H
HK$ (Note 1)

BT (HaE1)

6.476 29,630,700 - - (299,300) 29,331,400
4.6 9,833,500 - - (166,500) 9,667,000
46 3,702,485 - - (534,400) 3,168,085
4.6 3,379,413 - - (467,600) 2,911,813
4.6 2,896,640 - - (801,600) 2,095,040
46 1,496,597 - - (207,080) 1,289,517

1.108 100,000 - - (100,000) -

4.402 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000

9.84 2,880,000 - - - 2,880,000
46 8,100,459 - - (1,128,535) 6,971,924
63,519,794 - - (3,705,015) 59,814,779
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Notes:

Each Option granted and accepted shall be valid for a period of 10 years from
the date of the grant of Options. Each Option has a vesting period from its date
of grant up to the date immediately before the commencement of its exercise
period.

For the Options exercisable at HK$1.108 granted on 28 March 2011, the relevant
grantees may exercise Options up to 50% and 100%, respectively, of the Shares
comprised in his or her Option (less any number of Shares in respect of which the
Option has been previously exercised), commencing from the first and second
anniversaries of the date of the grant of Options.

For the Options exercisable at HK$4.402 granted on 3 April 2013, the relevant
grantee may exercise options up to 20%, 40%, 60%, 80% and 100%, of the
shares of the Company comprised in his option (less any number of shares of
the Company in respect of which the option has been previously exercised),
commencing from the first, second, third, fourth and fifth anniversaries of the
date of the grant of options respectively.

For the Options exercisable at HK$9.84 granted on 18 November 2013, the
relevant grantees may exercise Options up to 10%, 20%, 40%, 70% and 100%,
respectively, of the Shares comprised in his or her Option (less any number of
Shares in respect of which the Option has been previously exercised), commencing
from the first, second, third, fourth and fifth anniversaries of the date of the grant
of Options.

For the Options exercisable at HK$6.476 granted on 13 October 2017, the
relevant grantees may exercise Options up to 20%, 40%, 60%, 80% and 100%,
respectively, of the Shares comprised in his or her Option (less any number of
Shares in respect of which the Option has been previously exercised), commencing
from the first, second, third, fourth and fifth anniversaries of the date of the grant
of Options.

For the Options exercisable at HK$4.60 granted on 19 July 2018, the relevant
grantees may exercise Options up to 33.3%, 66.6% and 100%, respectively, of
the Shares comprised in his or her Option (less any number of Shares in respect
of which the Option has been previously exercised), commencing from the first,
second and third anniversaries of the date of the grant of Options. See also the
paragraph below headed “Vesting periods and vesting conditions of the Options
granted on 19 July 2018".

For the Options exercisable at HK$4.60 granted on 20 June 2019, the relevant
grantees may exercise Options up to 33.3%, 66.6% and 100%, respectively, of
the Shares comprised in his Option (less any number of shares of the Company in
respect of which the option has been previously exercised), commencing from the
first, second and third anniversaries of the date of the grant of Options.

13 employees have been granted Options to subscribe Shares at HK$9.84 per
Share.

8 employees have been granted Options to subscribe Shares at HK$4.6 per Share.
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The fair value of Options granted under the Share Option Scheme on 28 March
2011, determined using the Binomial Model valuation model, was approximately
RMB1,377,000. The significant inputs into the model were exercise price of
HK$1.108 standard deviation of expected share price returns of 77.4%, expected
life of Options ranging from 3.8 to 4.9 years expected dividend paid out rate of 0%
and annual risk-free interest rate 2.82%. The volatility measured at the standard
deviation of expected share price returns is based on statistical analysis of historical
price movement of the Company and other comparable companies with similar
business nature.

The fair value of Options granted under the Share Option Scheme on 3 April
2013, determined using the Binomial Model valuation model, was approximately
RMB3,754,000. The significant inputs into the model were exercise price of
HK$4.402 standard deviation of expected share price returns of 75%, expected
life of Options ranging from 9.1 to 9.6 years expected dividend paid out rate of 0%
and annual risk-free interest rate 1.111%. The volatility measured at the standard
deviation of expected share price returns is based on statistical analysis of historical
price movement of the Company and other comparable companies with similar
business nature.

The fair value of Options granted under the Share Option Scheme on 18
November 2013, determined using the Binomial Model valuation model, was
approximately RMB50,125,000. The significant inputs into the model were
exercise price of HK$9.84 standard deviation of expected share price returns of
71.5%, expected life of Options ranging from 4.7 to 7.9 years expected dividend
paid out rate of 0% and annual risk-free interest rate 1.915%. The volatility
measured at the standard deviation of expected share price returns is based
on statistical analysis of historical price movement of the Company and other
comparable companies with similar business nature.

The fair value of Options granted under the Share Option Scheme on 13 October
2017, determined using the Binomial Model valuation model, was approximately
RMB100,356,000. The significant inputs into the model were exercise price of
HK$6.476 standard deviation of expected share price returns of 62%, expected
life of Options 4.9 years expected dividend paid out rate of 0.9% and annual
risk-free interest rate 1.745%. The volatility measured at the standard deviation
of expected share price returns is based on statistical analysis of historical price
movement of the Company and other comparable companies with similar
business nature.
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The fair value of Options granted under the 2015 Share Option Scheme on 19 July
2018, determined using the Binomial Model valuation model, was approximately
RMB70,258,000. The significant inputs into the model were exercise price of
HK$4.6 standard deviation of expected share price returns of 70%, expected life
of Options 10 years expected dividend paid out rate of 0% and annual risk-free
interest rate 2.13%. The volatility measured at the standard deviation of expected
share price returns is based on statistical analysis of historical price movement of
the Company and other comparable companies with similar business nature.

In respect of employees resigned during the period whose Options have not
been vested, such Options are lapsed, and the share compensation costs
recognised previously are credited to condensed consolidated final statement of
comprehensive income.

The values of Options recognised in share-based compensation reserves are
subject to a number of assumptions and with regard to the limitation of the
valuation model.

The Options were granted under the 2003 Share Option Scheme.

The Options were granted under the 2015 Share Option Scheme.

as disclosed, no options were exercised, granted, lapsed or cancelled

during the Year. Details of the value and movement of the share options
during the Year are also set out in note 31(c) to the consolidated financial
statements for the Year.
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Vesting periods and vesting conditions of the Options
granted on 19 July 2018

The Options granted on 19 July 2018 shall be vested and exercisable subject
to the following vesting periods and conditions:
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R-ZB-NFLtA+TABRTFZEREZSR
B & B R
R=Z—\FLA+NBEE 2 BIEEREIL T8
B AR R R B R TTHE

Date when the
Options become

exercisable

Bl
CEsy:4=k:

First tranche of First anniversary date

Options of the Date of Grant
(the “First Anniversary
Date”)
ERtERE RILAAzE—BEA

MIE—BFEH))

Second tranche of - Second anniversary
Options date of the Date of
Grant (the “Second
Anniversary Date")
E_HBRE KHEBHzE_BER
BE-_AFAH])

Third tranche of  Third anniversary date of
Options the Date of Grant (the
“Third Anniversary
Date”)

FoHBERE  RKOASZEZAFH

HMIE=BFEH))

Percentage of
Shares comprised
in the Option
which is vested
and exercisable
(subject to
fulfillment of
vesting conditions
set out in the
next column)
EHEBRATEN
R LR
B (EE
T—RAEzEE
REEERE
HEFE)
(Notes)
(FifzE)

Condition 1

333%  The revenue of the Company
for the year 2018 reaches

RMB10 billion or above.

ARARZE-N\F2HE
WA ARB100E TS
PAE -
333%  The revenue of the Company
for the year 2019 reaches
RMB20 billion or above.

ARARZE-NEZHEE
WAE AR 2008 T
PAE -
33.4%  The revenue of the Company
for the year 2020 reaches
RMB30 billion or above.

ARRRZE-_TFE7HE
WA EARE300(ETT3K
BAE ©

Condition 2

The Grantee has achieved the
performance targets for
the year 2018 set out by
the department or business
unit where he/she belongs.

AENERAMBHrAIE
BEUME-S—\F2
BMER -

The Grantee has achieved the
performance targets for
the year 2019 set out by
the department or business
unit where he/she belongs.

ESLIN-D G TSP
BEUME_S-NEF
EBERE -

The Grantee has achieved the
performance targets for
the year 2020 set out by
the department or business
unit where he/she belongs.

EEANEREFBRIIE
BEME-S=TF 2
EHAR-

Condition 3

The Grantee shall remain as
an employee of the Group
as at the First Anniversary
Date

FRARE—BFAH
NEAREZEE

The Grantee shall remain
as an employee of the
Group as at the Second
Anniversary Date

ERARE ZBF A
NEAEEZEE

The Grantee shall remain as
an employee of the Group
as at the Third Anniversary
Date

ARAREZBERBDE
TEEZER
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Notes

If a Grantee fulfills Condition 1 and Condition 3 set out above in the respective
vesting period, the Grantee will be entitled to exercise 40% of the respective
tranche of Options.

If a Grantee fulfills Condition 2 and Condition 3 set out above in the respective
vesting period, the Grantee will be entitled to exercise 40% of the respective
tranche of Options.

If a Grantee fulfills Condition 3, the Grantee will be entitled to exercise 20% of
the respective tranche of Options.

All the Options will be automatically cancelled if the Grantee fails to fulfil
Condition 3 regardless of whether Condition 1 and/or Condition 2 are achieved.

In addition to the above vesting conditions, if performance targets set out in
Condition 1 or Condition 2 above cannot be fully achieved, the number of Options
corresponding to fulfilment of Condition 1 and/or Condition 2 as referred to in
notes 1 and 2 above which can be exercisable in the respective vesting period will
be further adjusted in the following manner:

Percentage of performance targets achieved

EREMEEZESL
100% 100%

70%-99%
70%%99%

Less than 70% Nil
DI70% ES

EMPLOYEES' SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 17 November 2011, in order to recognise the contributions by employees
and to give incentives to them to retain them, and to attract suitable
personnel, the Board adopted an employees’ share award scheme (the
“Employees’ Share Award Scheme) pursuant to which existing shares of the
Company will be acquired by the trustee from the market at the cost of the
Company and be held in trust for the selected employees (being employee
(including director) of the Company or its subsidiaries) until such shares are
vested with the relevant selected employees in accordance with the provision
of the Employees’ Share Award Scheme. For principal terms of the employees’
Employees’ Share Award Scheme, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 17 November 2011.
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Percentage of the Options becoming exercisable
ATEZBRERDLL

Proportionate to the percentage of performance targets actually achieved
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Pursuant to the Employees’ Share Award Scheme (as renewed in July 2019),
the scheme limit under the Employees’ Share Award Scheme was 56,000,000
Shares, representing not more than 5% of the total issued share capital
of the Company as of the date of the renewal). The maximum number of
Shares which may be awarded to a selected employee under the Employees’
Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

The Board may determine vesting period and conditions subject to which the
awarded shares shall vest under the Employees’ Share Award Scheme.

On 8 July 2019, after the approval of the Renewed Scheme Limit and
pursuant to the Employees’ Share Award Scheme, the Board resolved to grant
an aggregate of 28,100,000 Shares, representing approximately 2.51% of the
total issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the grant, to 26
selected employees, of which 4,000,000 Shares were granted to Mr. Zhang
Yonghong, an executive Director and chief executive officer of the Company,
and 2,000,000 Shares were granted to Mr. Liu Xiaodong, an executive
Director and president of the Company, subject to following the vesting
periods and conditions of the grant of the Awarded Shares.
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Percentage of Awarded
Shares to be vested and
released to the Selected
Employee (subject to
fulfillment of vesting
conditions set out
in the next column)
3 55 B 3 e B T AR

EﬁZﬁm&ﬁﬁ\w
(AT —HmEz

BERGEERE
FEER)

Vesting period

Vesting date

On or after 8 40%

January 2020

First period

F—H R_TB_FTHF
—ANB%
Z1&

On or after 8 30%
January 2021

Second period

% RZT=Z—%F
—ANA%
2%

On or after 8 30%

January 2022

Third period

F=H] i
—ANB%

Z1&
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Condition 1

41
(Note 1)
(MI=E1)

The performance targets of
the Company for the year
2019 is fully achieved.

KRR B NFZER
BREREEK -

The performance targets of
the Company for the year
2020 is fully achieved.

KRB ZZBZEFZHEN
BEE2EEK °

The performance target of
the Company for the year
2021 is fully achieved.

RRBZZBZ—FZHEM
BIRE2EEX -

Condition 2

k2
(Note 2)
(fg3E2)

The Selected Employee shall
remain as an Employee as at
31 December 2019.

KEFREEN_Z—NF
+TZA=+—HINEEE

o

The Selected Employee shall
remain as an Employee as at
31 December 2020.

FETEEN_Z_TF
TZA=+—HIEEE

o

The Selected Employee shall
remain as an Employee as at
31 December 2021.

HETREEN_ZT_—F
TZA=+—RNEBES

o
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Notes:
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e

1. 50% of the Awarded Shares in each vesting period shall vest in the Selected 1. R EXHTHE 2 IEF1 RIGIF2E2EERE - SRED

Employees only if Condition 1 and Condition 2 set out above are fully achieved.
If the performance targets set out in Condition 1 above cannot be fully achieved,
the number of Awarded Shares to be vested in the respective vesting period will

be further adjusted in the following manner:

Percentage of performance targets achieved

Z50% R AT RBRCRERE o W L g
T8 EEBBEARREEER  HREERBHA
52 ZEO BB BA T R — P

Percentage of the Awarded Shares to be vested and
released to the Selected Employee

ERENEREZED

100%

70%-99%
70%£99%

Less than 70%
LIR70%

HERABRRTREEREZRBRHBE DL

100%

Proportionate to the percentage of performance targets actually achieved

HERCDERZENEFE DKL

Nil

A

The remaining 50% of the Awarded Shares to be awarded in each vesting period 2. &2 ER - KNS EBHARE 2 T50% %
shall vest in the Selected Employees only if Condition 2 is fulfilled. If the Selected
Employee ceases to be an Employee before the vesting date of the relevant
vesting period, all of the Awarded Shares granted to the Selected Employee for

B HAEBREETERES ﬁ”“‘“iﬁ%ﬁ"*ﬁfﬁ
BEHzEBEAMNNTERES SiEmE%W\]&ﬁt
f& 2 fE1o] 55 B HAT 42 E (B B 1R 2 P B 22 E AR 15

that vesting period and any vesting periods thereafter shall lapse in full. REKRK -

The validity period of the Share Award Scheme was 10 years commencing on
the date of its adoption. The Share Award Scheme expired during 2021, and no

further award could be granted.

W in S2EET 82 B M R A B Z HlET+4F - I
DEEFER T ——FER U TBE—IRTHE
B -

EEEMBERAT 2021 Fif



88

Report of the Directors

EEERE

Since the adoption date, a total of 74,981,000 shares has been granted,  BEZE#AHIHE - D H74,981,0000%81 @ HHERA
representing approximately 5.72% of the issued share capital of the Company ~ FHRBEEAR BB EITRAL5.72% - R_ZT_—F
as at the date of this annual report. The awarded Shares that remain  +=ZA=+—H ' WRBF 2 HERGH AT :
outstanding as at 31 December 2021 are set out below:

As at Granted Vested As at
1 January during during 31 December
Name of Grantee Date of grant 2021 the year the year 2021
Hn-B=—% Hn-B=—%
ERAME KRB —A—H FRARH FREE +=A=+-—-H
Director
=
Zhang Yonghong 8 July 2019 4,000,000 - - 4,000,000
FRIKAL —E-AFEANR
Liu Xiaodong 8 July 2019 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000
EUNES —ZE-hFEANE
Senior management
EREERE
Wu Lei 8 July 2019 1,080,000 - - 1,080,000
RE —Z-NFELANH
Song Bingchen 8 July 2019 1,800,000 - - 1,800,000
RikE —E-AFtEANR
Zhao Hong 8 July 2019 900,000 - - 900,000
AT —E-AFEANR
Other employees
Hittfgs
In aggregate 23 November 2011 785,444 - - 785,444
&t —ET—F+—A=+=H
20 August 2012 8,351,000 - - 8,351,000
—T——H#)\AZ+H
8 July 2019 12,137,680 - (3,455,750) 8,681,930
—E-AFEANR
Total 31,054,124 - (3,455,750) 27,598,374
et

Save as disclosed, no Awarded Shares were granted or vested during the  BFFIREEEIN - FRIWER HSEBEEBRD - B
Year. See also note 31(d) to the consolidated financial statements for the — Z2RAEELEESMERENTTI1() -
Year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER TERRRAEMALTREATRE K
PERSONS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN HERO 2 ERZRAR

THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE

COMPANY

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of substantial R=F=_—F+=-A=+—H T2RR(LFES
Shareholders (not being Directors and the chief executive of the Company) AR BTTHAAE) R AR B EAEAARARE (GE&
in the Shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated R REIBEIEPIEXVEL) 2 B in KRR D+ - H
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified ~ BREEZ RMEEDIEXVEBFE2 L E3IDEAMNE
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part ~ AAF R PTZ s MK R - WARARRFIRE
XV of the SFO and required to be entered in the register maintained by the &% RHIERHIE3I36 1R E St 2 fox R
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO were as follows: m

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

as at

Name of Shareholder Class of Shares Long position  Short position  Capacity 31 December 2021
RZB=—-F

) . +=-A=+—~H

BREREE A8 gvig il & pd 227 ZREBARDL

Substantial shareholder

FTERR
Talent Gain Developments Limited ~ Ordinary 253,671,964 Beneficial owner and 19.37%
LA (note 1) Interest in controlled
(BI&ET) corporation
BisA AR
Xl ArER
Digital China (BVI) Limited Ordinary 253,671,964 Interest in controlled 19.37%
Tk (note 1) corporation
(PEE1) A AR
Digital China Holdings Limited Ordinary 253,671,964 Interest in controlled 19.37%
NS R AR LR (note 1) corporation
(PEE1) e IVNCIL: F
Other persons
Hi A+
Ideal South Limited Ordinary 80,000,000 Beneficial Owner 6.11%
R (note 2) EnBAA
(FfzE2)
Wong Luen Hei Ordinary 129,705,000 Interest in controlled 9.90%
EHE Timhk (note 2) corporation and
(PH7E2) Founder of a
discretionary trust
who can influence
how the trustee
exercises his
discretion
NG
AR BXEATE
HEE# 2 2GR
ZEIRA
Fortune Value Investment Holdings 104,562,000 Beneficial Owner 7.98%
Limited (note 3) FEAA
(FfH3E3)
Zhu Lemin 104,562,000 Interest in controlled 7.98%
REH (note 3) corporation
GEE) R
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Notes:

1. Such interests in the Company comprise: (1) 230,263,964 Shares held by Talent
Gain Developments Limited; and (2) 23,408,000 Shares held by Unique Golden
Limited. Unique Golden Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Talent Gain
Developments Limited, which in turn is wholly and beneficially owned by Digital
China (BVI) Limited and indirectly wholly and beneficially owned by Digital China
Holdings Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 861). Therefore, Talent Gain Developments Limited is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Unique Golden Limited, and each of Digital China
(BVI) Limited and Digital China Holdings Limited is deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by Talent Gain Developments Limited and Unique Golden Limited.

2. ldeal South Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Wong Luen Hei.

3. Fortune Value Investment Holdings Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by
Mr. Zhu Lemin.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Company had not
been notified of any interests or short positions of substantial Shareholders or
other persons in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which are
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.
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3. Fortune Value Investment Holdings Limited 3 SR 4455 %t
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION/CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTION

The connected transactions of the Company are set out on pages 65 to 66 in
the section headed “Management’s Discussion and Analysis” in this annual
report.

Save as the connected transactions disclosed in this annual report, all
the related party transactions as disclosed in note 41 to the consolidated
financial statement did not constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions of the Company which are subject to the reporting,
announcement or independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The transactions in note 41(a) to the consolidated financial statement were
provided under the service contracts of relevant management and thus were
all fully exempted pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules from time to time in respect of the aforementioned
connected transactions.

There is no continuing connected transactions undertaken by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2021 which is subject to annual review
and disclosure requirements pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The Group’s customers are mostly small and medium sized enterprises in the
PRC and certain well-known companies. The five largest customers of the
Group together accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total turnover for
the Year. Most of the Group’s revenue is derived from B2B trading platform
and online products. The major customers of trading platforms include a
large number of small and medium sized enterprises and factories. The sales
contracts are entered according to orders. Online products mainly consist
of B2B member service and online advertising. The sale agreements have a
term of one or two years, which, depending on different contracts, shall be
renewed by the customers upon such sale agreements expired. As the price
of each online product is not significant and the online products are sold
to a large number of customers, each customer’s contribution towards the
Group's revenue is relatively small. Therefore, the Company merely relies on
individual customers.

The Group'’s major suppliers are as follows: (i) the major suppliers of B2B
trading platform are large-scale factories and traders; (ii) the suppliers of
online products provide search engine and promotion services, allowing our
paid members to have a higher exposure of their products by getting more
search engine hits and promoting their products and achieving transactions.
The five largest suppliers of the Group together accounted for less than 30%
of the Group's total purchases for the Year. We currently have four search
product suppliers which are leading search engine providers like Baidu and
360 Search and the respective service contracts with them are renewed on a
yearly basis.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, none of the Directors, their close
associates or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) has an interest in the
major suppliers or customers noted above.

DONATION

Charitable donations made by the Company during the Year was approximately
RMB Nil (2020: approximately RMB500,000).
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee on 24 July 2003 with written
terms of reference based on the guidelines set out in “A Guide for Effective
Audit Committees” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

The Audit Committee comprises two independent non-executive Directors,
Mr. Zhang Ke and Ms. Qi Yan and a non-executive Director, Mr. Guo
Fansheng. Mr. Zhang Ke is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management of the Company
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, the risk
management and internal control systems, the annual results of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2021 and has met with external auditors and
discussed the financial matters of the Group that arose during the course of
audit for the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company had complied
with the applicable code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules in force at the relevant time.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company total issued share
capital was held by the public as at the date of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Each of the Directors has confirmed that none of them and to the best of their
information, their respective close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules),
had any business or interest in any company that materially competes or may
compete with the business of the Group or any other conflict of interests with
the interests of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors a written confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules, and the Company considers they are independent. Please
also refer to the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” for further
information.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to Article 167 of the Articles of Association of the Company, the
Directors and other officers of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they shall or
may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted
in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective
offices. This indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud
or dishonesty which may attach to any of said persons. Such provisions were
in force during the financial year ended 31 December 2021 and remained in
force as of the date of this annual report. The Company has also arranged
appropriate directors and officers liability insurance in respect of potential
legal action against Directors and other officers.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association
of the Company, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on pro-rata basis to existing shareholders of the
Company.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
Shareholders by reason of their holdings in the Shares.
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Report of the Directors

ESERE

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the listed shares of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2021.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. There has been
no change in the auditors of the Company for the preceding three years.

By Order of the Board
HC Group Inc.
Liu Jun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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INTRODUCTION

Maintaining high standards of business ethics and corporate governance
practices has always been one of the Company’s goals. This corporate
governance report describes the Company’s corporate governance practices,
explains the applications of the principles of the Corporate Governance Code
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules (the “Code"”) and deviations, if
any.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has complied with
the applicable code provisions (“code provision”) of the Code in force at the
relevant time. The Company believes that by applying the principles under the
Code with reference to the Company’s own individuality and achieving high
standard of corporate governance, the corporate value and accountability
of the Company can be enhanced and the shareholders’ interests can be
maximised. The Board has continued to monitor and review the Company’s
progress in respect of corporate governance practices to ensure compliance.
Management meetings were held throughout the year and where
appropriate, internal circulars and other guidance notes were issued to the
Directors and senior management of the Group to monitor ensure awareness
to issues regarding corporate governance practices.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance functions
set out in code provision A.2.1 of the Code. During the year ended 31
December 2021, the Board has reviewed and monitored the Company’s
corporate governance policy, including: (a) the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices; (b) training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management; (c) the Company'’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (d) the
Company’s code of conduct applicable to employees and directors; and (e)
the Company’s compliance with the Code disclosures requirements.

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted written guidelines regarding Directors’ securities
transactions on terms not less than the required standard of dealings as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of
all Directors, the Directors have confirmed their compliance with such code
of conduct and the required standard of dealings and its code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by Directors throughout the year ended 31
December 2021.

The Board has also adopted written guidelines on terms not less than the
required standard of dealings for relevant employees who may have access
to inside or price sensitive information of the Company in respect of their
dealings in the securities of the Company.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

As at 31 December 2021 and as at the date of this annual report, the Board
comprises nine (9) Directors, of whom three are executive Directors, three are
non-executive Directors and three are independent non-executive Directors.

The participation of non-executive Directors in the Board provides the
Company with a wide range of expertise and experience, and plays an
important role in the work of the Board and brings independent judgement
on issues relating to the Company’s strategy, performance, conflicts of interest
and management process to ensure that the interests of all shareholders of
the Company have been duly considered. All Directors have given sufficient
time and attention to the affairs of the Company during the reporting period.
Each executive Director has sufficient experience to hold the position so as to
carry out his/her duties effectively and efficiently.

In full compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and (2), and 3.10A of the Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed three independent non-executive Directors, at
least one of whom has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise. The Company has received from
each independent non-executive Director an annual confirmation of his
independence. Having assessed the independent non-executive Directors
background, business and other relationship (if any), and the strong
independence in judgment by them throughout the reporting period, and
with reference to such confirmations the Company considers such Directors to
be independent in accordance with the guideline set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the Code, the Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”). The Company recognises the benefits of diversity of Board
members, and will ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experiences
and diversity of prospect appropriate to the Company’s business need
prospectus.

The Board as at 31 December 2021 comprised:
Executive Directors
Liu Jun (Chairman), Zhang Yonghong (Chief Executive Officer), Liu Xiaodong

(President)

Non-executive Directors
Guo Fansheng, Sun Yang, Lin Dewei

Independent non-executive Directors
Zhang Ke, Zhang Tim Tianwei, Qi Yan

There were no change in the composition of the Board during the year ended
31 December 2021.
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All independent non-executive Directors are identified as such in all corporate
communications containing the names of the Directors.

The Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer and other Director do not have any
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship with each
other.

Board meetings and general meetings

The Board meets in person or through other electronic means of
communication at least four times every year. At least 14 days’ notice of
all board meetings were given to all Directors (unless waived in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the Company), who were all given an
opportunity to include matters in the agenda for discussion. The Board
secretary of the Company (the “Board Secretary”) assists the Chairman in
preparing the agenda for the meeting, and ensures that all applicable rules
and regulations regarding the meetings are observed. The meeting agenda
and accompanying board papers are sent to all Directors prior to meetings.
During the year ended 31 December 2021, 4 Board meetings and 1 general
meeting were held and the attendance record of the meetings by each
Director is as follows:

Attendance
Board
Meetings

General
Meetings

Executive Directors

Liu Jun 4/4 1Al
Zhang Yonghong 4/4 11
Liu Xiaodong 4/4 11

Non-executive Directors

Guo Fansheng 3/4 171
Sun Yang 4/4 I7Al
Lin Dewei 4/4 7

Independent non-executive Directors

Zhang Ke 4/4 01

Zhang Tim Tianwei 3/4 7

Qi Yan 3/4 0/1
Notes:

(1) 1 general meeting of the Company was held during the year ended 31 December
2021.

(2)  Non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) have
been invited by the Company but some of them were unable to attend the
general meetings held during the year due to other engagements. The non-
executive Directors actively participate in the Board and attend the general
meetings of the Company if possible.

(3)  Board meetings at which relevant Director is required to abstain pursuant to the

Listing Rules and/or the Articles of Association of the Company are excluded (where
applicable).
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In regular meetings of the Board, the Directors discuss and formulate the
overall strategies of the Company, monitor financial performances and discuss
the annual and interim results, set annual budgets, as well as discuss and
decide on other significant matters.

The Board Secretary records the proceedings of each Board meeting in detail
by keeping detailed minutes, including all decisions made by the Board
together with concerns raised and dissenting views expressed (if any) in the
meeting. Drafts of board minutes are circulated to all Directors for comments
and approval as soon as practicable after the meeting. All minutes are open
for inspection at any reasonable time on request by any Director. All Directors
have access to relevant and timely information at all times as the Chairman
ensures that management will supply the Board and its committees with all
relevant information in a timely manner. The Directors acknowledge their
responsibility for preparing the accounts and statement.

Delegation by the Board

The Company has set out the respective functions and responsibilities
reserved to the Board and those delegated to management. The Board leads
and provides direction to and monitors the management (who in turns,
provide updates and reports to the Directors). The Board is responsible for
the approval and monitoring of the Company’s overall strategies and policies
and their implementation; approval of business plans; evaluation of the
performance and compliance of the Company and oversight of management.
It is also responsible for promoting the success of the Company and its
businesses by directing and supervising the Company’s affairs. The Board
reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy matters, strategies
and budgets, internal control and risk management, material transactions (in
particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
matters relating to the Company'’s share capital, appointment of Directors and
other significant operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating
to day-to-day operation, implementing decisions of the Board, are delegated
to the management.

Decisions of the Board are mainly communicated to the management through
executive Directors. Senior management also attends meeting among the
Directors as and when appropriate.

INDUCTION AND PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Newly appointed Directors will receive guideline and reference materials to
enable them to familiarise with the Group’s business operations and the
Board’s polices.

The Directors recognise the importance of ongoing professional development
and training, and are committed to participating in suitable training to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills, and to keep abreast of the
current trends and issues which the Group may face. Directors are encouraged
to participate in continuing professional development and have been provided
with training materials relevant to the directors duties and responsibilities.
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All Directors are required to provide the Company with their training records.
The records are maintained by the Company for annual review. During the
reporting period, all Directors have participated in continuous professional
development by attending training courses and/or reading relevant materials
on the topics related to corporate governance, updates on the Listing Rules
and applicable laws and regulations, and the individual training record is
summarised below:

Attending seminar(s)/
reading relevant materials

Executive Directors

Liu Jun YES
Zhang Yonghong YES
Liu Xiaodong YES

Non-executive Directors

Guo Fansheng YES
Sun Yang YES
Lin Dewei YES

Independent non-executive Directors

Zhang Ke YES
Zhang Tim Tianwei YES
Qi Yan YES

TERM OF APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION

Each of the existing non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Guo Fansheng, Mr.
Li Jianguang, Mr. Sun Yang, Mr. Zhang Ke, Mr. Zhang Tim Tianwei and Ms.
Qi Yan was appointed for a fixed term of one year, subject to rotation and/or
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company, as specified by the
Listing Rules and the Articles of Association of the Company.

Under the Articles of Association of the Company, all directors appointed to
fill a casual vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders at the first
general meeting after their appointment and every director, including those
appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years.

Pursuant to the Articles of Associations of the Company, any Director
appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the next following general
meeting of the Company (in the case of filling a casual vacancy) or until
the next following annual general meeting of the Company (in the case of
an addition to the Board), and shall then be eligible for re-election at that
meeting. At each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation,
provided that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term)
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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CHAIRMAN AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision C.2.1 of the Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The division of responsibilities between the chairman and chief
executive should be clearly established and set out in writing.

The roles of the Chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company
are distinct with established division of responsibilities. Mr. Liu Jun, as
the Chairman of the Company, is responsible for ensuring that the Board
functions effectively and smoothly. In doing so, the Chairman ensures that
good corporate governance practices and procedures are established and
followed, and that all Directors are properly briefed and have received all
relevant information prior to each meeting. The Chairman of the Company is
responsible for overseeing the implementation of corporate strategies of the
Company.

The chief executive officer of the Company, Mr. Zhang Yonghong, is
responsible for overseeing the execution of strategies agreed by the Board,
and the day-to-day operations of the Company.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 20 March 2006. The main
role and functions of the Remuneration Committee is to regularly make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
for the remuneration of all the Directors’ and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy. The Remuneration Committee is accountable to the
Board. During the year, and as at the date of this annual report, the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. Zhang Ke (independent non-executive
Director) and other members include Mr. Liu Jun (executive Director), Mr. Sun
Yang (non-executive Director), Mr. Zhang Tim Tianwei (independent non-
executive Director) and Ms. Qi Yan (independent non-executive Director).

During the year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed and made
recommendation to the Board in relation to the remuneration policy, assessed
performance of executive Directors and, reviewed and discussed the package
of the remunerations of executive Directors and members of the senior
management of the Company, and reviewed and made recommendation
on the remuneration of the non-executive directors, the Company’s share
option scheme and share award scheme, bonus structure, provident fund
and other compensation-related issues, and the terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee consulted with the
Chairman and/or the chief executive officer of the Company on its proposals
and recommendations.
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The Remuneration Committee is provided with other resources enabling
it to discharge its duties such as the access to professional advice if and
when necessary. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Remuneration
Committee held 1 meeting. The individual attendance record of each member
is as follows:

Members Attendance

Liu Jun 7
Zhang Ke 11
Zhang Tim Tianwei 11
Qi Yan 171
Sun Yang VAl

Full minutes of the Remuneration Committee’s meetings are properly
kept by the Company. In line with practices consistent with meetings
of the Board and other committee meetings, draft and final versions of
Remuneration Committee meeting minutes are circulated to all members of
the Remuneration Committee for comments, approval and record as soon as
practicable after each meeting.

The emoluments of the Directors and the management are determined based
on the operating results of the Company, individual performance and/or
prevailing market conditions. The Remuneration Committee has adopted the
model under code provision E.1.2(c)(ii) of making recommendation to the
Board on remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management. The Company has also adopted the share option scheme and
share award scheme as an incentive to Directors and senior management.

HC GROUP INC. ANNUAL REPORT 2021

FHZE SR RHBINERNEITERE 2 EF
ENHAEXRR - BE_T-_—F+t-A=1+—8

IHEE  FZESRBITREE  SKEZHE
ROERIAT ¢

245 HERE
2= 11
K5 1/1
RKIE 1/1
B 1/1
7F 1/1
ARRZARGHNEES 2 B EHL - RIEE
HehEMEZESeR 28N FHEE S SRR
HERESRERESREBEREBEATER &R
ERERYNEZE SR EER]  LMEREER - fIbf

Reo#E 2z -

EEREBABZMEKFEIBEAQ R EEE -
BAARBR AERMRET - HNE B g RN
AESCE1.2((N BT ZER - SHERRITES RS
REBABZFHGFENESSIREER - ARATF
RN AR AT B AR 1D SERI GBIV B EE R e R
EIEAE -



Corporate Governance Report
EERERME

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee and written terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee have been adopted. The main role
and function of the Nomination Committee is to regularly review the structure
of the Board and make recommendations to the Board regarding any
proposed change to the structure of the Board. The Nomination Committee
is accountable to the Board. During the year ended 31 December 2021 and
the date of this annual report, the chairman of the Nomination Committee
was Mr. Liu Jun (executive Director) and other members include Mr. Zhang Ke
(independent non-executive Director) and Mr. Zhang Tim Tianwei (independent
non-executive Director). During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
work of the Nomination Committee included, among others, reviewing
the structure, size, diversity and composition of the Board, identifying
individual suitably qualified to become Board members, selecting or making
recommendation to the Board on selection of individuals nominated for
directorship, assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors, making recommendation to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors and identifying
measurable objectives for implementing the Board Diversity Policy as may be
adopted by the Board from time to time and the progress on achieving the
objectives.

Directors nomination policy

The Company has also adopted a Directors nomination policy (“Nomination
Policy”) in compliance with the Code, which establishes criteria and
procedures for the Nomination Committee to identify and consider individuals
suitably qualified to become Board members and make recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships with
reference to the formulated criteria. The Board is ultimately responsible for
selection and appointment of new Directors.

The Board, through the delegation of its authority to the Nomination
Committee, has used its best efforts to ensure that Directors appointed to
the Board possess the relevant skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
critical to the Group’s business to enable the Board to make sound and well
considered decisions.

Nomination Process

When receiving the proposal to appoint a new Director, the Nomination
Committee shall (i) assess the candidate with reference to the selection criteria
as set out in the Nomination Policy to determine the eligibility of the candidate
to serve as a Director; (i) if there are more than one desirable candidates, rank
them in accordance with the needs of the Company and the merits of each
candidate; and (iii) make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
of a suitable candidate to serve as a Director (if applicable).
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When a retiring Director, being eligible, offers himself for re-election, the
nomination committee shall (i) review the overall contribution and services
of the retiring Director and the performance and level of participation of the
retiring Director; (i) assess whether the retiring Director satisfy the selection
criteria as set out in the Nomination Policy; and (iii) if considered appropriate
make recommendations to the Board, which may make a recommendation to
the Shareholders to re-elect the retiring Director at a general meeting.

Selection Criteria

The Nomination Committee will take into account the Board Diversity Policy, a
candidate’s: (i) character (in terms of his/her honesty, integrity, motivation or
reputation); (i) merits (in terms of his/her qualifications (including professional
qualifications)), skills, knowledge, accomplishment and experience related to
the business and strategy of the Company and the diversity in gender, age,
ethnicity, length of service and skill set of the Board in accordance with Board
Diversity Policy of the Company); (iii) business expertise; (iv) whether sufficient
time can be devoted to properly discharge its duties as a member of the Board
and a member of the board committees; and (v) his/her independence (if an
independent non-executive director is being considered).

The Company considers that the Board possesses a balance of skills,
experience, expertise and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business. Please refer to the paragraph
head “Diversity” below in this annual report for further information. The
Nomination Committee had reviewed the Board Diversity Policy, and diversity
of the Board during the year ended 31 December 2021 and will continue
to review the Board Diversity Policy from time to time to ensure that an
appropriate level of diversity is maintained and that the Board Diversity Policy is
implemented effectively.

The Board reviews and re-assesses the Nomination Policy and its effectiveness
on a regular basis or as required.

The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to
discharge its duties.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021, the Nomination Committee
held 1 meeting. The Individual attendance record of each members is as
follows:

Members Attendance

Liu Jun 171
Zhang Ke 7
Zhang Tim Tianwei 11
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AUDIT COMMITTEE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Management of the Company provides all relevant information and records
to the Board, enabling the Board to make assessment and to prepare the
financial statements and other financial disclosures. The Audit Committee was
throughout the year, and is currently chaired by Mr. Zhang Ke (independent
non-executive Director). Other members of the Audit Committee include Ms.
Qi Yan (independent non-executive Director) and Mr. Guo Fansheng (non-
executive Director). The main role and function of the Audit Committee is to
be responsible for the relationship with the Company’s auditors, review of the
Company’s financial information and monitoring of the Company’s financial
reporting system and internal control procedures. The Audit Committee is
accountable to the Board.

During the year, the Audit Committee’s primary duties include ensuring the
Company’s financial statements, annual and interim reports, and the auditor’s
report present a true and balanced assessment of the Company’s financial
position; reviewing the Company’s financial control, internal control and risk
management systems; and reviewing the Company'’s financial and accounting
policies and practices.

The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to
discharge its duties. For the financial year ended 31 December 2021, the
Audit Committee held 2 meetings. The individual attendance record of each
member is as follows:

Members Attendance

Zhang Ke 2/2
Qi Yan 2/2
Guo Fansheng 2/2

The Audit Committee has reviewed with management of the Company
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, the internal
control procedures, the financial results of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2021, met with external auditors and discussed the financial
matters of the Group that arose during the course of audit during the year
ended 31 December 2021, reviewed and monitored the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process,
reviewed the terms of reference of the committee and whistleblowing
policy of the Company to consider if any proposed changes that deemed
appropriate or advisable, and reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal audit function. In the opinion of the Audit Committee, there are no
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cost significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. There is no
disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee regarding the
selection, appointment, resignation or discussion of the external auditors.
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Full minutes of all Audit Committee meetings are properly kept by the
Company. In line with practices consistent with meetings of the Board and
other committee meetings, draft and final versions of Audit Committee
meeting minutes are circulated to all members of the Audit Committee for
comments, approval and record as soon as practicable after each meeting.

The Directors’ responsibilities for the financial statements and the
responsibilities of the external auditors to the shareholders are set out on
pages 122 to 124 of this annual report.

DIVERSITY

The Board has formulated the Board Diversity Policy setting out the approach
to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company recognises and embraces the
benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.
All Board appointments will continue to be based on meritocracy with due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board. Selection of candidates will
be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The Nomination Committee will
continue to primarily responsible for identifying suitable qualified candidates
to become Board members and to ensure that the Board has an appropriate
balance and diversity with giving adequate consideration to the Board
Diversity Policy.

As of 31 December 2021 and the date of this annual report, the Board
comprised both male and female (one out of nine), and the Board is of the
opinion that board diversity (including gender diversity) has been achieved
with reference to the need of the business of the Group and the industries
it participated. The Directors believe that the current composition of the
Board (with Directors from both gender, different age group and diversified
background) reflects the necessary balance of skills and experience appropriate
for the requirements of the business development of the Group and for
effective leadership. All the executive Directors possess extensive experience
in the industry, while the non-executive Directors (including the independent
non-executive Directors) provide an appropriate balance and diversity to the
Board, ensuring the independence and objectivity of the Board and provide a
system of checks and balances to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders.
The Board will continue to implement its Directors Nomination Policy from
time to time, and the Board Diversity Policy, and maintain at least one female
representation on the Board to ensure the opinions from different gender are
well represented.
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The Company is committed to gender equality and other diversity aspects
by providing fair recruitment, training and promotion opportunities for all
employees. As of 31 December 2021, the Group employed over 689 women,
representing approximately 46.9% of its full-time employees. The Company
also continues to make progress in nurturing talented leaders across all
management levels. As of 31 December 2021, 25% of the Group's senior
management were female (excluding Directors). The Board considers that the
Group’s senior management and workforce are diverse in terms of gender.
At present, the Company has not set any measurable objectives for the
implementation of diversity policies in relation to the Board members and the
workforce of the Group (including gender diversity). However, the Company
will consider and review from time to such diversity policies (including gender
diversity) and the setting of any measurable objectives (if applicable). Further
details on the gender ratio of the Group and initiatives taken to improve
gender diversity across senior management and the wider workforce, together
with relevant data, can be found in the ESG Report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment of
the external auditors and reviewing any non-audit function performed by
external auditors, including whether such non-audit functions could lead to
any potential material adverse effect on the Company. The Group's external
auditor is PricewaterhouseCoopers. The remuneration paid or payable to
the external auditor of the Group in relation to the year ended 31 December
2021 comprised fees for audit services for the Group of HK$5,787,000, audit
service for a former associate company of HK$1,934,000 and non-audit
services of HK$1,663,000.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engages an external service provider to provide company
secretarial services and Ms. Kwong Yin Ping Yvonne is appointed as the
Company Secretary. The primary contact person in the Company for Ms.
Kwong in relation to corporate secretarial matters is Mr. Lu Qingguo, the
Board Secretary and the General Counsel of the Company.

Ms. Kwong Yin Ping Yvonne has confirmed that she has complied with Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules in relation to the professional training requirements
during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION

Senior management remuneration by band
The emoluments fell within the following bands:

SREEA B

BRERB D cEREEAEMS
e gEMT -

No. of individuals

AE

2021

HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000
2,000,001;8 7T % 2,500,000/ 7T
HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000
2,500,001,8 7T % 3,000,000/ 7T
HKD3,000,001 to HKD3,500,000
3,000,001/ 7T % 3,500,000/ 7T
HKD5,000,001 to HKD5,500,000
5,000,001 725,500,000/ 7T
HKD5,500,001 to HKD6,000,000
5,500,001 726,000,000/ 7T

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective risk management
and internal control systems for the Group to safeguard the Company's
assets and shareholders’ interests, as well as for reviewing such systems’
effectiveness. The Board conducts review of the Company’s internal control
systems at least annually, covering financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions. In such review, the Board has
considered factors such as changes since the last review; scope and quality of
management’s monitoring of risks; incidence of significant control failings and
weaknesses identified; and effectiveness relating to financial reporting and
compliance with the Listing Rules.

In addition, the Company set up a Group Audit Department in order to

enhance the internal control and risk management of the Company.

Each year, external auditors will also report on issues in the Group’s internal
control and accounting procedure which have come to their attention during
the course of their audit, if any.
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The Audit Committee periodically considers the risk management and internal
control issues raised by the Company’s management, if any. The Audit
Committee will then review the remedial plans proposed by the management
in addressing the issues and will then be submitted to the Board for
consideration.

For the year of 2021, having reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control
systems, no critical internal control issues have been identified and the internal
control systems is considered effective and adequate.

In line with the commitment to achieve and maintain openness, probity and
accountability, the Company encourages employees of the Group and those
who deal with the Group (e.g. customers, suppliers, creditors and debtors) to
report to the Company, in confidence, any suspected impropriety, misconduct
or malpractice concerning the Group. In this regard, the Company has
adopted the Whistleblowing Policy. The Board delegated the authority to the
Audit Committee which is responsible for ensuring that proper arrangements
are in place for fair and independent investigation of any matters raised and
appropriate follow-up actions are taken.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Pursuant to code provision F.1.1 of the Code, the Company should have a
policy on payment of dividends.

The Board has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) to enhance
the transparency of dividends distributed by the Company and to facilitate the
Shareholders and potential investors to make informed investment decisions.

There is no guarantee or assurance that dividends of any amount will be
declared or distributed in any given period and the Company does not have a
predetermined dividend payout ratio.

The declaration, payment and form of dividends is at the absolute discretion
of the Board, and the final dividend to be declared shall be subject to the
approval of the Shareholders, memorandum and articles of association (the
"Articles”) of the Company, the laws of Cayman Islands, any other applicable
laws and regulations and the provision of this Dividend Policy.

The Board in determining the level of dividends will consider factors including:

1. distributable profits;

2. earnings;

3. current financial position;

4. capital requirements and expense planning;
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5. past financial performance;

6. past and forecasted cash flows;

7. business status and strategies;

8. future operations and profitability;

9. shareholder interests; and

10. restrictions on dividend payments (including contractual restrictions,

such as restrictions stipulated in any financing agreements).

Subject to Shareholders’ approval at a general meeting and to the relevant
laws and regulations of the PRC, any applicable rules and regulations, the
Articles and after consideration on the factors above, the Company may
also declare interim dividends, final dividends, special dividends and/or any
distributions that is considered appropriate by the Board in addition to the
annual distributions.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to time.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company discloses all necessary information to the shareholders in
compliance with the Listing Rules. The Directors host the annual general
meeting each year to meet the shareholders of the Company and answer
their enquiries (if any). The Directors make their efforts to attend general
meetings so that they may answer any question raised by the shareholders of
the Company.

Save as disclosed in this report, there is no significant change in the
memorandum of association and articles of association of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

The proceedings of the general meetings are reviewed from time to time
to ensure the Company conforms to the best practices regarding corporate
governance.

The Company has established a Shareholders’” Communication Policy to set
out the Company’s processes to provide shareholders and the investment
community with ready, equal and timely information on the Company for
them to make informed assessments of the Company’s strategy, operations
and financial performance, and to engage actively with the Company. The
said policy is available on the Company’s website.
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The Company discloses information and publishes periodic reports and
announcement to the public in accordance with the Listing Rules, the
relevant law and regulations. The primary focus of the Company is to ensure
information disclosure is timely, fair, accurate, truthful and complete, thereby
enabling the Shareholders and investors of the Company as well as the public
to make rational and informed decisions.

The Directors, company secretary or other appropriate members of senior
management also respond to inquiries from Shareholders and investors
promptly.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the Board
in writing through the Investor Relations Department of the Company whose
contact details are as follows:

7/F, Tower A1, Junhao Central Park Plaza
No. 10 Chaoyang Park South Road
Chaoyang District

Beijing 100026

The People’s Republic of China

Email: ir@hcgroup.com

Tel No: (8610) 6592 0059

Fax No: (8610) 6592 0068

Investor Relations Department of the Company handles both telephone and
written enquiries from Shareholders from time to time.

Shareholders’ enquiries and concerns will be forwarded to the Board and/or
relevant Board Committees of the Company, where appropriate, to answer
the Shareholders’ questions.

The Board is responsible for regularly reviewing the Shareholder’
Communication Policy, and its implementation and effectiveness. The most
recent review was undertaken in March 2022 and having considered the
multiple channels of communication and engagement in place, and valuable
feedbacks from shareholders and investment community, the effectiveness of
the Policy was confirmed.
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Shareholders’ right to convene an extraordinary general
meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, the Board may whenever
it thinks fit call extraordinary general meetings. Any one or more Shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty
one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by
the Company.

Procedures for putting Forward Proposals at General
Meetings by Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 88 of the Articles of Association, no person other than a
Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by the Directors
for election, be eligible for election as a Director at any general meeting
unless a notice signed by a Member (other than the person to be proposed)
duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given
of his intention to propose such person for election and also a notice signed
by the person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have been
lodged at the head office or at the Registration Office provided that the
minimum length of the period, during which such notice(s) are given, shall
be at least seven (7) days and that the period for lodgement of such notice(s)
shall commence no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and end no later than seven (7)
days prior to the date of such general meeting.

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director
is posted on the Company’s website at http://www.hcgroup.com.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of HC Group Inc.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of HC Group Inc. (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out on pages 125 to 316,
comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2021;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

. the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

o Impairment assessments of goodwill and other intangible assets

o Measurement of expected credit losses on loans to customers

. Fair value measurement of financial instruments, including financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, financial assets at fair value through

other comprehensive income and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter
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FARETEE®)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BEANEH N AEERERNSE

Impairment assessments of goodwill and other intangible
assets

mEREMEREERETE

Refer to note 2.11, note 4.1(a) and note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements

DRI IR AN T2.11 B34, 1@) RHTaE19 -

As disclosed in note 19, the Group’s goodwill and other
intangible assets were allocated to various cash-generating
units (“CGUs"). In accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment
of Assets”, the Group is required to, at least annually, test
goodwill for impairment; and for other intangible assets,
the Group is required to test for impairment when there are
impairment indicators.

MBI 19PT TR - EEEFERAGBELEEESRET
EReELESBU([REELEM]) - REFTEGHERIE36

SIEERE] EXKEAZLESFRBEBETHERNR M
HUNEMETEENS @ BEXEANFERENRE - £17
TRERE, -

Management performs the impairment assessments, with
support from external valuers, and determines the recoverable
amount of each CGU by using value in use calculation
("VIU") or fair value less cost of disposal (“FVLCOD"). These
assessments involved significant management judgements and
estimates in the determination of valuation model and the
application of assumptions in the model, including forecast
revenue growth rate, gross profit margin, terminal growth rate,
and discount rate used in the projection period.
TESNELERD 2 BB T - BIREEITRE B REAEEE
HE(EREEDI RN FEREERAN(ATFEREEKAE])
ETEEReEFAEMZAIREEE - ZFHHFRERER
B R ERE R R B P IE A YRR 2 BRI K (A ET -
BRENIAEREM A 2 FAEE M AERE - ERE - 588
RERFHEE -

In the evaluation of management’s impairment assessments
over the goodwill and other intangible assets balance, we have
performed the following:

R EEEEYRE L HM B EEGREZRERER
BMEETATIE

e  Evaluated the composition of the Group’s future cash
flow forecasts in developing the VIU and FVLCOD
calculations of all the CGUs, and the process by which
they were drawn up, including testing the underlying
calculations and comparing the forecasts to the latest
budgets approved by the board of directors;

e ME BEERMMERCELBMETEREEEILA
FERBRHERAAE RRBRRETA 2 EXBH &
Hipm o @iz - 2Rl E R EEREEe
M BTAE I

° Understood the impairment triggering events through
discussions with management and corroborated
management’s assessment with supporting evidence;

o FBEEBEMNWMABBEEEERE ML BRY
BERBE B

e Assessed the key assumptions including the revenue
growth rate and gross profit margin in the forecast with
reference to management’s development plans and past
results of operation of the CGUs;

e DEEREIEENEARAGELABMOBELEE
B AHMEEREERE - BREBAZHERALRE
REF =

e Assessed the discount rate used in the forecast by
comparing to relevant external sources of market data
with the assistance of our internal valuation specialists;

o FBAFMERR BB - LN IS R K
TR AHE TR 2 TR K
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter

FRETER

HARETEE®

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNFAONAEERREEANSE

As a result of the impairment assessment, the Group
recognised impairment for the goodwill and other intangible
assets over “new technology retails solution” CGU of
RMB454,720,000 and RMB29,265,000 for the year ended 31
December 2021, respectively.

RETRERN R - BEEREE_T_—F+_A=1+—
HIFFEZIHRTEMANTRIZRSELEMERARE
KB A& ERE D B 8 AR #454,720,0007T & AR
29,265,0007T °

After the impairment losses recognised during the year,
the Group had goodwill and other intangible assets of
RMB1,052,105,000 and RMB244,330,000 respectively as at
31 December 2021. Management concluded that no further
impairment would be necessary.

EFANRRRAEBEE R_TZ_—F+-A=1+—H' &
SEHEREMETLEED R /ARE1,052,1050007T K%
AE#244,330,0007T © EIRERBBEMELE—FRA -

We focused on this area because the size of impairment
losses recognised during the year was significant and the
management’s impairment assessments involved significant
judgements and estimates.

BFIFENULERS - RN ANFERI R EBECEEX
i & 3% & B RUE AT )% B 38 R B st e

e  Evaluated management’s sensitivity analysis on key
assumptions to which recoverable amount are most
sensitive; and

e MMEEEEHMEAFEHAIKEEEENTELEE
BRJRPTETZ BREST - K&

e Assessed the competency, capabilities and objectivity
of the independent external valuer engaged by
management.

o MABEEZEZBUINEMEMEEAER -
ZEIE -

EIEPADSE

We found management’s judgements and estimates applied
on the impairment assessments in respect of the goodwill and
other intangible assets were supported by available evidence.
BMRREE B E LA BT E EERER R HIE &
hEHI B BIE S
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EANFANAEERREESNSZE

Measurement of expected credit losses on loans to
customers

EFEREHGEERENE

Refer to note 3.1(b)(iii), note 4.1(b) and note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FERRIA G FZ M3 1)) ~ Biit4. 1(b)RH1E21 -

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had gross loans to
customers of financing services business of RMB1,584,571,000
and loss allowance of RMB 149,786,000 was recognised.
RZZEZ—F+ZA=+—H EBEEEEXRTREREEBE
Pz s as ARY1,584,571,0007T © WEHRESEBEEARE
149,786,0007T °

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” requires the Group to apply
a forward-looking expected credit losses (“ECL") approach.
The measurement of ECL requires the application of significant
judgement and increased complexity which include the
identification of exposures with a significant deterioration in
credit quality, and assumptions used in the ECL models.
ERUBHREENESReMITE |Zk EXBERAREETEL
EEER(RPEEEE]E HHEEEEC ISR EERE
RHABRES 2 EHY  REMIEEEERER L ZARRER
REMEEEERAMA R -

We focused on this area as the amount of the balance of
loans to customer is significant to the consolidated financial
statements and the measurement of ECL involved significant
judgements and estimates.

BME IR - DENEP ERERS TN A M EHRET
BEX - MBEEBEZ 25 RERAER R

In the evaluation of management’s measurement of ECL on
loans to customers, we have performed the following:
RBEEREHEFERZAREEFEAER - HMEETN
TR

. Understood, evaluated and validated the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of key
internal controls over the approval, recording and
monitoring of loan receivables;

o BRRE - TEWREEBHME  CHERERERERHE
RN EESIZ BRET - B SEIERR

o Understood, evaluated and validated the design and
operating effectiveness of the controls over measurement
of ECL of loan receivables, which relate to management’s
identification of loss stages and estimation of the amount
of provisions;

o B FMEULZRERUEREMEEEEITEE 2R

FHRGEVERR - B I B TR 5 S 1R A K SR 4
SRFHEE

o Obtained and evaluated management’s assessment on
the ECL allowance of loan receivables, and assessed
the reasonableness of the expected loss rates. We
corroborated and validated management’s assessment
based on the historical settlement pattern from past years
and market research regarding the relevant forward-
looking estimate;

e HMIERNBEEENEWERTEREEEBRE 2T
i WRHMHTEHEBE S8 - RMERBTFEZ
FErEERARRBERE G 2 TSHRE - BE
RREEIRE 25Tl
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) HARETEE®

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

ERETTEE RN ETNAEIERREEEE

. Carried out procedures, on a sample basis, to test the
accuracy of the aging of loan receivables as at the
reporting date used in management'’s assessment;

o DB FAMTARERETETAARRE R E
WE R BRE 2 IR

° For forward-looking measurement, we assessed the
appropriateness of economic indicators selection,
economic scenarios and weightings application; and
assessed the reasonableness of the estimate by comparing
them with industry data; and

o HAIEMAEMS - RMELERETERE  KERKR
RIERA B - BB ETEBIBET B ATk
etz s &

e Checked major data inputs used in the ECL models on
sample basis to the Group's record.

o ¥ BERERBHMEREEHEEEERAMERNE
ZHIRBA °

We found the judgements made by the management in
relation to the measurement of ECL of loans to customers were
supported by available evidence.

BMRR  EREREFPEREHEEEESELZHEYE
BIEZIF o
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EANFANAEERREESNSZE

Fair value measurement of financial instruments,
including financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss

ERMIAAVEFE  @ERAFEHABRSEZEREE - &
AFEFAEMEEBRAZEREERRATFEFTARREZE
mMEE

Refer to note 2.12, note 3.3(b), note 4.1(c) and note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements

FERRIA IR FEIREN 72,12 ~ B15E3.3(b) ~ Hfit4. 1(c) R Hi s
26 °

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities which were carried at fair value mainly
comprised financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial liabilities through profit or loss of
approximately RMB18,219,000, RMB454,458,000 and
RMB54,188,000 respectively, of which approximately
RMB410,905,000 of these financial assets and approximately
RMB54,188,000 of these financial liabilities were measured
based on significant unobservable inputs and classified as “Level
3 financial instruments”.

RZZZ—F+ZA=+—H BXEERATEIEZEHME
ERcHAGETIZEOFERATEF ARGz 2HEE RATE
AAEMEEKBAz CREEREATEFABZZeHEE
S BIK A AR 18,219,0007T + AR #454,458,0007T & A R ¥
54,188,0007 *+ HzE @& EL ARK410,905,0007T 7% %
SRLBELHARS4,188,0007T JHE R E XA B K i ABUIRET
B UHBAIE=femIA]-

We focused on this area due to the high degree of judgment
required in determining the respective fair values of Level 3
financial instruments, which do not have direct open market
guoted values, with respect to the adoption of applicable
valuation methodology and the application of appropriate
assumptions in the valuation.

BMEIRLEE  DHREETREEARMSREZE=R
CMIAZHEBATER  FERGHERRBESHESERE
AR RRERSERTHE -

In assessing management’s valuation of the level 3 financial
instruments, we have performed the following procedures:
RATEEREHE=-AemITAZAER  RME#ETUTES

e  Assessed the competency, capability and objectivity
of the independent external valuer by considering its
qualifications, relevant experience and relationship with
the Group;

e FEREEHEE  HELRRE BREMNBE TG
BIUIMNELEMETAER B RFEMN

e  Assessed the appropriateness of the selection of
comparable companies by reference to their business
nature and size of market capitalisation available in public
market;

o ZEFAEBLRAFNEBUERARRRMSESHT
BERE - FHEEEAEERARNEEE

o Evaluated the accuracy of the net assets values and price
to book ratio of the comparable companies by checking
to their audited financial statements;

o BBREFUELBARNKEZVBRE  HEHEE
FFE R TIR R H RN

° Utilised our internal valuation specialists to critically assess
the model used in the valuation by referencing to market

practices;
e LAINHEZSERBBALEMSENBRETHEEMAD
B
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) HARETEE®

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BREFAEE RN ETNAEIERREEEE

e  Challenged management’s assumption on the probability
of fulfilling the profit targets with reference to market
research on the industry performance and forecast,
historical performance and business plan in relation to the
development of the disposed subsidiaries; and

e HEREERHERMBEEHMENRR U2EBTERXR
WRFDANTISHE - BELERRLBBAHEHNERQF]
BRHEBIE R

e  Tested the integrity of the valuation calculations by
checking the formula applied in the calculations and
comparing the underlying inputs.

o RBREHHEAPEAN QAN L EMERERE A BRI
HEE TBMY -

We found the judgements made by the management in
relation to the valuation of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities which were carried at fair value were
supported by available evidence.

HMRE EEEN ERERATEIRZCREERERE
B2 (AEEE R FIES A BRI o

HC GROUP INC. ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBENERE

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all of the information included in HC Group
Inc. Annual Report 2021 (the “annual report”) other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. We have obtained
some of the other information including comprises Report of the Directors,
Management’s Discussion and Analysis prior to the date of this auditor’s
report. The remaining other information, including Corporate Information,
Corporate Portfolio, Financial Highlights, Management's Statement,
Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management, Corporate
Governance Report and the other sections to be included in the annual report,
is expected to be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not and will not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we
obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the remaining other information to be included in the annual
report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we
are required to communicate the matter to the Audit Committee and take
appropriate action considering our legal rights and obligations.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is KONG Ling Yin, Raymond.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SftRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-ZT-—4#+-"F=+—HILEE

2021 T
= —E-=%

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT

(Restated)

(5 =%1))
(Note 1(a))
(Hf7£1(@@))

Continuing operations HEREER
Revenue FHEUA 5 17,263,898 14,376,489
Interest income from financing services S RLARTEFTS ) S A 5 124,763 138,754
17,388,661 14,515,243
Cost of revenue SHEM A (16,785,072) (13,740,816)
Other income HAb YA 6 12,440 15,813
Other (losses)/gains, net H i (E18),Uas ¥ 7 (45,115) 69,781
Selling and marketing expenses HENRTISHEEER (353,944) (472,501)
Administrative expenses T EH (299,429) (306,613)
Impairment losses on goodwill and AR RELEERERE
intangible assets 19 (483,985) (540,693)
Net reversal of/(provision for) impairment losses 4 g & i E g @,
on financial assets (B8 588 25,088 (155,569)
Operating loss mEEE (541,356) (615,355)
Finance cost, net TR AN F 58 11 (38,056) (123,700)
Share of post-tax losses of associates DRI E N FRTE
518 23 (18,929) (80,883)
Share of post-tax losses of a joint venture AME—REEEDERTIE
JE51E 23 (303) (1,537)
Loss before income tax BrPTIS BRI &R 8 (598,644) (821,475)
Income tax (expense)/credit FTsfi(Fx) % 12 (11,437) 121,756
Loss from continuing operations SEBICEEB 2 B8 (610,081) (699,719)
Discontinued operations ERIERE K
Loss from discontinued operations BRI EEB 2 B1E 13 (32,547) (173,549)
Loss for the year NEEEE (642,628) (873,268)
Other comprehensive loss: HAb 2 HEEE ¢
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss AEF PR 2
Currency translation differences EEEL =R 32 (5,064) (621)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss ST & E#F H4EZE B
HA
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets at fair BN EF AR ZEUA
value through other comprehensive income ZeRMEE N TFE
(E18) W
- Group —AREE 32 (41,128) 17,031
— Associate =N 32 2,928 (9,977)
Currency translation differences for financial BAFEFAEMEERA
assets through other comprehensive income JERMEE BEEN
=8 32 (1,662) (4,232)
Total comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax A E 2 HEEEEEE -
HIFR IR (687,554) (871,067)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BOtEEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—-Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

Loss for the year attributable to:

THIAL IR FZREIE -

Note
Htat

2021
g
RMB’000
AR¥TT

TE T
RMB’000
ARETTT
(Restated)
(5 =%))
(Note 1(a))
(Fg3E1@))

Equity holders of the Company AARERFAEA (663,110) (745,537)
Non-controlling interests FEFERR I A 20,482 (127,731)
(642,628) (873,268)
Loss for the year attributable to the equity PNERNIES o NI 5
holders of the Company arises from: BFEAEBGARFEEE
Continuing operations FHES 2T (638,061) (584,738)
Discontinued operations SIS (25,049) (160,799)
(663,110) (745,537)
Total comprehensive loss for the year THALTEEAFERE
attributable to: [E R AR
Equity holders of the Company RAEIERFEA (708,036) (743,336)
Non-controlling interests IR R 20,482 (127,731)
(687,554) (871,067)
Total comprehensive loss for the year D= i NI 55
attributable to the equity holders of BEABGAFEZH
the Company arises from: B AR
Continuing operations FRIBICE T (682,987) (582,537)
Discontinued operations RESI S (25,049) (160,799)
(708,036) (743,336)
Loss per share for loss from continuing RARE=RSA AERFE
operations attributable to the equity holders KEEEER T BREE
of the Company (expressed in RMB per share) (ABRARERIE)
Basic loss per share BIREAREE 14 (0.4871) (0.4720)
Diluted loss per share BREEEE 14 (0.4871) (0.4720)
Loss per share for loss attributable to the NAEIEETFH AELEE
equity holders of the Company ZGREE
(expressed in RMB per share) (AR ARETI|E)
Basic loss per share TR EAEE 14 (0.5062) (0.6018)
Diluted loss per share BREEEE 14 (0.5062) (0.6018)
The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read it & fH4 o 7 B B BE T 2 i S —OF B9 o

in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

BOFBFIR R R

As at 31 December 2021 R-Z-—F+-A=+—H

As at 31 December
R+=BA=+—H
2021 2020

—E-—F T3
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT

Assets EE
Non-current assets FEREEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB N&E 18 33,554 40,808
Right-of-use assets EREEE 16(a) 35,285 44,630
Investment properties A 17 26,009 134,348
Intangible assets mIPEE 19 1,296,435 1,827,175
Deferred income tax assets RS EE 35 46,994 50,692
Investments accounted for using equity method — £ER#EZSESBR 2 & 23 322,176 896,390
Finance lease receivables BhE T E N GRIA 28 97,390 79,994
Financial assets at fair value through other BEAFEAREMER
comprehensive income WAZ CRERE 26 454,458 80,716
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss & AP {Ezt AfB2 2
SREE 26 18,219 20,234
Loans and interest receivables R E TS 21 418,032 571,438
Long term deposits and prepayments RE%RS RIENFHIA 20 3,990 884
Long-term bank deposits RERITER 30 28,622 -
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 2,781,164 3,747,309
Current assets RBEE
Inventories g 29 186,260 153,455
Contract assets AHVBE 3,878 2,802
Trade receivables FEU AR X 20 175,837 478,284
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables e BNRIER
Hofth fle W 5K I8 20 667,107 731,720
Loans and interest receivables BWER KT B 21 1,111,447 945,377
Finance lease receivables A& & WA 28 204,432 297,641
Restricted bank deposit ZIRHIRITIEER 30 33,437 25,848
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRSEEY 30 333,812 254,301
2,716,210 2,889,428
Assets classified as held for sale DEARELEZBE 13(a) 132,397 -
Total current assets REEERE 2,848,607 2,889,428
Total assets wmEE 5,629,771 6,636,737
Equity attributable to equity holders RAREEFEAEGES
of the Company
Share capital &N 317 120,977 120,977
Other reserves Hib 32 3,374,629 3,366,441
(Accumulated losses)/Retained earnings (2:tEia) Bl (629,622) 31,404
2,865,984 3,518,822
Non-controlling interests FERERE 682,411 506,957
Total equity R 3,548,395 4,025,779
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

SO BRI R

As at 31 December 2021 R-_ZE-_—F+_A=+—H

As at 31 December
R+=BA=+—H
2021 2020

—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBETTT

Liabilities afE
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Non-current portion of bank borrowings BITIEE ZIEREH D 34 512,000 280,228
Lease liabilities HERE 16(a) 17,151 17,599
Deferred income tax liabilities BIEFSHEE 35 49,860 73,581
Financial liabilities at fair value through BAFERABRZ
profit or loss ERtBE 26 7,242 -
Total non-current liabilities FREBEELRRE 586,253 371,408
Current liabilities nRENEE
Trade payables FERTERK 33 194,368 478,940
Accrued expenses and other payables EETE R L E AR F0E 33 316,007 166,059
Contract liabilities AHBEE 5(b) 348,431 552,039
Current portion of bank borrowings RITIEE ZmEE 5 34 171,114 615,080
Current portion of other borrowings HEmMEEZREI D 34 319,416 340,959
Lease liabilities HEAE 16(a) 21,158 15,050
Deferred government grants IR AT R AT B = 1,600
Other taxes payable HAtb e IE 36 4,241 2,980
Income tax payable FEBIPRIS T 36 60,799 66,843
Financial liabilities at fair value through BAFEFABRZZ
profit or loss EEAE 26 46,946 -
1,482,480 2,239,550
Liabilities directly associated with assets classified £ %8 AiF1EHE 2
as held for sale BEEEEBB AR 13(a) 12,643 -
Total current liabilities RENEEHEEE 1,495,123 2,239,550
Total liabilities waE 2,081,376 2,610,958
Total equity and liabilities BEZREE 5,629,771 6,636,737
The consolidated financial statements on pages 125 to 316 were approved by  $125E316E 2 A MK RENR T -_—_F=A1
the Board of Directors on 25 March 2022 and were signed on its behalf. —HFRESSEeHATH TS EREESCS
=,
LIU Jun ZHANG Yonghong
Director Director
2= HRKAL
EFE EE
The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in it & G I B A R 3K FE BRRENT 2 et — G153 -

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

HC GROUP INC. ANNUAL REPORT 2021



129

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
B EREER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-ZT-—4#+-"F=+—HILEE

Attributable to the equity holders of the Company
RARERTEAER

Non-
controlling
interests
FERER
RMB'000
NS

Other
reserves
Hth@t
RMB'000

ARETTR
(Note 32)

(R&E32)

Retained

Share
capital

Total

st
RMB'000
ARETT

Sub-total
Dt
RMB'000
ARMTT

earnings
Bk
RMB'000
ARETT

B
RMB'000
ARET T
(Note 31)
(H&E31)

Balance at 1 January 2020 WZE-TE-F—-A&k 103,638 3,152,947 766,586 4,023,171 706,541 4,729,712
Comprehensive loss 2EFE
Loss for the year TEEEE - - (745537)  (7145537)  (127,731)  (873,268)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) HEt2ERA/ (BB
Fair value gain on financial assets at fair value BATEAEZERAZ

through other comprehensive income, net of EREE DTENE

deferred tax AR ELHE - 7,054 - 7,054 - 7,054
Currency translation differences ERERZE - (4,853) - (4,853) - (4,853)
Total comprehensive loss PEBREE - 2,201 (745537)  (743336)  (127,731)  (871,067)
Transactions with owners HEBAETZRS
Issuances of new shares BTG 18310 200,116 - 218426 - 218426
Buy-back of shares Bmki (997)  (12,360) (997) (14,354 - (14,354)
Exercise of share options TEERE 26 214 - 240 - 240
Share based compensation PRGOS 2 EE - 60,496 - 60,496 - 60,496
Share purchase under share award scheme RERD LB 2B ERD - (17577) - (17,577) - (17,577)
Early redemption of convertible bonds - equity ~ EFEETHRES - RESH

portion - (12,359) 11,352 (1,007) - (1,007)
Contribution from non-controlling shareholders of ~ FiE 2 FIZEERRARE 2T 4

subsidiaries - - - - 27817 27817
Transactions with non-controlling interests EERRERETIRS - (7,237) - (7,237) 9,128 1,891
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests of a m-ENE AR HERER

subsidiary R ZRE - - - - (308) (308)
Partial disposal of JDSJ Group (note 25(a)) BAHERE LR (MF250) - - - - (5,269) (5,269)
Disposal of Huicong Tianjin Group (note 25(b) & BHER2EE (Fit25(0)) - - - - (101,728 (101,728)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAT - - - - (1,493) (1,493)
Total transactions with owners BERANETZRH8E 17339 211,293 1035 238,987 (71,853) 167,134
Balance at 31 December 2020 RZZ-ZF+-R=t-Hz&H 120977 3,366,441 31,404 3,518,822 506,957 4,025,779
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BOHERRER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—-Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to the equity holders of the Company

ARNRRERE AL
(Accumulated
losses)/ Non-
Share Other Retained controlling
capital reserves earnings  Sub-total interests Total
(RitEE)/
R EftRe  EFkE Nt FERES it
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETn ARETR
(Note 31) (Note 32)
(W31 (WaE32)
Balance at 1 January 2021 RZE-—F—-F—Bkk 120,977 3,366,441 31,404 3,518,822 506,957 4,025,779
Comprehensive loss 2EER
Loss for the year TEREE - - (663,110)  (663,110) 2048 (642,628)
Other comprehensive loss Hft2EEE
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair value through ~ RATEF A2 ERAZ
other comprehensive income, net of deferred tax eREEZATEEE  MRELHE - (38,200) - (38,200) - (38,200)
Currency translation differences EHEHZR - (6,726) - (6,726) - (6,726)
Total comprehensive loss PAFENE - (44926)  (663,110)  (708,036) 20,482 (687,554)
Transactions with owners EEEAETZRS
Share based compensation MR 7 (e - 22,683 - 22,683 - 22,683
Contribution from non-controling shareholders of ~ MBATEERIRE 2T E
subsidiaries - - - - 1,288 1,288
Transactions with non-controlling interests BIRESETIR S - 32,516 - 32,515 158,849 191,364
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests of a m-FHBLAF iR
subsidiary & Z5RE = - - = (5,165) (5,165)
Derecognition of financial assets at fair value through 4 |FEEZR AT EFF AL 2 ERAL
other comprehensive income SRAE - (2.418) 2418 - - -
Deemed disposal of an associate RALE-REenT - 334 (334) = = =
Total transactions with owners HEENETL 2508 - 53113 2,084 55,198 154972 210,170
Balance at 31 December 2021 RoBE--F+-A=t-H7&H 120,977 3,374,628 (629,622) 2,865,984 682,411 3,548,395
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in e O e B R FE BRBE MY 2 MR — OFBIRE -

conjunction with the accompany notes.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

EORERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-ZT-—4#+-"F=+—HILEE

2021 2020

— = — e
—E-—F —E-F

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R AEBTT

Cash flows from operating activities REFH2RERE
Cash (used in)/generated from operations EEER(FIR) /EAr
He 37(a) (95,888) 406,933
Interest received B U F 8 8,545 18,551
Interest paid EAFLE (59,031) (197,706)
The People’s Republic of China (“PRC") BEfTHE AR LT
income tax paid ([ E])EriSHL (34,379) (20,713)
Net cash (used in)/generated from SESER (TR EEZ
operating activities IEIFEE (180,753) 207,065
Cash flows from investing activities RETHZRERE
Advance receipt for disposal of Tianjin Guokai HEXZFEFREHE R
Ruitou Education Technology Co., Ltd. BRAFZFERGIA 221,500 -
Cash inflow arising from partial disposal of HOoOHERSHERER
JDSJ Group, net of cash disposed EEZBHERA
HREERS 25(a) - 58,710
Cash inflow arising from disposal of Huicong HESBENEEEEE Y
Tianjin Group, net of cash disposed HenA HIKLEERS 25(b) - 15,854
Cash inflow arising from disposal of subsidiaries, H&EMBATES Y
net of cash disposed BenA - fIREERE 1,782 41,727
Change in long-term deposits Rifike® (30,000) -
Additions of property, plant and equipment REVE - BE L& 18 (2,927) (8,482)
Additions of intangible assets REEFEE 19 (3.881) (18)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BEMEE
plant and equipment Fr{S 38 37(b) 258 726
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties & & & WZEFTSHIE 17 - 117,223
Proceeds from disposal of associates HEME AR MERIE 67,900 357
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair ~ H&EiRATET AEZEY
value through profit or loss SREEMSHIE 4,850 -
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair &R AT ET AEM
value through other comprehensive income ZHWVAZEMEEZ
P8 FIA 9,409 17,600
Dividend received =L GEEE) 2,110 18,440
Loans to investment accounted for using the BERFHAERRNEREY
equity method 5B 4,988 (132,817)
Loan to employees BERTREE 195 -
Loan repayment received from investment B UWER AR IRZ
accounted for using the equity method REEBER = 55,052
Additions of investment accounted for using AR FARERRTIRZIRE
the equity method 23 = (5,360)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

B RERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—-Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2021
—B-—f =
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBFIT
Net cash generated from investing activities REEEE RS FE 276,184 179,012
Cash flows from financing activities METH2RERE
Issuance of new shares BATE R 31(b) - 218,426
Purchase of shares under share award scheme RIEIE (7 S BT BIBE B D - (17,577)
Exercise of share options TT{ERE AR A - 240
Repayment for the redemption of convertible fE [ IR 5 2 BN
bond = (84,374)
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITIEE SRR 947,379 783,049
Proceeds from other borrowings HiEERERIE 291,233 316,774
Repayment of bank borrowings BBRITEE (1,159,380) (1,332,549)
Repayment of other borrowings EEEMEE (296,399) (576,431)
Repayment of lease liabilities BREEAE (24,311) (48,215)
Capital contribution from non-controlling IR A
interests 1,288 27,817
Transactions with non-controlling interests BRI S T 2R 5 237,206 1,891
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests M — M B AR 2 FEFER%
of a subsidiary RERIRAT 2 BB (5,165) (308)
Change in restricted bank deposit SIREIRITERE (7,589) 247,995
Net cash used in financing activities BB EEFAAZIRE 5 (15,738) (463,262)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRBRSSEYEM
cash equivalents (B2 ) FEE 79,693 (77,185)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of REYZRE MRS EEY
the year 254,301 331,893
Exchange losses on cash and cash equivalents Be MIReEEMZIER
&8 (182) (407)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year RFERZEHERBEEZEY 30 333,812 254,301

The above consolidated cash flow statement should be read in conjunction

with the accompany notes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOFP B wRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HE-ZT-—4#+-"F=+—HILEE

GENERAL INFORMATION

HC Group Inc. (the “Company”) is a limited liability company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is
4th Floor, One Capital Place, P.O. Box 847 George Town,Grand Cayman,
Cayman Islands. The Company has its primary listing on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
following activities in the PRC:

o Providing industrial internet trading platform and advertising
services through its B2B website “hc360.com” and offering
comprehensive [T-related product information by “zol.com.cn”;

o Sales of goods through its B2B trading platforms;

. Providing Saa$ (Software as a Service) services in 3C industrial
internet and new technology retail solutions in PRC;

o Providing anti-counterfeiting products and services and supply
chain management to enterprises;

o Engaging in finance business; including micro-credit financing,
lease financing and factoring services;

o Hosting exhibitions and seminars.

Note a:

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group decided to discontinue the
operation of provision of properties leasing in PRC operated by Tianjin Guokai
Ruitou Education Technology Co., Ltd. (“Tianjin Guokai”) and the online garment
services operated by Zhejiang Zhongfu Network Technology Co., Ltd. (“Zhongfu”).

In accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard (“HKFRS”) 5 “Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations”, the financial results of
Tianjin Guokai and Zhongfu and the relevant impairment expenses for the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 were classified as discontinued operations in
the Group's consolidated financial statements.

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform with current year
presentation.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of units of
Renminbi (RMB’000), unless otherwise stated.

—REHR
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ARBA/—HREERAR - KRR REME
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THE R ARIEIRTS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-_Z-—S+-A=t+—HIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated. The consolidated financial statements are for
the Group consisting of the Company and its subsidiaries.

2.1 Basis of preparation

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

HC GROUP INC.

Compliance with HKFRS and Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with HKFRS and requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622.

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a historical cost basis, except for financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, which are measured at fair value.

New and amended standards and framework adopted
by the Group

The Group has applied the following standards and
amendments to HKFRS issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first time for
their annual reporting period commencing 1 January 2021:

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

Amendments to Hong Kong
Accounting Standard
("HKAS") 39, HKFRS 4,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 16

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

Amendments to HKFRS 16

The Group also elected to adopt the following amendments
early:

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 2021

Amendments to HKFRS 16

The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the
amounts recognised in prior period and are not expected to
significantly affect the current or future periods.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2

BHE-_Z-—F+-_A=1+—HILFE

FESHBEBE @)

POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(iv) New and amended standards, interpretation and
accounting guidance issued but not yet effective
Certain new and amended standards, interpretation and
accounting guidance have been published that are not
mandatory for 31 December 2021 reporting periods and have

2.1 REEEE)

(iv) E a8 sk ER 2 H 7T RAEERTT
H - BEREES
R-B-—F+-A=1+—B#H%E
BRI N E JE R 1E I A 58 FIl AE J B AR
SEWEREREN B T HE] &

not been early adopted by the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 3,
HKAS 16 and HKAS 37
EEITEIREERE355
ARG ERE 165 RE BT AR
E375 (IBET )
Annual improvements 2018-2020 cycle
—E )\ FE_Z_TFRPIFERE
Revised Accounting Guideline 5

KIEET @585 855
Amendments to HKAS 1

HEEHERIE 15 (BRTR)
Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2
BAGEAFE IR RESVIREE
RIERERE 29 (B3] 40)
Amendments to HKFRS 17
BEAPBIMELRNE175HR(EFTAR)
HKFRS 17
BBV ELRNE 175
Revised Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)

R BEERBESR(ZT_FF)

Amendments to HKAS 8
EAREPERESR (5T A)

ERTER - 2B L EEtES|

Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning on

or after
REZARZEZ
B UBRRENR

Narrow-scope amendments 1 January 2022

&) —E-—F—f—H

Improvements to HKFRSs 1 January 2022

BBV BIEER 2 B —E-—F—Hf—H

Merger Accounting for Common 1 January 2022
Control Combinations

BHREAFRAAHFEE

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current

K EESERRESIERE

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

—E-—F—HF—H
1 January 2023

—ZE-=%—H—H
1 January 2023

—E-=%—HF—H

Insurance contracts 1 January 2023

REEE L —ZT-=%—f—H
Insurance contracts 1 January 2023
REEE A —TZ=5—HA—H

Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause

B mE 25— ERAH B SR
ERERGXZTHERZ D

Definition of Accounting Estimates

BHREZER

1 January 2023

—E-=F—HfF—H

1 January 2023
—E-=%—H—H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-_Z-—&#+-A=+—HILEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(iv) New and amended standards, interpretation and
accounting guidance issued but not yet effective

(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12

B EFERIE 125 (BRTA)

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

BB REERFE 1055 &
BB G ERIE285 (BRI AN)

2 FTESHBEBEw

2.1 REEEE)
(iv) EHEHE Y5 £ HET RASIEET
R REREHES (E)

Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning on
or after
RZAZZEZ
B HBERENR
Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities 1 January 2023
arising from a single transaction
HtE - HEENEE KB ERELN
EIEATISH
Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
WEEHEBENASEERE IR FEE
BEHESTE

—E-=F—HF—H

To be determined

None of these new and amended standards, interpretation
and accounting guidance are expected to have a material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OISR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BHE-_Z-—F+-_A=1+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(i)

(ii)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power to direct the
activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for business combinations by the Group (refer to note 2.3).
Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of financial
position respectively.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control or joint control. This is generally
the case where the Group holds between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting (see (iv) below), after
initially being recognised at cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-_Z-—S+-A=t+—HIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

HC GROUP INC.

Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements”, investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or
joint ventures. The classification depends on the contractual
rights and obligations of each investor, rather than the legal
structure of the joint arrangement. The Company has both
joint operations and joint ventures.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting (see (iv) below), after initially being
recognised at cost in the consolidated statement of financial
positions.

Equity accounting

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments
are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group's share of the post-acquisition profits or
losses of the investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s share
of movements in other comprehensive income of the investee
in other comprehensive income. Dividends received or
receivable from associates and joint ventures are recognised as
a reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity,
including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group's interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of equity-accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is

tested for impairment in accordance with the policy described
in note 2.11.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OISR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BHE-_Z-—F+-_A=1+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Continued)

(v)

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control as transactions with
equity owners of the Group. A change in ownership interest
results in an adjustment between the carrying amounts of
the controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests
and any consideration paid or received is recognised in
"Other Reserves” within equity attributable to owners of the
Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account
for an investment because of a loss of control, joint control
or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity
is remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRS.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate is
reduced but joint control or significant influence is retained,
only a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-_Z-—&#+-A=+—HILEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all
business combinations, regardless of whether equity instruments
or other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for the

acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

. fair values of the assets transferred,

o liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired

business,

. equity interests issued by the Group,

e fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent

consideration arrangement, and

e fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired

entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. The excess of

the:

. consideration transferred,

° amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity,

and

. acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in

the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded
as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair value of the
net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference is

recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain purchase.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BHE-_Z-—F+-_A=1+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

24

2.5

Business combinations (Continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the
amounts payable in the future are discounted to their present value
as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a similar
borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier under
comparable terms and conditions.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a financial
asset. Amounts classified as a financial asset are subsequently
remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition
date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition
date. Any gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.

The executive directors of the Group are regarded as the chief
operating decision maker who will review the operating results of
the Group on a consolidated basis, and make strategic decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-_Z-—S+-A=t+—HIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(“the functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB"”). Hong Kong
Dollar (“HK$") is regarded as the Company’s functional
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are
remeasured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Foreign exchange gains or losses are presented in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was determined. Translation
differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example,
translation differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities
such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss
and translation differences on non-monetary assets such as
equities classified as fair value through other comprehensive
income are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BHE-_Z-—F+-_A=1+—HILFE

143

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(iiij) Group companies
The results and financial positions of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

assets and liabilities for each consolidated statement of
financial position presented are translated at the closing
rate at the date of that consolidated statement of
financial position;

income and expenses for each consolidated statement
of comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate. Currency
translation differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-_Z-—S+-A=t+—HIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

2.8

Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group. It also
includes properties that are being constructed or developed for
future use as investment properties. Investment property is initially
measured at cost, including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. After initial recognition, investment
properties are carried at carrying values, representing cost less
depreciation and impairment provision. Depreciation is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives of 30 years.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied or commences
to be further developed for sale, it is reclassified as property,
plant and equipment and land use right or properties under
development, and its fair value at the date of change in use
becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, comprising buildings, computer
and telecommunications equipment, fixtures and fittings and office
equipment, leasehold improvements, motor vehicles are stated
at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as
a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income during the reporting period in which they
are incurred.
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BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—_Z—-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEZ:BEHEEw)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 2.8 ¥ - BERZEE)

Motor vehicles classified as finance lease commences depreciation
from the time when the assets become available for its intended
use. Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight line method to allocate their cost to their residual
values over its estimated useful lives, at the following rates per
annum:

Leasehold improvements

HEMEEE

Buildings

gF

Computer and telecommunications equipment
B REMR M

Fixtures, fittings and office equipment

FRE - RERPAERE

Motor vehicles

HE

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each consolidated statement of financial
position date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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Over the lease terms from 2 to 5 years
NI ESE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.9 Intangible assets
(i) Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in note 2.3. Goodwill on
acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets.
Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains
and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying

HE-_Z-—S+-A=t+—HIEE

amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to CGUs for the purpose of impairment
testing. The allocation is made to those CGUs or groups
of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose. The units or groups
of units are identified at the lowest level at which goodwill is

monitored for internal management purpose.

(iij) Contractual relationship

Contractual customer, distributor relationships and
non-compete agreement acquired in a business combination
are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. The
contractual customer/distributor relations have a finite useful
life and are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated

amortisation and impairment losses.

(iiij) Patent

Separately acquired patents are shown at historical cost.
Patents acquired in a business combination are recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date. The patents have a
finite useful life and are subsequently carried at cost less

accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

(iv) Trade and domain name

Trade and domain name acquired in a business combination
are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Trade
name and domain name have a finite useful life and are
subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortisation

and impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

BHE-_Z-—F+-_A=1+—HILFE

2.9 Intangible assets (Continued)

(v) Software license

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on
the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to
their intended use. The software license has a finite useful
life and are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated

amortisation and impairment losses.

(vi) License

License acquired in a business combination are recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date. The license has a finite useful
life and are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated

amortisation and impairment losses.

(vii) Technical knowho

Technical knowhow acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. The technical
knowhow has a finite useful life and are subsequently carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

(viii) Platform

Platform acquired in a business combination are recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date. The platform has a
finite useful life and are subsequently carried at cost less

accumulated amorti

w

sation and impairment losses.

(ix) Amortisation methods and periods

The Group amortises intangible assets with a limited useful
life using the straight-line method over the following periods:

Customer relationship

EFR%

Patents
=5

Trade and domain name

7755 M 33
Software license
BT AR

License

hEFR

Technical knowhow
BTN

Platform

Fa
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-_Z-—&#+-A=+—HILEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued

operations

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale
is considered highly probable. They are measured at the lower of
their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, except for
assets such as deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee
benefits, financial assets and investment property that are carried
at fair value and contractual rights under insurance contracts,
which are specifically exempt from this requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent
write-down of the asset (or disposal group) to fair value less costs
to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair
value less costs to sell of an asset (or disposal group), but not in
excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. A
gain or loss not previously recognised by the date of the sale of the
non-current asset (or disposal group) is recognised at the date of
derecognition.

Non-current assets (including those that are part of a disposal
group) are not depreciated or amortised while they are classified
as held for sale. Interest and other expenses attributable to the
liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale continue to
be recognised.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the assets of a
disposal group classified as held for sale are presented separately
from the other assets in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale
are presented separately from other liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BHE-_Z-—F+-_A=1+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued

2.11

operations (Continued)

A discontinued operation is a component of the entity that
has been disposed of or is classified as held for sale and that
represents a separate major line of business or geographical area
of operations, is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of
or abandon such a line of business or area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale. The results
of discontinued operations are presented separately as a single
amount profit or loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment,
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash
inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets and liabilities

HE-_Z-—S+-A=t+—HIEE

Investments and other financial assets

(i)  Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the follow

measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through other comprehensive income or through profit
or loss), and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of

the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income
(OCl). For investments in equity instruments that are not held
for trading, this will depend on whether the Group has made
an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at fair value through other

comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when

its business model for managing those assets changes.

(i) Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has substantially transferred all the risks and rewards

of ownership.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets and liabilities

(Continued)

BHE-_Z-—F+-_A=1+—HILFE

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(i) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are
expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on
the Group's business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are two
measurement categories into which the Group classifies its
debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in “other (losses)/gains, net” together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses
are presented as a separate line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-_Z-—S+-A=t+—HIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets and liabilities
(Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
(iii)  Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the
assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in
the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for
the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest
income and foreign exchange gains and losses which
are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset
is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCl is reclassified from equity to profit
or loss and recognised in “other (losses)/gains, net”.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate method.
Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in
“other (losses)/gains, net” and impairment expenses are
presented as a separate line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL
is recognised in profit or loss and presented net within
“other (losses)/gains, net” in the period in which it
arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BHE-_Z-—F+-_A=1+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets and liabilities
(Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at
fair value. Where the Group’s management has elected to
present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in
OCl, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains
and losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Group’s
right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are
recognised in “other (losses)/gains, net” in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on
equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected
credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried at
amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”,
which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from
initial recognition of the receivables, see note 20 for further
details.

Note 3.1(b) provides more details of how the expected credit
loss allowance is measured.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-_Z-—S+-A=t+—HIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets and liabilities

(Continued)

Investments and other financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities in the following
measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value through
profit or loss, and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

At initial recognition, the Group shall measure a financial liability at
its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial liability not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial liability.

Subsequently, all financial liabilities will be measured at amortised
cost, except for financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss.

2.13 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforce right must not be contingent on future event and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counter

party.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—_Z—-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEZ:BEHEEw)
POLICIES (Continued)

214 KEREE

2.14 Financial guarantee liabilities

Financial guarantee liabilities are recognised in respect of the
financial guarantee provided by the Group to the banks for
property purchasers.

The liability is initially measured at fair value and subsequently at
the higher of:

e the amount determined in accordance with the expected
credit loss model under HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”, and

e the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with
the principles of HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based on
the present value of the difference in cash flows between the
contractual payments required under the debt instrument and
the payments that would be required without the guarantee, or
the estimated amount that would be payable to a third party for
assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of
associates are provided for no compensation, the fair values are
accounted for as contributions and recognised as part of the cost
of the investment.

Financial guarantee liabilities are derecognised from the
consolidated statement of financial position when, and only when,
the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-_Z-—S+-A=t+—HIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15

2.16

2.17

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. The
cost of finished goods comprises merchandises and other direct
costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less estimated costs necessary to make
the sales.

Trade receivables
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold
or services performed in the ordinary course of business.

They are generally due for settlement within one year and therefore
are all classified as current assets. Trade receivables are recognised
initially at the amount of consideration that is unconditional unless
they contain significant financing components, when they are
recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with
the objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. See note 20 for further information about the
Group’s accounting for trade receivables and note 3.1(b) for a
description of the Group’s impairment policies.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term and
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—_Z—-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 TESHBEBEw

218 RAREERMTERFEZRHB

2.18 Share capital and shares held for employee share

scheme
Ordinary shares are classified as equity (note 31).

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s equity
instruments, for example as the result of a share buy-back or a
share-based payment plan, the consideration paid, including any
directly attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes) is
deducted from equity attributable to the owners of the Group as
treasury shares until the shares are cancelled.

Where the Company’s shares are acquired from the market under
the employee share scheme, the total consideration of shares
acquired from the market (including any directly attributable
incremental costs) is presented as shares held for employee
share scheme and deducted from total equity. Upon vesting, the
related costs of the vested shares for employee share scheme
purchased from the market are credited to shares held for share
reward scheme, with a corresponding decrease in share-based
compensation reserve for employee share scheme.

2.19 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year which
are unpaid. These amounts are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

These amounts are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—-Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption amount is recognised profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the
fee is deferred until the drawn down occurs. To the extent there
is no evidence that is probable that some or all of the facility will
be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated statement of
financial position when the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished
or transferred to another party and the consideration paid,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as finance costs.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Borrowings (Continued)

221

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and
the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to extinguish
all or part of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is
recognised in consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
which is measured as the difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability and the fair value of the equity instruments
issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required
to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.
Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period which they are
incurred.

2.22 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable
on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable
income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in
deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary
differences and to unused tax losses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-_Z-—S+-A=t+—HIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Company and
its subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation and considers
whether it is probable that a taxation authority will accept an
uncertain tax treatment. The group measures its tax balances
either based on the most likely amount or the expected value,
depending on which method provides a better prediction of
the resolution of the uncertainty.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 TESHBEBEw

2.22 Current and deferred income tax (Continued) 222 ERRIELEFEHRE)
(i) Deferred income tax (Continued) (ii) EEFEH(E)

Deferred tax liabilities in relation to investment property that
is measured at fair value is determined assuming the property
will be recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable amount will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in foreign operations where the
company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances related to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case,
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-_Z-—&#+-A=+—HILEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEZ:BEHEBE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Employee benefits 223 BREEA

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not EEZARBREREFNRIKEREIHRTT

recognised until the time of leave. TR o

(i) Retirement benefit costs (i) BIKFFIELZE
The full-time employees of the Group are covered by various AEEXBREERBNR L2 ERE
government-sponsored pension plans under which the RASEHERE Bt EEEFE
employees are entitled to a monthly pension based on certain BETRAAGFEZGARKE -
formulas.
The relevant government agencies are responsible for the BRAINEEREEMZERNE
pension liabilities to these retired employees. The Group BXTRARE - KEBEIKRARZSE
contributes on a monthly basis to these pension plans. Under RRSFHEIMHR - BIBEZFTE
these plans, the Group has no further payment obligations AR B R Ll RO MEE A H R AR
for post-retirement benefits beyond the contributions made. &g 2 E— FREE -
Contributions to these plans are expensed as incurred. Mz E T EED 2 SRR & A5

EBA -

(i) Bonus entitlements (i) ZE2EF
The expected cost of bonus is recognised as a liability when EREERESSIRM 2 RIEBAEE
the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation EXNResRABLEEIIHEESR
for payment of bonus as a result of services rendered by £ MEEEAFEGEER - Bl5HE
employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be D IEHKAERREE
made.
Liabilities for bonus are expected to be settled within 12 HeBEEBGEI2EARER -
months and are measured at the amounts expected to be WARBRENR BNz £585TE -

paid when they are settled.

(iii) Short-term obligations (iii) FEHIEM

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary EEEEZEWMERR RBERRL
benefits and accumulating sick leave that are expected to ENFeaBE(RIEERTERENA
be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the NEIR ARG B AR %1218
period in which the employees render the related service RAZEHENRIESERM R R
are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to R WRBENE @S ERTERS
the end of the reporting period and are measured at the Nz &FEsE - BERE MBI
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. RERANZIRIERTE B R H M e
The liabilities are presented as accrued expenses and other RIE e

payables in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

BHE-_Z-—F+-_A=1+—HILFE

2.24 Share-based payments

The Group operates a number of share-based payment schemes
(in the form of share awards and share options) for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Under such
schemes, employees (including directors) of the Group may receive
equity instruments as remuneration for their services rendered
("equity-settled transactions”). The fair value of the employee
services and other qualifying participants’ services received in
exchange for the grant of equity instruments of the Group is
recognised as an expense over the vesting period, i.e. the period
over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied
and credited to equity.

Share options

The fair value of options granted to employees is recognised as an
employee benefits expense with a corresponding increase in equity.
The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the
fair value of the options granted:

— including any market performance conditions (e.g. the
entity’s share price)

— excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (e.g. profitability, sales
growth targets and remaining an employee of the entity over
a specified time period), and

— including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (e.g.
the requirement for employees to save or hold shares for a
specific period of time).

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is
the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are
to be satisfied. At the end of each period, the entity revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest based
on the non-market vesting and service conditions. It recognises the
impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss,
with a corresponding adjustment to equity.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-_Z-—&#+-A=+—HILEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Share-based payments (Continued)

Share awards

Under the Share Award Scheme, the directors and certain
employees of the Group are entitled to receive shares in the
Company. The shares held under trust by a financial institution
(“Trustee”) for the benefit of the director and employees, would
be paid and the paid up consideration would be capitalised in the
Company’s reserves. The Trustee has been instructed to buy shares
from the market using the funds held by the Trustee to grant
shares to the director and employees. The Group has also granted
shares of it subsidiaries to certain employee (including directors) at
the subsidiaries level.

The total of the expense over the vesting period is determined by
reference to the fair value of the share options and shares granted,
excluding the impact of any non-market vesting conditions (for
example, profitability and sales growth targets). Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the number of
shares or share options that are expected to vest. The total amount
expensed is recognised over the vesting period, which is the
period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be
satisfied. At each consolidated statement of financial position date,
the Group revises its estimates of the number of shares or share
options that are expected to vest based on the non-marketing
vesting and service conditions. It recognises the impact of the
revision to original estimates, if any, in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, and a corresponding adjustment to
equity.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.25

2.26

Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and make good
obligations are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation
and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the management’s
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate
used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable, and represents amounts receivable for goods sold
or services performed, stated net of discounts, returns and value-
added taxes. The Group recognises revenue when the specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities, as
described below.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-_Z-—&#+-A=+—HILEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of goods or services is
transferred to a customer. Depending on the terms of the contract
and the laws that apply to the contract, control of the goods and
services may be transferred over time or at a point in time. Control
of the goods and services is transferred over time if the Group's
performance:

° provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

. creates and enhances an asset that the customer controls as
the Group performs; or

e does not creates an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods and services transfers over time, revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the goods and services.

When determining the transaction price to be allocated to different
performance obligations, the Group first determines the service
fees that the Group entitles in the contract period and adjusts
the transaction price for variable considerations and significant
financing component, if any. The Group includes in the transaction
price some of all of an amount of variable considerations only to
the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when
the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

HC GROUP INC. ANNUAL REPORT 2021

2 FTESHBEBEw

2.26 SHEWARR(®)

HERARERRRBE ZEFHEERER
PR - BFENEFRERRZAY
ZERME - BEmERE 2 EHIETRE
BN — R HEEE - MAKEERE
WP IERI T IR - BamMIRF 2R
R B E R R

o REMBEZFPRFZUIILERZ

FIs

o HEAKBEREHNMELIRIZFH
22 BE ¢ 3K

o WEEAHAEEWMSAHMLAE
ZEE MAKEHEEZALD
TERKZ AN TRA R EIBITHE ©

T & an K AR 75 2 BB B Ry RS - A
HERALEZE RKBHEEZEERE
WHIRRER - DR HEBARTPES
& on MR AR A 2 B R B AR o

REESOIEZEETRENEEZX5E
®E - AREEEEETERNGOHRERE
B/ RISBEL A & EBEARREAR
BHEKE D (B RBZSHERE - AEE
MR GERPEAATNEEEBERZH DK
PRETREE - HEZAMTEEEREAH 2T
WM RS UER - AOERRFHE
WA FERRR A] e N & AR B R RR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OISR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

BHE_T——

FH-_A=+—HILFE

2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued)

When either party to a contract has performed, the Group presents
the contract in the consolidated statement of financial position as a
contract asset or a contract liability, depending on the relationship
between the entity’s performance and the customer’s payment.

A contract asset is the Group's right to consideration in exchange
for goods and services that the Group has transferred to a
customer or cost to obtain a contract. A receivable is recorded
when the Group has an unconditional right to a consideration. A
right to consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time
is required before payment of that consideration is due. Contract
assets related to cost to obtain the contracts are recognised over
the life of the contracts to which they related.

If a customer pays consideration or the Group has a right to an
amount of consideration that is unconditional, before the Group
transfers a good or service to the customer, the Group presents
the contract liability when the payment is made or a receivable is
recorded (whichever is earlier). A contract liability is the Group’s
obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

The following is a description of the accounting policy for the
principal revenue streams of the Group.

(i) Revenue from B2B trading platform

Revenue from B2B trading business primarily comprised
commission income and revenue from merchandise sales.
Commission income is recognised for transactions where the
Group is not the primary obligor, is not subject to inventory
risk and does not have latitude in establishing prices and
selecting suppliers. Commission income is recognised on a
net basis which is based on a fixed percentage of the sales
amount.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Revenue from B2B trading platform (Continued)
Revenue from merchandise sales and related costs is
recognised on a gross basis when the Group acts as a
principal. Revenue from merchandise sales are recognised at
the point in time when the control of the merchandise has
been transferred, being when the goods are delivered.

Revenue from online services and advertisement
Advertising income from internet portals, mobile devices,
trade catalogues, yellow page directories and printed
periodicals is recognised ratably over the contracted period in
which the advertisements are displayed.

Subscription fee income from online services is recognised
over the period of contracts entered with the customers. The
unrecognised portions of contract sum are recognised as
contract liabilities.

The excess of cumulative revenue recognised in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income over the cumulative
payments made by customers is recognised as contract assets.
The contract assets are recognised as a receivable when the
Group's right to consideration is unconditional.

Some contracts include multiple performance obligations and
do not include any integration services. They are therefore
accounted for as separate performance obligations. Revenue
from each of the performance obligations is recognised by
allocating the transaction price based on the stand-alone
service price. Under HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts
with Customers”, the rebate to customers is a variable
consideration and to be net off against the transaction price.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BHE-_Z-—F+-_A=1+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.26 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Revenue from anti-counterfeiting business
Anti-counterfeiting business comprises revenue from
providing anti-counterfeiting products and services. Revenue
from selling of anti-counterfeiting products is recognised
at the point in time when the control of the products has
been transferred, being when the goods are delivered.
Revenue from anti-counterfeiting services is recognised in
the accounting period in which the services are rendered, by
reference to stage of completion of the specific transaction
and assessed on the basis of actual services provided as a
proportion of the total service to be provided. Customers
are invoiced upon the completion of services or on a regular
basis.

Revenue from marketing events, exhibition, seminars
and other services

Revenue from the hosting of marketing events, trade
exhibitions and business seminars is recognised in the
accounting period in which the services are rendered, by
reference to stage of completion of the specific transaction
and assessed on the basis of actual services provided as a
proportion of the total service to be provided. Customers
are invoiced upon the completion of services or on a regular
basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-_Z-—&#+-A=+—HILEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.27 Financing services income

Interest income attributable to finance leases is recognised over the
lease term on a systematic and rational basis so as to produce a
constant rate of return on the net investment in the finance lease.

Interest income and expense for asset factoring and microcredit
financing services are recognised within “Interest income from
financing service” and “Cost of revenue” in consolidated
statement of comprehensive income using the effective interest
method, while the interest from bank deposits are recognised
within “Finance cost, net” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of
allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected
life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group
estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) but does
not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees
and payments paid or received between parties to the contract that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has
been written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest
income is recognised using the credit-adjusted effective interest
rate to the cost of the financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BHE-_Z-—F+-_A=1+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.28 Earnings per share

(i)

(ii)

Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

the profit attributable to owners of the Company, excluding
any costs of servicing equity other than ordinary shares by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in
ordinary shares issued during the year and excluding treasury
shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the
determination of basic earnings per share to take into
account:

the after income tax effect of interest and other financing
costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares, and
the weighted average number of additional ordinary shares
that would have been outstanding assuming the conversion
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2.29 Dividend income
Dividends are received from financial assets measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Dividends
are recognised as other income in profit or loss when the right

to receive payment is established. This applies even if they are
paid out of pre-acquisition profits, unless the dividend clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of an investment. In this
case, the dividend is recognised in OCl if it relates to an investment
measured at FVOCI. However, the investment may need to be
tested for impairment as a consequence.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-_Z-—&#+-A=+—HILEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.30 Leases

As a lessee

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by
the Group. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of
2 to 10 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and
non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices.
However, for leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee,
it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components and
instead accounts for these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the following lease payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less
any lease incentives receivable,

e  variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date,

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual
value guarantees,

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is

reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising that option.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—_Z—-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEZ:BEHEE®)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.30 Leases (Continued) 230 HE %)

As a lessee (Continued)
Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is
generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee
would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group where
possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual
lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was received.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost.
The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

e the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received,

° any initial direct costs, and
e restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of
the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Payments associated with short-term leases are recognised on
a straight-line basis as an expense in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. Short-term leases are leases with a lease
term of 12 months or less.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-_Z-—S+-A=t+—HIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.30 Leases (Continued)

2.31

232

As a lessor

The Group classifies all leases as operating leases as the Group
will not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the underlying asset. Rental income from operating
leases where the Group is a lessor, including investment properties,
is recognised within “Revenue” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is
recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
The lease term is 5 years. The respective leased assets are included
in the consolidated statement of financial position based on their
nature.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair values
when there is a reasonable assurance that the grants will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income over
the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being
appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion of the
entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but not
distributed at the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—_Z—-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MBERERE

3.1 BBEREE

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk
and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall
risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by a central finance department
(the “Finance Department”) headed by the Chief Financial Officer
of the Group. The Finance Department identifies and evaluates
financial risks in close co-operation with the Group’s operating
units to cope with overall risk management as well as specific areas
such as market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

(a) Market risk
(i)  Foreign exchange risk
The Group operates in Hong Kong and the PRC and
majority of its transactions are denominated in the
functional currencies of the respective entities. The
Group has no material foreign currency denominated
assets and liabilities and does not have material
exposure on foreign exchange risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-_Z-—S+-A=t+—HIEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's interest rate
risks arises from its loan and interest receivables and
cash and cash equivalents, details of which have been
disclosed in notes 21 and 30.

The Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates is
also attributable to its lease liabilities and borrowings,
details of which have been disclosed in notes 16 and
34. Borrowings carry at fixed rates expose the Group to
low fair value interest-rate risk.

Borrowings at variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest-rate risk. As at 31 December 2021, if
interest rate had increased/decreased by 50 basis points
(2020: 50 basis points) with all other variable constant,
the Group's loss after tax and total comprehensive loss
would have been approximately RMB5,005,032 higher/
lower (2020: loss after tax and total comprehensive loss
would have been approximately R\MB3,434,000 higher/
lower).

The Group regularly monitors its interest rate risk to
ensure there are no undue exposures to significant
interest rate movements and regular reporting is
provided to the management for the Group’s debt and
interest rates exposure.

Price risk

The Group's exposure to equity securities price risk
arises from investments held by the Group and classified
in the consolidated statement of financial position
as fair value either through profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, and the financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss (note 26).

HC GROUP INC. ANNUAL REPORT 2021

3

BERREE s

3.1 BIEKBEZE®)
(a) HEmEE)

(i)

(iir)

T /2
RZBZ—F+=-A=+—
A AKEZMERRREHE
ERERRFERRERAS
EEY - BREFENITE21R
30

AEBTAEAEEEREE
MEEEF e @k - HR
FEIEAMIFE16 34 FE o 1
EEMERIEZEEFEAEE
AREAFERERR

REBHBILZBFI KT B2 &
BEMARRESRENERR -
RZEZ—F+=ZA=+—
B A= T T B 501E
EX(ZZT-_FF  50EE
o) MABEMESHFT
B AIREEZBREEEER
2HEEIBREREE N RN
ARMS5,0050320 (==
TF  BREREEBEREZEER
MEEEN R OARE
3,434,0007T) °

REEFEHEREF R ER -
VAREARIE S NEE 2 B
REER - WEHREREE
WA E 2 AT MR

BTSSR

REEAZHBEREMES
ZIRAEBHERRR - WRE
HPBRR RSB RIEATE
stABR S E 2 ERA KR
AFEFABZZSBEE
(MizE26) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BHE-_Z-—F+-_A=1+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(b)

(i)~ Price risk (Continued)

Post-tax loss for the year would decrease/increase by
approximately RMB1,549,000 (2020: Post-tax loss for
the year would decrease/increase by approximately
RMB1,720,000) as a result of 10% gains/losses on
financial assets classified as at fair value through profit
or loss. Post-tax loss for the year would increase/
decrease by approximately RMB4,533,000 as a
result of 10% losses/gains on financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss. Other components
of equity would increase/decrease by approximately
RMB45,446,000 (2020: RMB8,072,000) as a result of
10% gains/losses on equity securities classified as either
at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. The credit risk
mainly arises from a customer’s inability or unwillingness to
meet its financial obligations. It arises primarily from the loan
receivables from the financing service segment.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has following types of financial assets that are
subjected to HKFRS 9’s “Financial Instruments” expected
credit loss ("ECL") model:

Trade receivables

Contract assets

Finance lease receivables
Loans and interest receivables
Deposits and other receivables
Long term bank deposits
Restricted bank deposit

Cash and cash equivalents
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BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-_Z-—S+-A=t+—HIEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i

Trade receivables and contract assets

The trade receivables and contract assets mainly arise
from the business of B2B trading, the online services
and advertisement, anti-counterfeiting products and
services, and market event services. The Group generally
grants a credit period ranging from 90 days to 270
days to customers depending on business segment.
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 “Financial Instrument”
simplified approach to measure expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all
trade receivables and contract assets.

There was no significant credit risk for the B2B trading
business as the Group generally required customers to
prepay for the goods before delivery. For B2B trading
business, the Group only granted credit period for
certain customers that are considered creditworthy. The
Group has put in place policies to ensure that provision
of services is made to customers with an appropriate
credit history and the Group performs periodic credit
evaluations of its customers. The Group assesses the
credit risk on an individual and collective basis. Trade
receivables and contract assets have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics, the Group
applies the HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” simplified
approach collectively to measure expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all
trade receivables and contract assets. The Group’s
historical experience in collection of receivables fall
within the recorded allowances.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables
and contract assets have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.
The contract assets relate to unbilled work in progress
and have substantially the same risk characteristics as
the trade receivables for the same types of contracts.
The Group has therefore concluded that the expected
loss rates for trade receivables and contract assets are
a reasonable approximation of the loss rates for the
contract assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—_Z—-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BIERMEE:
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MERBER®)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b)) 1EREEE)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) DA EEE (&)
() Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued) () RUBERRENEEE)
On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 December RULEE  BEEVIRR R E
2021 and 2020 was determined as follows for trade NEEBER_ZE_—FR=
receivables and contract assets. ToEF+A=+—HZE
BREEnT -

Morethan Morethan Morethan Morethan  Morethan  More than
Current- 30 days 90days  180days  270days  365days 720 days

31 December 2021 30days  pastdue  pastdue  pastdue  pastdue  pastdue  pastdue

BAZ  AM0X  @HX AM80X  BH0X  A#365K MoK
ZE--E+-A=t-H 30X Mk NE ME NE ME NE
Trade receivables, gross ERESEE M35 44286 16727 2,295 2692 16001 47 198258
Loss allowance for trade receivables YR EREE (4,863) (1,383) (1,069) (519) (611) (9,384) @59  (22421)
Contract assets, gross ANEESE 4,149 - - - - - - 4,149
Loss allowance for contract assets ENAERRRE (@n) - - - - - = @n)
Expected loss rate EHEER 4.4% 3.1% 6.4% 22.6% 2.7% 58.3% 96.2% 11.2%

Morethan ~ Morethan ~ Morethan ~ Morethan ~ Morethan ~ More than
Current- 30 days 90days  180days  270days  365days  720days

31 December 2020 30 days past due past due past due past due past due past due

BRIZ  @ER0KR  @Ek  BH80k  #H0k  A#esk A0k

ZE+ZA=1-A 30Kk E PAE Ik ME P M
Trade receivables, gross RS e 366,417 87,880 31,417 6,710 5,364 5212 21510 530,570
Loss allowance for trade receivables MR BB (12,345) (6,838) (2,139 (1,586) (1,028) (17100 (266400  (52,286)
Contract assets, gross ANEERE 2,99 - - - - - - 2,994
Loss allowance for contract assets ENEERERE (192) - - - - - - (192)
Expected loss rate il ke 34% 7.8% 6.8% 23.6% 192% 32.8% 9.6% 9.8%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—-Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 UBEBREE@

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MERBER®)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) =EREE)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) DA EE (&)
() Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued) () RUSEZRRANEEE)
The reconciliation of closing loss allowances for trade RZB_—FR-_ZT_ZTF
receivables and contract assets as at 31 December +ZA=+—8  BRERK
2021 and 2020 to the opening loss allowances are BREE FRIBEBHESF
summarised as follows: IR 2 HERRmT

Trade
receivables

Contract
assets
BHEE
RMB’'000
ARET T

P R R
RMB’000

AR®TT

Loss allowance at

R-BE_ZTF—A—HZEER

1 January 2020 & 63,529 218
Increase/(decrease) in loss FRNERERZ BERE

allowance recognised in profit i CRd)

or loss during the year 44,333 (26)
Receivables written off during F A AT AU e 2 e s

the year as uncollectible (50,916) -
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAT (4,660) -
Loss allowance at 31 December —EZEF4+ZA=+—HRK

2020 and 1 January 2021 —E-—F—A—HA2

EiERE 52,286 192

(Decrease)/increase in loss allowance  FERNEEIER 2 E18#

recognised in profit or loss BORL), /180

during the year (6,842) 79
Receivables written off during FAMER AT E 2

the year as uncollectible FEYFRIA (22,800) =
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHTE A R (223) =
Loss allowance at B —-F+-A=t+—HZ

31 December 2021 EiERE 22,421 271
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BHE-_Z-—F+-_A=1+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i

(ii)

Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets are written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery include, amongst others, the failure of a debtor
to engage in a repayment plan with the Group.

Impairment losses on trade receivables and contract
assets are presented as “net reversal of/(provision for)
impairment losses on financial assets” within operating
loss. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against the same line item.

Finance lease receivables

The Group applies general approach under HKFRS 9
“Financial Instruments” to measure expected credit
losses for all finance leases receivables.

Under the general approach, financial assets migrate
through three stages based on the change in credit
risk since initial recognition. As at 31 December 2021,
the amount of RMB306,175,000 of the finance lease
receivables are classified under stage 1 and the amount
of RMB17,200,000 of the finance lease receivables
are classified as stage 3 (31 December 2020: all of the
finance lease receivables were classified under stage 1).

Impairment losses on finance lease receivables are
presented as “net reversal of/(provision for) impairment
losses on financial assets” within operating loss.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited against the same line item.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BHE-_Z-—F+-_A=1+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

Loans to customers of financing services business

The credit risk of loans and interest receivables mainly
arises from micro-credit financing business. To manage
risk arising from loan and interest receivables, the
Group has established relevant mechanism to cover
credit risk in key operational phases of micro-credit
financing business, including pre-lending evaluations,
credit approval, and post-lending monitoring. The
Group conducts customer acceptance and due diligence
by operating department and risk management
department in the pre-lending evaluations.

In the credit approval phase, all loans applications
are subjected to the assessment and approval of the
Department Manager, General Manager and Risk
Assessment Committee of the Micro-credit company,
depending on the amount and nature of the loans.
During the post-lending monitoring, the Group
conducts on-site inspections and off-site inquiries to
detect potential risks by evaluating various aspects,
including but not limited to the customer’s operational
and financial conditions, status of collaterals and other
sources of repayment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OISR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-_Z-_—F+-A=1+—HItFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

Loans to customers of financing services business
(Continued)

In accordance with the regulations issued by the local
regulatory authority, Chongqing Financial Affairs Office
(EETE R IIEMAZE), the Group has established a
loan credit risk classification system based on the type
of collateral and credit period, and performs credit risk
management based on loan classification in one of five
categories. The Group classifies loans into the following
five categories: normal, special-mention, substandard,
doubtful and loss. Loans classified as substandard,
doubtful and loss are regarded as nonperforming loans.

Borrowers can honour the terms of
their loans. There is no reason to
doubt their ability to repay principal
and interest in full on a timely basis.

Normal:

Special-
mention:

Borrowers are currently able to service
their loans and interest, although
repayment may be adversely
affected by specific factor.

Substandard: Borrowers’ ability to service their
loans is in question and they cannot
rely entirely on normal business
revenues to repay principal and
interest. Losses may ensue even
when collateral or guarantees are

invoked.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—-Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

interest in full and significant losses
will need to be recognised even
when collateral or guarantees are
invoked.

Loss: Principal and interest of loans cannot
be recovered or only a small
portion of them can be recovered
after taking all possible measure
or resorting to all necessary legal
procedures.

The Group applies general approach under HKFRS 9
“Financial Instruments” to measure expected credit
losses for all loans and interest receivables accounted
for at amortised cost.

Under the general approach, financial assets migrate
through the following three stages based on the change
in credit risk since initial recognition:

Stage 1: 12-months ECL

For exposures where there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition and that
are not credit impaired upon origination, the portion
of the lifetime ECL associated with the probability of
default events occurring within the next 12 months is
recognised.

HC GROUP INC. ANNUAL REPORT 2021

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BIRRMEE®
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MERBER®)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) =EREE)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) DA EE (&)
(i) Loans to customers of financing services business iy ERTRERBEBZEFR
(Continued) (%)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BHE-_Z-—F+-_A=1+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

Loans to customers of financing services business
(Continued)
Stage 2: Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired

For exposures where there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition but are
not credit-impaired, a lifetime ECL (i.e. reflecting the
remaining lifetime of the financial asset) is recognised.

At each financial reporting date, the Group assesses
whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk for exposures since initial recognition by comparing
the risk of default occurring over the expected life
between the reporting date and the date of initial
recognition. The Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort for this purpose. This
includes quantitative and qualitative information and
also, forward-looking analysis.

The Group considers loan and interest receivables to
have experienced a significant increase in credit risk
if the loans overdue exceeds 30 days on contractual
payment.

Stage 3: Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired

Exposures are assessed as credit-impaired when one
or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred.
For exposures that have become credit-impaired,
a lifetime ECL is recognised and interest revenue is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost (net of provision) rather than the gross
carrying amount.

3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-_Z-—S+-A=t+—HIEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

Loans to customers of financing services business
(Continued)

The Group considers a loan is default, when it is credit
impaired. Generally, overdue for more than 90 days
on contractual payment terms is considered default.
In addition, other qualitative indicators have been
considered, including the borrower is in insolvency or
bankruptcy, or the loan is classified as nonperforming
loans under loan credit risk classification system.

The amount of ECL is measured as the probability
weighted present value of all cash shortfalls over the
expected life of the financial asset discounted at its
original effective interest rate. The cash shortfall is the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are
due to the Group and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive. The amount of the loss is recognised
and presented as “net reversal of/(provision for)
impairment losses on financial assets” within operating
profit.

If, in a subsequent period, credit quality improves and
reverses any previously assessed significant increase
in credit risk since origination, then the provision for
doubtful debts reverts from lifetime ECL to 12-months
ECL.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BIERMEE:
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MERBER®)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b)) 1EREEE)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) DA EEE (&)
(i) Loans to customers of financing services business iy ERTRERBEBZEFR
(Continued) (%)

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the loss allowance
for loans to customers of financing services business
was determined as follows.

2021
—E--F
Stage 1 Stage 2
low credit risk not credit-
(12 month impaired
ECL) (Lifetime ECL)

F1ER FaRR
EFEER  REHEE
(+=f8A (2HEM
RMEEER) EEER)
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE  ARETR

RZBZ-—FR-F-FF
T-A=+—H EXTHE
RIS 2 B 2 R HEE
EWT ©

Stage 3
credit-
impaired
(Lifetime ECL)
FIRBR
RERE
(2H7EH
REER) @t
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET R ARETR

At 31 December 2021 RZB=-£+=ZA=1-H

Gross carrying amount FEAE 945,629 428,655 210,287 1,584,571

Loss allowance EiBRE (11,286) (15,992) (122,508) (149,786)
934,343 412,663 87,779 1,434,785

Expected loss rate EHEREE 1.19% 3.73% 58.26% 9.45%

SHEEERAT 2021 Fif



188

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—-Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BIRRMEE®
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MERBER®)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) =EREE)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) DA EE (&)
(i) Loans to customers of financing services business iy ERTRERBEBZEFR
(Continued) (%)

Stage 1
low credit risk
(12 month

2020
ZTCITF

Stage 2

not credit-

impaired

(Lifetime ECL)

1)

Stage 3
credit-
impaired
(Lifetime ECL)

) +
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT ARBFT AREFTT

At 31 December 2020 R-E-EE+-A=+-H
Gross carrying amount ERaE 771,506 600,225 229,711 1,601,442
Loss allowance EEAE (12,229) (39,662) (132,258) (184,149)
759,277 560,563 97,453 1,417,293
Expected loss rate HHEER 1.59% 6.61% 57.58% 11.50%

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rates. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates
at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment and provisioning policies

The assessment of credit risk of a portfolio of assets
entails further estimations as to the likelihood of
defaults occurring, of the associated loss ratios and of
default correlations between counterparties. The Group
measures credit risk using Probability of Default (“PD"),
Exposure at Default (“EAD") and Loss Given Default
("LGD").
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BHE-_Z-—F+-_A=1+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

Loans to customers of financing services business
(Continued)

Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued)

The expected credit losses are measured on either a
12-month or lifetime basis depending on whether a
significant increase in credit risk has occurred since
initial recognition or whether an asset is considered
to be credit-impaired. Expected credit losses are the
discounted product of the PD, EAD and LGD.

The ECL is determined by projecting the PD, EAD and
LGD for each future month and for each portfolio.
These three components are multiplied together and
adjusted for the likelihood of survival (i.e. the exposure
has not prepaid or defaulted in an earlier month). This
effectively calculates an ECL for each future month,
which is then discounted back to the reporting date
and summarised. The discount rate used in the ECL
calculation is the original effective interest rate or an
approximation thereof.

The calculation of ECL incorporate forward-looking
information. The Group has performed historical analysis
and identified the key economic variables impacting
credit risk and expected credit losses.

As with any economic forecasts, the projections and
likelihoods of occurrence are subject to a high degree of
inherent uncertainty and therefore the actual outcomes
may be significantly different to those projected. The
Group considers these forecasts to represent its best
estimate of the possible outcomes.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—-Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Loans to customers of financing services business
(Continued)
Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued)
The assessment of ECL incorporates forward-looking
information in respect of PD. The Group has performed
historical analysis and identified the key economic
variable impacting credit risk and ECL for loan portfolio:

Key economic variable

TERESE

Gross Domestic Product (“GDP") growth rate
NEELE(BREESE])ERE

Money supply measure ("M2")
gEpEE(M2))

The Group uses economic variable assumptions when
determine the expected GDP growth rate and M2. The
weightings assigned to each economic scenario at 31
December 2021 were 80% for base, 10% for upside
and 10% for downside (31 December 2020: same).
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BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—_Z—-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

Loans to customers of financing services business
(Continued)

Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued)

The most significant assumptions affecting the ECL
allowance are GDP growth rate and M2 growth rate.
Set out below are the changes to the ECL as at 31
December 2021 and 2020 that would result from
increasing/decreasing GDP growth rate by 1% or M2
growth rate by 1% in each of the base, upside and
downside scenarios:

GDP growth rate BREERABEERSE

As at 31 December 2021 R-_E-_—F+_-_A=+—H
As at 31 December 2020 RZZ-EF+-H=+—H
M2 M2

As at 31 December 2021 R-EBE-_—F+_-_A=+—H
As at 31 December 2020 RZZEZEF+-HA=+—H

The loss allowance recognised in the year is impacted by
a variety of factors, as described below:

e Transfers between Stage 1 and Stages 2 or 3
due to loan receivables experiencing significant
increases (or decreases) of credit risk in the year,
and the subsequent “step up” (or “step down")
between 12-month and Lifetime ECL;

e Additional allowances for new financial
instruments recognised, as well as releases for loan
receivables derecognised in the year; and

e  Loan receivables derecognised and write-offs of
allowances related to assets that were written off
during the year.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 UBEBREE@

3.1 BIEKBEZE®)
(b) =EmEE)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued) DA EE (&)

(i) Loans to customers of financing services business iy ERTRERBEBZEFR
(Continued) (#8)
Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued) RE R B EBUR ()

TRAAFNEFLBLER
Rz SHERMEE 2 BRERF

The following tables explain the changes in the loss
allowance for loan receivables between the beginning

and the end of the year due to these factors: &
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E1EE bl 3R @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AR%Trz AR®Tx AR%TR
Loss allowance as of BE-E--F
1 January 2021 —R—-HzEERE 12,229 39,662 132,258 184,149
Transfer: ECA
Transfer from Stage 1to Stage 2 S 1RBREBEF LR - = - -
Transfer from Stage 1to Stage 3~ H1REBEBEFIKER = = - -
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1~ F2RBREBEH1KEER = = - -
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3~ 2R EREBEF3KER = = = -
Transfer from Stage 3to Stage 1 SF3EREBEF 1K = = = -
Transfer from Stage 3to Stage 2 F3IRBREBEEIKR - - = =
Change in PDs/LGDS/EADs BIOBRBNEBRER/
ENHAEE (10,656) (11,337) (9,870) (31,863)
Loan and interest receivables FRSIREDZERET R
derecognised during the year e (3,362) (12,333) 2,502 (13,193)
New loan receivables originated ~ BH7 ST E = 13,075 = - 13,075
Write-offs hss = = (2,382) (2,382)
Loss allowance as of BE-E--f
31 December 2021 +ZA=t-H2
BERE 11,286 15,992 122,508 149,786
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE_Z-—F+-A=+—HIEFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Loans to customers of financing services business

(Continued)

Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued)

(iii)

3 BIERMEE:

3.1 MBEBEEE)

(b) EEmEREE)

EREERE ()

193

(i) EXRTRERBEBZEP

(%)

B R ()

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
E1[BE E2RE E3MEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARETT AR%ETT ARETT ARETR
Loss allowance as of BE-Z-ZF
1 January 2020 -B-B2ERRE 13,597 - 126,417 140,014
Transfer: i
Transfer from Stage 1to Stage 2 S 1RBREVZE KR (7,661) 15,642 - 7,981
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3~ F1EEREH SRR (36) - 1,457 1,421
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1~ S52RBREBEF KR - - - -
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3~ 2R EREREF3KER - - - -
Transfer from Stage 3to Stage 1~ F3IRREBE 1K - - - -
Transfer from Stage 3to Stage 2~ F3IRREB T KRR - - - -
Change in PDs/LGDS/EADs BAME BHBRE/
EHROZE) 6,721 24,020 31,547 62,288
Loan and interest receivables FRHIRER L ERET R
derecognised during the year e (17,280) - (27,163) (44,443)
New loan receivables originated 27 FTEME T 16,888 - - 16,888
Write-offs Hss - _ _ _
Loss allowance as of BE-Z-Ef
31 December 2020 +=ZA=t-82
EERE 12,229 39,662 132,258 184,149
BREEERAT 2021 FR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—-Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMKEREREE®
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MBEBEEE®
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) =EREE)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) DA EE (&)
(i) Loans to customers of financing services business iy ERTRERBEBZEFR
(Continued) (#8)
Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued) RE R B EBUR ()
The gross carrying amount of the loan receivables FEN B AR E AR E 3B N AR
explains their significant changes in the loss allowance as MEREERETR 2 ERE
discussed below: E

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F1ER 2B E3ER #Ast

RMB000 RMB*000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT  ARBTR ARETR  ARETR

Gross carrying amount as of BE-Z-_-£-H-Hz

1 January 2021 IREAE 771,506 600,225 229,711 1,601,442
Transfer: &%

Transfer from Stage 1to Stage 2~ S 1EEREBEE AR = = = -
Transfer from Stage 1to Stage 3~ F1REEBEFIMER = = = -
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1~ 2 REREREE1KE = = = -
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3~ 2 RREBEF3MKER = = = -
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 1~ S3RBREBHEF 1K = = - -
Transfer from Stage 3 to Stage 2 E3EREBEF 2R = = - -
Loan and interest receivables FRYBRERLERETR

ERT i

O

derecognised during the year e (767,047) (171,570) (17,042) (955,659)
New loan receivables originated Bz FEKER 941,170 - - 941,170
Write-offs WA = - (2,382) (2,382)
Gross carry amount as of BE-E--F

31 December 2021 +=ZB=+-8%2

REAE 945,629 428,655 210,287 1,584,571
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—_Z—-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HREREEs
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 MERBER®)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b)) 1EREEE)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) DA EEE (&)
(i) Loans to customers of financing services business iy ERTRERBEBZEFR
(Continued) (%)
Impairment and provisioning policies (Continued) B R BB ()

Stage 1
EAEES

RMB'000
ARBTT

Stage 2
FUAER
RMB'000
ARETT

Stage 3

F3RER
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETFTE  ARETE

Gross carrying amountasof ~ HEZE-Z2-FF-f-HAx

1 January 2020 REAE 1,405,246 - 279,737 1,684,983
Transfer: &% -
Transfer from Stage 1to Stage 2 S 1RBREVZE IR (600,225) 600,225 - -
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3~ F1EEREBEE3HAR (2,836) - 2,836 -
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1~ S52/RBREBEF KR - - - -
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3~ 2R EEREF3KER - - - -
Transfer from Stage 3to Stage 1~ F3IRBREBE 1K - - - -
Transfer from Stage 3to Stage 2~ F3IRREBE KRR - - - -
Loan and interest receivables FARIGER 2 BHERR

derecognised during the year SN (1,353,899) - (52,862) (1,406,761)
New loan receivables originated Bz HEWED 1,323,220 - - 1,323,220
Write-offs s - _ _ _
Gross carrying amount as of BE-E-ZF

31 December 2020 +=ZA=+-RH2

IREAE 771,506 600,225 229,711 1,601,442
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-_Z-—S+-A=t+—HIEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Credit risk also arises from cash and cash equivalents,
restricted bank deposit and long-term bank deposits,
as well as credit exposures to other receivables and
deposit. The carrying amount of each class of these
financial assets represents the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to the corresponding
class of financial assets.

To manage credit risk, bank deposits are mainly placed
with state-owned financial institutions in the PRC and
reputable international financial institutions outside of
the PRC. There has been no recent history of default
in relation to these financial institutions. The finance
department has policies in place to monitor the
exposures to these credit risks on an on-going basis.

For balance with related companies, loans to employees,
other receivables due from third parties and deposits,
management make individual assessment on the
recoverability of the balances taking into account the
historical settlement records, past experience as well
as forward looking factors. During the year ended 31
December 2020, there was an increase in credit risk
on the balances due from certain independent third
parties and the Directors believe that the recoverability
of the balance is uncertain. Therefore, the balance
of RMB43,020,000 was fully provided for as at 31
December 2020. No material provision was provided for
as at 31 December 2021.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BHE-_Z-—F+-_A=1+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(c)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(iv)  Other financial assets at amortised cost (Continued)

Except for the amount mentioned above, the Directors
believe that there is no material credit risk inherent in
the Group’s outstanding balances of other receivables
and deposits and the expected credit loss is close to
zero.

Liquidity risk

With prudent liquidity risk management, the Group aims to
maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents and ensure
the availability of funding through an adequate amount of
available financing, including short-term bank borrowing.
Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, the
Group's finance department maintains flexibility in funding by
maintaining adequate amount of cash and cash equivalents
and flexibility in funding through having available sources of
financing.

As at 31 December 2021, the cash and cash equivalents
of the Group approximated RMB333,812,000 (2020:
RMB254,301,000).

197

3 BIERMEE:

3.1 MBEBEEE)
(b) EEmEREE)

(c)

EE A ERE(E)

(iv) REERAFEZEMEEE
E(&)
B SR EERA A
SEHAMRKFIA RIS 2 R
EERBEITEBRRNEREE
Rk wBEHEEBERL

= o
=

REEZmE
EaBERDESRARER K&
EhEBRERRekREEE
Y WEBTHRAIARESHE(BRE
RHSRITIE S ) RACHES - A
WIEEEBZZENE  AEEE
BRETHRERREEFEMAL
RELBRE - WEBERIS A AR
BRFHEBESTRMN -

RZEBEZ—F+_A=+—H K
SERERRSEEMHABARE
333,812,000 (Z T =T : AR
#254,301,0007T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—-Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 UBEBREE@

3.1 BIEKBEZE®)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below summarises the maturity analysis shows the
cash outflow based on the earliest date in which the Group
can be required to pay, that is if the lenders were to invoke
heir unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate
effect. The amounts include interest payments computed
using contractual rates.

(9

mBELmbE (%)
TREGAFEIDAHN - RO RIEA
SEEXNZ&HF AHEMHERA
RS E B RIHERI DA RN Y B B 50)
BRBRERE - ZERERERE
OFRFTE 2 FBEK

Between  Between
Less than 1and 2 and Over
1year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
15/ 1226 285 SFENE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETn ARETR AR®TR ARETR
At 31 December 2021 RZE-_—F
+-A=1+-A
Trade payables FERTERTR 194,368 - - - 194,368
Accrued expenses and [ ERK
other payables HinENE 287,068 - - - 287,068
Borrowings &8 520,193 524,628 - - 1,044,821
Lease liabilities MEaf 21,639 12,567 4,008 4,551 42,765
At 31 December 2020 RZZE-ZF
TZA=1+-H
Trade payables FERTERTR 478,940 - - - 478,940
Accrued expenses and other payables EEBRAREMENTIE 138,733 - - - 138,733
Borrowings &5 1,004,983 261,480 34,689 - 1,301,152
Lease liabilities HEaE 16,462 11,383 3,178 5,101 36,124

Management monitors the Group’s liquidity through cash
flow projections covering a period of twelve months on a
rolling basis. Based on the cash flow projection, taking into
account the reasonably possible changes in the operational
performance and the continuous availability of banking
facilities, management considers that there will be sufficient
financial resources in the coming twelve months to meet its
financial obligations as and when they fall due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—_Z—-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BBEBRER@

3.2 Capital risk management

3.2 EXEBRER

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings and lease liabilities less cash and
cash equivalents (including restricted bank deposits) and long-
term bank deposits. Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown
in the consolidated statement of financial position plus net debt.
Accordingly, the gearing ratios at 31 December 2021 and 2020
were as follows:

AEEERES 2 BNAREREEFE
KR8 RECRERER - RERE
IS E SR G - WHRFFRIEE N GEHE
VARE B AR -

BUESABRERNGEE  ANEETESHA
BRENTFREZRESE MBRRERESL
AR~ BITHR D S A E DURRETS o
REBERBEABBLRERER - %t
KIFEBRABRE R E o FEBHZE
BErrABrERRAEARRE SR
BeEEM(REXRHRTER) R
HRITER o BEARZETE T ARG #E
@ |(RE BRI R IR) INFER -
Bt R=Z=—FR-F-_TF+-A
=T —HZEXRERELEERAT :

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H

2021 2020

—E-—F —TCTF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBFIT

Bank borrowings (note 34) RITEE (FIFE34) 683,114 895,308

Other borrowings (note 34) HnEE (fE34) 319,416 340,959

Lease liabilities (note 16(a)) HEBEPIF16@)) 38,309 32,649
Less: cash and bank (including restricted A R MERTT (B IEZ R

bank deposit and long-term bank deposits) HRITFR R R ARITFR)

(note 30) (M15E30) (395,871) (280,149)
Net debt FETS 644,968 988,767
Total equity MR 3,548,395 4,025,779
Total capital RN 4,193,363 5,014,546
Gearing ratio BREGH R 15% 20%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—-Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 UBEBREE@

3.3 Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and liabilities
including cash and cash equivalents, restricted bank deposit,
long term bank deposits, trade and other receivables, contract

33 AVEEH

rEEzeREELAERERENES
SEY - RE|ITER - RPRTE
R BUERAR N EMERIRIE - AHE

assets, finance lease receivable, trade payables, accruals and E - MEEERWIE - EAERR - EE
other payables, contract liabilities, borrowings, and lease liabilities BRAMHEMENTIE SH8E EER

approximate their fair values due to their short maturities.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial instruments carried
at fair value as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 by level of inputs
to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. Such inputs are
categorised into three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is,
as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s financial assets that are at
fair value at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

At 31 December 2020 R-BE-Ef+=-A=1+-H

Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value through BATESAEMEERAZ

Level 1
£

RMB'000
ARETT

HEAE RS eREERBERER
HIREIHE - EREERQTERS

TRIZARFEATEZGET AR
AEBBZEBER  HoWR T —FR=F
—ZF+Z A=+ —HASEIEQAFET
ReeRmTE BHEBABSEBEIEART
BRBAZ T =EZH

o HARBEXBBELRTSZME
(CREEAR)(F )

o EAERBETAEE(BIHINER)
SREZ(ANEERSI ) BERZEA
BE - TRES-ARNZHRE(E=
) e

o BEHBETIIHKETHEME
HiEmA (BT BRE A SIS ($
=) e

THREIAREBR T - —FR-FT-F
F+-A=+—BERAFEFEZLHE
= o

Level 2 Level 3
E-4 ] i
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFTT AREFT

other comprehensive income SREE 80,716 - - 80,716

Financial assets at fair value through BATEFAESz BB E
profit or loss - - 20,234 20,234
80,716 - 20,234 100,950

HC GROUP INC. ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE_Z-—F+-A=+—HIEFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

At 31 December 2021

R-B--%#+-A=1-H

201

3 BIERMERE:

3.3 APEMFE)

Level 1

5%

RMB'000
ARBTR

RMB'000
ARBT R

Total

@t
RMB’000
ARET T

Level 3
=R
RMB’000
ARBTT

Level 2

F=&

Assets &E
Financial assets at fair value through BATESAEMZARAZ
other comprehensive income SREE 61,772 - 392,686 454,458
Financial assets at fair value through BATEFANESZSBEE
profit or loss - - 18,219 18,219
61,772 - 410,905 472,677
Liabilities &
Financial liabilities at fair value through BATEMAEG EREE
profit or loss - - 54,188 54,188
There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 for recurring fair FR F—H F_R/EE=HZ
value measurement during the year. M EEEE AT ESEES -
(a) Financial instruments in level 1 (a) F—HRzL@TA
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active EERTHEE eI ARNTAE
markets is based on quoted market prices at the consolidated RIBaHF BT B A TSR
statement of financial position date. A market is regarded as BrtHE - B AR R T HHFESHZ
active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from SR KSEHRE A ERAL
an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, price services WMBMRTE S E BB RIZESIR(E -
or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and MEBRERKIZATRZELE
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm'’s length IEREERATSERHE - &M
basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets held SRR AERMS  c REBEMEE
by the group is the current bid price. These instruments are ZERMEERBZMISHRERER
included in level 1. BAE ZETAFAE—HA -
(b) Financial instruments in level 3 (b)) F=HRzZz@TA

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

(i)  Valuation techniques used to determine fair values
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial
instruments include the use of quoted market prices
and adjusted price-to-book ratios similar instruments.

fild —IE A £z ERE AR IE
ERAEBR Mg - 2T A
AEZHR -

()  FARETRFEZEGER
BRiHhem I AEE AR
HERMEEEBTIZMRER
FRTAEZ ERHBEMEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—-Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BH¥RKREEw

3.3 DFREMEFE)
E-HzE2@TA(E)
TREWNHZ=_ZE=-_—F+=A
Tt RUFEF-ATAEZEE-

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(b) Financial instruments in level 3 (Continued) (b)
The following table represents the changes in level 3
instruments for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Financial Financial assets Financial
assets at fair value liabilities
at fair value  through other at fair value
through profit comprehensive  through profit
or loss income or loss
BRAYE
BAYE s AEAt BAFE
HPN 3 2HKAZ FFAB#®RZ
EREE SREE SRBE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT AR®TT
As at 1 January 2021 RZT=Z—F
—H—H 20,234 - -
Addition NE - 429,066 (45,842)
Fair value changes credited/(charged) RERE KRR
to consolidated statement of A (FBR) 2
comprehensive income NEEE) 2,835 (36,380) (8,346)
Derecognition IR (4,850) = =
As at 31 December 2021 RNZEZ—F
+=-A=+—H 18,219 392,686 (54,188)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—_Z—-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HIBEREEw
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AFEMEE)
(b) Financial instruments in level 3 (Continued) (b)) FE=KzEMTAE)
The following table represents the changes in level 3 TREVNBE-_Z-_ZTF+_H
instruments for the year ended 31 December 2020. =+ BLFEE=HRTAZEH-

Financial assets

at fair value

through profit

or loss

BRATE

FTAERZ

RMB‘000

ARETFT

As at 1 January 2020 RN_ZE_TF—H—H 43,263
Fair value changes charged to consolidated REpTARERTRZ

statement of comprehensive income NHEE (8,779)

Exchange difference M =R 104

Derecognition S HER (14,354)

As at 31 December 2020 RZZZZF
+ZA=+—~H 20,234
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BHE-_Z-—F+-_A=1+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

B ERERE &)
3.3 AVAEMGE)

(b) Financial instruments in level 3 (Continued) (b)) FE=HRKzz@MTA(E)
The Group’s finance department includes a team that AEEVBBHRE—EE - A&
performs the valuation of financial asset required for TESNIE (R ERD 2 7 Bh Tt B i s
financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair values with BOETR eRmEE(BRE=S
assistance of external valuers. This team reports directly to Bz AHEHE - ZEFEEZERS
the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and the Audit Committee FERBE(ERMBE) RERES
(AC). Discussion of valuation processes and results are held Z(BERZEQ)ER - BFELSE
between the CFO, AC and the valuation team at least once EowERE BEVBE B
before the reporting date of every half year, in line with the ZESHRMEERZELTELFRR
Group's reporting dates. E AR ERT RAERETH

i e
(c) Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value () BEBAZZERALFEZEE

TREULESEIR A FEAERER
EATABRGABIEZELES

The following table summarises the quantitative information
about the significant unobservable inputs used in and level 3
fair value measurements:

Fair value as at
RAT RS2 ATE

31 December 31 December  Valuation techniques

Significant unobservable input

EXTTEZRARE
31December 31 December Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value
TIBRRAHE
tZA=t-A HAVEZBRE

RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT

2021 2020 and key inputs 2021

“R0-F CECTF MERER
+H+E+ﬂ+a;§m§1§

RMB000  RMBI000

ABMTR  ARBTR

= 3

Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income
BRFEAZNZERAZ
- Inner Mongolia Hohhot Jingu Rural
Commercial Bank Company Ltd

392,686 - Itwas estimated by market
comparison approach, required

Price-to-book /A~ The lower the price-to-book ratio,
ratios: 0.8 the lower the fair value.

("Jingu Bank") the use of market information
(the comparable companies in Lack of N/A The higher the lack of marketabllity
the industry) and significant marketability discount, the lower the fair value.
unobservable input (the lack of discount:
marketability discount) 16.5%

-MEERAERSARNESEN ERAmEL L - RRRRT miEE: AER TREME  ATESE-

ERAA (T28%17)) SRR (TERWELERT) RE 08
AMUBREARE (H2HHRE
) - HemERE MER BEmARERES ATEY

18 16.5% i
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZ-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 BIERMERE:
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 DREMEFE)
(c) Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value (c) FEBEAZBERELFEZHF
(Continued) (#8)

Fair value as at Significant unobservable input
RATBHZATE EXFUBERALE

31 December 31 December Valuation techniques 31December 31 December Relationship of unobservable
2021 2020 and key inputs 2021 inputs to fair value

“B-F ¥ aEEAR e TUBREARE
t2A=t-8 1= ﬂ A TE@ALE tZA=t-B t-A=1t-B RLOVEZRE

RMBOOO  RMBI000 RMB'000 RMB000

ARETR  ARRTR ARBTTR .

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

RATEAAREZ EHEE

- Privately held partnership 18,219 20,234 It was estimated by market comparison ~ Price-to-book ~ Price-to-book  The lower the price-to-book ratio, the
approach, required the use of ratios: 1.06 ratios: 1.26  lower the fair value.
market information (the comparable
companies in the industry) and Lack of Lack of  The higher the lack of marketabllity
significant unobservable input (the lack ~ marketability ~ marketability - discount, the lower the fair value
of marketability discount). discount: 30%  discount: 30%

-hAaELE ERRmALmERLE  SERAT mkE: MRE: MEEGE  ATERE
AR (TEATALALT) RE 1.06 126
AUBREASE (RZTERE
£3) - BeHERE  HZTRNE HZWARBARMS ATEM

WR:30%  mR0% B

SHEEERAT 2021 Fif



206

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—-Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
(c) Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value
(Continued)

Fair value as at

RUTRASZATE
31 December 31 December Valuation techniques
2021 2020 and key inputs
ZR>-F ToTE fHERHR
t=A=t-8 +

RMB'000

ARBTT

A=t-E IZRARS
RMB000

Financial liabilities through
profit or loss
BRVEABRZ ERAR
- Contingent consideration payable 1282
arrangement related to the
disposal of certain interest of
Huizhou Union Cotton Cloud
Technology Co., Limited

- EEMRRENRARLT
LETRERBZINRE
FERZH

- Contingent consideration payable 46,946
arrangement related
to the disposal of certain interest
of PanPass Information Technology
(o, Ltd.

- ERERERIRD
ERAAZETELREL
FRREEAZH

- [twas estimated by scenario analysis

HRRSSAmEAE -

- [twas estimated by scenario analysis

HRRRSAMEAE -

BEREERE )

3.3 DEMF @)
(€ BEBAHBREALFEZBRFR

(#)

Significant unobservable input
EXFURERALE
31December 31 December
2021
—E--F
t=B=t+-A +ZA=t-H
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETR

Upside: 35% NA
Base: 30%

Downside: 35%

Lf7:35%
EXK:30%
7 35%

AR

Upside: 41% NA
Base: 18%

Downside: 41%

L7 a1%
X 18%
T 41%

Ol

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value
TIRZRARE
BATEZRE

The highest risk-free rate,
the lower fair value.

The lower the probabilities to achieve

the performance targets, the lower the
fair value.

ERRAERE DVEEE-

ERRRERIMEHE
AVEHE -

The highest risk-free rate, the lower
fair value.

The lower the probabilities to achieve
the performance targets, the lower
the fair value.

aERAZSE  ATEME

ERRRERIMEHE
AVEHE -

54,188 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—_Z—-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition seldom
equal to the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are discussed below.

(a)

Impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets

The Group tests annually whether goodwill have suffered any
impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in note 2.11. For intangible assets with finite useful life, the
Group reviews internal and external sources information to
identify indications of impairment. In determining where
goodwill and intangible assets are impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount of cash-generating
units to which goodwill and intangible assets have been
allocated. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating
units have been determined based on the higher of value-
in-use calculations or fair value less costs of disposal. These
calculations require the use of judgements and estimates.
Management judgement is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event
has occurred that may indicate that the related asset values
may not be recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying value of an
asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, being
the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and net present
value of future cash flows expected to be derived from an
asset or cash-generating unit and (iii) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow projections
including whether these cash flow projections are discounted
using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management in assessing impairment, including
the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash
flow projections, could materially affect the net present value
used in the impairment test and as a result affect the Group’s
financial condition and results of operations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-_Z-—S+-A=t+—HIEE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)
(b) Provision of impairment of financial assets

(c)

For loans and interest receivables, significant judgement
is exercised in the assessment of the collectability from
each counter party. In making its judgement, management
considers a wide range of factors such as results of historical
payment records, following-up procedures performed by
customer relationship personnel, counter parties’ payment
record, creditability, nature of loans, underlying security as
well as forward looking estimates.

The loss allowances for other financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on
the Group’s past history, existing market conditions as well
as forward-looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period.

Fair value of non-listed financial assets

The Group's investment in Jingu Bank was derecognised
as an investment in associate company and reclassified as
a financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive
income on 21 October 2021. The Group also recorded certain
contingent consideration payables related to its disposal of
equity interests in its subsidiaries as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss. As disclosed in note 2.12, the
Group recognised the financial assets and liabilities at fair
value at initial recognition date as well as at each subsequent
reporting date.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market is determined by using valuation techniques.
The Group uses its judgement to select a variety of methods
and make assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in these assumptions and estimates could materially
affect the respective fair value of these financial assets and
liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

BHE-_Z-—F+-_A=1+—HILFE

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

(Continued)

(d) Useful lives of intangible assets

Significant judgement is exercised in the assessment of the
useful lives of the intangible assets. In making its judgement,
management considers a wide range of factors such as the

attrition rates and obsolescence rates.

(e) Impairment of other non-financial assets

At each date of consolidated statement of financial
position, the Group reviews internal and external sources
of information to identify indications that the interests in
associates which are significant to the Group may be impaired
or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
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or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss
is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount.

The sources utilised to identify indications of impairment
are often subjective in nature and the Group is required to
use judgement in applying such information to its business.
The Group's interpretation of this information has a direct
impact on whether an impairment assessment is performed
as at any given reporting date. If an indication of impairment
is identified, such information is further subjected to an
exercise that requires the Group to estimate the recoverable
amount, representing the greater of the asset’s fair value
less cost to sell or its value in use. Depending on the Group’s
assessment of the overall materiality of the asset under
review and complexity of deriving reasonable estimates
of the recoverable amount, the Group may perform such
assessment utilising internal resources or the Group may
engage external advisors to counsel the Group in making
this assessment. Regardless of the resources utilised, the
Group is required to make many assumptions to make this
assessment, including the utilisation of such asset, the cash
flow to be generated, appropriate market discount rates and
the projected market and regulatory conditions. Changes in
any of these assumptions could result in a material change to
future estimates of the recoverable amount of any asset.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-_Z-—S+-A=t+—HIEE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(f)

(9)

Share-based payment
Significant judgement is exercised in the assessment of
the fair value of the share-based payments. In making its
judgement, management considers a wide range of factors
such as the share price of the Group and the expected vesting
number of share options.

Taxes

The Group’s subsidiaries that operate in the PRC are subjected
to income tax in the PRC. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for various kinds of taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in the period in which
such determination is made.

The Group is subjected to land appreciation taxes (“LAT")
in the PRC. However, the implementation and settlement
of LAT varies among various tax jurisdictions in cities of the
PRC, and the Group has not finalised its LAT calculation and
payments with local tax authority in the PRC for its property
project. Accordingly, judgement is required in determining
the amount of the LAT. The Group recognised LAT based on
management’s best estimates according to the interpretation
of the tax rules. The final tax outcome could be different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, and these
differences will impact the income tax expense and tax
provisions in the periods in which such taxes have been
finalised with local tax authority.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

BHE-_Z-—F+-_A=1+—HILFE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

4.2 Critical judgement in applying the Group’s
accounting policies
(a) Revenue from merchandise sale through its B2B trading

platforms

Determining whether the Group is acting as a principal or
as an agent in the sales of goods on the Group’s platform
requires judgement and consideration of all relevant facts
and circumstances. In evaluation of the Group acting as a
principal or an agent, the Group considers, individually or
in combination whether the Group is primarily responsible
for fulfilment the contract, is subject to the inventory risk,
and has discretion to establish prices. Having considered the
relevant facts and circumstances, management considers
that the Group obtains control of those goods sold through
the B2B platforms before the goods are transferred to the
customers. Accordingly, the Group is acting as a principal
for the direct sales and the related revenue is presented on a
gross basis.
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BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-_Z-—&#+-A=+—HILEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM") has been identified as
the Executive Directors. The Executive Directors review the Group’s
internal report in order to assess performance and allocate resources.
Management has determined the operating segments based on these
reports.

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the operating
segments (including the discontinued operations) based on a measure of
loss before income tax. This measurement basis excludes the effects of
non-recurring expenditure from operating segments.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group is organised into the following
business segments:

(i) Technology-driven new retail segment, which mainly include
provision of online advertising services through “zol.com.cn” as
well as B2B2C retail business of electronics products by leveraging
big data and internet technology through the Group’s websites
and trading platforms.

(i)  Smart industries segment, which mainly include B2B trading
platforms, provision of anti-counterfeiting products and services,
supply chain management services.

(iii)  Platform and corporate services segment, which mainly include the
online services provided through “hc360.com”, advance marketing
services utilising the digital big data and tools, and provision of
financing and other services.

On 5 January 2021, the Group entered into an equity transfer agreement
to dispose of its 100% equity interest in Tianjin Guokai which operated
properties leasing business. As at 31 December 2021, the disposal has
not yet been completed and parties to the agreement are working on
the transitional arrangements.

On 24 December 2021, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose of its 80.38% equity interest of Zhongfu which
operated integrated marketing and advertising services. The disposal
was completed on 28 December 2021.

Therefore, the financial results of Tianjin Guokai and Zhongfu
for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 were classified
as discontinued operations in the Group's consolidated financial
information.

For details of the discontinued operations, please refer to note 13.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—_Z—-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The table below shows the segment information for the year ended 31
December 2021.

5 oEIER®
ERDEER -

Year ended 31 December 2021
BE-B_-E4-A=t-RALEE

Continuing operations

Discontinued operations (Note 1(a))

RELSEER BRLEZEEK (M)
Platform Platform
Technology- and and
driven Smart  corporate Smart  corporate
new retail  industries services industries services
segment segment segment Subtotal segment segment Subtotal Total
NEHSE BEEE YaHbE BEEE TRHELE
BER BXF  REBEREH it BXE  REBERER et st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR AR%Tr AR%Tr AR%Tr ARETr ARETn ARETn AR%TxR
Revenue HEWA 1,072,470 16,083,099 108,329 17,263,898 4,528 12,646 17,174 17,281,072
Interest income from BERBHGT S
financing services A - - 124,763 124,763 - - - 124,763
Total revenue and income BHERARYMA 1,072,470 16,083,099 233,092 17,388,661 4,528 12,646 17,174 17,405,835
Impairment losses on goodwill ~ FE L &K AEHE
and intangible assets B# (483,985) - - (483,985 - - - (483,985)
Segment results PEEE (473,888) 26,625 (61,418) (508,681) (40,560) 8,024 (32,536) (541,217)
Other income HilA 12,440 4 12,444
Other losses, net AtEEEE (45,115) - (45,115)
Share of post-tax losses AMEEERARTIE
of associates =2 (18,929) - (18,929)
Share of post-tax losses of ME—BAELER
ajoint venture HiEEE (303) - (303)
Finance income BEBA 24,701 6 24,707
Finance cost B (62,757) 1) (62,778)
Loss before income tax BRETERAIEE (598,644) (32,547) (631,191
Other information: HigH
Depreciation and amortisation & K& 92,666 333 92,999
Share based compensation IR 2 #E
expense 5 22,683 - 22,683
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—-Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 2EER @)

Year ended 31

Continuing operations

Platform Platform

Technology- and and
driven Smart  corporate business Smart  corporate
newretal  industries services exhibition  industries services
segment segmem Subtotal i segmem Subtotal
RMB'000 RMB'000 i RMB'000
\AETTL AR/ T ABETRL ARETT
Revenue HEWA 1,022,760 13,164,243 189,486 14,376,489 10812 4,289 13,730 28831 14,405,320
Interest income from WERBHEFE
financing services WA - - 138,754 138,754 - - - - 138,754
Total revenue and income EEEBARIA 1022760 13164243 308240 14515243 10812 4,289 13,730 28831 14,544,074
Impairment losses on goodwill and Pﬁ%&ﬂﬁ, BERE
intangible assets B - - (540,693)  (540,693) - (37,645) (47185) (848300 (625,523)
Segment results AH%E (12,291) (57549)  (631,109)  (700,949) (53,602) (50,200) (76,782)  (180584)  (881,533)
Other income A 15813 62,866 78,679
Other gains, net EfEEa 69,781 (43,038) 26,743
Share of post-tax losses of DMEBERRRRE
associates Eﬂ,a (80,883) (298) (81,181)
Share of post-tax losses of bl i e
ajoint venture RitkgiE (1,537) - (1537)
Finance income BIBWA 15,605 2,946 18,551
Finance cost BTAAR (139,305) (23456)  (162761)
Loss before income tax BEEHAIEE (821,475) (181,54) (1,003,039
Other information: EEH
Depreciation and amortisation RERES 115,215 54,018 169,233
Share based compensation expense MR XA 2 E(E
Bx 60,496 - 60,496
As at 31 December 2021, the total non-financial non-current assets RZEZ—F+ZA=+—8 FRBDEE
including right-of-use assets, investment properties, property, plant REPFEUNTBRZERAEEE  RED
and equipment and intangible assets located in PRC are approximately ¥ VE BELZXBURBEEEOA
RMB1,391,283,000 (2020: RMB2,046,961,000). R ¥1,391,283,000c(ZE T F : AR
2,046,961,0007T) °
During the year ended 31 December 2021, all the revenue is derived HE_TZ-_—F+-A=+—HILFE KK
from the operation in the PRC from external customers, except for the HAFTEE ARSI - FTEHEERA
related party transactions disclosed in Note 41 (2020: Same). HAREFPEEL ZIIBEF(ZE_ZF : 1§
@) e
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—_Z—-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 ZHERER )
(a) Disaggregation of revenue (a) ZIHFHEWA

2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-TF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETT

(Restated)

(FgE=51)
(Note 1(a))
(FF5E1@))

Timing of revenue recognition TR E I AR RS
— At a point in time — AR 16,813,800 13,856,862
— QOvertime — BRI 450,098 519,627

17,263,898 14,376,489

2021 2020
—E-—fF —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT

(Restated)

(g&&E51)
(Note 1(a))
(Hf7E1(a))

Revenue from contract with customers: BRAHUA
Sales of goods through B2B trading platform  #%3i8B2BA 5V A tHEE R 16,698,491 13,689,380
Online services and advertisement B ERBRES 217,996 379,561
Anti-counterfeiting products and services b7 174 2 fn I AR 75 223,004 153,466
Marketing events, exhibition, seminars and EIEE  RE - ek
other services E A AR 117,285 150,203
Others Hitb 7,122 3,879
17,263,898 14,376,489
Income from other sources: HABYA IR -
Interest income from financing services BE RIS R B 124,763 138,754
Total revenue and income BEHE WA RITA 17,388,661 14,515,243
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—-Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 2®EMER@®
(b) Liabilities related to contracts with customers (b) HEEFEHNERZAE
The Group has recognised the following liabilities relating to AEBEEBRTIEEFPSOER LA
contracts with customers: f&

As at 31 December
R+=—A=+-—8H
2021 2020

. —ToTF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTFT

Contract liabilities related to online services mie RIS MREEEBZ

and advertisement BHEE 45,598 64,305
Contract liabilities related to sales of goods on  E2RB2BRZ ZF S HEE R

B2B trading platform Ez&6408E 302,833 487,734
Contract liabilities BHaE 348,431 552,039
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BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—_Z—-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 2EER@®
(b) Liabilities related to contracts with customers (b) BEXEFEXNEBZEE®)

(Continued)

(i)  Significant changes in contract liabilities (i) BHHEEEZEALE
Contract liabilities mainly represent advance payments EHBEEERREG LRSS B2
received from customers related to online services and XHTFaBB2EREFRIE - B
B2B trading platform. Contract liabilities decreased by RB2BR ST A ZEXEHRD
RMB203,608,000 due to a decrease in B2B trading platform ARBEDMD ARE203,608,000
contract activities. JC °

(ii) Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities (i) FEXEEEZEEKA
The following table shows how much of the revenue TR E E RO YA A
recognised in the year related to carried forward contract HEANEBERHACSE -
liabilities.

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-F

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT

Revenue recognised that was included in STAFYIEHEEEH®RZ

the contract liabilities balance at the EHERIHERA
beginning of the year
— Online services and advertisement — R R RES 64,305 121,797
— Sales of goods on B2B trading platform —MB2BRZFAHEEmM 487,734 215,993
— Sales of properties and properties —HEMERESTE

management services ARTE - 69,623

552,039 407,413
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BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—-Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Liabilities related to contracts with customers

(Continued)

(iii) Unsatisfied performance obligation
As at 31 December 2021, the aggregate amount of the
transaction price allocated to performance obligations that
are unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) was RMB356,650,000
(2020: RMB558,432,000). Management expects that the
transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied performance
obligations will be recognised as revenue when the related
services, mainly related to provision of advertising services,
are provided over the next 2 years (2020: same) for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

The Group has elected the practical expedient to not disclose
the aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated
to performance obligations that are unsatisfied (or partially
unsatisfied) for revenue contracts which have an original
expected duration of one year or less.

6 OTHER INCOME

5 2EER @)
(b) EEFEHERZEE®)

(iii) FKETZBHE
R-—T-—F+=-A=+—8 -
DEERBIT(IBHKRET)E
NETZRGERBEABARE
356,650,000 (ZF=ZFF : AR
#558,432,0007T) - B ETAL -
18 2 B B8 & 25 BR 75 10 B8 00 AR 75 A R
BT+ -A=+—HIF
ﬂézi(f?f?i eIk
" FEHIRERBITERNEEZ

%F‘Wﬁjﬁ&"u RHEA -

AEBECERERBEIDET
IRTEEIEAMR — F AR AT EUA
BHRBRBESEERET(RIDKE
TIRHEEZ X HEREHE -

6 HiblgA

2021

g —F
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARBFIT

(Restated)

(F=&E5))
(Note 1(a))
(MI7E1(a))

Government grants BT BN 10,330 14,825
Dividend income R B U A 2,110 988
12,440 15,813

Various government grants have been received from the local
government authority for promoting electronic trading platform in the
PRC. The Group recognised these government grants as other income
when all the conditions specified in the government grants were
satisfied.
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BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—_Z—-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

7 OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET

Other gains, net, mainly consist of the following:

7 H(EE) WEFR

Hitp s ¥ 2 BEATRIA

2021 2020
—E_—F —E-F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETT

(Loss)/gain on disposal of subsidiaries
— Shanghai HuiFa Information Technology

HEWRBLRZ(BE), M
— LB RERRMBRAR

(Restated)

(FgE751)
(Note 1(a))
(FfFzE1(a))

Company Limited* (note vi) (PR FEvi) = 12,011

— JDSJ Group (note 25(a)) —RE M FEE(MI5E25()) = 65,323

- Zhongfu — AR 2,692 -

— Others —EAth (1,754) -
Loss on disposal of partial interest in HE—fHEE AT ER L

an associate — Hunan Zhongmoyun B3 — P IR ERERI

Construction Science and Technology Co., BRA B (MIFED

Limited* (note i) (13,743) (444)
Gain on disposal in an associate — Beijing s —fEEE R E 2 Em— bR

Huiyase Technology Co., Limited* EEEREER AT (i)

(note iii) 30,270 -
Loss on deemed disposal of partial interest B[R E ML QR 2o RS

in an associate — Hunan Zhongmoyun 2 B8 — P AR E R AR

Construction Science and Technology Co., BR AR (HMIREi)

Limited* (note ii) (1,389)
Loss on deemed disposal in an associate RELE—MHE QR 2 B8

— Jingu Bank (note iv) — & ARIT(FIFEIV) (29,923) -
Change in fair value on financial assets at fair BAFESABRZEREEY

value through profit or loss NEEEE) 2,835 (8,779)
Change in fair value on financial liabilities at fair R AF(EFFABR 7 SREBEY

value through profit or loss N EZE) (8,346) -
Impairment provision on investment in WA N ERERE ()

associates (note v) (28,008) -
Others EAfh 2,251 1,670

(45,115) 69,781
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BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BHE-_Z-—F+-_A=1+—HIFE

7 OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET (Continued)

Note:

(0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

The amount represents loss on disposal of an associate, Hunan Zhongmoyun
Construction Science and Technology Co., Limited* (R iEEE LR
RARAT]) (“Zhongmo”). In March 2021, the Group entered into share
purchase agreement with two independent third parties, in respect of the
disposal of 7.81% equity interest in Zhongmo for a cash consideration of
RMB50,000,000 and resulted in a loss on disposal of partial interest in an
associate amounted to RMB13,743,000.

The amount represents loss on deemed disposal of partial interest in an
associate, Zhongmo. In May 2021, Zhongmo issued 30,000,000 new shares
to new investors which diluted the equity interest of the Group and resulted
in a loss on deemed disposal of partial interest in an associate amounted to
RMB1,389,000.

The amount represents gain on disposal of an associate, Beijing Huiyase
Technology Co., Limited* (At RZ g ZRHR AR A 7)) (“Huiyase”). In March
2021, the Group completed the disposal of entire interest, which represents
30% equity in Huiyase for a cash consideration of RMB33,000,000 and
resulted in a gain of disposal of an associate amounted to RMB30,270,000.

The amount represents loss on deemed disposal of Jingu Bank. Please refer
to note 26(a) for details.

The Group recognised the impairment losses of approximately
RMB28,008,000 against the carrying amounts of certain investments
in associates during the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil). The
impairment provision mainly resulted from revisions of financial or business
outlook of the associates and changes in the market environment of the
underlying business.

The amount represents gain on disposal of a wholly-owned subsidiary,
Shanghai HuiFa Information Technology Company Limited* (_E/&Z2%(5
BEMTARAT]) (“Huifa”), which is a properties holding company. On
12 May 2020, the Group entered into share purchase agreement with an
independent third party, in respect of the disposal of entire interest in Huifa
for a cash consideration of RMB50,000,000. The book value of the net assets
of Huifa disposed amounted to RMB37,989,000 and resulted in a gain of
disposal of a subsidiary amounting to RMB12,011,000.

* English name is for translation purpose only.
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

*

f (&518), Wt F o)

ReHEELE —MHE R RIREPIESEER
RERAR([FEDZER - RZTE=—F=
B AEEREEFRELZ7.81% ESAMEE
VEZFTUERBE  ReREAARK
50,000,0007T © E4 HE @& AR D #E
2 BB ARM13,743,0007C ©

ZEEEGREE ML QR PRSI
BB -R-ZTZ—FHA  PEAFEES
#1730,000,00008 37 i1 - S A E 2 RIES
s EXERRNE —HBE QRS Ex
Z BB ARE1,389,0007T °

ZeHEELE—MHE ARt RERERES
RAR(ERE]z2KE  -RZT=Z—F=
A AEEERKLEETE 2R B
K18 AB AR33,000,0007T + EEH & — R
ENE 2z s AR #E30,270,0007T ©

ZEeBEERRAHESRRTZER - BRIFE
F2BME26() ©

REBEE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—RHItEE &
EEB BN R EH QR 2 IRE AR EE
BARM28,008,000t(ZF=FF : T) o i
BREE EHMEETHE AR 2B ESA
SRBEEB TIBREEHME -

ZEeHEIELEREWNE AR LEEHE SR
BRAR([EE%]) 2= - ZRRA—EY
¥R AE MR- E-_TERA+-A K
SEMEBYE=ZSREEER 2 2R
VR Be R EARARS50000,000
T FTHEZERGEFEZEAEAARE
37,989,0007T + MELLHRZ HE—RHHEA
alz A ARE12,011,0000T ©
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BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—_Z—-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

8 LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX FROM CONTINUING 8
OPERATIONS

REBBALERB 2 RAEHA
&8

The loss before income tax from continuing
operations is arrived at after

KBRS TS ZBRPTSHLAT
B REMRR, (Gt A AT & I8R

2021
—E-—F -
RMB’000
AR¥T T

2020

ToTE

= —=<

RMB'000

ARETTT

(Restated)

(#&&75)

(Note 1(a))
(Fg5E1@))

charging/(crediting): HERC
Cost of goods sold of B2B trading platform B2BR BT A HEEMZ KA 16,607,104 13,603,172
Cost of goods sold for anti-counterfeiting F e E fh RS 2

products and services EEEMAAKR 139,640 79,981
Interest cost for financing services & BRI A BBk AR 118 283
Auditor's remuneration 22 ikl

— Audit services — 2B 4,803 5,650

— Non-audit services — e R 1,380 1,246
Agency cost RIEEHER 3,140 13,201
Amortisation of investment properties (note 17) KB YR (KIEE17) 1,162 1,622
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 19) mpEEZE(ME19) 60,391 71,749
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W BB MRETE

(note 18) (M33E18) 8,204 12,809
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 16) EAEEENE (FIT16) 22,909 29,035
Employee benefits expenses (note 9) B BRMFZ (M) 320,218 303,212
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment &3 - BiRE M RE 2 EE 745 68
Impairment loss on goodwill and intangible assets B2 & 24 R EE5 1B

(note 19) (F47£19) 483,985 540,693
Marketing and consultancy expenses MR ER 81,499 122,093
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment of trade FEURBR FURE (),

receivables (note 20) 45 (FsE20) (6,842) 14,539
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment of loansto  ERFREREXEECEE 2

customers of financing service business B (R B (31,981) 43,266
Provision for impairment of other loans and EH A E 5 R R SR B B

interest receivables 365 52,574
Recovery of previous impairment losses Y [al 55 AR (E & 18 (789) -
Provision for impairment of other financial assets ~ Eth & g & &= RUE B & 14,159 11,438
Provision for impairment of refund receivable from  fEUR— & HERIER 2

a supplier AR E = 33,752
Staff commission BTfH% 35,442 47,050
Share based payment related to HBELEREEREEFHEAN

deemed disposal of JDSJ Group LARK(D BEE 2 51 = 29,101
Transportation expense k= 8,265 13,227
Short term leases expenses CHIFREE A 4,525 6,508

BREEERAT
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BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—-Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 9 EERAMAX

2021

— g —F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBFIT

(Restated)

(#&=:%1))
(Note 1(a))
(FF5E1(@))

Wages and salaries TERF® 246,688 245,362
Retirement benefits costs (Note (a)) REFRAR (M35 (a)) 50,847 26,455
Share based compensation ARG S A5 2 4 1E
— Share Option Scheme — RS 7,010 14,883
— Share Award Scheme — Wt £2ED =T & 15,673 16,512
320,218 303,212
The employee benefits expenses of RMB135,878,000 (2020: AR#135878,000L(Z T =T F : AR
RMB143,873,000) are recognised in selling and marketing expenses; 143,873,00070) & AR #184,340,00070 (=%
RMB 184,340,000 (2020: RMB159,339,000) in administrative expenses. —Z4F . AR 159,339,000t ) 2 (& B & E
THRIREERTISHEEBURITERERH
%y\]\ o
Note: BiIRE
(@ In accordance with the PRC regulations, the Group is required to @ IRIERBRG - $Eli¢‘ET§1E§%$
make annual contributions to the state retirement plans calculated HEM16%(ZZT=FTF : 16%)AEHEK
at 16% (2020: 16%) of the basic salaries of the employees, and RIRET B EE\E‘J/A M—er?'H’EtH
employees are required to contribute 8% (2020: 8%) of their HEAFHE8%(ZT-TF : 8%) 2t
basic salaries to the plans. For the year ended 31 December 2020, HeBE_Z_TF+ ﬁ +—HIF
the PRC government resolved to waive certain proportion of such & REEAAERZCOVID-195228 2
contributions during the specific period affected by COVID-19 in BEHRR R B BERZETIED - LAB)
order to help enterprises withstand the pandemic and stabilise PERE - WIBTEHRE - REZEFEHRK
employment. The Group has no obligations for further pension Hh - NEEBEAER MRK SR E
payments or any post-retirement benefits beyond these annual (RREER - BINEFNHZETEIEE
contributions. The retirement benefits are paid directly from BEERAERKEEXN - WE2EBEREIKA
the plan assets to the retired employees and are calculated by B2 BN A% MR RRIS 2 FHARHE ©

reference to their monthly basic salaries at the date of retirement
and periods of service rendered.

As at 31 December 2021, there were no forfeited contributions available to RIZ-—F+-A=+—H B HR
offset future retirement benefit obligations of the Group. AR EIEA SR B R RIKENE(E -
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BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—_Z—-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (continued) 9 EERAMAZ®E
(a) Five highest paid individuals (a) ElUERSEHEAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the FHN - AEERRUSSHFALEE=A
Group for the year include three (2020: three) directors whose —TTFZR)ES - MW
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in note 10. The F10FT25 2 AR RE - RERNBEN
emoluments paid and payable to the remaining two (2020: two) DEMTHTRME(ZE-ZF  MB)A
individuals during the year are as follows: TZBemT

2021 2020
—E-—F —T-TF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R AEBTT

Basic salaries, housing allowances, EX%e  BEZEAM -
other allowances and benefits in kind Hib 2B R EYF S 1,320 1,387
Share based compensation — Share Option VARG 19 2 A5F 2 w8 — B AR 1
Scheme HE 302 1,972
Share based compensation — Share Award VARG R S245F 2 # 8 — R 15 528
Scheme Bk 1,840 1,887
Retirement plan contributions RIRET R 200 92
3,662 5,338
The emoluments for these two individuals (2020: two) fell within ZME(ZZETF  MB) ALz HERN
the following bands: T

HKD1,500,000 to HKD2,000,000 1,500,000/ 7T £ 2,000,000/ 7T 1 -

HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000 2,000,001 7C£2,500,0007%5 7T 1 -

HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000 2,500,001 7T £ 3,000,000/ 7T -

HKD3,000,001 to HKD3,500,000 3,000,001 T4 3,500,000/ 7T - 1

(b) During the year, no emoluments have been paid by the Group (b) &R AEEVEAEER LLFNES

to the directors or the five highest paid individuals mentioned FALTZANEAME - ERIMAZR N
above as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as AREER 2 RN BEREE( =T =T
compensation for loss of office (2020: Nil). F )
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BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—-Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

10 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 10 EEEN R ER
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERFETHRAEZHE
The remunerations of each director and chief executive for the HE_T-TFER-_T=_—F+=A
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021 are set out below: =+T—HIEFE  SEERFBITHAER

ZEEFIT

Emoluments paid or payable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the company or its subsidiary undertaking
REEAAAREAMBARNESZALEAREFZHE
Employer’s
contribution
Estimated toa
money retirement

value of benefit

Salary other benefit scheme

ExH

HitEH EHREA
ik F&  MEHEBE  SEHLR #st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR¥TR AR¥BTT AR¥TR AR¥TR

2021: —E--fF:

Mr. Liu Jun RELE - 904 7,446 106 8,456
Mr. Zhang Yonghong RAKAL oA - 964 5,064 106 6,134
Mr. Liu Xiaodong 2N - 617 1,355 104 2,076
Mr. Guo Fangsheng SER kA - - - - -
Mr. Lin Dewei (note ii) B S AE () = - - - -
Mr. Sun Yang BKEkE = = - - -
Mr. Zhang Ke RrfE 250 - - - 250
Mr. Zhang Tim Tianwei RRERA 220 = = - 220
Ms. Qi Yan 1B+ 220 - - - 220
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BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—_Z—-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

10 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 10 EE®ARELR &)

(Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EBERFETBHAEBZHME(H)
(Continued)

Emoluments paid or payable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the company or its subsidiary undertaking
EEARR RSN EFEZATENSHERZEME

Employer's

contribution

Estimated toa
money retirement

value of benefit

Salary  other benefit scheme

BT

: J RIRAEA

e Fe  MEAERE  EEEMR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AR®TT AREFTT ARETT ARETR

2020: —E-EE.
Mr. Liu Jun eSS - 817 15,112 50 15,979
Mr. Zhang Yonghong KA - 1,143 9,640 50 10,833
Mr. Liu Xiaodong EN- - 1,079 2,691 47 3,817
Mr. Guo Fangsheng HAELE - - - - -
Mr. Li Jianguang (note i) PRI E (BiRh) - - - - -
Mr. Lin Dewei (note ii) sy e G ) - - - - -
Mr. Sun Yang Rk - - - - -
Mr. Zhang Ke FrREE 250 - - - 250
Mr. Zhang Tim Tianwei RABLELE 220 - _ _ 220
Ms. Qi Yan ABFEAT L 220 - - _ 220
Note: BEE -
(i) Mr. Li Jianguang had resigned as a non-executive director with effect () ZFEXEECHEFPTEE AT -TF
from 1 July 2020. +A—REER -
(i) Mr. Lin Dewei was appointed as a non-executive director with effect (i) MEEELEEZERIPTEST BT -F
from 1 July 2020 FLA—RRER
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BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-_Z-—S+-A=t+—HIEE

10 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

(9)

Directors’ retirement benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any retirement
benefits during the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any termination
benefits during the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company did
not pay consideration to any third parties for making available
directors’ services (2020: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there is no loans, quasi
loans and other dealing arrangements in favour of the directors, or
controlled body corporates and connected entities of such directors
(2020: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in note 41, no other transactions, arrangements
and contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company’s subsidiary was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the years or at any time during
the years.

No director received any housing allowance; emolument from
the Group as an inducement to join or leave the Group or
compensation for loss of office; emoluments paid or receivable
in respect of director’s other services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiary
undertaking during the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—_Z—-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

11 FINANCE COST, NET 11 BIRERAFREE

2021
—B-—F =
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®TT AREET T

(Restated)

(ge=:%1))
(Note 1(a))
(FFzE1(a))

Interest expense: FEFMZ :
— Bank borrowings —iRITIEE (50,817) (73,595)
— Other borrowings —HingE (6,298) (52,367)
— Convertible bonds — Al ES - (9,103)
— Lease liabilities (note 16) —HEsE(ME16) (2,277) (2,156)
— Others —HAty (3.365) (2,084)
Finance cost JUE %N (62,757) (139,305)
Finance income BAFEUA 24,701 15,605
Finance cost, net BT AN SRR (38,056) (123,700)
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BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

12 INCOME TAX (EXPENSES)/CREDIT

Current income tax (expenses)/credit

BHE-_Z-—F+-_A=1+—HIFE

12 FEH (%) H%

BHMEH (R, HBe

2021
—EB-—fF
RMB’000
ARBTT

RMB'000
ARETT

(Restated)

(BE5)
(Note 1(a))
(Hf7E1(a))

- Hong Kong profits tax —EBEFEH = -
— The PRC corporate income tax (“CIT") — B EMEH
(TS
— Current year —AREE (28,697) (44,729)
— Prior year —+—FE 362 2,386
— The PRC land appreciation tax — ]+ B (E R = (5,680)
Deferred income tax credit RIEFTSTIE 2
— The PRC corporate income tax — R EATER 16,898 177,794
(11,437) 129,771
Income tax (expenses)/credit is attributable to: PS8 (Fs) 1K
— Loss from continuing operations — B ET T BB (11,437) 121,756
— Loss from discontinued operations —EBRIEEEEB 2 BE = 8,015
(11,437) 129,771

Note:

(a)

()

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as there is no assessable profit
arising in Hong Kong for the year (2020: Nil).

The PRC corporate income tax represents taxation charged on assessable
profits for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the cities in the PRC
in which the Group operates.

The tax rate applicable to the subsidiaries in the PRC is 25%, except for
certain subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC which were approved as
High and New Technology Enterprise and were subjected to a reduced
preferential CIT rate of 15% for a 3-year period. Certain subsidiaries of the
Group were also subjected to a reduced preferential CIT rate ranging from
5% to 10% for Small Low-profit Enterprises.

The PRC land appreciation tax is levied at progressive rates of 30% to 60%
on the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties
less deductible expenditures including land use right and all property
development expenditures.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—_Z—-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

12 INCOME TAX (EXPENSES)/CREDIT (continued) 12 FIEH(BAIR) R
The tax on the Group's loss before tax differs from the theoretical AEEEERTAISE 2 HEERATER R
amount that would arise using the tax rate of the location of the Group AIFFTEMR 2 R E TS IEmE =2 T

companies as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F =TT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
(Restated)
(g=%1))
(Note 1 (a))
(MiEE1(a))
Loss from continuing operations SIS TSRS R AT BB
before income tax (598,644) (821,475)
Loss from discontinued operations BRI A EBBREHAIERE
before income tax (32,547) (181,564)
Loss before income tax KPR AIE 18 (631,191) (1,003,039)
Tax calculated at 25% (2020: 25%) 1R25% B ERFTHE 2 B
(ZZEZZF :25%) (157,798) (250,760)
Effect of different tax rates in other Hig IR TR R FUER
cities/under preferential tax treatment BT TIRABRE 22 16,713 23,621
Income not taxable BERBA (37,512) (24,107)
PRC land appreciation tax deductible for Bt AR B (b S B E R HUR Y A
PRC corporate income tax proposes B -+ IR E A - (1,420)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes CIE =1 150,018 60,805
Tax loss not recognised RIERTHIEEE 40,378 58,796
Overprovision of tax from prior year EAFEER ARG (362) (2,386)
PRC corporate income tax expenses/(credit) RESEMERRAY(ER) 11,437 (135,451)
PRC land appreciation tax expenses R E IR E R B S - 5,680
Income tax expenses/(credit) FiSBiFs (k) 11,437 (129,771)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—-Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

13 LOSS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

13 RECRLEEXK 2HR

2021 2020

—E-—F ZTTF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETT

(Restated)

(g=351)

Tianjin Guokai (note a) REBF (MisEa) 8,024 (2,825)

Zhongfu (note b) A AR (Fff3EDb) (40,571) (44,486)
Huicong (Tianjin) E-commerce Investment BH(RR)ETFRABEEKRE

Co., Ltd (note o) BRAF(FiFEc) - (60,229)

Huijia Yuantian Limited (note d) E5 T ABRAR(Mi3xd) = (66,009)

(32,547) (173,549)

(a) Discontinued operation of Tianjin Guokai

On 5 January 2021, the Group entered into the equity transfer
agreement (the "Agreement”) to transfer 100% equity interest
in Tianjin Guokai to an independent third party for a cash
consideration of RMB300,500,000. Tianjin Guokai and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Tianjin Guokai Group”) are principally
engaged in the provision of properties lease in PRC. In accordance
with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations”, the Group decided to discontinue the operation
of Tianjin Guokai from the date of the Agreement. Upon
completion of the transaction, Tianjin Guokai Group will cease to
be subsidiaries of the Group, and the financial results of Tianjin
Guokai will no longer be consolidated into the accounts of the
Group.

As at 31 December 2021, the disposal has not yet been completed
and parties to the Agreement are working on the transitional
arrangements. The respective assets and liabilities of Tianjin Guokai
were classified as held for sale as at 31 December 2021.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZ-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

13 LOSS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 13 REDPKRIIREEK IER®

(Continued)
(a) Discontinued operation of Tianjin Guokai (Continued) (a) REBEFHZECRIELEEERE)
(i)  Financial performance of Tianjin Guokai Group classified (i) DEEEFFEHEZXEFHEE
as held for sale B%EE
The financial performance of Tianjin Guokai Group classified PEAFRELEZREERAER
as held for sale for the years ended 31 December 2021 and HE-_T - —FR-F-FTFI=
2020 is as follows: A=+—HILFENTHEREZS

T

2021 2020
B T EF

RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT

Revenue FHEUA 12,646 11,789
Expenses FsE (4,622) (14,614)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BTSRRI R, (E518) 8,024 (2,825)
Income tax expense FriSHifsZ - -
Total profit/(loss) from discontinued BRI EEBK 2R,

operations (518 e 8,024 (2,825)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—-Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

13 LOSS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

(Continued)

(a) Discontinued operation of Tianjin Guokai (Continued)

(ii) Assets and liabilities of Tianjin Guokai Group classified
as held for sale
The following assets and liabilities were reclassified as held
for sale in relation to the discontinued operation as at 31
December 2021:

13 RECKRIEKEEK 2 ERB@)

(a) REEBZEKLREXEBE)

(i) DEBFELHEZXEEHERZ
HERARE
THEERBEER T —F
ToAZT - HARABRLEEEER
B D ERFIERE

2021
— g
RMB’000
AR¥T R
Assets classified as held for sale PRARBELEZEE

Investment properties EYE 107,177
Right-of-use assets FREAE 13,871
Trade receivables FEUAR R 11,349
132,397

Liabilities directly associated with assets EEDEAIGEHECEEEREEHEE

classified as held for sale

Accrued expenses and other payables FEETE A KL H AR FOE 10,000
Other taxes payables H b pesitiIE 2,643
12,643
Net assets classified as held for sale SEAFIELECEEFE 119,754

(b) Disposal of equity interest of Zhongfu

On 24 December 2021, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with two independent third parties to dispose
of its 80.38% equity interest in Zhongfu at a consideration of
RMB100,000. Zhongfu and its subsidiaries (together, the “Zhongfu
Group”) was included in the smart industries segment. The
disposal was completed on 28 December 2021. In accordance
with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations”, the financial results of Zhongfu Group are reported
as a discontinued operation for the years set out below. A disposal
gain of Zhongfu Group amounting to RMB2,692,000 was included
in "other (losses)/gains, net" in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

13 LOSS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

(Continued)

HE_Z-—F+-A=+—HIEFE

(b) Disposal of equity interest of Zhongfu (Continued)
i) Financial performance and cash flow information of

(i)

Zhongfu

The financial performance presented are for the period from
1 January 2021 to 28 December 2021 and the year ended 31

December 2020.
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13 RECKRIEKEER 2 ERB@®)

(b) HEPRZKEE)
() FRZHBXRARELREEHN

T F—-f—HREZZE=_—F
+ZAZ+N\HLEBEEREE=F
ZEF+ A=+ —HUEFEZH
BRAZH0T -

Period from
1 January 2021
to 28 December

2021

—E_—F

—A—HZ

— B

+=HA=t+NH
1EHAR —T T
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREETTT
Revenue HEWRA 4,528 4,289
Expenses X (45,099) (16,916)

Impairment losses of goodwill and MEREREERE

intangible assets &8 = (37,645)
Loss before income tax BRPRS TR ES 18 (40,571) (50,272)
Income tax credit FriStiii e = 5,786
Total loss from discontinued operations DR BT o B4R (40,571) (44,486)
Net cash used in operating activities KRBT A2 IR F5E (1,351) (3,230)
Net cash generated from investing activities & /EEEL ZIRE/F58 1,334 730
Net cash generated from financing activities B & /EZNEL ZIREIFE8 120 -
Total cash inflow/(outflow) BEmA/ Of) @8 103 (2,500)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-_Z-—S+-A=t+—HIEE

13 LOSS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

(Continued)

(9]

Disposal of equity interest of Huicong (Tianjin)
E-commerce Investment Co., Ltd

On 23 November 2020, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party to dispose
of its 60% equity interest in Huicong (Tianjin) E-commerce
Investment Co., Ltd (“Huicong (Tianjin)") at a consideration of
RMB16,000,000. Huicong (Tianjin) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Huicong Tianjin Group”) was included in 020 business
exhibition business centre segment. The disposal was completed
on 30 November 2020. In accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current
Assets Held for sale and Discontinued Operations”, the financial
results of Huicong Tianjin Group is reported in the current period as
a discontinued operations for the years as set out below. A disposal
loss of Huicong Tianjin Group amounting to RMB43,041,000 was
included in discontinued operations in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—_Z—-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

13 LOSS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 13 REDPKRIIREEK IER®

(Continued)
(c) Disposal of equity interest of Huicong (Tianjin) () HEEBR(RR)EFABEXRE
E-commerce Investment Co., Ltd (Continued) BRA T ZRAE(H)
(i)  Financial performance and cash flow information () HBFZBERBELHEEH
The financial performance and cash flow information HE-ZTZ-_TF+—A=+HLIt
presented are for the eleven months ended 30 November T—EAZHMBREREERER
2020. B2 o

Eleven months
ended 30
November

+—RA=+H

LIE+—1EA

RMB’000

ARETTT

Revenue THE WA 10,812
Expenses 53 (22,301)
Loss before income tax BRPT1SBiRIE B (11,489)
Income tax expense FriSHifsE (5,699)
Loss after tax brTizEs 1R (17,188)
Loss on disposal (note 25(b)) & E 18 2 B8 (3E25(b)) (43,041)
Total loss from discontinued operations RIS ETE 2 BB (60,229)

Net cash generated from operating activities & /EEELE 2 IREFEE 47,931

Net cash generated from investing activities 1% & /EEEE 2 IR E/F58 164,763
Net cash used in financing activities MEEEFTRAZIRE F5 (217,275)
Total cash outflow e85 (4,581)
For the major classes of assets and liabilities of Huicong FRERXEEENEERMNE
Tianjin Group as at the date of disposal, please refer to the EEENBERAR  FLHEMHE

note 25(b). 25(b) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BHE-_Z-—F+-_A=1+—HIFE

13 LOSS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 13 REDPRKRIIREEKIER®)

(Continued)
(d) Discontinued operations of Huijia Yuantian Limited (d) BEETXERLARAZERLREX
%
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group decided BE-Z-ZF+-_A=+—HILFE -
to discontinue the operation of Huijia Yuantian Limited and its REERFELIEHEEEZTABRARR
subsidiaries (together, the “Huijia Group”), which is principally EMBAR(FAEIEREE ) %% &
engaged in the integrated marketing and advertising services in the FRERFERTRENSESLHEIESR
PRC. 7% e
(i)  Financial performance and cash flow information (i) BHBEXRBEREZHEEHX
The financial performance and cash flow information HE_Z-_TE+_A=+—H1
presented are for the year 31 December 2020. FRZUBERARBEREENZ
HEAT o
2020
RMB’000
AR¥EFTTT
Revenue HEWA 1,941
Expenses Fst (28,693)
Impairment losses of goodwill and mEREREERERIE
intangible assets (47,185)
Loss before income tax bRET1S T AIE 1B (73,937)
Income tax credit Frigiiie 7,928
Loss from discontinued operations BERIHEEE 2 BB (66,009)
Net cash used in operating activities KRB FTA RS F5E (2,553)
Net cash used in investing activities REEBFTAZIRE F58 -
Net cash used in financing activities MEEBFTAZ IR R -
Total cash outflow e M AREE (2,553)

HC GROUP INC. ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZ-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

14 LOSS PER SHARE 14 BREE

(a) Basic (a)
Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss attributable to
equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares in issue during the year excluding ordinary
shares repurchased by the Company (note 31).

Loss attributable to owners of the Company RN GIEFIF A AEGER

E- %N

237

BREABERARAEREA AEGE
BRAFAD BT SRR IE TG E
(TBEARFELDZ EBR) (FRE31) -

2021
—E_—F
RMB’000
ARET T

2020
—ETEF
RMB’000
ARETT
(Restated)
(#&&5E751)
(Note 1(a))
(Hf7£1(@))

— from continuing operations —REAFECEED (638,061) (584,738)
— from discontinued operations —REERIEEEERS (25,049) (160,799)
(663,110) (745,537)

2021
—EC——F
RMB’000
ARET T

2020
—T-TF
RMB’000
ARETTT

(Restated)
(FE=751)
(Note 1(a))
(KiEE1(@)

Weighted average number of shares inissue 277D 2 INkEF 52 1,309,931 1,238,917
Basic loss per share SREREE
From continuing operations (in RMB) R EHE R TR ARKET) (0.4871) (0.4720)
From discontinued operations (in RMB) REBKRIEEEEB(ARET) (0.0191) (0.1298)
Total basic loss per share attributable to the — ZANABIfERFIHE AEGEFALEAR

equity holders of the Company (in RMB) EREE(ARET) (0.5062) (0.6018)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BHE-_Z-—F+-_A=1+—HIFE

14 LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)

(b) Diluted

Diluted loss per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Company
has one category of dilutive potential ordinary shares: share options
for the year ended 31 December 2021. For the share options,
the number of shares that would have been issued assuming the
exercise of the share options less the number of shares that could
have been issued at fair value (determined as the average market
price per share for the year) for the same total proceeds is the
number of shares issued for no consideration. (2020: The Company
has two categories of dilutive potential ordinary shares: convertible
debt and share options. The convertible debt is assumed to have
been converted into ordinary shares, and the net profit is adjusted
to eliminate the interest expense less the tax effect.)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, all of these share
options had anti-dilutive effect to the Company and therefore,
diluted loss per share equaled basic loss per share (2020: same).

15 DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or declared by the Company during and for the
year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZ-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

16 LEASES 16 #HE
(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement (a) RECHBERRERBERAZSEE
of financial position
The consolidated statement of financial position shows the AR IATHEERBE &
following amounts relating to leases: (o
2021 2020
—B-—fF —ETF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBTFT
(Restated)
(E7)
(Note 1(a))
(BF=E1(a))
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE
As at 1 January Hn—H—H 44,630 214,305
Additions NE 21,745 14,649
Lease modification (note i) AEB(MsE) 6,321 4,942
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale ERENEARELEZEE
(Note 13(a)(ii) (Fft3E13(@) i) (13,871) -
Depreciation e
— from continuing operations —REFELEE (22,909) (29,035)
— from discontinued operations —RE BRI ET (262) (15,635)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHE AR (369) -
Disposal of Huicong Tianjin Group (note 25(b)) H&EZIR K EERE (HizE25(b)) - (144,596)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 35,285 44,630
Lease liabilities HEAE
At 1 January R—H—H 32,649 91,995
Additions NE 21,745 14,649
Lease modification (note i) HEBR (D 6,321 4,754
Disposal of Huicong Tianjin Group (note 25(b)) H&EZFRKEEE (FI5E25(b)) - (29,447)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR] (393) -
Payments (NES (24,311) (53,206)
Interest expenses BRI
— from continuing operations —REREEEES 2,277 2,156
— from discontinued operations — R E BRI EET 21 1,748
At 31 December Rt+—_A=+—H 38,309 32,649
Current mE 21,158 15,050
Non-current ERE 17,151 17,599
38,309 32,649
Note: BIRE
(i) During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had agreed i REE-Z-_—F+-_A=+—RHIEFE"
with the landlords to extend the terms of several rental contracts. AEFECHEFIRAEERZBHEESHZH
Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities had been adjusted due to the o BEBI<ERREEREEAGBHRIA
lease modifications amounting to RMB6,321,000 and RMB6,321,000, EHARME,321 OOOE&/\E’%G 321,0007T
respectively (2020: Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities had been (ZZ_ZF - HEEISHFAREERTE
adjusted due to the lease modifications amounting to RMB4,942,000 BEDRIAERARE4942,0007T & AR
and RMB4,754,000, respectively). 4,754,0007T) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—-Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

16 LEASES (continued) 16 HE )

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income
The consolidated statement of comprehensive income shows the
following amounts relating to leases:

(b) REHEEUERERZEH

BOHR
B

BRHERIITATEEESR S

2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBFIT
(Restated)
(5 =%))
(Note 1(a))
(FHsE1(a))
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FHEEEZINEER
Land use rights THbfE AR = (4,377)
Properties ME (23,171) (40,293)
(23,171) (44,670)
— from continuing operations —RE B EE (22,909) (29,035)
— from discontinued operations — R E BRI E TS (262) (15,635)
(23,171) (44,670)
Interest expense on lease liabilities HESERNEMX
— from continuing operations —REFREEEES (2,277) (2,156)
— from discontinued operations — R E BRI E TS (21) (1,748)
(2,298) (3,904)
Expenses relating to short-term leases HERHERREZMX
— from continuing operations —REREEEEYS (4,525) (6,508)
— from discontinued operations — R E BRI E TS (408) (2,031)
(4,933) (8,539)
Gain on lease modification MEBET 2 W
— from continuing operations —REREEEE = 185
— from discontinued operations —REERIEEEERS = 3

Depreciation of approximately RMB22,909,000 (2020:
RMB29,035,000) is included in administrative expenses. The total
cash outflow for leases in 2021 was RMB29,244,000 (2020:

RMB61,745,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—_Z—-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17 REWH*

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-F
RMB’000

RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTT

(Restated)

(ge=:%1))
(Note 1(a))
(FF3E1@))

At 1 January m—A—H 134,348 770,831
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale ERESBARBIEHECZEE (107,177) -
Amortisation B
— from continuing operations —REAFEEEEB (1,162) (1,622)
— from discontinued operations —REBRIEEER - (27,273)
Disposals e = (77,141)
Derecognised through disposal of subsidiaries  &38H & KB A T4 LFER - (37,596)
Derecognised through disposal of Huicong BRHEEBEAZEERIEER

Tianjin Group (note 25(b)) (M$5E25(b)) - (492,851)
At 31 December R+—A=+—8H 26,009 134,348

As at 31 December 2021, the Group held one property (2020: two
properties) as investment properties which was measured at cost.

As at 31 December 2021, the fair value of the investment properties
held by the Group was determined by independent valuers at
RMB31,689,000 (2020: RMB425,698,000).

The fair value of the investment property as at 31 December 2021 is
derived using the income approach and market comparison approach
(2020: same). The income valuation method is essentially means of
valuing the investment properties by discounting cash flow projections
based on reliable estimates of future cash flows, while the market
comparison approach is essentially means of valuing the investment
properties by assuming sale of each of these properties in its existing
state with the benefit of vacant possession.

R-ZE-—F+-A=+—0 AEEFH—
BYE(ZZZZF  MEDE)IEAERED
¥ WIRKAGTE -

W-_E-_—F+_A=+—8 ~&EEMR
BREVMEZATERBIGEMETS A
ANR¥E31,689,000IL(ZE-_FF : AR
425,698,0007T) °

BREMER T —F+-_A=1t—"RZAY¥
EEBRAERTSLEE(CE 24 : 1§
FDEH - WAREBEZERTHERENEZVET
X HEBRBEERRREIRE 27 S fhatiT
RRERETR - MHSLBERFEREY
EZBEHN  BREZEVELARER A
REAALE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—-Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17 REWF @)

The fair value is valued by independent professionally qualified valuers
who hold a recognised relevant professional qualification and has recent
experience in the location of the investment property valued.

The Group's finance department includes a team that reviews the
valuation performed by the independent valuer for financial reporting
purpose. This team reports directly to the chief financial officer (CFO).

At each financial year end, finance department:

e Verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation report,

e Assesses property valuations movements when comparing to the
prior year valuation report, and

. Holds discussion with the independent valuer.
The investment properties are leased to tenants under operating leases
with rentals payable monthly. There are no other variable lease payments

that depend on an index or rate.

For minimum lease payments receivable on leases of investment
properties, refer to note 38.
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18 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

18 Y%

- BERRE

Computer Fixtures,
and telecom- fittings and
munications office Leasehold Motor
Buildings equipment equipment  improvements vehicles
RMB'000 RMB'000
T AREFT
At 1 January 2020 R-F-FF-A-H
Cost WA 57,575 75,838 10,413 13,973 17,023 174,822
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (15,083) (62,609) (8,520) (9,883) (14,589) (110,683)
Net book amount FEFE 42,492 13,229 1,893 4,09 2,435 64,139
Year ended 31 December 2020 BZ-E-2E
(Restated) (Note 1(a)) TZA=t-ALEE
(BE5) (M)
Opening net book amount FUREFE 42,49 13,229 1,893 4,090 2435 64,139
Additions NE 1,548 2,498 1,245 1430 1,761 8,482
Disposal of Huicong Tianjin Group HESEXZER
(note 25(b)) (HtzE25(6) (14,959) (83) (247) - - (15,289)
Partial disposal of JDS) Group PALEFEHRED
(note 25(3)) (M25(8) - (289) (389) (1.116) - (1,794)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR - (67) (28) - - (95)
Disposals irk=5 - (290) (60) (136) (309) (795)
Depreciation (note () FEM)
~ from continuing operations -REBELEER (1,242) (6,343) (944) (3.241) (1,039) (12,809)
— from discontinued operations -RECRHEEEE (425) (139) (324) (76) 68) (1,031)
Closing net book amount ELEETE 27,414 8,517 1,146 951 2,780 40,808
At 31 December 2020 RZB-BE+ZA=1-H
Cost R 36,258 71,548 1327 10,895 14,562 140,590
Accumulated depreciation ZHTE (8,844) (63,031) (6,181) (9,944) (11,782) (99,782)
Net book amount REAE 27,414 8517 1,146 951 2,780 40,808
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—-Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

18 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 18 W¥ - MERZRE @)

Computer
and Fixtures,
telecom- fittings
munications and office Leasehold Motor

Buildings equipment equipment  improvements vehicles Total
BER %E 2R

BF EEEG] BARE HENREE i st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTTE  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

Year ended 31 December 2021 HE-E--F
TZAZT-BLEE
Opening net book amount ENEETE 27,414 8,517 1,146 951 2,780 40,808
Additions NE - 1,533 199 898 297 2,927
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAT (381) (387) (24) (13) (38) (903)
Disposals e - (790) (212) (1 - (1,003)
Depreciation (note () e
— from continuing operations -RERETEER (1,877) (4,101) (329) (1123) (178) (8,204)
— from discontinued operations -RECRIHEEEH - (35) (1) (35) = )
Closing net book amount FREARE 25,156 4737 9 617 2,265 33,554
At 31 December 2021 RZE--E+-fA=t+-H
Cost A 33,344 24,018 5,545 11,202 13,18 87,251
Accumulated depreciation ZHTE (8,188) (19,281) (4,766) (10,585) (10,877) (53,697)
Net book amount KEAE 25,156 4,731 9 617 2,265 33,554
Note: BT
() Depreciation of RMB365,000 (2020: RMB2,081,000) is included in selling (i) TEAR3650000 (24 AR
and marketing expenses; and RMB7,839,000 (2020: RMB10,728,000) in 2,081,0007T) K A R#7,839,0000( = =%
administrative expenses. 0 AR¥510,728,0007T) 2 BIET ASHE R Hi5

HEBRARITRERA -
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19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19 BREE
Trade name
Customer  and domain Technical
Goodwill  relationship name license ~ knowhow Platform Patent Others Total
5 AR 25| Eff FCh)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
T S0 Tt T T T T
At 1 January 2020 W-%-%%-5-A
Cost e 1833819 346,900 160,199 554,000 106,962 115,900 11,100 47048 3175928
Accumulated amortisation and S EERAE
imparment (291411)  (145,626) (55,090) (24.29) (53,781) (16,69) (7,.285) (29115 (623302)
Net book value EmAE 1,542,408 201274 105,109 529,702 53,181 99,204 3815 17933 2552626
Year ended 31 December 2020 Hz-g-2f
(Restated) (Note 1(a)) TZA=T-ALEE
(E5)) (H10)
Opening net book amount ENEEAE 1,542,408 201274 105,109 529,702 53,181 99,204 3815 17933 2552626
Additions TE - - - - - - - 18 18
Impairment e
- from continuing operations -REBERLER (19,626) - - (18039 - - (3028)  (540693)
~ from discontinued operations -RECRHELEH - - (37,565) - (47.185) - - 80) (84830)
Amortisation (note) BH0n
- from continuing operations -RERERLSER - (32,031) (6,154) (11,663) (16,464) (1388) (4.049) (71,749)
~ from discontinued operations -REDALELEK - - (3415) - (6,584) - - 80) (10,079
Partial disposal of IDS) Group PPLEFELREE
(note 25(a)) (Piz25(a)) (15,957) - - - - 2739 - (10) (18,706)
Currency translation dffferences fﬁ%i%ﬁ - - - - 588 - - - 588
Closing net book amount EREREE 1,500,825 169,243 57975 - - 80,001 2421 10704 1827175
At 31 December 2020 and R-B-ZEtZA=t-A
1 January 2021 R=2--%-A-H
Cost i 1,564,877 346,900 160,199 554,000 - 112,000 11,100 47053 27%,19
Accumulated amortisation and L EERAE
imparment (58,052) (177,657) (102,224) (554,000 - (31,999) (8673) (36,349) (968,954)
Net ook value BESE 1,506,825 169,243 57,975 - - 80,001 2421 10704 1,827,175
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—-Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 19 BEFEEE®

Trade name
Customer and domain Technical
Goodwill  relationship name Liense  knowhow  Platform Patent Others Total

HE  EFBR  mURES RE  BANR ¥a gl o it
RMBOO0  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBO00  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBO00  RMBOO0  RMBO0D
ARRTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARBTR ARMTn ARBTn ARBTn ARMTr  ARMTR

Year ended 31 December 2021 Bz-g--£
TZRZT-ALEE

Qpening net book amount EERSE 1,506,825 169,243 57,975 - - 80,001 247 10704 182175
Additions hE = = - - - 12,636 - 1,000 13,636
Impairment HE

- from continuing operations ~REBELEEE (454,720) - = = - (2965) = - (483985)
Amortisation (note] BH0my

- from continuing operations -REREEEER - () (6,151) - - (18783 (1,388) (2038  (60391)
Closing net book amount ERERTE 105105 137212 51,824 - - 44,589 1,039 9666 1,96435
At 31 December 2021 RZE--E+ZB=1-A
Cost A 1,526,451 346,900 91,899 554,000 - 124,636 11,100 46,18 2,701,169
Accumulated amortisation and S EERAE

impairment (474.346)  (209,688) (40,075)  (554,000) - (80,047) (10,061) (36,517)  (1,404,734)
Net book value EEAE 1,052,105 131212 51,824 - - 44,589 1,039 9666 1296435

Note: Amortisation of intangible assets is included in administrative expenses in Mt B EAE BT A HEAWRE TR E
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. B o
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19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) BILEE @)
BEREEREERER
EREREED I BNER N EMERKRE -
HEREMELEESR T NIREELESMN
([BELEAENM]) -

Impairment test for goodwill and other intangible assets
Managements monitors and reviews the business performance at the
operating segment level. Goodwill and other intangible assets are
allocated to the following cash generating units (“CGUs").

As at 31 December
Rt+t=—HA=+—H
2021 2021 2020 2020
—E-—-F B —T-TF =TT
Other Other
intangible
Goodwill assets

intangible
Goodwill assets

BE HMErEE e HUETEE

RMB’000
ARET T

RMB’000
ARET T

RMB’000
ARBFE

RMB'000
ARETIT

Technology-driven new retail RIRFHEEESEEH
segment

Online-services-B2B2C business 4R FARFE —B2B2CES 980,247 173,885 980,247 207,134
New technology retails solutions ~ #FTHRITRE R
(note i) (PR &EID - 34,735 454,720 80,000

Smart Industries segment EEEEEEH
Anti-counterfeiting products and B {472 % & R

services 50,314 15,133 50,314 20,770
Online services — garment R ARG — AREETTEE

industry (note ii) (F3EiD - = - -
Trading services — cotton industry 32 5 fRTE — 18 1E1T5% 21,544 17,881 21,544 10,218
Platform and corporate FERDERBEEE
services segment
Financing services (note iv) A& AR 75 (B 3Eiv) - 917 - -
Other intangible assets Hith @B EE - 1,779 - 2,228
1,052,105 244,330 1,506,825 320,350

The recoverable amount of the CGUs are determined by higher of a
CGU's fair value less cost of disposal and value-in-use. These calculations
use cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five year period or ten year period depending
on individual CGU circumstances. Cash flows beyond the five or ten
years period are extrapolated using the estimated terminal growth rates.
Management estimates the pre-tax discount rate that reflects market
assessment of the time value of money and specific risk relating to the
industry.

The average revenue growth rates, discount rates and the terminal
growth rates for each of the CGU'’s are set out in note(v).

BeEAEMZ KOS EIERSELEMY
AFERLERARFEAEBEMET LIRSS
BT - ZSHEREENRESELEBMEAL
EREIAERE R T+ F IR 2 MERIBE
HZEESREELN AFNTFHREZES
‘}ué}?&ﬁméﬁ*ﬂEY%&% o BIRE(HET A Ak
EEEREZ TSI EARZITESRERR 2
TRIHTIRE o

BEReELS uZHﬁU\Tri’]i‘ET RS
&ﬁ%@igﬁﬁﬁkmmﬁ
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE-_Z-—S+-A=t+—HIEE

19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment test for goodwill and other intangible assets
(Continued)
As a result of the impairment assessment, the Group recognised

impairment for goodwill and intangible assets for the “new
technology retail solutions” CGU amounting to RMB454,720,000
and RMB29,265,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021,
respectively (note (i));

impairment for intangible assets for the “online services-garment
industry” CGU amounting to RMB37,645,000 for the year ended
31 December 2020 (note (ii);

impairment for intangible assets for the “integrated marketing and
advertising services” CGU of RMB47,185,000 for the year ended
31 December 2020 (note (iii)); and

impairment for the goodwill and intangible assets for “financing
services” CGU amounting to RMB540,693,000 for the year ended
31 December 2020 (note (iv)).

For details, refer to the following notes.

Note:

@

Impairment provision for goodwill and other intangible assets related to
“new technology retails solutions” CGU

On 27 December 2018, Z.Tech Holdings Limited (“Z.Tech”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, completed the acquisition of 100% equity interest
in Zale Inc. (“Zale”) from Zale Limited, Ruthfly Limited and Fejack Limited
(collectively, the “Vendors") for a total consideration of RMB366,500,000,
among which RMB100,000,000 to be payable by cash and the remaining
part by way of allotment and issuance of 10.66% Z.Tech consideration
shares. The Group recognised identifiable intangible assets amounting to
RMB112,000,000 and goodwill amounting to RMB454,720,000 in relation
to such acquisition and allocated to the “New technology retails solutions”
CGU at the acquisition date.
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19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Impairment test for goodwill and other intangible assets

(Continued)
Note: (Continued)

(0]

Impairment provision for goodwill and other intangible assets related to
“new technology retails solutions” CGU (Continued)

Zale Inc. and it subsidiaries are principally engaged in the Software as a
Service (“SaaS”) services in 3C industrial internet and new technology retails
in the PRC.

The business model of the Group’s SaaS business is a membership-based
model, while the key revenue growth driver is the Group’s abilities to
expand its member store networks by replicating its business model into
more low-tier cities in PRC, penetrating into the towns and villages in PRC
and enhancing the relationship with its users, manufacturers and retailers.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the business performance of the
“new technology retail solutions” CGU did not achieve the expected results
due to the challenging market competition in the e-commerce industry
while more conglomerate entered into the market. And the pandemic was
seemingly under control in China during the most part of the year and
there were expectations that prevention and control measures would be
loosened, the appearance of COVID-19 variants and a broader scale of
infections internationally in late 2021 suggested that the prevention and
control measures will be prolonged. The lock-down measure restricted
the Group's original plan of penetrating its business into low-tier cities
in PRC. The evolving regulatory requirements and fast-changing market
environment on operating e-commerce and service platforms in the PRC
in second half of FY2021 also bring uncertainties over the business and
operation in the Internet industry and online transactions sectors in which
the Group operates, leading to a downward adjustment of the equity
valuation of the Group’s SaaS business and the adverse impacts further
expanded towards the end of 2021. In December 2021, when the Group
performed annual impairment assessment and revised the annual budget, it
was considered that the future growth of the Group’s SaaS business will be
subjected to various uncertainties, including but not limited to the growth
prospects in the lower-tier retail market, the Group’s ability to upgrade its
merchandise and services, and competition within the industry. Hence, the
Group has downward adjusted the annual revenue growth assumption in
the forecast to reflect the latest market situation.
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BHE-_Z-—F+-_A=1+—HIFE

19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment test for goodwill and other intangible assets

(Continued)
Note: (Continued)

(0]

Impairment provision for goodwill and other intangible assets related to
“new technology retails solutions” CGU (Continued)

In the determination of impairment amount, the Group followed the
requirement of HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” by comparing the relevant
CGU's carrying amount with its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of a CGU’s fair value less costs of disposal and
value-in-use. In this impairment assessment, the Company engaged an
independent external valuer, PG Advisory, to determine the recoverable
amount of this CGU as at 31 December 2021. The discounted cash flow
method was adopted in the valuation performed, which was considered to
be the most appropriate valuation approach in this valuation as it takes the
projection growth and firm-specific issues of the CGUs into consideration.
It is noted that the CGU's fair value less cost of disposal would be higher or
approximate to value-in-use. Thus, the recoverable amount is determined
based on the fair value less cost of disposal.

In the valuation performed, the assumed annual revenue growth for the
five-financial year budget has been adjusted from approximately 59% on
average (as adopted in the previous valuation in the financial year ended
31 December 2020) to approximately 26%. A terminal growth rate of
approximately 3% was assumed in the discounted cash flow model based
on annual inflation rate of approximately 3% as sourced from public data.
The post-tax discount rate has been adjusted from approximately 19% for
FY2020 to approximately 22% for FY2021.

As a result of the impairment assessment, the management has
provided impairment loss on goodwill and intangible assets related to
“new technology solutions” CGU amounting to RMB454,720,000 and
RMB29,265,000, respectively based on valuation for the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: Nil).
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BHE-_Z-—F+-_A=1+—HILFE

19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Impairment test for goodwill and other intangible assets

(Continued)
Note: (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment provision for goodwill and other intangible assets related to
“online services — garment industry” CGU

On 18 December 2015, the Group completed the acquisition of the
entire equity interest in ZhongFu Holdings Limited (“Zhongfu”), which is
principally engaged in the online service business in relation to the garment
industry in the PRC. The total consideration was HK$170,807,500 (equivalent
to approximately RMB144,573,000). The Group recognised identifiable
intangible assets amounting to RMB69,900,000 and goodwill amounting to
RMB38,426,000 in relation to such acquisition and allocated to the “Online
services — garment industry” CGU at the acquisition date.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, due to fierce competition
in the e-commerce industry and the outbreak of Coronavirus disease
("COVID-19"), the business transformation plans cannot be implemented
successfully as expected. These factors lead to a substantial decline in
revenue of Zhongfu as compared to the prior financial budget. As a result,
the management has provided full impairment loss on the intangible
assets related to “Online services — garment industry” CGU amounting to
RMB37,645,000 based on valuation. During 2021, the Group disposed of
Zhongfu as disclosed in note 13(b). No impairment loss related to “online
services — garment industry” CGU was recognised during the year ended 31
December 2021.

Impairment provision for goodwill and other intangible assets related to
“integrated marketing and advertising services” CGU

On 13 January 2017, the Group acquired the entire equity interest in
Huijia Yuantian Limited (“Huijia”), which is principally engaged in the
integrated marketing and advertising services in the PRC. The total
consideration was RMB362,000,000. The Group recognised identifiable
intangible assets amounting to RMB105,500,000 and goodwill amounting
to RMB250,096,000 in relation to such acquisition and allocated to the
“Integrated marketing and advertising services” CGU at the acquisition
date.
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BHE-_Z-—F+-_A=1+—HIFE

19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment test for goodwill and other intangible assets

(Continued)
Note: (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Impairment provision for goodwill and other intangible assets related to
“integrated marketing and advertising services” CGU (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, due to the outbreak of
Coronavirus disease (“COVID-19"), lots of small and medium enterprises
had tightened their advertising budget; hence Huijia's business
transformation plans could not be implemented successfully as expected. As
a result, the Group had decided to discontinue the operation of integrated
marketing and advertising services operated by Huijia Yuantian Limited
and has provided full impairment loss on the intangible assets related
to "integrated marketing and advertising services” CGU amounting to
RMB47,185,000. No impairment loss related to “integrated marketing
and advertising services” CGU was recognised during the year ended 31
December 2021.

Impairment provision for goodwill and intangible assets related to “Financing
Services” CGU

On 28 November 2017, the Group step-up acquired 30% of the equity
interest of Chongging Digital China Huicong Micro-Credit Co. Ltd (“Micro-
Credit”), which was principally engaged in the financing services in the PRC.
Upon completion of the acquisition, the Group held 70% of equity interest
and obtained control over Micro-Credit and reclassified as investment in
subsidiary. The Group recognised identifiable intangible assets amounting
to RMB561,900,000 and goodwill amounting to RMB 19,626,000 in relation
to such acquisition and allocated to the “Financing Services” CGU at the
acquisition date.

Management has been reviewing the business development and regulatory
requirement for operating micro-lending in PRC. On 7 September 2020,
the China Banking and Insurance Regulatory Commission (“CBIRC") issued
the “Notice on Strengthening the Supervision and Management of Micro-
lending Companies”, which aimed to further strengthen the supervision
and management, standardise business behavior, prevent and resolve risks,
and promote the standardised and healthy development of the industry
of micro-lending companies. The notice significantly impacted the micro-
lending companies from all aspects of business operations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BHE-_Z-—F+-_A=1+—HILFE

19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Impairment test for goodwill and other intangible assets

(Continued)
Note: (Continued)

(iv)

Impairment provision for goodwill and intangible assets related to “Financing
Services” CGU (Continued)

In view of the stricter regulatory requirement and uncertainties in pose,
the Company considered the revenue projection of the Group company
engaging in the micro-credit business (i.e., the Micro-credit company)
was adversely affected as its business scale is highly driven by the size of
working capital available which in turn is dependent on the shareholder
loan provided by the Company from headquarter level and the Micro-credit
company's profitability is limited as the Group cannot achieve the high
gearing leverage as planned. Adverse change in the macro-environment due
to COVID-19 has caused the Group to tighten its risk policies in its micro-
credit financing business.

In the determination of impairment amount, the Company followed the
requirement of HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” by comparing the relevant
CGU’s carrying amount with its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of a CGU’s fair value less costs of disposal and
value-in-use. In this impairment assessment, the Company engaged an
independent external valuer, Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory Limited, to
determine the recoverable amount of this CGU as at 31 December 2020.
The discounted cash flow method was adopted in the valuation performed,
which was considered to be the most appropriate valuation approach in this
valuation as it takes the projection growth and firm-specific issues of the
CGUs into consideration. It is noted that the CGU’s value-in-use would be
higher or approximate to fair value less cost of disposal (which is also based
on discounted cash flow and need to consider the cost of disposal). Thus,
the recoverable amount is determined based on the value-in-use model.
In the valuation performed, the assumed annual revenue growth for the
ten-financial year budget has been adjusted from approximately 23% on
average (as adopted in the previous valuation in the financial year ended
31 December 2019) to approximately 17% and lower shareholder loan
injection from RMB2,200 million to RMB700 million in the ten-year forecast
period. Free cash flow was mainly projected by assuming an interest return
to total available fund of approximately 13% on average (as compared
to approximately 15% on average in the valuation for the financial year
ended 31 December 2019) during such ten-financial-year forecast period. A
terminal growth rate of approximately 3% was assumed in the discounted
cash flow model based on annual inflation rate of approximately 3% as
sourced from public data. The cost of equity has been adopted as a basic
discount rate for the CGU, which is determined by adopting the Capital Asset
Pricing Model (“CAPM"). CAPM describes the relationship between the risk
associated with certain asset, its market price, and the expected return an
investor requires for compensation of taking additional risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—-Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment test for goodwill and other intangible assets

(Continued)
Note: (Continued)

(iv)  Impairment provision for goodwill and intangible assets related to “Financing
Services” CGU (Continued)

Other than the downward adjustment of revenue projection and the smaller
size of shareholder loan injection mentioned above, and the adjustment of
the pre-tax discount rate to approximately 15% for the financial year ended
31 December 2020, there has been no significant change in the value of
inputs or assumptions from those previously adopted by the Company.

As at 31 December 2020, the recoverable amount of this CGU determined
based on the value-in-use calculations was lower than the carrying
amount of this CGU. Accordingly, the management has provided full
impairment loss on goodwill, license right and other intangible assets of
RMB540,693,000. No impairment loss related to “Financing Services” CGU
was recognised during the year ended 31 December 2021.

(v)  Table below sets out the key assumptions for those CGUs that have
significant goodwill and intangible assets allocated:

Online services - B2B2C business

Average revenue growth rate WA R R
Pre-tax discount rate TRTHT IR
Terminal growth rate B REK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZ-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Impairment test for goodwill and other intangible assets

(Continued)
Note: (Continued)

(v)  Table below sets out the key assumptions for those CGUs that have
significant goodwill and intangible assets allocated: (Continued)

B ERK - RETE

Online services - garment industry

Average revenue growth rate WAFHERE
Pre-tax discount rate TATHTIR &
Terminal growth rate RIEERR
Anti-counterfeiting products and services Bh 472 R BR TS
Average revenue growth rate WA FERE
Pre-tax discount rate AR =
Terminal growth rate ARG R R
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As at As at
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2021
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Trading services-cotton industry
Average revenue growth rate
Pre-tax discount rate

Terminal growth rate

% 5 B8 — 18747
AT R
BATRE
SRR

The financial budgets covering 5 years period for all CGUs, except for
financing services which covered 10 years to reflect its revised expansion

plan.

The Directors and management have considered and assessed reasonably
possible changes for other key assumptions and have not identified any
instances that could cause the carrying amount of these CGUs to exceed its

recoverable amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—-Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

20 TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS, 20 BWER #ZEe AARERH
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES it FE L 7RI

As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2021

—E-—5 T_TF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBETTT

Trade receivables FEURBR X 198,258 530,570
Less: provision for impairment of B EBERTURE R
trade receivables (22,421) (52,286)
Trade receivables, net FEURBR 50 F5E 175,837 478,284
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables @ - FERTERIE K E A R IE 671,097 732,604
846,934 1,210,888
Less: Non-current portion B IERBIER Y (3,990) (884)
Current portion BN 842,944 1,210,004
(a) Trade receivables (a) FEWERRX
The Group generally grants a credit period ranging from 90 days to REEB-—REKBEEBI>HBLETEPNTF
270 days to customers depending on business segment. The aging 90KRZE270KR ZIZEH - EYAR R EREIZ
analysis of the gross trade receivables based on invoice date is as BEERBZRRAONIT
follows:

As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2021

:g:_fﬁ =
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T ARETTT

Current to 90 days EI-TECIPN 155,681 454,297
91 to 180 days 91E180K 16,727 31,417
181 to 270 days 181E270K 2,295 6,710
271 to 365 days 271E365K 2,692 5,364
Over 1 year BE—F 20,863 32,782

198,258 530,570
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HE_Z-—F+-A=+—HIEFE

20 TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS,
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

(@) Trade receivables (Continued)

Note:

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade receivables are as
follows:

257

20 EWERER - & - ANRERHE
o PE WL R I ()

(a) FEWERR (@)
BisE -

FEMERR 2 B ER B EEINT -

2021
—EB-—fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
(Restated)
(&e=51)
(Note 1(a))
(HiEE1(a))
At 1 January n—A—H 52,286 63,529
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment of FEWBRFURE (B ml) /Bt
trade receivables
— from continuing operations —REFELEED (6,842) 14,539
— from discontinued operations —REDKRILEE SR = 29,794
Write off for impaired trade receivables R (B FE U AR R o8 (22,800) (50,916)
Disposal of Zhongfu HEF AR (223) -
Disposal of Huicong Tianjin Group PEZRAEER = (4,660)
At 31 December W+=-—A=+—~ 22,421 52,286

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate their fair values.

Balances are denominated in RMB and there is no concentration of credit
risk with respect to trade receivables as the Group has a large number of
customers nationally dispersed.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair values
of trade receivables disclosed above. The Group did not hold any collateral as

security.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—-Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

20 TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS, 20 EWERR &€ - ANRERH
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES fth PEUR SR I8 ()
(Continued)
(b) Deposits, prepayments and other receivables (b) &% - BAFEREGEKRE
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2021
—EB- 5
RMB’000
ARET T
Non-current portion IEREEL D
— Deposits — 7% 1,109 884
— Prepayment for acquiring intangible assets ~ —WEBER A & ~ AN 7x1E 2,881 -
3,990 884
Current portion mENER S -
— Deposits —i%e 31,886 8,659
— Prepayments (note (i) — FERT A (P3E()) 613,434 712,993
— Other receivables — E eI IR 21,787 10,068
667,107 731,720
671,097 732,604
The fair values are as follows: NFEAT ¢
— Deposits —{&& 32,995 9,543
— Prepayments — BRI RIE 616,315 712,993
— Other receivables — HE fth FEUCE IR 21,787 10,068
671,097 732,604
Denominated in: AT EHEEE
HK dollars BT 331 563
Renminbi AR 670,766 732,041
671,097 732,604
Note (i): FAEG)
At 31 December 2021 and 2020, the amount mainly represented RZB_-—R-Z_FTF+-_A=+—H  ZeHEEx
prepayment to suppliers for B2B trading platform business. The prepayment ZEMB2BR 5T A X B HERTAN 2 IR © MB2BX
to suppliers for B2B trading platform business is utilised within 1-2 months. B EBHEREN 2 FEM Z2EARNEA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZ-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

21 LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 21 BERERERE
Loans and interest receivables reflect the outstanding balance of loans FELIKE ARFERETHEAR  BPRIES
granted to associates, employees and customers. BRCREEEH -

As at 31 December

B+=BA=+—H
2021 2020
—EB-—f —EFF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR AREETTT
Loans to customers of financing services ERTRERGESHB2EP
business (note (a), (b)) (Mi3E@) ~ (b)) 1,584,571 1,601,442
Loans to employees BEXTFEE 3,690 3,885
Loans to associates (note (c)) B FEE AT (M) 85,733 90,721
Interest receivables FEU R 2 11,482 10,762
Loans and interest receivables, gross FEWEF KT S 4858 1,685,476 1,706,810
Less: impairment allowance on loans to W ERTRERBEB TR Z
customers of financing services business B (M EE3.1(b)(ii)
(note 3.1 (b)(iii)) (149,786) (184,149)
Less: impairment allowance on loans to B BT IRE ZRERE
employees (20) (34)
Less: impairment allowance on loans to B BERTHERRREEREY
associates and joint ventures (note (c)) ERAE () (5,986) (5,523)
Less: impairment allowance on R YN BORE R
interest receivables (205) (289)
Loans and interest receivables, net B LA BERE 1,529,479 1,516,815
Less: Non-current portion R IEmENE D (418,032) (571,438)
Current portion BN 1,111,447 945,377
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—-Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

21 EWERRAE @)

Note: iz -

21 LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (continued)

(@)  Analysed by nature (a) RMESHT

The balance comprises loans granted in financing service business: ERGEHRBERRERBEBRE &N :

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—8H

2021

—B-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFT
Loans to customers of financing services business ~ERTFRERGEEEZEF 1,584,571 1,601,442
Less: impairment allowance T ORE R (149,786) (184,149)
1,434,785 1,417,293

(b)  Analysed by type of collateral (b) RIERRERSN

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—8©

2021

—E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETT
Unsecured loans I E R 1,239,613 1,159,965
Guaranteed loan BEERER 128,868 182,832
Collateralised loans CEWRER 216,090 258,645
Loan to customers, gross ERTRFBE 1,584,571 1,601,442
Less: impairment allowance B RERE (149,786) (184,149)
Loan receivables, net FERERFEE 1,434,785 1,417,293

(¢)  Loans to associates (0 EHRTHERQR

BE-_ZT-_TF+_A=Z+—RALEFEE K&
Em—REBE RN IERIEEGR AR
TER ) BB ERARES0,000,0007T © 2%
BERER_E_—F\AEH  WEFFE6%
FTE e

The Group granted loans amounting to RMB80,000,000 to an associate
HHT I8 & BBR A 7 (“Zhejiang Huicong”) during the year ended 31
December 2020. The loans will mature in August 2022 and are interest
bearing at rate of 6% per annum.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—_Z—-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

22 SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2021:

22 BT
WFAR - ZE-—F+_-_A=+—HZEEH

BLAFEE :

Proportion of

ordinary
shares held by
Place of incorporation  Principal activities Particulars of Effective non-controlling
and kind of legal entity and place of operation registered share capital interest held  interests (%)
kRS
EMHIBER TEEBR fi%s g ER
HEERRER Fd-uk BEMBRAFE BRED EEBI(%)
Hong Kong Huicong International Group ~ British Virgin Islands, Investment holding 21,000,000 ordinary shares of 100% -
limited in Hong Kong US$0.01
ERSREREEERAT RBRARSE  BRAF RABKR-B8 21,000,000 &K EE0.01E T
ZERR
HC Group (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong, liability Investment holding 500,000 ordinary shares of 100% -
company in Hong Kong HK$1 each
BREA(FR)ERAR % BRAA RERR-F3 500,000 BREE 1T SRk
Orange Triangle (HK) Limited Hong Kong, liability Investment holding 10,000 ordinary shares of 89.34% 10.66%
company in Hong Kong HK$1 each
&8 BRAR RESR-BA 10000REREE BT EER
Zale Inc. Cayman Islands, limited  Investment holding 500,000,000 ordinary shares of 89.34% 10.66%
liability company in Cayman Islands US$0.0001 each
FEHs ARAR  RESR-REHS 500,000,000 B KA E
0.0001%7T2 &R
Zale (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong, liability Investment holding 10,000 ordinary shares of 89.34% 10.66%
company in Hong Kong HK$1 each
EE  BRAAF REARR-BE 10,000/ GREE 1B T2 BER
Z. Tech Holdings Limited Cayman Islands Investment holding 50,000 ordinary shares of 89.34% 10.66%
in Cayman Islands US$1 each
RERS REBR-REHS 50,000 ERAEIRTZ EER
BEREMERAR 2021 F#§
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BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

22 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Saidian HK Limited

IS RERERERLA

IRBEERERRMARLR

IR SBERERANARAA

(Note i) (Pfizii)

IR EESRMBDERAR

SRRAHEARAA

ERE=AREERAA

SRROHERHERAH
(Note i) (Pfizii)

HC GROUP INC. ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Place of incorporation

and kind of legal entity

AEMER Y 2R
EERRRH

Hong Kong, liability
company

&8 ARAA

The PRC, limited liability
company
HE - ARAF

The PRC, limited liability
company
HE - BRAF

The PRC, limited liability
company

TE - ARAT

The PRC, limited liability
company

TE - ARAT

The PRC, limited liability
company

T8 ARAF

The PRC, limited liability
company

TE - ARAT

The PRC, limited liability
company

FE - ARAA

BHE-_Z-—F+-_A=1+—HIFE

Principal activities
and place of operation

TEEBR
BEwE

Investment holding
in Hong Kong
RERR-FE

Provision of business
information in the PRC

REEXER-PE

Provision of business
information in the PRC
REBEEH-TE

Provision of business
information in the PRC

RHEXER-TE

Anti-counterfeiting
Technology Development
in the PRC

FEm BRI —hE

Finance leasing services
in the PRC
HARSRY -1

Provision of business
information in the PRC

RHEXER-TE

Provision of business
information in the PRC

REBXER-PE

22 BT

Particulars of
registered share capital

DR MRAFE

10,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

10,0000 BREE BT T8k

RMB500,000,000

A 500,000,007
RMB2,200,000,000
AE#2,200,000,0007
RMB36,000,000
AEH#36,000,0007

RMB56,580,000

AR 56,580,000
15$30,000,000
30,000,000% 7T
U5$150,000
150,000%7
RMB10,000,000

10,000,007

Fif

B

100%

100%

100%

100%

64.20%

100%

89.34%

89.34%

Proportion of
ordinary
shares held by

Effective non-controlling
interest held

interests (%)
FERER
FrsEER
£ (%)

35.80%

10.66%

10.66%



263

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OB HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE-Z-—F+_A=+—HILtFE

22 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 22 BB
Proportion of
ordinary
shares held by
Place of incorporation  Principal activities Particulars of Effective non-controlling
and kind of legal entity and place of operation registered share capital interest held interests (%)
FERRER
R AE:E IEXER fis  FiREZER
HERRER B BEMBRAGFE {3 3 E (%)
EREREREEEERAR The PRC, limited liability ~ Provision of tradingand ~ RMB20,000,000 42.80% 57.20%
(Note i) (P ) company agency services in the PRC
ME - BRAE REEBERAERE-FE AK%20,000,0007
HEEEETEBARAF The PRC, limited liability ~ Provision of tradingand ~ RMB200,000,000 100% -
company agency services in the PRC
ME - ARAH REEERABRE-HE AKR%200,000,0007T
BERESRABRAR The PRC, limited liability  Provision of business RMB220,000,000 100% -
company information in the PRC
M BRAH RHHFER-F AR%220,000,0007T
R EHERRERAR The PRC, limited liability  Anti-counterfeiting RMB10,000,000 64.20% 35.80%
company Technology development
in the PRC
ME - ARAE FEM AR - AR10,000,0007
MNBEREERAF The PRC, limited liability  Investment holding RMBS, 250,000 100% -
(Note ii) (Fr3ii) company in the PRC
hE - ARAT RERR-+ ARH5,250,0007T

SHEEERAT 2021 Fif



264

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year

ended 31 December 2021 #HZE-—Z-—%#+—-A=+—HILEE

22 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

ERMNEEER M EETERARA

ERRHENREERRAA

ERRERRHRERAT

Notes:

(0]

(ii)

(iii)

HC GROUP

Place of incorporation

Principal activities
and kind of legal entity and place of operation
MR HER
AEERER

TEEBR
BEwE

Provision of loan service
in the PRC
RESTRE-TE

The PRC, limited liability
company

TE - ARAT

The PRC, limited liability

(Note i) (FifEiii) company services for spot cotton
trading in the PRC
HRERIRHBBERE

B

FE - ARAA

The PRC, limited liability
Company

T ARAT

Provision of business
information in the PRC

EHEXER-FE

=M EEMEEESIE AR A A is accounted for as a subsidiary of the Group
as the Group is able to control the board of the Company through entering
into an acting in concert agreement with certain minority shareholders.

The Group does not have direct or indirect legal ownership in equity of the
Structured Entities. Nevertheless, under certain Contractual Arrangements
entered into with the Structured Entities and their registered owners, the
Company and its other legally owned subsidiaries have rights to exercise
power over the Structured Entities, receive variable returns from its
involvement in the Structured Entities, and have the ability to affect those
returns through its power over these Structured Entities. As a result, they
are presented as Structured Entities of the Group.

ERMBHBER EEABR QA is accounted for as a subsidiary of the Group,
as the Group's representatives have taken up majority of the seats in the
board of FERBHERHTEE AR /A ] and the Group is able to control the
board.

INC. ANNUAL REPORT 2021

22 BT

Particulars of

registered share capital

DR MRAFE

RMB1,000,000,000

Proportion of

AK%1,000,000,0007T

Provision of B2B e-commerce RMB500,000,000

AR 500,000,007

RMB36,821,000

ordinary

shares held by

Effective non-controlling
interest held interests (%)
FERER

fis  HEEER
EiNER EA(%)
70% 30%

35.70% 64.30%
89.34% 10.66%

AEH36,821,0007

W

@)

(ii)

(ifi)

AR ERIBERE T A MR — BT
BRATRAUARAE SR 2 LR - KPR
SRS EIR AR A R A A R B —
R BAF -

AEETEERRMERAEBEEREEZ
BEEAR AW REEERLEEERET
M#EBE AR L2 ETENLE ARAIRER
& ERE B ARBRITEABITER
#H - AHZ2EEBEERBRIUISERIE
BENBRERNZEEELERZENZEZE
ml o Bt - A2 RAEEEELEEE -

AR AEERREERBHEMRERERA
RAEFRGABOBEL - AEBERMNZHES
g RERRBENRERERARARIE
REEN—FMHBELR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZ-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

22 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 22 fIBAR @
(a) Material non-controlling interests (a) EXRFERER
Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with BEEAHZREIE L Az BEEREE
material non-controlling interests z
Set out below are the summarised financial information Chongging TX%@EJE RN B EIE NEE R B R
Digital China Huicong Micro-credit Company Limited & & &/ £ RAZHBERRE - ZRAFTR/EHAE
B2/ B E AR A A that has non-controlling interests that Eim s BEA IR ER

are material to the Group.
Summarised consolidated statement of financial position SRR TR

Chongging Digital China Huicong
Micro-credit Company Limited
EFGMNERER
NEERERAE
As at 31 December

Rt+t=A=+—R
2021 2020
-S4 —E-FTE

—_—=— —=—=

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT

Current mE

Assets BE 968,017 758,847

Liabilities BfE (47,980) (86,759)

Net current assets MEEEFE 920,037 672,088

Non-current FERE

Assets BE 433,510 599,270

Net non-current assets EREBEEFE 433,510 599,270

Net assets BESE 1,353,547 1,271,358

Accumulated non-controlling interest ZE IR ER 406,064 381,407
As at 31 December 2021, the non-controlling interests balances RIBZ—F+_A=+—80 =E&M
of Chongqing Digital China Huicong Micro-credit Company HIEE/ N EERBERA R Z IHTRER
Limited amounted to approximately RMB406,064,000 (2020: EH B AR ¥406,064,000( =2 =F
RMB381,407,000). ¢ © AR#381,407,0007T) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—-Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

22 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

22 BT

(a) Material non-controlling interests (Continued) (a) ERFEZERERE)
Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with HEAHZRERIE L a2 BEEREE
material non-controlling interests (Continued) =&
Summarised statement of comprehensive income FEWERPE

Chongging Digital China Huicong
Micro-credit Company Limited
ERMMNEEEE
NEERERAF
As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2021 2020
—E——fF T TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETIT

Revenue/interest income SHEMRAFEUWA 96,770 108,070
Profit/(Loss) before tax BREEATDEF](BE) 110,074 (490,157)
Income tax (expenses)/credit Fsfi(Fx), % (27.,885) 121,834
Profit/(loss) after tax BE%RF,(EE) 82,189 (368,323)
Other comprehensive income Hib 2w A = -
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2HEWA(EE) a5 82,189 (368,323)

Total comprehensive income/(loss) allocated
to non-controlling interests

AEE IR
2EKA(B18) % 24,657 (110,497)

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests

B IRIER RS AL S = -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—_Z—-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

22 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 22 B AT
(a) Material non-controlling interests (Continued) () EXRFERERE)
Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with BEEAHZREIE L Az BEEREE
material non-controlling interests (Continued) =&
Summarised cash flow statement REeRERYE

Chongging Digital China Huicong
Micro-credit Company Limited
ERMMNEEENE
NEEBREBRAA
As at 31 December

R+=A=t—H
2021 2020
—E-—F "
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT

Net cash generated from operating activities 48 ¥ &4 IR & %458 32,377 81,185
Net cash used in financing activities BEEEFTAIRE (30,880) (81,120)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents R4 MRS SEYIEINFERE 1,497 65

23 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 23 HARRZEIRZKRE
EQUITY METHOD

As at 31 December
Rt+=A=+-—H
2021 2020

—E_—F —ZE-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT

Associates iG] 322,176 896,087
Joint venture BB - 303
322,176 896,390

SHEEERAT 2021 Fif



268

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—-Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

23 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE

EQUITY METHOD (cContinued)

23 HAER

EYRZRE @)

2021
—s—_

—_—

RMB’000
ARET

2020
—EoFTH

RMB'000
ARETIT

(Restated)

(Fe5E751)
(Note 1(a))
(Mf7E1(a))

At 1 January n—A—H 896,087 969,248
Additions NE - 6,250
Additions upon partial disposal of JDSJ Group HAHEREHEREEZ

(Note 25(a)) ANE (F17E25(a)) - 30,000
Derecognition of Jingu Bank as financial asset B HER e RIRITAEATE

through other comprehensive income STARMEEBRAZ e BEE (458,989) -
Disposal HeE (70,913) (801)
Dividends received from an associate B —fEEE A RIRE = (17,452)
Share of post-tax losses of associates DMEEE R EIRTE R

— From continuing operations —RERFEICEET (18,929) (80,883)

— From discontinued operations —REERIEEETR - (298)
Share of other comprehensive income/(loss) of Db —MEE QAR EMERE

an associate sk (E518) 2,928 (9,977)
Impairment of associates A l/NCIDE RN (28,008) -
At 31 December Rt+t—_A=+—H 322,176 896,087

2021
—E-—F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBETTT
Movements in the investment in a joint venture R—EEELEZRE
are as follows: ZET -
At 1 January Hn—A—H 303 -
Addition B = 1,840
Share of post-tax losses DGR EE (303) (1,537)
At 31 December ®W+—-—A=+—H - 303
Set out below are associates and joint ventures which, in opinion of NTEHINEERAN T - —FER T -TF

directors, are material to the Group as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.
The associates and joint ventures as listed below have share capital
consisting solely of ordinary shares, which are held directly by the Group;
the country of establishment or registration is also their principal place

of business.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Aot RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZ-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

23 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 23 AR ZEIRZRE @)
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

Place of business/
country of Nature of Measurement
Name of entity establishment % of effective interest  the relationship  method Carrying amount
BEZR EX%/ HIEAR EREREAAL BRME FEAR fREE
As at 31 December As at 31 December

Rt=A=t-A Rt=R=t-A
2021 2020 2021 2020
ZE--% % ZE--%
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMTR ARETT

MIZEREBRAR PRC 296 296 Associate (notei)  Equity method 45,455 34,465
(Zhejiang Huicong Investment Co., Ltd*) S BERE (W) ERi

RELTAEEE ARNEERT PRC note (ii) 98 2020: Associate  2020: Equity note (i) 495,970
BRAR ([€8417]) g (i) (note i method £ i)
(Inner Mongolia Hohhot Jingu Rural ZToTE: 2R
Commercial Bank Company Ltd) NG EwE
("Jingu Bank”) (B3

HEPEZREARRERAE PRC 237 354 Associate (note i) Equity method 231,697 285,807
(MBTEE (R2) BERRERRR) genn (i) B

(Hunan Zhongmoyun Construction
Science and Technology Co., Limited,
formerly known as Zhongmoyun (Tianjin)
Construction Science and Technology

Co., Limited)

ERFEHAETEEERAT PRC 20.0 200 Associate (noteiv)  Equity method 30,370 30,189
(FEHREE) i senE (i) EaE
(JDSJ Group)

Other immaterial associates and joint ventures 14,654 49,959

AUFEABELARA LS

322,176 896,390

* English names are translated for identification purpose only * BN EEEMREHR AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—-Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

23 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (cContinued)

Note:

Zhejiang Huicong Investment Co., Limited* (“#7/TZH2") engages in
investment in real estate construction and management in the PRC. The
Group directly holds 20% equity shares of #T/ZZH& and indirectly holds
9.6% equity interests through £12523€. Hence, the Group effectively holds
29.6% equity interest in 3T 254,

ii The Group directly holds 9.8% of equity interest of Jingu Bank, which
provides products and services on bank deposits, loans and advances in PRC
and other business approved by the China Banking Regulatory Commission
("CBRC"). On 27 June 2018, the Group obtained approval from the CBRC
for the director appointment, which allows the Group exercise significant
influence to Jingu Bank. During the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Group derecognised Jingu Bank as an investment in associate and
reclassified it as a financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive
income. For more details, please refer to Note 26(a).

iii As at 31 December 2021, the Group directly holds 23.7% equity interests
in Hunan Zhongmoyun Construction Science and Technology Co., Limited*
(“Zhongmo"), which is engaged in construction and formwork industry in
the PRC.

iv JDSJ Group is engaged in the e-commerce for home appliances in the PRC
through its websites and mobile applications. As at 31 December 2021, the
Group holds 20% equity interest of JDSJ Group. Please refer to note 25(a)

for details.

* English names are translated for identification purpose only.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

e —

FH-_A=+—HILFE

23 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE

EQUITY METHOD

(Continued)

(a) Investment in associates
Summarised consolidated financial information for associates
Set out below are the summarised financial information for the
associates which, in the opinion of director, are material to the
Group and are accounted for using the equity method.

271

23 RAEREIIRZRE @)

() REg

BER

RAZRE
A2 E A BENEE

TXHINEERREALEEEX BIZE

ﬁn/ﬁﬁ‘]

%o

b A /\
EERCNVAN

Rz Al A BB E R

Hui De Jia Mei
Technology Ltd Jingu Bank
(Note i) Zhejiang Huicong (Note i, iv) Zhongmo IDS) Group
et :
BRAF ARG
(ki) MIZH (Hiiii~ iv) L FELAER
As at Asat
31 December As at 31 December 31 December As at 31 December As at 31 December
Wr=p=t-8 Wr=p=t1-8 Wr=A=t-8
2021 2020 2021 2021
Z8>-f Z8s-% Z8>-f
RVB' 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEET; AEETR AEBTR T AEBTR
Current it
Total current assets THEELE 1,041,568 642,433 622,035 Note iv 498,561 373821 76,118 122,61
Total curent ibiltes iBnRELE (964,076) (413,395) (440,579) Note v (574,979) (441,708) (53,081) (105,163)
Non-current F3it )
Total non-current assets FrHEELE 3,024 127 455 Note v 515,378 417,566 1719 3554
Total non-current liabiltes FiBEELE (239542) - (7,69) Note v (58.202) (190,869) - -
Net assets HESE (159,026) 229,165 174,16 4617001 380,758 158810 24,7% 20652
Opening net assets ﬂ}];éé?%@ 103,690 174216 180,589 523372 158,810 102,151 20,652 19434
Capitalinjection AE - - - 1,790 138,926 29,620 - -
(Loss)/profit for the year ﬁW BE) /& (262,716) 54,949 (6373) (516,486) 83,022 27,039 4,187 1218
Other reserve movement EfEED - - - (102,005) - - - -
Closing net assets EREESE (159,026) 229,165 174216 4,617,021 380,758 158,810 2,839 20652
Direct equity nterest held R ERRTER 12% 20% 20% 98% BI1% 354% 20% 20%
Share of net aset value held by Growp ~ KEBAEZEFE (19,083) 45,833 34883 452468 90,240 5,219 4,968 4130
Others (note (i) Eth () - (378) (378) 43502 141,457 209,588 25,402 26,059
Carying amount EaE - 45,455 34,465 495,970 231,697 285,807 30370 30,189
Notei:  Others mainly represent notional goodwill and notional intangible EE ﬁfﬁixfﬁﬁuﬁl%ﬁﬁﬁ%@ AEEZH
assets arising from acquisition of associates. For Zhejiang Huicong, iﬁ%i& B EE o BT ER
the balance represents uninjected share capital. m& @ & nﬁﬁa?ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬂl‘
Note ii:  During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group considered BifeEii - &L
that Hui De Jia Mei Technology Ltd. is no longer a material associate J:‘i'_ '
as the the balance is fully impaired. S
Note iii. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has il - A
derecognised Jingu Bank from an investment in associate to a E’i: ’
financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income. =
Please refer to note 26(a) for more details. E¥
Note iv: As the end of 2020, the total assets and liabilities are of Miztiv: R-Z_TFR - BEERLAED
RMB64,814,421,000 and RMB60,197,400,000, respectively. )zg ?é /1\5 Zﬁgﬁlo%g) 4,421,0007C R A K
T o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—-Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

23 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (cContinued)

(@) Investment in associates (Continued)
Summarised consolidated financial information for associates

23 HRAEREYRZKRE @)

(a) REEQARZREW)
BERAZEFBENHEE)

(Continued)
Hui De Jia Mei
Technology Ltd Zhejiang Huicong Jingu Bank Zhongmo IDS) Group
SERENE
BRAR MHISH 881 i ZEttR5E
Asat Asat
As at 31 December 31 December As at 31 December As at 31 December
[
AtZB=t-8 RT=B=1-H RT=B=1-H
2021 2001 2021
o = =
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NG aw AREFR A T AEEFR
Revenue HEWA 43,726 85,164 30294 - 443,166 490,35 533,080 66,641
Interest income HEmA - - - 2,118,448 - - - -
(Loss)/profit after tax Bik(ER) / bt (262,176) 54,949 (6373) (516,486) 83,022 27,039 4,187 1218
Other comprehensive loss EEAEE - - - (102,005) - - - -
Total comprehensive (oss)income 2 (B518) /N8 (262,176) 54,949 (6373) (618491) 83,02 27,039 4187 1218

The information above reflects the amounts presented in the
consolidated financial statements of the associates (and not the
Company'’s share of those amounts) adjusted for differences in
accounting policies between the Group and the associates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—_Z—-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

23 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 23 #HARZEIIRZERE @)
EQUITY METHOD (cContinued)

(b) Individually immaterial associates and joint venture (b) BERIFEXRBEATARGELE
In addition to the interests in associates disclosed above, the Group B _EalidFE 2 B N B RERSAN - ANEE IR
also has interests in a number of individually immaterial associates WETRAERENIIRZ ERIZEEAE
and joint venture that are accounted for using the equity method. NEIREECEFEAER

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT

Aggregate carrying amount of individually ERIEEARIEE A A &
immaterial associates and joint venture AEPEBRmME 14,654 49,959

Aggregate amounts of the Group's share of:  REEE(LRIA T & IBHEE ¢
Post-tax loss BRTiE 1R (864) (2,437)

24 TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING 24 BEEZERERETZIRS
INTERESTS

Disposal of certain interest in PanPass Information HEXREEERNROGBERARZET
Technology Co., Limited i

On 1 December 2020, PanPass Information Technology Co., Limited RZZEZZTF+-_A—HB  AAFEEFLE
("PanPass Information”), an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary M8 A B E R BRI M AR AR ([IKEE
of the Company, entered into a Share Subscription Agreement BHEBIREETIRNDRERE - BIEW
with independent investors. Pursuant to the agreement, PanPass #FKEEEAERHMAEMREERITR
Information conditionally agreed to issue shares to the investors for a m ReRER/ARE-7,416,0007T » WAIR
cash consideration of RMB87,416,000, and is subject to contingent BAAREBENLHTUNRE - ZRXHERZ
consideration payable arrangement. The transaction was completed on T —F—At+=H%K -

13 January 2021.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-_Z-—&#+-A=+—HILEE

24 TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING 24

INTERESTS (Continued)

Disposal of certain interest in PanPass Information
Technology Co., Limited (Continued)

Upon the completion of the partial disposal, the Group recognised the
fair value of contingent consideration of RMB38,600,000 and a decrease
in non-controlling interests of RMB45,424,000 on the consolidated
statement of financial position. An increase of RMB3,392,000 was also
recognised in other reserve. After the above transactions, the Group
held 64.2% of the issued shares of PanPass Information, and it remains
to be accounted for as a subsidiary of the Group given the Group'’s
control in the board of directors of PanPass Information.

Disposal of certain interest in Huizhou Union Cotton
Cloud Technology Co., Limited

On 9 August 2021, Huizhou Union Cotton Cloud Technology Co.,
Limited (“Huizhou Union Cotton”), an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, has entered into an Investment Agreement
(the "Agreement”) with an independent investor. Pursuant to the
Agreement, Huizhou Union Cotton conditionally agreed to issue
shares to the investor for a cash consideration of RMB150,000,000
and is subject to contingent consideration payable arrangement. The
transaction was completed on 5 November 2021.

Upon the completion of the partial disposal, the Group recognised the
fair value of contingent consideration of RMB7,242,000 and a decrease
in non-controlling interests of RMB110,758,000 on the consolidated
statement of financial position. An increase of RMB32,000,000 was also
recognised in other reserve. After the above transactions, the Group held
35.7% of the issued shares of Huizhou Union Cotton, and it remains to
be accounted for as a subsidiary of the Group given the Group’s control
in the board of directors of HuiZhou Union Cotton.

For further details about the fair value estimate and movement of the
financial liabilities at fair value, please refer to note 3.3 and note 26.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

25 PARTIAL DISPOSAL AND DISPOSAL OF

SUBSIDIARIES

BHE-_Z-—F+-_A=1+—HILFE

(a) Partial disposal of subsidiaries — JDSJ Group

On 27 August 2020, the Group entered into the equity transfer
agreement with FERLEFEEZ AR A7) (“Guangdong Linggiu
Commercial Trading Co., Ltd"), FIRBEMERIRABCEER
&%) ("Xinyu Congying Internet Technology Partnership (Limited
Partnership)”) and JDSJ Group. The Group agreed to transfer
30% of the equity interest in JDSJ Group to Guangdong Linggiu
Commercial Trading Co., Ltd at a consideration of RMB45,000,000
and 25% of the equity interest in JDSJ Group to Xinyu Congying
Internet Technology Partnership (Limited Partnership) at a
consideration of RMB22,500,000. Upon completion of transaction,
the Group owns 20% of the equity interest in JDSJ Group. JDSJ
Group ceased to be the subsidiaries of the Group, but has been
accounted as an investment in associates in the consolidated
financial statement using equity method. Disposal gains amounting
to RMB65,323,000 was recognised as “Other (losses)/gains, net”

in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The major classes of assets and liabilities of JDSJ Group as at the

date of disposal were as follows:

275

25 HoHEREEMEBAR

(a)

MAOHENRBLAT —REHRER
R-ZE-ZTFENA-++H ANEFEE
REARHEERAR - FRPAPGEER
EREE(BREE) RREHAEEETL
BEEEDE - AEERBUREBARE
45,000,000 T/ EREREE AR A FE
FERREMHREE 2 30%MERURE
AR #22,500,0007T R# R IR AELE R
ERTE(BRAR ) EBENREHAEE
Z25%[HE c PR S TEMIE - NEEE
AREMREF20%HME - RELR
EETBAREENBAR] - MaAERS
ERAEE S HHRER A RTIER B
NEMIEE - BE K ARM65,323,000
TREHGEAERERERA £ (&
18),/WasFEE]

FEEARAEENEERHANEZEERA
BRI

RMB'000
ARETT

Property, plant and equipment I E N 1,794
Goodwill and intangible assets mEREREE 18,706
Deferred tax assets RIERIEE B 1,587
Inventories FE 33,381
Prepayment and other receivables A FRIE K H A FE KGRI 53,163
Trade receivables FEUBR K 3,955
Cash and cash equivalents ReERRSEED 8,790
Trade and other payables FERBR R R H A B RIR (19,194)
Income tax payables FESIPTISHL (322)
Deferred tax liabilities FERIBEBE (685)
Bank borrowings HRITEE (10,000)
Contract liabilities EHEaE (53,729)
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE 37,446
Less: net assets attributable to B RS EEEEFE

non-controlling interests (5,269)
Net assets attributable to the Group AEEELEEFE 32,177
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—-Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

25 PARTIAL DISPOSAL AND DISPOSAL OF 25 HoHERHEMBAR @)

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a) Partial disposal of subsidiaries — JDSJ Group (a)
(Continued)

BOHEMNBLAR - REHRAKE

(&)

RMB’000
ARBTT

Cash consideration HERE 67,500
Less: net assets attributable to the Group disposed of J& : ANEBEL HEEEFE (32,177)
35,323
Fair value of the 20% equity interests retained in JDS) AR E R EEFTIRE20% &2 ATE
Group as investment in associate (note 23) (BERESRE AR 2% & ) (7E23) 30,000
Gain on partial disposal of JDSJ Group (note 7) o HEREERER 2 Wz (MEE7) 65,323
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEMNBRSRAEE -
Cash consideration REeRE 67,500
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HERERBEEEY (8,790)
58,710

The fair value of the 20% retained equity interest in JDSJ Group
held by the Group as at completion date is determined by valuation
performed by an independent professional valuer. The valuation
involved significant judgements and estimates, including forecast
revenue growth rate, terminal growth rate and discount rate used
in the projection period.

The notional goodwill arising from the recognition of investments
in JDSJ Group is calculated based on the difference between the
fair value of the 20% retained equity interest in JDSJ Group and
the share of the fair value of the net assets of JDSJ Group as at the
date of partial disposal.
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25 PARTIAL DISPOSAL AND DISPOSAL OF 25 HoHERHEMB AR (@)
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Partial disposal of subsidiaries - JDSJ Group (a) BALHEHRBLARA - REHREE
(Continued) (&)
The notional goodwill arising on the disposal of JDSJ Group is as HERBHRAEBEMEEZZEHEN
follows: T
RMB’000
AREETTT
Fair value of the equity interests retained in RREMHAEBRE 2 REATFE
JDSJ Group 30,000
Share of the fair value of net identifiable assets DIERIBRIEEFERTE (7,887)
Notional goodwill ZEEE 22,113
Since Xinyu Congying Internet Technology Partnership is held and HARRIRBEERRARLEBRRE
controlled by the chief executive officer and director of JDSJ Group, REEEFENTERESFHE RIZEH - ik
the difference between consideration received and the fair value ERREECERESTE2% AT
of the 25% equity instrument transferred was recognised as a BRZZ%8  DEIAR/METEEERM
share based payment expense of RMB21,620,000 to the employee EERBAEURO N ZHAZIARKE
services received by the Group. 21,620,0007T °
JDSJ Group contributed revenue and profit after tax of REEZTRLEFHEEZ 2 BHE KB
RMB359,452,000 and RMB8,842,000 to the Group during the REBSFAAEETHMEERAAR
period until completion of disposal, respectively. # 359,452,000 7T K2 fR Bt 1% 5 A A R
8,842,0007T °
Disposal of subsidiaries — Huicong Tianjin Group (b) HEHMBAR -BHEXZEEH
On 23 November 2020, the Group entered into agreement with RZZEZZTF+—A=+=H " rEEH
ERZHEYEEEAR AT ("Guangdong Fengming Property ERYEYEETEER QA R
Management Co., Ltd.”) and agreed to transfer 60% of the BEEEINOEEE 7 60%RE o 2
equity interest in Huicong Tianjin Group. Huicong Tianjin Group REEETBRAEEMBRR - HEH
ceased to be subsidiaries of the Group. A disposal loss amounting BARE43,041,0007TR A PR A WG R
to RMB43,041,000 was recognised and included in discontinued RBRENRINEC R LR E T -
operations in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—-Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

25 PARTIAL DISPOSAL AND DISPOSAL OF 25 HoHERLEEMB AT (@)
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b) Disposal of subsidiaries — Huicong Tianjin Group (b) HEHMBAR -—ZEHRXEEE(H)
(Continued)
The major classes of assets and liabilities of Huicong Tianjin Group as EREREEENLHEBHZEIELERSE
at the date of disposal were as follows: BRI
RMB’000
ARBFIT
Investment properties "EYZF 492,851
Property, plant and equipment M - BB REE 15,289
Right-of-use assets FREEE 144,596
Deferred tax assets RIERIBE E 7,703
Completed properties held for sale FEHER T 43,206
Prepayment and other receivables TR RRIA Ko EAth JE W kI8 11,854
Trade receivables JEM AR TR 61,302
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEEY 146
Trade and other payables JEAS BR AN HL A FE 5 SRR (55,886)
Bank borrowings HRITEE (135,000)
Other borrowings HEE (80,000)
Lease liabilities HEAE (29,447)
Contract liabilities EHEaE (73,126)
Deferred government grant RAE BT B (156,779)
Other tax payable Hib e i1E (85,940)
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE 160,769
Less: net assets attributable to non-controlling S SRR RS R (R B AR E
interests (101,728)
Net assets attributable to the Group AEEELEEFE 59,041
Net losses on disposal: HE B EIFEE -
Cash consideration HERE 16,000
Less: net assets attributable to the Group disposed of J& : ANEBEL HEEEFE (59,041)
(43,041)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEARRSRAFE :
Cash consideration HeRE 16,000
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HERe RBRSEEY (146)
15,854
Huicong Tianjin Group contributed revenue and loss after tax of REZETKEESER 2HE  BRXE
RMB10,812,000 and RMB17,188,000 to the Group's consolidated SED R AAEEESHUBRREBHE
financial statements during the period until completion of disposal, AR #10,812,0007T R 45 5RBRFi 18 85
respectively. BAR17,188,0007T °
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26 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR 26 ZATEFASREERARE
VALUE

(a) BAFEFABBEREMEEBA
ZEMEE

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and other comprehensive income

Financial assets at
fair value through
other comprehensive income
BAVEFARMEERAZ
BAFEFABRZEREE SREE
As at 31 December As at 31 December
Rt=A=t—-H R+=A=1-8
2021 2021
—EB--f ToTE —B--F i
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARETT ARET T ARETT

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Trading securities - listed securities %2 535 — L% - 61,772 80,716
Equity investment — unlisted RARE -3 LHES
securities (note) (FisE) 18,219 20,234 392,686 -
Financial assets SREE 18,219 20,234 454,458 80,716
Note: st

The balance of unlisted securities that is classified as a financial asset at
fair value through other comprehensive income represent the Group’s
investment in Jingu Bank.

On 21 October 2021, the Group’s representative has resigned from the
board of directors of Jingu Bank and forfeited its legal rights to appoint
a director to participate in the board of directors of Jingu Bank, which
determine the significant financial and operating decisions of Jingu Bank.
The investment in Jingu Bank was then derecognised as an investment in
associate and reclassified as a FVOCI, as management decided to hold the
investment in Jingu Bank as a long-term strategic investment.

Upon the reclassification, the Group recognised deemed disposal loss
amounting to RMB29,923,000, which represents the difference between
the carrying amount of Jingu Bank amounting to RMB458,989,000, and its
fair value as of the deemed disposal date amounting to RMB429,066,000.

The subsequent fair value changes is recognized in the other comprehensive
income as disclosed in the accounting policies in note 2.12.

All financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are classified as non-current assets.

For further details about the fair value estimate and movement of the
financial assets at fair value, please refer to note 3.3.

DERBRATFEFARMEANAZERERE
ZIELEMEHEHEAERERSORITZIRE

RZBEZ—F+A=+—H AEEZRRE
BRHEARTERE  INEZE—RESS
EFE2HABTLARTIERFHREERE
ZERBITERGZEEREN - ANEEER
ERRNERRITZIREFHERPRRERE R
SRRITZRERRERUEBARNRBERFZ
BRERBMERREATEF AL BEERA
ZEREE -

REF D%  AEERIARIELEZEEA
AE#29,923,0007T * Bl&AMRITEHEZEEH
& B 7 BRE(E A R#458,989,000C EEH AT
EAR#429,066,0007T 2 =5 ©

Hig 2 AP EZENIE2.122 ST BRI
B2 A EHPRATHER

FrERATE ARG RAGEERAGEZ
EREEOHBRIERDEE -

BRER

AT @Bz 2 MAE L ATEEHR
2B7iE—

Rt 2R3 -
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26 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT FAIR 26 AT EFAESREERAES

VALUE (Continued) (%)
(b) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or (b) BAFEFABZZEHERE
loss
Huizhou Union Cotton PanPass Information
BN REE KEER
As at 31 December As at 31 December
W+=R=t+-H W+=A=t+-H
2021 2021 2020
B Z —E-— T-F
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TR BT AR%T R
Current Vi) - N/A 7N 46,946 N/A i F
Non-current IERE 7,242 N/A RigEF - N/A N B
7,242 N/A TN H 46,946 N/A N@EF
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the change in the fair HE_Z-_—F+-A=+—HIFEH
value amounting to RMB8,346,000 was charged to " Other (losses)/ o A TFEEZHARES,346,0000tEE
gains, net” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive PrirA MR E i (EB), M F 58 R
income. kR o
For further details about the fair value estimate and movement of BRRAFEFABEZSRABENATF
the financial liabilities at fair value, please refer to note 3.3 and BEnETREH 2 HE  B2HMNE33KR
note 24. Mi5E24 -
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HE_Z-—F+-A=+—HIEFE

27 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

281

27 BENEs2EmMI A

Financial
Financial assets at
assets at fair value
Financial fair value through other
assets at through  comprehensive
amortised cost profit or loss income
BOFE
R BOFE A
BATTEZ FTABRZ 2HEKAZ
SREE SHREE SREE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%ET T AR¥T T ARET ARET T
At 31 December 2021 R-B=-%§
+=A=t+-H
Financial assets at fair value through ~ ZAFEFAEMEE
other comprehensive income WAZEREE - - 454,458 454,458
Financial assets at fair value through AT {Est ABSY
profit or loss PREE - 18,219 - 18,219
Trade and other receivables (excluding — FEUBR 7 e H f JE Wi 708
non-financial assets) (MR RER) 230,619 - - 230,619
Finance lease receivables RETHER FE 301,822 - - 301,822
Loans and interest receivables M ET R FIS 1,529,479 - - 1,529,479
Long-term bank deposits RERITER 28,622 - - 28,622
Restricted bank deposit XRHNFTER 33,437 - - 33,437
Cash and cash equivalents RekRe%ED 333,812 - - 333,812
Total @t 2,457,791 18,219 454,458 2,930,468
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27 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 27 #ZERE s z2E€/mIEw)

(Continued)

Financial
Financial assets at

assets at fair value
Financial fair value through other

assets at through comprehensive

amortised cost profit or loss income

BATE

; ATAE A

KRG EZ AT AR 2EBAZ
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT

At 31 December 2020 RZBZEfF
+=A=+-H

Financial assets at fair value through R AFEFAZMEE

other comprehensive income WAZ SRIBE - - 80,716 80,716
Financial assets at fair value through AT (Bt ABS Y

profit or loss SHEE - 20,234 - 20,234
Trade and other receivables (excluding — FEUBR 7 & H i JE U 7008

non-financial assets) (TREFSREE) 497,895 - - 497,895
Finance lease receivables Ebvitles 377,635 - - 377,635
Loans and interest receivables M E T TS 1,516,815 - - 1,516,815
Restricted bank deposit ZREFTER 25,848 - - 25,848
Cash and cash equivalents BeRHLSEN 254,301 - - 254,301
Total 4=t 2,672,494 20,234 80,716 2,773,444

HC GROUP INC. ANNUAL REPORT 2021



283

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BO MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—_Z—-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

27 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 27 #ZERE o2&/ Ew)

(Continued)

Financial

liabilities at

Financial fair value
liabilities at through
amortised cost profit or loss

s 4 BRAYHE

AT B2 STARE®Z
THAR THAR At
RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETR ARBTR

At 31 December 2021 R-B=-—-%+=-A=+-AH
Financial Liabilities at fair value through BATEF A ER
profit or loss SEARE - 54,188 54,188
Bank borrowings (note 34) RITEE (FE34) 683,114 - 683,114
Other borrowings (note 34) HinfEE(Mz34) 319,416 - 319,416
Trade payables FERBRIR 194,368 - 194,368
Other payables (excluding non-financial liabilities)  E#ERFUB(TEEIELEAR) 287,068 - 287,068
Lease liabilities HERRE 38,309 - 38,309
Total Bt 1,522,275 54,188 1,576,463
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
Bire: X
ARG EZ
TREBE
RMB’000
ARETTT
At 31 December 2020 R=Z2-Z+=-A=+-—H
Bank borrowings (note 34) RITEE (PH7E34) 895,308
Other borrowings (note 34) HAEE (7E34) 340,959
Trade payables FERTARAR 478,940
Other payables (excluding non-financial liabilities) HiENZIE(TEiEIESRmEas) 138,733
Lease liabilities HEAE 32,649
Total HET 1,886,589
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28 FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 28
Certain equipment have been leased out through finance leases entered
into by the Group. Finance lease receivables, net of provision, comprised
the following:

mMERERWRE

ETRECEBBAAKEN L ZREMAED
- BEMEE AR (HIREE) 255 IA T A

PaN

T

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—8
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETTT
Minimum finance lease receivables: HIERERERKIE
Within 1 year —FR 244,364 326,700
Between 1 to 5 years —FERFR 106,000 88,900
Gross amount of finance lease receivables BEHE R W IR AT 350,364 415,600
Less: unearned finance income B REEBEWRA (26,989) (30,578)
Net amount of finance lease receivables e T E W R R R R 323,375 385,022
Less: impairment allowance W R ERE (21,553) (7,387)
Carrying amount of finance lease receivables REFE EWIEREE 301,822 377,635
Present value of minimum finance lease receivables: S{& gl &5 & EZIBIRE ¢
Within 1 year —FR 204,432 297,641
Between 1 to 5 years —FERFR 97,390 79,994
301,822 377,635
Of which: Heh o
Non-current JEBNER 97,390 79,994
Current BNEA 204,432 297,641
301,822 377,635

During the year ended 31 December 2021, provision for impairment
of RMB14,166,000 (2020: RMB3,725,000) was recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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29 INVENTORIES 29 7&

As at 31 December
Rt+t=—HA=+—8H
2021 2020

—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETT

Merchandise held for trading BHEESEm 182,184 150,117
Others i 4,076 3,338
186,260 153,455
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in “cost WRRBASWF ANHEXNR |2 FERASHE
of revenue” amounted to approximately RMB16,746,744,000 (2020: B ANREE16,746,744,0007C( B -FF © A
RMB13,683,153,000). R#13,683,153,0007T) °

30 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, RESTRICTED 30 RERHASEEY » SRHIRIT
BANK DEPOSITS AND LONG TERM BANK ERURRHBITER
DEPOSITS

As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—8H
2021 2020

=F=—F —E-TfF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBFT

Cash at bank and on hand (excluding RITRERFHEES
long-term bank deposits) (MERIERABRITIF R 333,812 254,301
Restricted bank deposit ZRFIRI TR 33,437 25,848
367,249 280,149
Long-term bank deposits REPIRITER 28,622 -
395,871 280,149
Denominated in: AT EHEEE
- Hong Kong Dollars —#B7T 384 5,516
- Renminbi — AR 395,073 272,475
- US Dollars —%7T 414 2,151
— British Pounds — gz - 7
395,871 280,149
Maximum exposure to credit risk A EERE 395,780 280,077
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30 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 30 BR&eREE£ZEY - ZRFIEBIT
RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS AND LONG TERM ERURRBRITER®
BANK DEPOSITS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, cash and cash equivalents of approximately RZEZ—F+ZA=+—H XEEZRE
RMB390,063,000 (2020: RMB266,794,000) of the Group were KRS EDH ARM390,063,000(=F =
denominated in Renminbi and deposited with banks in the PRC. The TE . AR¥266,794,0007T) AA REEE -
conversion of the Renminbi denominated balance into foreign currencies WEFAFEZRIT - GUAARBFEZ &84
is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control R AINE AT R BB M 2 SNEE I8 A
promulgated by the PRC government. KR BIFTARBR o

Restricted bank deposit included bank balances pledged as security for RZZEZ—F+_A=+—0  ZRHEFTHF
trade of RMB33,437,000 and they are denominated in Renminbi as at REERKARE33,437,0000( =24 :
31 December 2021 (2020: RMB25,848,000). AR#E25,848,0007T ) I IFIEER 2 SRITAE & -

HUARMEEE -
31 SHARE CAPITAL 31 A&

Number of
ordinary shares Par value
ZEREE HE
RMB’000
AR¥T T
At 1 January 2020 RZZE=ZZTF—H—H 1,120,552,210 103,638
Buy-back shares (note a) ol At (P 5Ea) (10,909,091) (997)
Issuance of shares (note b) BT (M 3ED) 200,000,000 18,310
Exercise of share options (note c) TN (F3EC) 288,000 26

At 31 December 2020 and RZZEZZTF+A=+—HK

31 December 2021 — T —F+-H=+—H 1,309,931,119 120,977

The total authorised number of ordinary shares is 2,000,000,000 shares
(2020: 2,000,000,000 shares) with a par value of HK$0.1 per share
(2020: HK$0.1 per share). All issued shares are fully paid.

The total number of issued shares of the Company was 1,309,931,119 as
at 31 December 2021 (2020: 1,309,931,119).

HC GROUP INC. ANNUAL REPORT 2021

F - #R%0.178 7T ) 2.2,000,000,000 8% B 15 (=
T —F4F : 2,000,000,0000%f% 1)  FiE 2
TRMHEEHR -

R-TE-_—F+-_A=+—8 ARADEH
TR 48 8051,309,931, 119 B (—E-F
£ 11,309,931, 1190 /%) ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B OISR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BHE-_Z-—F+-_A=1+—HILFE

31 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(a)

(b)

(9

Buy-back of shares

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
cancelled 10,909,091 of its ordinary shares. RMB997,000 and
RMB13,357,000 had been deducted from share capital and share
premium respectively.

Issuance of shares

On 20 May 2020, the Company issued 200,000,000 shares by
placement to two independent third parties, at a price of HK$1.2
per share. The proceeds net of transaction costs amounted to
approximately HK$238,500,000 (equivalent to RMB218,426,000).
The placement resulted in an increase of share capital and share
premium by approximately RMB18,310,000 and RMB200, 116,000,
respectively.

Share options

On 20 June 2019, a total of 10,000,000 share options were
granted to a director pursuant to share option scheme. The
grantee can exercise these options at an exercise price of HK$4.6
per share in the ten year period starting from the expiry of the
twelve months from the date of granting of option. Commencing
from the first anniversary of the date of grant, the relevant grantee
may exercise options up to 33.3% and gradually up to 100% at
the third anniversary of the date of grant.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, 288,000 shares were
issued upon exercise of share options under the share option
scheme of the company at exercise price ranging from HK$0.82 to
HK$1.108, and resulted in approximately RMB26,000 increase in
share capital and RMB214,000 increase in share premium. During
the year ended 31 December 2021, no options has been exercised.
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31 A& )

(a)

(b)

(o)

AR
HE-Z-ZF+-A=1+—RHLFE"
A2 A)FE$E10,909,091 X E AL - EE MK
A KR i (B 7 B0 AR #997,0007T
N AR #13,357,0007T °

BITRG

RZZE-_ZTFERA=-1+AH AREEB
AR 2B TR ERAMEBLE =
fid & #9 5 2\ 3 17200,000,000 8 B 15 © BT
15 RIBHNFR 22 5) B AN 18 49 /238,500,000
B (HE R ARE218,426,0000T) © i
fE < B A R m B BIE MK AR
18,310,0007T & A R #200,116,0007T °

B

RZZE—AFRAZTH  CREERE
FHElm—BEEE A 10,000,000
BERRAE o R A AT REARESR () B BAARRT
ToEAERABZ TFEAN - RITEES
fR4.68ITEZEHEIE - BEREBAH
—BEFRE - BEARARITERE33.3%
BRE - WA R AR = RE RS
1TERZ100% HEAAE -

HE-Z-_ZF+-_A=1+—RHLFE"
PIN/N aE%Hx%af%‘ﬁﬁ—rﬁ'\]ﬂ%ﬂx%ﬁi?ﬂ@ﬁ
0.82/ 8L 2 1.108/ 8 LI T# 1% 288,000
RERR D IERETT » BUERRA KR D HE D B
iﬂuiﬁ/\h@ﬁz%ooo%&}&%zmooo
T HE —F+ZA=+—81IF
ER ﬁ%?ﬂiﬁ%ﬂx%ﬁﬁ@i
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31 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(c) Share options (Continued)

BHE-_Z-—F+-_A=1+—HIFE

31 BA&ue)

(c) MBR#EE)

The assumptions for valuation of fair value of share options are as FHERERRE N T EMA 2 RENT
follows:

7 April 28 March 3 April 18 November 13 October 20 June
2010 2011 2013 2013 2017 2019
“g-8f -"B--% C-%-Zf -E-=fF CE-tf ZB-NE
MmAtA =A=1AA ME=R +-AtNB  TAt+=H AAZTH
Exercise price THEEGET)

(in HK dollar) 0.82 1.108 4.402 9.84 6.476 46 46
Fair value per option BhEkEL

(in RMB) ATE

(AR%TT) 0.3706 0.4590 2.5027 50125 3.3530 1.9516 1.6542
Risk free interest rate BERFE(%)

(in %) 2.865 2.820 111 1.915 1.745 213 1.44
Expected life in years)  TE3H4EHA(E) 3459 3849 9.196 4779 49 10 10
Volatility (in %) EI) 79.8 774 75 715 62 70 65
Expected dividend per ~ EEEISRRES

share (HK cents) (&) - - - - 5.67 - -

At the working date before options were granted, 6 April 2010, REBRERERLAIZ TR (ZF—2F
25 March 2011, 2 April 2013, 15 November 2013, 12 October WMAXA - —E—HF=F=-+HH"
2017, 18 July 2018 and 19 June 2019 the market value per share —E-—=FWMAZH ZE—=F+—
was HK$0.82, HK$1.1, HK$4.3, HK$9.23, HK$6.40, HK$4.58 and At+RB - ZTE—+tF+A+=ZH =

HK$3.31 respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #HZE_-ZT—

—F+ A= t—ALLEE

31 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(c) Share options (Continued)
The details of the share options are summarised as follows:

289

31 A& )

() BREE
BB FERdnT

1 ApriI 2010 28 March 2011 3 April2013 18 November 2013 13 October 2017 19 July 2018 20 June 2019
I3-%F %--f t5-=f I 23 ZB-tf - St = k3
BALA ZA=tAR mA=A t-AtAR tAt=A tAThA AAZtA
Tranche 1
=
% of the total share options 50% 50% 20% 10% 20% 33.3% 33.3%
(hEHBREL AL 50% 50% 20% 10% 20% B33% B3%
Vesting period 7 April 2010- 28 March 2011 - 3 April 2013~ 18 November 2013 - 13 October 2017 - 19 July 2018- 20 June 2019-
7 April 2011 28 March 2012 3 April 2014 18 November 2014 13 October 2018 19 July 2019 (note) 20 June 2020 note i)
FES Z5-TENA Z5—%Zj Z5-ERR e i ZEtETA Z5-/EtA :?—hﬁf\ﬂ
tREZE——F —T\REZ%-C CREZE-ME tARECE-ME O fSRAECEN\E HARECE-AE CtAECECR
HAtH ZA-t/A mA=H +-A1/8 TA+=A LATABME) R TAME)
Exercise period 7 April 2011 - 28 March 2012 - 3 April 2014~ 18 November 2014 - 13 October 2018 - 19 July 2019- 20 June 2020-
6 April 2020 27 March 2021 2 April 2023 17 November 2023 12 October 2027 18 July 2028 19 June 2029
{7k8 “Z—4mA E-ZE=R TR-WERR ZE-WEL-A ZE-J\EHA ZE-hELR ZEZRERA
tAE-E2%E Cf\AECE--F ZBECECCE f)IBECECZE TAECECLE TARECECNE CTRECEC
mA~A ZA-t4H mAZA t-RATtA tATZH AR ~ATAA
Tranche 2
i
% of the total share options 50% 50% 20% 10% 20% 33% 33%
(R HBREL RS 50% 50% 20% 10% 20% 133% 1B3%
Vesting period 7 April 2010~ 28 March 2011 - 3 April 2013 18 November 2013 - 13 October 2017 - 19 July 2018- 20June 2019 -
7 April 2012 28 March 2013 3 April 2015 18 November 2015 13October 2019 19July 2020 (notei) 20 June 2021 (note i)
GBS ZE-ZEN] 5524 Z-CERR ZEZEt-R ZE-tETR 5B ZENES
tAZZ2-2F -f)\AZZ3-7F  ZAZZE-1F TARECE-IF fSARCE-AE tARRCECTF CtAECECF
BAtH =A=tAR EA=R T=AtNR tATZR  CATABME)  RAZTE()
Exercise period 7 April 2012 - 28 March 2013 - 3 April 2015~ 18 November 2015 - 13 October 2019 - 19 July 2020- 20 June 2021 -
6 April 2020 27 March 2021 2April2023 17 November 2023 12 October 2027 18 July 2028 19 June 2029
18 ZZ-Z4PA Z5-=E=§ ZF-RERR . ZE-RFt-R ENETA RBER Z52-554
tAZZE-FE CTN\RECEC-F ZAECECCE PARRCECCE fTRECECHE MARECECNE CHRAECECNE
mAAR ZA-ftH mAZA +-ATtHA tATZA tAt/\A ~ATAA
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BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

31 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(c) Share options (Continued)

7Amnmo
28-%%
BAtA
Tranche 3
FoH
% of the total share options N/A
(REBERE R aycki
Vesting period N/A
Fag axcki
Exercise period N/A
e AR
Tranche 4
£
% of the total share options N/A
(2 BERE R a¥cki
Vesting period N/A
5E4 R
Evercise period N/A
e AR

BHE_T——

28 March 2011

A
a¥ i
A

TR

N/A

el

/A
TR
/A

A

TER

FH-—A=+—HILFE

31 BRA& )
() BRE®)
13 October 2017

8-tE
tA1=H

18 November 2013
:2—:¢

t-ATNR

3 April 2013
:S—:ﬁ
mA=A

19.July 2018
=t
tAT1A

2% 20%

2% 20%

3 April 2013~ 18 November 2013 -
3April2016 18 November 2016
TRDHRR CRSETR
CHEIENE TNHECEAE
EA=H T=AtNR

3 Apil2016- 18 November 2016 -
2April 2023 17 November 2023
“E-RERR ZEAETA
SRECECZE T\RECECEE
FA-H T=ATtA

20% 30%

20% 30%

3 April 2013 18 November 2013 -

3 April 2017 18 November 2017
RCERR ZE-ZEH-R
SRECR4E HEECTE
EA=H T=At/NA

3 Apil2017- 18 November 2017 -

2 April 2023 17 November 2023

i 1Y
SRECECZE T\RECECEE
mA=A T—AttE

20%

2%

13 October 2017 -
13 October 2020
ZE-EHR
TZAEIECEE
tA+=A

13 October 2020-
12 October 2027
ZECRETS
+=REZ5CF
tATZR

2%

20%

13 Qctober 2017 -
13 October 2021
s

t=AZ-2 %
TAt=R

13 October 2021 -

12 October 2027
i

TIRECECE

TATZR

34%

34%

19 July 2018-

19 July 2021 {note i)
Z5-/\EtA
HhAz"3--f
+AHNB ()
19 July 2021 -
18Ju\y 2028
ZE-EtR
TNREZEZ\E
tATNE

/A
3l
N/A

¥l

i

20 June 2019
=k
NAZTR

334%

33.4%

20 June 2019-

20 June 2022 (note i)
f—iﬁf\ﬂ
ZtRE
AR
20 June 2022 -

19 June 2029
ZECIERR
“HRECEONE
/\ﬂﬂla

AR

/A
ax i
/A

A

TR

HC GROUP INC. ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OB HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE-Z-—F+_A=+—HILtFE

31 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(c) Share options (Continued)

31 A& )

(c) RBRR#E(E)

291

7 April 2010 28 March 2011 3April 2013 18 November 2013 13 October 2017 19July 2018 20 June 2019
I 3% 28-cf 8-z ZE-tf - St = k3
BALH ZAZtAR BA=A t-AtAR tAt=A tAThA ~AZtA
Tranche 5
E174
% of the total share options N/A A 20% 30% 0% N/A A
(R RBREL RS TR TR 20% 30% 20% TR i
Vesting period NA /A 3 April 2013~ 18 November 2013 - 13 October 2017 - NA /A
3April 2018 17 November 2018 13 October 2022
B ixcki Bl I “E-TE+-R ZEtETS axcki ER
CEEE-\E TN\HECE-N\E tZRAECECC
mAZE T-AttA TAT=H
Exercise period N/A /A 3 April 2018~ 18 November 2018 - 13 October 2022 - N/A /A
2April 2023 17 November 2023 12 October 2027
% ¥k ER %-)\5ER - NE-A I ¥k AER
SHEZFZ-F P\BEZEZF foRECECAR
FA-R T-Atth TATZH
Note: B e

(i) The share option granted on 19 July 2018 was also subjected to the
revenue target of the Company and the performance target of the

Grantee.

(i) The share option granted on 20 June 2019 was also subjected to the

performance target of the Company.

(i RZFT-NFLATABRRDZERE
IRBRF AR BIERIEE WA B R R iR

NEKEBBRRTTAIEE

(i) MIZB-AFRNA-TEREZBERE
INRRF AN R RIERAER B R AIEE ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—-Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

31 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 31 A& )
(c) Share options (Continued) () BRE®E
Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their RITERRESE RETEE2ZEH0
exercise prices are as follows: T
(i) Share option scheme (Continued) (i) BRETE(E)
2021
—E-_-F
Exercise Exercise
price in HK$ Share price in HK$ Share
Expiry date per share options per share options
B#A BRBETTEE BRE SRETTRE BiiE
At 1 January 7 April 2020 0.82 - 0.82 188,000
R—A—H —Z-TEMA+LA
27 March 2021 1.108 100,000 1.108 200,000
—T-—¥ZAZTtH
3 April 2023 4.402 1,500,000 4.402 1,500,000
T -FMA=H
18 November 2023 9.84 2,880,000 9.84 3,380,000
ZE=E+-ATNR
13 October 2027 6.476 29,630,700 6.476 29,930,000
“ZZEFTAT=R
19 July 2028 4.6 19,575,594 4.6 30,150,000
ZZZ\FEATAA
20 June 2029 4.6 9,833,500 4.6 10,000,000
ZECNERAZTH
Granted 7 April 2020 0.82 - 0.82 -
B “EZZFMALRA
27 March 2021 1.108 - 1.108 -
ey e =
3 April 2023 4.402 - 4.402 -
“E-=4NA=H
18 November 2023 9.84 - 9.84 -
e R WA=!
13 October 2027 6.476 - 6.476 -
—ZEtETATEHR
19 July 2028 4.6 - 4.6 -
“EZ\EEATIA
20 June 2029 4.6 - 4.6 -
“ZNFARAZTH
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZZ-_—F+-_A=+—HIFE

31 SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 31 A& )
(c) Share options (Continued) (o) EBRE®E
(i) Share option scheme (Continued) (i) JBRESZ(E)
2021
—EC--F
Exercise Exercise
price in HK$ Share price in HK$ Share
Expiry date per share options per share options
) BRAETTEE BRE SRBETIEE iz
Lapsed, forfeited or exercised 7 April 2020 0.82 - 0.82 (188,000)
BRM - RMEATE —ZZTFMALR
27 March 2021 1.108 (100,000) 1.108 (100,000)
B -F=fA+tH
3 April 2023 4.402 - 4.402 -
“E-=5MA=H
18 November 2023 9.84 - 9.84 (500,000)
ZZZ=F+—-ATNAH
3 October 2027 6.476 (299,300) 6.476 (299,300)
“EHFTAT=ER
19 July 2028 4.6 (3,139,215) 4.6 (10,574,406)
2 N\FEATAR
20 June 2029 4.6 (166,500) 4.6 (166,500)
ZZCAFRAZTHE
At 31 December 7 April 2020 0.82 - 0.82 -
R+ZA=1+—H “Z-ERENALRA
27 March 2021 1.108 - 1.108 100,000
TEC-F=A+tHR
3 April 2023 4.402 1,500,000 4.402 1,500,000
“EC=ENA=H
18 November 2023 9.84 2,880,000 9.84 2,880,000
“Eo=E AT/
13 October 2027 6.476 29,331,400 6.476 29,630,700
“EZHFTATER
19 July 2028 4.6 16,436,379 4.6 19,575,594
ZEZN\FEATNR
20 June 2029 4.6 9,667,000 46 9,833,500
ZEZAERSAZTH
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the equity- BEr-_&-—®+-_A=+—H
settled share based compensation under share option scheme WHEE RS E R ERR A
of RMB7,010,000 (2020: RMB14,883,000) is included in BETURGE A BEARE
employee benefit expenses. 7,010,0007c( ZZE=FF : ARE
14,883,0007T ) B & A& B 1@ F|
3o
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BOT MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—-Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

31 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(d) Share Award Scheme
On 23 November 2011 and pursuant to the Share Award Scheme,
the Board resolved to grant an aggregate of 24,181,000 shares
to 72 selected employees (including an executive director of the
Company), subject to a vesting period of 42 months.

On 20 August 2012, the shareholders resolved to grant Guo Jiang,
the then executive director of the Company, 16,700,000 shares,
subjected to a vesting period of 72 months.

On 8 July 2019, the Board resolved to grant an aggregate of
28,100,000 shares to 21 selected employees (including two
executive directors of the Company) subjected to a vesting period
of 36 months and a performance target of the Company.

The following table represents the movements for number of
shares under the Share Award Scheme for the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020:

31

PR 2 ()

(d) BUpEEEE
RZZ——F+—AZ+=0 RERD
REE  BEESFARNT2IEIER
B(BREARA-ZRUTER)RHLAH
24,181,000/ /% 17» - FEEA42MEA -

BG T—ZFNAZ+H  BREFHRAR
NEIRTEITE E T H16,700,0000%
&t - BEBHAAT2EAR -

T—AFLANR BEECHRA
21%%« ETRERE (REARAIMEHITE
=) E A £28,100,0008 /%17 - FFEH
B36M[EA - MERFARARIERENEIZ
BT AIEE -

FRIRBE-T-—ER-F-FF
+Z A= BRI EE T
ROHE 22 -

Number of

shares (in

thousand unit)

RGBEE (FR)

At 1 January 2020 #fjfjﬁ A—§ 19,195
Shares purchased from the market TiZES 16,565
Shares vested during the year KEER ?%Hﬂﬁ (7,526)

At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 )5/\_2_ ZE+_A=T—HK

—Z-—4%—HA—H 28,234

Shares purchased from the market TIGEERMD -
Shares vested during the year REEEHEBRH (3,456)
At 31 December 2021 W_Z-_—%+-_A=+—H 24,778
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—_Z—-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

31 SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 31 A& )
(d) Share Award Scheme (Continued) (d) BPBEBTEI(E)
The following is a summary of the shares granted, vested and AT RAFE BRI R SIREE K
lapsed during the year since the set up of the Share Award it BEREMZRHHE
Scheme:

Number of shares
(in thousand unit)

BROBE (T8)
2021

At 1 January n—HA—H 31,054 38,580
Granted during the year AEEEEN = -
Shares vested during the year KEEDHFBIRN (3.456) (7,526)
Allocated but not vested BOMIERER 27,598 31,054
The Group has adopted the requirements under HKFRS 2 “Share- REECERMNE BTG ELERIZE 295 A
based Payment” to account for the equity compensation expenses D BER 2R ZHE - REE B E
of the shares granted at the date of grant at fair value. BRATEBEELERG 2 EEFBHEZA
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the equity-settled HE—"T-—F+-A=1+—HIEFE
share based compensation under share award scheme of UARE %R 45 E BV AR A7 B2 5T 8T8 T bARR 15 2
RMB15,673,000 (2020: RMB16,512,000) is included in employee 7 B ARH15,673,000c(— T ==
benefit expenses. F: AR¥16,512,00070) EFF AREE
R
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—-Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

32 OTHER RESERVES 32 Hfitbf#f

Convertible
bond
reserve

NEG
premium

[
% i}

RMB'000

Other
Teserve

EftttE
RMB'000

iR

B
RMB000

Share-
based

' compensation

Teserves

R r?f%
RMB'000

ARBTT

Share

and capital
redemption
resenve

ik
RMB000

Exchange
resenve

Financial

assets at

fair value

NIEES through
held for other
share comprehensive
reward
scheme

income
reserve

RMB'000

At 1 January 2020 W=2-%%£-5-A 2,603,038 12,359 192,832 109,817 260,598 1,689 21,672 (100,018) (9,040) 3,152,947
Fair value gain on financia assets atfair ~ RATEFAZH2E

value through other comprehensive WAL EREEZATE

income, net of deferred tax gt - MBERHE - - - - - - - - 7,054 7,054
Currency translation difference EMELZZ - - - - - - (4.853) - - (4%)
Issuance of new shares B 200,116 - - - - - - - - 00,116
Buy-back shares BERR (13.357) - - - - 997 - - - (12,360)
Share hased compensation IRHZ 2 BE - - - - 60,49 - - - - 604%
Share purchase under shared award RERDREE

scheme BERR - - - - - - - (nsm) - (s
Share based compensation NIRRT RE

- value of employee services -EEREER - - - - - - - - - _
Exercise of share options TERRE 214 - - - - - - - _ 214
Vesting of awarded shares BEZDRN (39,883) - - - (B39 - - 63,252 - -
Early redemption of convertible bonds 12 REBE AARES

- equity portion ~[RES S - (12,359) - - - - - - - (123%9)
Transactions with non-controlling interests 3£ RERETZ X5 - - (7.237) - - - - - - (7.237)
At31 December 2020 RZZ-E%

+ZA=t-H 2,810,128 - 185,595 109,817 297,725 2,686 16,819 (54,343) (1,986) 3,366,441
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32 OTHER RESERVES (Continued) 32 Hfttf#fE
Financial
assets at
fair value
Shares through
Share- Share held for other
based  and capital share comprehensive
Share Other Merger compensation  redemption  Exchange reward income
premium reserve reserve reserves reserve Reserve scheme reserve
BAVE
AL
N AR 2ERAZ
iz EARE DL SREE
Rita® Eftite AbiRE AREE fife EXmGE HEMSRE 1 | st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARMTR ARBTR  ARKTR ARBTR  ARNTn  ARMTR  ARMTR ARETR
At 1 January 2021 R=Ez-£-F-A 2,810,128 185,595 109,817 291,125 2,686 16,819 (54,343) (1,986) 3,366,441
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair - AT (ERF AL 2ERA
value through other comprehensive 74 &EEZ AT
income, net of deferred tax BE NBEEHE - - - - - - - (38,200) (38,200)
Currency translation difference EHENZR - - - - - (6,726) - - (6,726)
Share based compensation WA RE - - - 2,683 - - - - 2,683
Exercise of share options frieaiRiE = = = = = = = = =
Vesting of awarded shares SERBRG (5,609) = = (6,769) = = 12318 = =
Derecognition of financil assetsat &R ATEFAEf
fair value through other PEYACERER
comprehensive income - - - - - - - (2.418) (2.418)
Deemed disposal of an associate RELERERE - - - - - - - 334 34
Transactions with non-controlling SRR
interests - 32515 - - - - - - 32515
At 31 December 2021 RZE=-%
+-A=+-8 2,804,519 218,110 109,817 313,639 2,686 10,093 (41,965) (422700 3,374,629
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—-Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

32 OTHER RESERVES (Continued) 32 HitbfEE @)

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations applicable to wholly
foreign owned enterprises, the PRC subsidiaries are required to
appropriate to reserve fund an amount of not less than 10% of the
profit after income tax, calculated based on the PRC accounting
standards. Should the accumulated total of this reserve fund reach 50%
of the registered capital of the PRC subsidiaries, the subsidiaries will not
be required to make any further appropriation. The reserve fund can
only be used, upon approval by the shareholders’ meeting or similar
authorities, to offset accumulated losses or increase capital.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, retained earnings
amounting to approximately RMB34,120,000 (2020: RMB13,109,000)
had been transferred to the statutory reserve. Due to the disposal of
subsidiaries, statutory reserve of RMB3,547,000 (2020: RMB31,514,000)
had been recycled accordingly. As at 31 December 2021, retained
earnings comprise statutory reserve fund of RMB124,889,000 (2020:
RMB94,316,000).

33 TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUED EXPENSES AND

OTHER PAYABLES

33

RIBERRIINEBECEZBARETEER - B
B E AR ARRTEEHEHERBE D
REFEREEN10%ZMES - HMtREEHEDS
REteEERTENE AR ZZMEA50%
AP B AR HAELEME - FRE - RE
SREASHARBERBZIER  ZEESE
AIAER R B IRILE -

HE-Z-—F+_A=+—BILFE #F
U254 AR #34,120,000C( —E T4 : A
R#13,109,0007T) B #H & =X F B - AR
HEMRBAR  ERKREEATEFEBEARE
3,547,0007C( = = ZF4F : AR%31,514,000
T) e REEBE-—F+=-A=+—0 Bk
BIEATHBS AR 124,889,000 (=2 =
TF . AR¥94,316,0007T) °

B AR - BsTERAREAEN

As at 31 December

R+=A=t—H
2021

—E-—F —_F-
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBFIT
Trade payables (note a) FERTBR R (P 5Ea) 194,368 478,940
Accrued salaries and staff benefits FEETHEN & B Tr& A 28,939 27,326
Accrued agency commissions EETREBERS 7,217 7,914
Accrued expenses EEtEA 41,822 43,161
Deposit from customers EPER 8,871 19,279
Other payable (note) HABBRR(MIEE) 229,158 68,379
510,375 644,999

Note:

The balance mainly represented the deposits received by the Group in respect
of equity interest in Tianjin Guokai (note 13(a)). As at 31 December 2021, the
disposal has not yet been completed and parties to the agreement are working on
the transitional arrangements (2020: nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—_Z—-—F+_-_A=+—HIFE

33 TRADE PAYABLES, ACCRUED EXPENSES AND
OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

(@) The aging analysis of trade payables based on
invoice date is as follows:

299

33 BARMK - BrERAREAMES

FRIE (40)

() BENRREBRFRAHZIRED W
T

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETTT
Current to 90 days BNEfZ90K 133,525 370,081
91 to 180 days 91E180K 38,459 106,296
181 to 365 days 1815365 2,444 747
Over 1 year HBiE—F 19,940 1,816
194,368 478,940

34 BORROWINGS

34 {B&

As at 31 December

R+=B=+—~H

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARETTT

Non-current portion: ERENER S
Bank borrowings BITEE 512,000 280,228
512,000 280,228

Current portion: mENE S -
Bank borrowings RITIEE 171,114 615,080
Other borrowings HifgE 319,416 340,959
490,530 956,039
Total borrowings BB 1,002,530 1,236,267
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE-_Z-—&#+-A=+—HILEE

34 BORROWINGS (continued) 34 B8

Bank borrowings bear average interest rate of 6.49% per annum
(31 December 2020: 7.00% per annum), mature ranging from 2022
to 2023 (31 December 2020: from 2021 to 2023), part of which
amounting to RMB90,000,000 (31 December 2020: RMB130,000,000)
are secured by properties and investment properties, with carrying value
amounting to RMB25,156,000 and RMB26,009,000 respectively (31
December 2020: secured by properties and investment properties with
carrying value amounting to RMB25,905,000 and RMB27,171,000
respectively), and are also guaranteed by the Executive Directors of the
Group and subsidiaries (31 December 2020: same).

The remaining bank borrowings included:

- Borrowings of RMB524,000,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB548,000,000) provided by Jingu Bank and guaranteed by
subsidiaries and associates of the Group (31 December 2020:
guaranteed by an associate of the Group), and

- Bank borrowings of RMB35,000,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB75,000,000), which were guaranteed by a subsidiary and
associates of the Group and also secured by an associate’s
properties (31 December 2020: same).

As at 31 December 2021, other borrowings with a total principal
amount of RMB230,000,000 (31 December 2020: same) were
provided by an independent third party matured on 31 December
2021 and subsequently renewed the borrowing term (31 December
2020: RMB200,000,000 is repayable on demand while the remaining
RMB30,000,000 is payable in May 2021). This other borrowing is
interest-free and secured by certain equity shares of a subsidiary (31
December 2020: same).
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BITRERFHEFR649%(ZE-_TF+=
A=+—8: F£F%X7.00%)tE R-_FT-—
FEZE_=FHH(ZZ=EF+=-RA=+—
B:ZZZ—FE2-Z=-=%F) HFAHA
R #90,000,000 T(ZE=ZFF+=_A=+—
B : AR#130,000,0007T) AKEED BB A
R #25,156,0007T & A K #26,009,0007T 2 ¥
FEREEMEEER(CZ_TF A=+ —
B : EREED B A AR 25,905,0007T & A
R¥27,171,00070 2 Y13 MATE VI ER ) -
IEAAEEZ#HITEERNBARRRER(Z
TZTFFZA=F—AH H8R) -

MTRITIEE R

- HEARTREENBEARY
524,000,000 T (ZE-ZEF+ = A
=+—8 : AR®548,000,0007T) * I
AN B 2 MBS A A KBt A BRI IR
ZEFF+ZA=+—0 : AFERE
—EBEARRMRER) &

—  AR#35,000,000t (-4 +—4
=+—H8 : ARH75,000,0007T)#RTT
Pi%‘amﬁ@Z%&JWF“?&M%@T

HIER - WAL QR 2 MEER
%ﬁﬂ(:g_zﬂﬁwL_ﬁ:wL—El CHER) e

RZZT=Z—F+=A :+_E| A HEEAA
R#230,000,000c( =T =FF+=_A=+—
B : R ZHEMEER— BB LE=71RMH
ERZZEZ—F+ZA=+—HIE(ZZE=Z
F+=-A=+—H: AR¥200,000,0007c78
RERER - MH T ARK30,000,000 JTER
R —FRAEE)WBEERENEERR - Z
FHMEBEARETH—BNBARZE TR
EROEER(ZE=TF+=-A=1+—H : #
@) o
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34 BORROWINGS (Continued) 34 fEE )

The remaining other borrowings with principal amount of
RMB89,006,000 (31 December 2020: RMB94,651,000) are provided
by an independent third party and a non-controlling shareholder of a
subsidiary (31 December 2020: independent third parties, director of a
subsidiary, a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary and associate
companies) and bear interest at rates ranging from 3.89% to 10% per
annum (31 December 2020: Nil to 10% per annum). Out of these other
borrowings RMB86,506,000 (31 December 2020: RMB88,001,000) are
secured by inventories.

The table below summarises the maturity analysis of bank and other
borrowings based on agreed scheduled repayments set out in the loan

R4 % B ARE89,006,000 TT(ZE—ZTF
+ZA=+—8: AR#%¥94,651,0007T) 288
HifEBER—ZBIUE= A R—ERBARZ
—FZIEERR R (T EE+ A=+ —
B:BYE=hH —HHBERARZES  —H
MEARREE QR —RIEERRER) WK
FRENFI89%E10%( T _TF+_H
=+ —B:EFREE10%)E - REREH
HEEh - ARK86,506,000T( - T -4
+=ZRA=+—H: AR#¥88,001,00070) HFE
A -

NSRBI IR B R P EUAE 1 TR AR S A
RELZBTREMBERERHA DN :

agreements.
Bank borrowings Other borrowings
RITEE Hittff &
As at 31 December As at 31 December
R+=A=t+-AH Rt=A=t-H

2021 2020 2021 2020
—2--F = —E--F ===
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARBT ARETT ARBTL ARBFT
Within 1 year —FR 171,114 615,080 319,416 340,959
Between 1 and 2 years —FEMER 512,000 246,857 - -
Between 2 and 5 years WEEREFN = 33371 = -
683,114 895,308 319,416 340,959

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has no undrawn banking facilities
(2020: Nil).

WZZZ—F+-A=+—0  ~AEETEX
ROZBRITRHEFE(ZT_FF &) -
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35 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 35

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income tax relates to the same tax
jurisdiction. The offset amounts are as follows:

IESE RSB
EBGAARHRITRNBENRIAEER
BEHRAAGEERE  MREEMSHSRFE—H
BEDERER - A ERIEMSHEER B FIR
3 o ST ¢

As at 31 December
R+=BA=+—H
2021 2020

—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBET T

Deferred income tax assets FRIEFTISTEE 46,994 50,692
Deferred income tax liabilities FEEFTSTF B E (49,860) (73,581)
(2,866) (22,889)

The net movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows:

EIEFAISTHAR B 2 EF T

2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-TF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARBTT

At 1 January n—A—H (22,889) (189,548)
Partial disposal of JDSJ Group HHoHEREERAEE

(note 25(a)) (Ft5¥25(a)) - (902)
Disposal of Huicong Tianjin Group (note 25(b)) HEZBRREEE(MHF250)) - (7,703)
Credited/(Charged) to the other comprehensive REMZEURAGA (F0B)

income 2,797 (3,366)
Credited to the profit or loss R N 16,898 177,794
Currency translation differences ERERER 328 836
At 31 December W+-—A=+—H (2,866) (22,889)

As at 31 December 2021, deferred income tax liabilities of
RMB63,955,000 (2020: RMB137,978,000) have not been recognised for
the withholding tax that would be payable on the unremitted earnings
of subsidiaries in the PRC. The unremitted earnings are to be used for
reinvestment. The income tax liability is not recognised where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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35 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 35 EEFRBH @)
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year FRREHIEEERAEEE) CRET RKHER—
without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the B rERE AR T

same taxation jurisdiction, are as follows:

Deferred tax assets EEBIEEE

Tax losses Bad debt provision Total
BEEE BERE #ct
2021 2021 2021

—B--F T-FF -B--F S S
RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARMTR  ARBTT ARMTR ARETR ARMTR ARETRL

At 1 January ®n—A—H 4,257 12,054 46,435 34,915 50,692 46,969
Partial disposal of JDS BALEREHS

Group (note 25(a)) B (ME250)) = (1,587) = - = (1,587)
Disposal of Huicong Tianjin HEERXEEE

Group (note 25(b)) (F5E25(h)) - (7,703) - - = (7,703)
(Debited)/Credited to the profit ~ (31%),/E AtB%

or loss - 1,493 (3,698) 11,520 (3,698) 13,013
At 31 December W+=-B=1+—H 4,257 4,257 42,737 46,435 46,994 50,692
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35 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 35 ELEFTEBL )
Deferred tax liabilities EEHREEE
Fair value gains Deferred expenses Total
ATERE BERX &t
2021 2020 2021 2021 2020
8--f 226 c8--F Z8--F 2%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT ARBTT \RET ARET T
At 1 January R-F-H 73,581 233454 - 3,003 73,581 236,517
Partial disposal of JDS) World Group PPHEFEHAEE
{note 25(a) (FiEE25(a)) - (685) - - - (685)
(Credited)/Debited to the other GEA)/ T2 2ERA
comprehensive income (2,797 3,366 - - (2,797) 3,366
Credited to the profit or loss HABA (20,59) (161,718) - (3,083) (20,59) (164,781)
Currency translation difference ERERZZ (328) (836) - - (328) (836)
At31 December Mt-A=t-H 49,860 73,581 - - 49,860 73,581
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carried forwards to FE A 5% 765 1) 2 1R K BT RE 3 4 oK AR FE AR s A
the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through future SR ARECEMEHEERREERIE
taxable profits is probable. The Group have unrecognised tax losses of g - RZTE_—F+_A=+—H &%
RMB777,884,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020: RMB465,880,000), .Zﬂiﬁ&u TRIEE 1B A AR 777,884,000
among which RMB667,826,000 and RMB110,058,000 will be expired (ZZT =4 : AR%465,880,0007T) @ H
from 2022 to 2026 and from 2022 to 2031, respectively (2020: AR#667,826,0007T &2 AR % 110,058,0007T
RMB202,777,000 and RMB263,103,000 will be expired from 2021 to BARRE —E - —FE2—T - FRE_Z
2025 and from 2021 to 2030, respectively). ZZFFE_E=—FI(ZE2F  ARK

202,777,0007T B2 A R #263,103,0007T 5 Bl i#%
RNE_ZE-— 2 _ZT_RAFEFA_ZT_—F
EZTTFRIE) o
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36 INCOME TAX PAYABLE AND OTHER TAXES 36 FEMFTER R HbpESFE
PAYABLE

As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2021

—E-—f
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARETT

Income tax payable: FESIPRISH -
Corporate income tax IEEFTEH 60,799 66,843
Other taxes payable: e IR
Value added tax HEH 4,064 2,236
Other taxes HAb A 177 744

4,241 2,980
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37 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 37 KREXLKEX RS
(a) Reconciliation of loss before taxation to net cash (a) BPBAIFEEKSEERELE RS
generated from operating activities R AR

2021
—®=—f —z-%
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARMF T ARBFIT

(Restated)
(=75)
(Note 1(a))
(MI7E1(a))

Loss before income tax BRPTISELRTE R
— from continuing operations —REFFELE 5B (598,644) (821,475)
— from discontinued operations —REBERIHEEER (32,547) (181,564)

Loss before income tax including discontinued FTABRIEEEE 2

operations FRET1STLRIE TR (631,191) (1,003,039)
Adjustments for: FEE
Provision for impairment losses on financial assets 4 4 & R B & B & 9,145 194,415
Amortisation of intangible assets B E Y 60,391 81,828
Amortisation of investment properties VX 3 1,162 28,895
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BREMEEITE 8,275 13,840
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE 23,171 44,670
Impairment loss on investment in associates REERRZIREZ
BEEE 28,008 -
Share based compensation VARR A A 2 8 22,683 60,496
Gain on partial disposal of JDSJ Group HAHERESHERAEERZ
(note 25(a)) Wz (M EE25(a)) - (65,323)
Loss on disposal of Huicong Tianjin Group HESBEEEE Y BB
(note 25(b)) (Pft3%25(b)) = 43,041
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEME ARz WE (938) (12,664)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BERZEZ
equipment (note b) 18 (i 5Eb) 783 69
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREME 2 W - (40,082)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of associates, net HEBERARZ
(Wz),/EiEFE (16,527) 444
Loss on deemed disposal of associates, net B ERSNT >
1R HE 31,312 -
Gain on lease modification HEBS s - (188)
Dividend income xS A (2,110) (988)
Finance income [0 TN (24,707) (18,551)
Finance expense ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂi 62,778 162,761
Share of losses from investments DIREEREANEZ
accounted for using equity method A B 1R 19,232 82,718
Fair value (gain)/loss on financial assets at fair BAFEFABTZ 2/
value through profit or loss BEAFEMR) 8 (2,835) 8,779
Fair value loss on financial liabilities at EATHER AERZ 2/
fair value through profit or loss BERATEER 8,346 -
Impairment losses on intangible assets B EEREES 29,265 605,897
Impairment losses on goodwill PR E B 454,720 19,626
Operating profit before working capital changes — &3&E & & E B FiI 45 &% 5 80,963 206,644
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37 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (Continued) 7 REERELEZHE®
(a) Reconciliation of loss before taxation to net cash () BRBAIBBEELEERELEZES
generated from operating activities (Continued) FEYERE)

2021 2020
—E-—F —TTF

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETT

Operating profit before working capital changes &8 & & 8 pT& L% 80,963 206,644
Changes in working capital: 2EEEH
Changes in completed properties held of sale BIEREBR I YMES - 4,118
Changes in trade receivables and contract assets  JEUBREFN & 4 & E & F 296,456 (154,988)
Changes in deposits, prepayments and other e BRFIEREAM

receivables FE U GRIE B E 5,458 (359,068)
Changes in finance lease receivables FEU R E T E FRIBE &) 61,647 (51,613)
Changes in loans and interest receivables FEURE SR R ) B 13,769 81,331
Changes in inventories FEZH (32,838) (39,395)
Changes in trade payables FEERRE (284,397) 350,731
Changes in accrued expenses and other payables  fE&TE A & H th fE{~f

IR E) (40,563) 113,720

Changes in deferred government grants PEIE AT Bh & &) (320) (9,029)
Changes in contract liabilities AHBEED (200,186) 271,730
Changes in other taxes payable E e IaE 4,123 (7,248)
Cash (used in)/generated from B (FTA) EEZ

operations Be (95,888) 406,933
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37 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (continued)

(b) Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and (b)
equipment
In the consolidated cash flow statements, proceeds from disposal
of property, plant and equipment comprise:

37 REXEKELE2HES®w)

HENX  BERRBZAERE

EAHBRERERA  HEWE BEL
R AR ARRE

Net book amount:

Property, plant and equipment (note 18)

ARMEDFE -

W% - B KRk (FIEE18)

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEW% - BE KRB

g

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and

equipment

HEWE  BERREZ
PSR

2021
—E_—F =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
1,003 795
(745) (69)
258 726

(c) Net debt reconciliation

(0 EXRFEHK

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movement in

net debt for each of the year presented.

AEHBIFR 2 B R R
FREZ HH -

As at 31 December

R+=A=+-—H
2021 2020
—EB-—fF —EFF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TRT AREBTIT
Cash and cash equivalents HeMIREEEY 333,812 254,301
Restricted bank deposit ZIRFIRI TR 33,437 25,848
Long-term bank deposits RHERITER 28,622 -
Liquid investment (i): MENRE() -
— Financial assets at fair value through — A EFAEMEE
other comprehensive income WAZ &R EE 454,458 80,716
— Financial assets at fair value through — BT EFFABEZ
profit or loss TRIEE 18,219 20,234
Financial liabilities at fair value through BAFEFABEZ
profit or loss SRAE (54,188) -
Bank and other borrowings IRITREMEE (1,002,530) (1,236,267)
Lease liabilities HEAE (38,309) (32,649)
Net debts ERFRE (226,479) (887,817)
Cash and liquid investments Re LRsisgs 868,548 381,099
Gross debt at fixed interest rates REE MR E 2 G585 (1,008,500) (1,206,906)
Gross debt at floating interest rates BTN E 2 G5 ESE (86,527) (62,010)
Net debts B TR (226,479) (887,817)

(i) Liquid investment comprise current investments that are traded in an
active market, being the Group'’s financial assets held at fair value
through other comprehensive income, financial assets held at fair

value through profit or loss.
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37 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS (Continued) 37 REXEBRELEZHE®)

(c) Net debt reconciliation (Continued) () BEEFHEHRE

Finandial
assets at Finandal
fair value assetsat Financial
through fairvalue ~ liabilities Convertible
(ashand  Restricted  Long-term other trough  atfairvalue  Bankand bonds-
cash bank bank  comprehensive profitor through other liabilties Lease

equivalents deposits deposits income loss  Profitorloss  borrowing portions liabilities
#OTE
AR RAYE  RAVE
RER hH R 2EMAZ  HABEZ  HAREZ #0R  TREES
RESEN  RAAR  BARR GHEE  SHEE  HMBR  AfRE  -BEDS  BRSE it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL  ARETR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARETr  ARETR  ARMTR  ARMTR

Net deot s W_E-BE-F-AY

1 lanuary 2020 EhFE 331,893 8,17 - 65,387 2059 - 340 (90,670) (91995 (1,787,003)
Net cash flow EREnE (77,185 (247995) - - - - 809,157 83367 8215 615,559
Iterestpaid Bifle - - - - - - 176,091 14,540 4991 195,622
Disposalof Huicong~~ HEEHE 250

Tienjin Group (Fi&t25(0)

(note 25(0)) - - - - - - 215,000 - 29447 24,447
Patid disposal of -~ HPHEREHRES

10s) Group (F&250)

(note 25(3) - - - - - - 10,000 - - 10,000
Bchenge adusiment 58 (407) 8328) - (5,068) - - 5,556 1,866 - (6,381)
Interest expenses flEfx - - - - - - (147,670) (9103) (3.904 (160,677)
Qther non-cash U

movements - - - 20397 (358) - - - (19.403) 636
Net debt as at A3

3 December 2000 FZA=1-Br

fExFE 254,301 05808 - 80716 20234 - (1236.260) - (32,619) (887.817)
Net cash flow S it 19,693 1589 30,000 (9,409) (4.850) - 17,167 - 0013 30,203
Interestpaid Biifle - - - - - - 57,044 - 2298 59,30
Disposal of subsidaries 1B - - - - - - 150 - 39 53
Bxchange adustment ~ [ER% (182) - - (1,990) 283 - 39 - - 90
Merestepenses  MSER - - (1378) - - N AT - 02y (605
Inteest income HERA - - - - - - 16,162 - - 16,162
Qther non-cash U )

movements - - - 385,141 - (54,188) - - (28,066) 302,887
Net debt as at 31 W-E=-%

December 20! +ZA=t-82

[Eh¥E 3381 B4 B 454458 18219 (54188)  (1,002,530) - (38309 (26479
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38 COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING LEASE - 38 K&HEARE—EAHBEA
AS A LESSOR

At 31 December 2021, the Group had future aggregate minimum RZEBEZ—F+-A=+—H8 AEEREF
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of Z ERET AR L E B R &K
buildings which expire as follows: ERIRMEBENT

As at 31 December
R+=—A=+-—8H
2021 2020

. —ToTF
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTFT

Within one year —%FNR 1,705 38,705
In the second to fifth year inclusive BE_ERF(BIEEEMT) 2,415 136,763
Over the fifth year RENUE - 308,000
4,120 483,468
39 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 39 HAEE
As at 31 December 2021, there were no material contingent liabilities to RZEZ—F+_A=+—H r5EEHESE
the Group (2020: Nil). AREARBE(ZZZF : ) -
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40 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 40 XA RMBEMRRIRRFHEEE
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(a) FRRABHMRE

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company

As at 31 December

R+=—B=+—H
2021 2020
—EB-—f —EFF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARET T
Assets BE
Non-current assets FEREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIRE 1,308,554 1,308,897
1,308,554 1,308,897
Current assets REBEE
Loan to a subsidiary BERT—HEHBAF 420,046 594,654
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEEBY 167 2,103
Total assets BEE 1,728,767 1,905,654
Equity fE=
Capital and reserves EARRHE
Share capital R A 120,977 120,977
Other reserves Hib 2,972,216 2,956,339
Accumulated losses Ny (1,368,959) (1,186,630)
Total equity S 1,724,234 1,890,686
Liabilities R
Current liabilities RBAE
Accrued expenses and other payables FEEHE B R H fih FEAT FRIE 4,533 14,968
Total liabilities BmEfE 4,533 14,968
Total equity and liabilities HERREE 1,728,767 1,905,654
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40 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 40 AR BB BERRRRBEEH
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (#)

(Continued)

(b) Reserve movement of the Company

(b) ARFRzREERE

Accumulated Other
losses reserves
REtEE Hibf#E
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR¥T
At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-_ZF—H—H (487,320) 2,779,220
Comprehensive loss 2HER
Loss for the year REEZEE (709,665) -
Other comprehensive income Htt2mk A
Currency translation differences EHES =R - (12,310)
Transactions with owners HEERBEAETZRS
Issuance of new shares BITHIR - 200,116
Buy-back shares fEE AR (997) (12,360)
Share based compensation AR S 5 2 F 18 - 31,395
Share purchase under shared award scheme RIERR 0 22BN R SR B IR (D - (17,577)
Exercise of share options 1T RERR I - 214
Redemption of convertible bonds-equity portion B O AT R B — BRAEEl D 11,352 (12,359)
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 R-B-BF+-A=1+—H
E=—E-—-%—HF—H (1,186,630) 2,956,339
Comprehensive loss 2HEE
Loss for the year RNFEBE (182,329) =
Other comprehensive income Hib2EKA
Currency translation differences EHENYZR - (6,806)
Transactions with owners BERBEAETZRS
Share based compensation LARR A 2 5 2 18 = 22,683
At 31 December 2021 R-—EB-_—-%+-A=+—H (1,368,959) 2,972,216
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41 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Key management compensation
The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year were as follows:

(a)

313

41 EBALIRS

EREEASTMH
FRNEERAMBAREEKE 2 HEM
T

2021 2020
B —fF —ToFE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARKETTT
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits %% K& H #0458 HifE E12 7 5,713 6,972
Share-based payments VARRAD B ERE 2 5K 17,396 33,571
23,109 40,543
(b) Related party transaction (b) BEEALXRZ

Other than those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, transactions were carried out with related parties in
normal course of Group’s business.

(PE=ED)
(Bf i)

NS
/NG

Associate (note i) Hﬁp
Associates (note ii)

Dﬂk ]}ﬂ};

eIl

BE G SRR EM A D PAIREESD - K
SENAREERBRZDEBER A TETR
5 o

2021 2020
—E-—F ZETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREETTT
= 40,901

16,879 9,587

The Group has granted loan receivables and finance lease
receivables to certain associates of the Group. The loans are
charged at terms mutually agreed by the parties concerned or in
accordance with the terms of the underlying agreements, where
appropriate.

Note:

(i) For the year ended 31 December 2020, bank borrowings of
RMB548,000,000 were provided by Jingu Bank. The interest on the
borrowings are charged at terms mutually agreed by the parties
concerned or in accordance with the terms of the underlying
agreements, where appropriate.

(i) The Group has granted loan receivables and finance lease receivables
to certain associates of the Group. The interest on the loans and
finance lease receivables are charged at terms mutually agreed by the
parties concerned or in accordance with the terms of the underlying
agreements, where appropriate.

REEE mAEEE THE A RRLEK
ERREERETHERNE - ZEEIRE
577 HKAME 2 ERSRIEE EhE
R (i@ R ) R & A -

() #BEZZ-ZF+ZA=+—AHLHF
E %%fﬁﬁkf RITEEARKE
548,000,0007T - ZEEENBREEE
B ERBE 2 GRIRIEE BRE s 1§
FER)WIE -

(i)  AEEEEAEEETHEQFRDE
WERREKRBERERE - ZEEK
REREERETIREMNERARE T K
[R5 58 Z 1R SR IR A A 193 2 1R (fid
ER)WEBER -
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41 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 41 BBALIRS @
(c) Related party balance (c) BBEEAL&ER
Saved as disclosed in note 21 and 34 to the consolidated financial BREIMIBHRERMT2I R4MBERE
statements, the Group has following balances with related parties as I RZEZ—FRZFZFTF+=A
at 31 December 2021 and 2020, respectively. =+—H  REEERBA L2 EHD R
T e

As at 31 December

W+=—BA=+-—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREETTT
Bank borrowing and interest payable from: KELTALZRITEER
FERFFIB. -
An associate (note i) —RaEEE R E (KD = 549,045
Loan and interest receivable from: JEWMA T AL ZEREFE
Associates G/NG]| 79,969 84,126
Deposit received from: EWAT ATi2E -
An associate (note ii) —FEEgE &~ | (PR 570 1,175
Key management personnel (note ii) AR EE A B (M) 2,440 -
Cash and cash equivalents from: REUTALZRER
REEEY
An associate (note iii) — RE B 2 =) (Bt i) = 340
Finance lease receivables from: JEWIA T AL 2 BE
FEFIA
Associates (note iv) BN R (M aEiv) 180,400 236,000
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HE-_Z-_—F+-A=1+—HItFE

41 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) Related party balance (Continued)

Note:

@

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the balance represents bank
borrowings from Jingu Bank, an associate of the Group. As at 31
December 2020, borrowings of RMB228,000,000 was matured on 20
October 2020, and was interest bearing at a rate of 7.1% per annum,
and borrowings of RMB328,000,000 will mature on 15 October
2021, and is interest bearing at a rate of 7.4% per annum. Part of
the borrowings of RMB220,000,000 will mature on 15 September
2022, and is interest bearing at a rate of 6.9% per annum. These
borrowings are guaranteed by another associate of the Group.

The balance includes deposits received by a financing services
company of the Group from an associate and key management
personnel of the Company as guarantee for the loan granted to their
customers. The deposit would be refunded upon the repayment of
the loans.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the balance represents current
deposits placed in Jingu Bank, an associate of the group.

The balance represents finance lease receivables of RMB137,400,000
(2020: RMB193,000,000) from Zhongmo Group, which become an
associate of the Group since 26 December 2019. The finance lease
receivable will mature from 2022 to 2023 and are interest bearing
at rate of 10% per annum (2020: same). Another finance lease
receivable of RMB43,000,000 (2020: same) to Zhejiang Huicong will
mature on 2022 and are interest bearing at rate of 6% per annum
(2020: 8% per annum).
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41 BEBALRE @

(c) BAERATAERR(E)

BAE -

(U]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

BHIE—ZT-_TF+-_A=+—HLItF
B mESREREAEE — Mg
RAEARITZR/RTEE - KT
T+ A=Z+—H EBEAR%
228,000,000t —E-ZFF+H-+H

BIER - WIHEFIRT71%HE - MEEA
R 328,000,000 TR =T = —F+

A+HBEE  WIRFEMNETA%EHE
o & 8 AR % 220,000,000 7T #5 7A —
ToENATRABEE  WIRFEFR
6.9%:TE - ZEBEHAEE S
B N RIERELR ©

ZEHEEAEE -HRERE AT
AEE-HBEARR—AERERA
BUmzEZES  FARTEEPZER
BR - NMEEERER  ZREWUTRE

WE-T-TF+-A=t+—ALF
CRERETRRASEEN — B E
BlERIRITZMENFR ©

\>) wat

ZERERRFEER(EZS—NF
+ZAZt+RNBRKAAEEZHER
A)) 2 @& T E % IE A R % 137,400,000
T(ZZT =T : AR ¥ 193,000,000
) e B BMERERE/R T ==
FEZZTZ=FHH  WIEFFEI10%
AE(ZEZTF : MHRA) - Z—HE
YT E2Rr e aErRiGREARE
43,000,0007C( = =24 : R R
ZEZFHE - WRFHEE%(ZT
ZTF  FFIE8%)ETE °

SHEEERAT 2021 Fif
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HZE—-Z-—F+_-_A=+—HILFE

42 EVENTS AFTER THE DATE OF STATEMENT OF 42 Bi#ikRsk BB HNEH
FINANCIAL POSITION

On 4 March 2022, a subsidiary of the Group received a statement RZZE-_—_F=AWH  AEE—KRKBRA
of claim in respect of a civil proceeding against the Group (the WE—mEtEAEE REFR(HFADRE
“Proceeding”), being alleged to breach the contract terms of and T BERERTEEBYE = ZEE
fiduciary duties under a leasing agreement it entered into with an WMBEE T 2 ENERRZEEME - RIEWER
independent third party. A claim for damages in the amount of 858 AR #38,534,0007T - AARSE BH - 5F
RMB38,534,000 is being claimed. The first hearing of the Proceeding FARARHETTE —IKERH ©

has not yet been held as of the date of this report.

The directors of the Group, after taking advice from its legal advisors AEEEEERREEAZREM(ERE A &S
which have considered the information so far available, consider that WER)  BRERR  ZERRZKINATRER
the prospects of success of such claim depends on the findings of the RIOEC R RS R 2 EERFEMBEZH
Court in respect of the legal and factual issues involved in the case, and ERR - YEAREEERIFNESE REISH
that the Group has a good chance to defend its position. In this regard, Boptltm s - AREEERE - BEARE
the directors of the Group assessed that there would be no material HE - WFAATEELEERNERNAE T TE
liabilities arising from this Proceeding up to the date of this report, and HEE-Z-—F+-_A=+—HBIEFELXE
there would be no material impact to the financial statements of the I =UNCIPA IR R e NN Sl SR P
subsidiary of the Group and the consolidated financial statements of the REFEATE -

Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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